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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

While the beginning of 2016 experienced a
volatile start in the global financial markets which
impacted investor sentiment across the globe, the
U.S. economy continues to expand. The current
full year 2016 U.S. GDP growth projections are
approximately 2%.

We believe that the U.S. commercial real estate
market remains on largely solid footing, with
continued strong investor demand, healthy property
fundamentals across most property types, and
generally moderate supply growth. If the U.S.
economy stays its course, we expect the supply and
demand outlook to remain favorable for continued
revenue growth across most property types over the
next several years.

Among the accomplishments NorthStar Realty
Finance Corp. (“NorthStar Realty”, NYSE: NRF)
achieved in 2015 were the spin-off of our European
real estate business, the enhancements to our
management team and the commencement of an
effort to increase our liquidity profile through strategic
asset monetizations.

In 2015, we completed the spin-off of NorthStar
Realty Europe (NYSE: NRE) into a separate publicly
traded company. NRE’s properties are located
primarily in the United Kingdom, France and
Germany and it is well-positioned to capitalize on
what we believe are highly attractive opportunities in
the European commercial real estate market.

We also expanded the depth of NorthStar Realty’s
management team and corporate structure, including
my appointment as NorthStar Realty’s Chief Executive
Officer and President in August 2015. | am extremely
excited to strategically lead NorthStar Realty towards
a best-in-class investment platform and believe
NorthStar Realty is very well-positioned to continue to
succeed over the long-term.

One of the hallmarks of NorthStar Realty’s
long-term success has been our ability to be nimble
and flexible with our capital and investment strategy.
Towards this end, during the latter part of 2015 and
into 2016, we initiated a series of strategic initiatives
designed to generate incremental liquidity and
ensure the long-term prosperity of NorthStar Realty.
We have made significant progress towards the
achievement of these initiatives, primarily through
asset monetizations, and continue our focus and
dedication to exploring all opportunities to create
value for our shareholders.

Through May 5, 2016, as a result of our strategic
initiatives, we have completed, or have definitive
agreements to complete, approximately

$4.1 billion of asset sales that will generate over
$1.6 billion of liquidity for the company. These asset
monetization initiatives have provided impressive
investment returns for our shareholders while at the
same time dramatically improving NorthStar Realty’s
liquidity profile and providing a significant amount
of financial flexibility and future earnings power.
Looking ahead, we remain focused on incremental
asset monetizations in which we can further realize
attractive valuations. We will also seek partnerships
with public or private institutions in our high-quality,
attractive real estate.

On behalf of NorthStar Realty’s Board of Directors
and management team, we thank you for your
continued support of NorthStar Realty and we look
forward to sharing our continued progress with you.

Sincerely,

A
/

Jonathan A. Langer
Chief Executive Officer and President
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OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Information included herein was excerpted from our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015
as filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) on February 29, 2016 (the “2015 Form 10-K”). Certain
portions of the 2015 Form 10-K were not reprinted for inclusion in this Annual Report to shareholders in accordance with SEC
regulations. The 2015 Form 10-K may be viewed in its entirety on our website at www.nrfc.com.



FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report contains certain “forward-looking statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform
Act of 1995, Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or Securities Act, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, or Exchange Act. Forward-looking statements are generally identifiable by use of forward-looking
terminology such as “may,” “will,” “’should,” “potential,” “intend,” “expect,” “seek,” “anticipate,” “estimate,” “believe,” “could,”
“project,” “predict,” “continue,” “future” or other similar words or expressions. Forward-looking statements are not guarantees
of performance and are based on certain assumptions, discuss future expectations, describe plans and strategies, contain projections
of results of operations or of financial condition or state other forward-looking information. Such statements include, but are not
limited to, those relating to the operating performance of our investments, our liquidity and financing needs, the effects of our
current strategies and investment activities, our ability to manage our portfolio following the spin-off of our asset management
business and the entry into a long-term management contract with an affiliate of NorthStar Asset Management Group Inc., or
NSAM, the spin-off of our European real estate business (excluding our European healthcare properties), NorthStar Realty Europe
Corp., or NorthStar Europe, and our ability to raise and effectively deploy capital. Our ability to predict results or the actual effect
of plans or strategies is inherently uncertain, particularly given the economic environment. Although we believe that the
expectations reflected in such forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, our actual results and performance
could differ materially from those set forth in the forward-looking statements and you should not unduly rely on these statements.
These forward-looking statements involve risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results in future periods
to differ materially from those forward-looking statements. These factors include, but are not limited to:

EENT3 EENT3

EEINT3

e adverse domestic or international economic conditions and the impact on the commercial real estate industry;

e the effect of economic conditions on the valuation of our investments;

*  volatility, disruption or uncertainty in the financial markets;

e access to debt and equity capital and our liquidity;

*  our substantial use of leverage and our ability to comply with the terms of our borrowing arrangements;

e our ability to monetize our assets on favorable terms or at all;

* illiquidity of properties in our portfolio;

» the spin-off of our asset management business may not have the full strategic and financial benefits that we expect;

»  the effects of becoming an externally-managed company, including our reliance on NSAM and its affiliates and sub-
advisors/co-venturers in providing management services to us, the payment of substantial base management and
incentive fees to our manager, the allocation of investments by NSAM among us and the manager’s other sponsored
or managed companies and strategic vehicles and various conflicts of interest in our relationship with NSAM;

* achange in the ownership, board or management of NSAM;
*  the effectiveness of NSAM’s portfolio management techniques and strategies;
« the spin-off of NorthStar Europe may not have the full or any strategic and financial benefits that we expect;

e whether we determine to undergo future restructurings, including internalization of our management company and/or
spin-offs of additional assets and businesses in the future, our ability to complete such transactions and the impact of
such transactions on our business and financial condition;

»  risks associated with joint ventures, including our reliance on joint venture partners, lack of sole decision making
authority and the financial condition of our joint venture partners;

*  our ability to successfully integrate assets or companies acquired into our business and operations, maintain consistent
standards and controls and realize the anticipated benefits of the acquisitions;

» performance of our investments relative to our expectations and the impact on our actual return on invested equity, as
well as the cash provided by these investments and available for distribution;

» the impact of adverse conditions affecting a specific asset class in which we have investments, such as healthcare,
hotel, manufactured housing, multi-tenant office and limited partnership interests in real estate private equity funds;

*  the impact of economic conditions on the tenants/operators/residents/guests of the real property that we own as well
as on the borrowers of the commercial real estate debt we originate and acquire and the commercial mortgage loans
underlying the commercial mortgage-backed securities in which we invest;



» theability and willingness of our tenants/operators/managers and other third parties to satisfy their respective obligations
to us, including in some cases their obligation to indemnify us from and against various claims and liabilities;

e any failure in our due diligence to identify all relevant facts in our underwriting process or otherwise;

» the financial weakness of tenants/operators/managers or borrowers, including defaults or bankruptcy;

*  our ability to manage our costs in line with our expectations and the impact on our cash available for distribution;
*  our ability to satisfy and manage our capital requirements;

e our ability to obtain mortgage financing on our real estate portfolio on favorable terms or at all;

» the impact of fluctuations in interest rates;

e our ability to comply with, as well as the impact of changes in, laws or regulations governing various aspects of our
business, including in particular potential reforms in labor regulation and healthcare regulation, such as changes in
reimbursement policies, rates and procedures;

*  environmental and regulatory requirements, compliance costs and liabilities relating to owning and operating properties
in our portfolio and to our business in general;

» effect of regulatory actions, litigation and contractual claims against us and our affiliates, including the potential
settlement and litigation of such claims;

»  thepossibility that the net asset value of interests in certain real estate private equity funds we acquired do not necessarily
reflect the fair value of such fund interests or that the actual amount of our future capital commitments underlying such
fund interests varies materially from our expectations;

* theloss of our exemption from the definition of an “investment company” under the Investment Company Act of 1940,
as amended;

* NSAM'’s ability to hire and retain qualified personnel and potential changes to key personnel providing management
services to us;

e our ability to grow and profit from our commercial real estate origination activities;
* the impact of damage to our brand and reputation resulting from internal or external causes;
« the potential failure to maintain effective internal controls and disclosure controls and procedures; and

*  compliance with the rules governing real estate investment trusts.

The foregoing list of factors is not exhaustive. All forward-looking statements included in this Annual Report are based on
information available to us on the date hereof and we are under no duty to update any of the forward-looking statements after the
date of this report to conform these statements to actual results.

Factors that could have a material adverse effect on our operations and future prospects are set forth in “Risk Factors” in the 2015
Form 10-K beginning on page 22. The risk factors set forth in our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission could
cause our actual results to differ significantly from those contained in any forward-looking statement contained in this report.



BUSINESS

EEINT3

References to “we,
requires otherwise.

us” or “our” refer to NorthStar Realty Finance Corp. and its subsidiaries unless the context specifically

Overview

We are a diversified commercial real estate company with 85% of our total assets invested directly or indirectly in real estate, of
which 78% is invested in direct real estate. We generated 89% of our revenue from our real estate portfolio for the year ended
December 31, 2015. We invest in multiple asset classes across commercial real estate, or CRE, that we expect will generate
attractive risk-adjusted returns and may take the form of acquiring real estate, originating or acquiring senior or subordinate
loans, as well as pursuing opportunistic CRE investments. We seek to generate stable cash flow for distribution to our
stockholders through our diversified portfolio of commercial real estate assets and in turn build long-term franchise value.
However, given recent market conditions, we are currently focused on exploring sales to generate liquidity to repurchase our
common stock and reduce our leverage.

Effective June 30, 2014, we are externally managed and advised by an affiliate of NorthStar Asset Management Group Inc.
(NYSE: NSAM), which together with its affiliates is referred to as NSAM. We are a Maryland corporation and completed
our initial public offering in October 2004. We conduct our operations so as to continue to qualify as a real estate investment
trust, or REIT, for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Significant Developments

Strategic Initiatives

We continue to execute a series of strategic initiatives with the goal of maximizing long-term shareholder value. These
initiatives include: (i) sales of all or portions of certain real estate assets; (ii) sales of all or a portion of our investments (directly
or indirectly in joint ventures) owning limited partnership interests in real estate private equity funds, or PE Investments; and
(iii) sales and/or accelerated repayments of our CRE debt and securities investments. Additionally, in connection with our
continuous evaluation of our capital allocation strategy, we revised our dividend policy.

Proceeds from such sales initiatives, along with capital retained from our revised dividend policy, are currently expected to be
used for opportunistically repurchasing our common stock, which we believe is currently trading at a significant discount to
underlying net asset value and toward the repayment of a significant portion of our corporate recourse borrowing obligations
which total $590 million (excluding $280 million of trust preferred securities with maturities beginning in 2035). Since the
beginning of the fourth quarter 2015 through February 25, 2016, assets sold or committed to sell totaled $2.0 billion, of which
net proceeds to us are expected to be approximately $930 million.

In addition, our board of directors formed a special committee and the special committee retained UBS Investment Bank as its
financial advisor to explore a potential recombination transaction with NSAM. The special committee will be comprised solely
of independent directors that are not on the board of directors of NSAM, including the new independent director appointed to
the board of directors effective March 1, 2016. There can be no assurance that the exploration of corporate strategic initiatives
will result in the identification or consummation of any strategic transaction or initiative.

Spin-off of European Real Estate Business

On October 31, 2015, we completed the spin-off of our European real estate business, or the NRE Spin-off, into a separate publicly-
traded REIT, NorthStar Realty Europe Corp., or NorthStar Europe, in the form of a taxable distribution, or the NRE
Distribution. In connection with the NRE Distribution, each of our common stockholders received shares of NorthStar Europe’s
common stock on a one-for-six basis, before giving effect to a one-for-two reverse stock split of our common stock (this or any
such reverse stock split herein referred to as the Reverse Split). We contributed to NorthStar Europe approximately $2.6 billion
of European real estate, at cost (excluding our European healthcare properties), comprised of 52 properties spanning across
some of Europe’s top markets, or our European Portfolio and $250 million of cash. NSAM manages NorthStar Europe
pursuant to a long-term management agreement, on substantially similar terms as our management agreement with NSAM.



Our Investments

The following table presents our investments as of December 31, 2015 and pro forma for sales and commitments to sell through
February 25, 2016 (refer to the below for further discussion) (dollars in thousands):

Pro Forma
Amount®” % Amount %
Real Estate
Healthcare®® $ 6,683,562 39.6% $ 5,784,593 © 38.1%
Hotel 3,425,624 20.3% 3,425,624 22.6%
Manufactured housing communities (held for sale) 1,753,039 10.4% 1,753,039 11.5%
Net lease 782,125 4.6% 782,125 5.2%
Multifamily (held for sale) 377,279 2.2% 93,124 @ 0.6%
Multi-tenant office 176,135 1.0% 176,135 1.2%
Subtotal 13,197,764 78.1% 12,014,640 79.2%
Private equity fund investments 1,101,650 6.5% 917,574 & 6.0%
Corporate investments'® 112,563 0.7% 112,563 0.7%
Total real estate 14,411,977 85.3% 13,044,777 85.9%
CRE Debt
First mortgage loans 286,628 1.7% 286,628 1.9%
Mezzanine loans 22,361 0.1% 22,361 0.1%
Subordinate interests 171,044 1.0% 171,044 1.1%
Corporate loans 35,215 0.2% 35,215 0.2%
Subtotal 515,248 3.0% 515,248 3.3%
CRE debt, held for sale 225,037 1.3% — NA
CRE debt of consolidated N-Star CDOs 40,106 0.2% 40,106 0.3%
Other 25,096 0.1% 16,866 ® 0.1%
Total CRE debt 805,487 4.6% 572,220 3.7%
CRE Securities
N-Star CDO bonds"” 542,416 3.3% 504,066 3.3%
N-Star CDO equity 71,003 0.5% 71,003 0.5%
Other securities 116,681 0.7% 68,443 0.5%
Total CRE securities 730,100 4.5% 643,512 (0 4.3%
Subtotal 15,947,564 94.4% 14,260,509 93.9%
Assets underlying deconsolidated CRE Debt CDOs"" 921,185 5.6% 921,185 6.1%
Grand total $ 16,868,749 100.0% § 15,181,694 100.0%

(1) Based on cost for real estate investments which includes net purchase price allocation related to net intangibles, deferred costs and other assets, if any, fair
value for PE Investments, carrying value for our corporate investments, principal amount for our CRE debt and securities investments and amortized cost
for N-Star CDO equity. Represents 100% of all real estate assets in consolidated joint ventures.

(2) Includes $485 million of Sterling denominated real estate in the United Kingdom owned in connection with the acquisition of Griffin-American Healthcare
REIT I, Inc., or Griffin-American or the Griffin-American Portfolio.

(3) In February 2016, we entered into an agreement to sell our 60% interest in a $899 million portfolio of independent living facilities, or Senior Housing
Portfolio, for $535 million, subject to proration and adjustment. We expect the buyer to assume our portion of the $648 million mortgage borrowing as part
of the transaction. We expect to receive approximately $150 million of net proceeds upon completion of the sale in March 2016.

(4) In February 2016, we entered in and are finalizing agreements to sell up to ten multifamily properties for a gross price of $311 million with $210 million of
mortgage financing expected to be assumed as part of the transaction. We expect to receive $91 million of net proceeds and we continue to explore the sale
of the remaining two properties.

(5) InFebruary 2016, we entered into an agreement to sell substantially all of our interest in PE Investment II for proceeds of $184 million, of which $145 million
was received and the remaining is expected in March 2016 upon consent from the initial seller.

(6) Represents our investments in RXR Realty LLC, or RXR Realty, Aerium Group, or Aerium, and SteelWave, LLC (formerly known as Legacy Partners
Commercial LLC), or SteelWave.

(7) In February 2016, we sold or committed to sell seven loans with a total principal amount of $225 million at par, with $47 million of proceeds used to pay
down our loan facility, resulting in $178 million of net proceeds.

(8) InJanuary 2016, we sold a property in connection with a foreclosure for net proceeds of $8 million.

(9) Includes N-Star CDO bonds with a principal amount of $143 million related to CRE securities CDOs that are eliminated in consolidation.

(10) Subsequent to year end, we sold certain CRE securities for $54 million of net proceeds.

(11) Represents assets of deconsolidated N-Star CDOs and is based on the respective remittance report issued on the date nearest to December 31, 2015. This

amount excludes $473 million of aggregate principal amount of N-Star CDO bonds and amortized cost of N-Star CDO equity of such deconsolidated N-Star
CDOs included in CRE securities.

We have the ability to invest in a broad spectrum of commercial real estate assets and seek to provide attractive risk-adjusted
returns to our stockholders. As a result, we pursue opportunistic investments across all our business lines including CRE equity
and debt investments.

For financial information regarding our reportable segments, refer to Note 19. “Segment Reporting” in our accompanying
consolidated financial statements included in “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.”
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Underwriting Process

We use a rigorous investment and underwriting process that has been developed and utilized by our senior management team
leveraging their extensive commercial real estate expertise over many years and real estate cycles which focuses on some or all
of the following factors designed to ensure each investment is evaluated appropriately: (i) macroeconomic conditions that may
influence operating performance; (ii) fundamental analysis of underlying real estate, including tenant rosters, lease terms, zoning,
necessary licensing, operating costs and the asset’s overall competitive position in its market; (iii) real estate market factors that
may influence the economic performance of the investment, including leasing conditions and overall competition; (iv) the operating
expertise and financial strength and reputation of a tenant, operator, partner or borrower; (v) the cash flow in place and projected
to be in place over the term of the investment and potential return; (vi) the appropriateness of the business plan and estimated costs
associated with tenant buildout, repositioning or capital improvements; (vii) an internal and third-party valuation of a property,
investment basis relative to the competitive set and the ability to liquidate an investment through a sale or refinancing; (viii) review
of third-party reports including appraisals, engineering and environmental reports; (ix) physical inspections of properties and
markets; (x) the overall legal structure of the investment, contractual implications and the lenders’ rights; and (xi) the tax and
accounting impact.

Real Estate
Overview

As part of our real estate strategy, we explore a variety of real estate investments, both directly and through joint ventures.

Opportunities to purchase real estate have been bolstered by attractive long-term, non-recourse, non mark-to-market financing

available through commercial mortgage-backed securities, or CMBS, and agency financing markets. Our portfolio is primarily

comprised of healthcare, hotel, manufactured housing communities, net lease and multifamily properties. We also invest in other

opportunistic real estate investments such as indirect interests in real estate through PE Investments. Our hotel and certain healthcare

properties acquired operate through structures permitted by the REIT Investment Diversification and Empowerment Act of 2007,

or RIDEA, where we participate directly in the operational cash flow of a property. Our real estate equity investments that operate

under the RIDEA structure generate resident and hotel guest related income from short-term residential agreements and incur
customary related operating expenses.

Recently, we sold or are pursuing the sale of certain real estate assets and are exploring other sales or joint ventures to further
monetize certain of our real estate assets. There is no assurance we will enter into any transactions on favorable terms, or at all.
Refer to the below for further discussion.

Our Portfolio

As of December 31, 2015, $14.4 billion, or 85%, of our assets were invested directly in real estate properties, indirectly through
our PE Investments and in corporate interests. The following table presents our direct investments in real estate properties as of
December 31, 2015 (refer to the below for further discussion) (dollars in thousands):

Number of % of
Type Properties Amount® Portfolio Capacity Primary Locations
Healthcare
Medical office buildings (MOB) 149 $ 2,147,906 16.3% 6.0 million square feet IN, TX, GA, CO, IL
Net lease
Skilled nursing facilities (SNF)® 107 1,351,615 10.2% 12,550  beds FL, PA, IL, IN, VA
Assisted living facilities (ALF) 83 862,039 6.5% 4,330  units UK, NC, OR, MN, IN
Hospital (HOS) 14 262,704 2.0% 800 beds CA, MO, TX
Senior housing-operating
Assisted living facilities - RIDEA (ALF-RIDEA) 109 1,160,329 8.8% 6,300 units IL, OR, OH, TX, MA, WA
Independent living facilities (held for sale)® 32 898,969 6.8% 4,000 units CA, TX, WA
Subtotal 494 6,683,562 50.6%
Hotel 167 3,425,624 26.0% 22,092  rooms TX, FL, NJ, CA, VA
Manufactured housing communities (held for sale) 136 1,753,039 13.2% 33,055  pad sites CO, UT, FL, TX, WY, NY
Net lease
Industrial 35 379,788 2.9% 6.1 million square feet CA, IL, FL, GA, MI
Office” 19 337,784 2.6% 2.3 million square feet CA, FL,NJ, UT
Retail 10 64,553 0.5% 467,971 square feet NH, MA, ME
Subtotal 64 782,125 6.0%
Multifamily (held for sale)¥® 12 377,279 2.9% 4,514  units TN, GA, FL
Multi-tenant office 13 176,135 1.3% 1.0 million square feet CO, TX, CA
Total 886 $ 13,197,764 100.0%
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(1) Represents cost, which includes net purchase price allocation of $688 million related to net intangibles. Additionally, includes $57 million of notes receivable
and $312 million of escrows and other assets.

(2) Includes three properties with a cost of $13 million owned pursuant to a RIDEA structure.

(3) In February 2016, we entered into an agreement to sell our 60% interest in this portfolio for $535 million, subject to proration and adjustment. We expect
the buyer to assume our portion of the $648 million of mortgage borrowing as part of the transaction. We expect to receive approximately $150 million of
net proceeds upon completion of the sale in March 2016.

(4) Includes our interest in joint ventures that own a net lease property and multifamily property of $27 million and $39 million, respectively.

(5) InFebruary 2016, we entered in and are finalizing agreements to sell up to ten multifamily properties for a gross price of $311 million with $210 million of
mortgage financing expected to be assumed as part of the transaction. We expect to receive $91 million of net proceeds and we continue to explore the sale
of the remaining two properties.

Healthcare Properties

Our healthcare properties are comprised of a diverse portfolio of medical office buildings, senior housing, skilled nursing and
other healthcare properties. The majority of our healthcare properties are medical office buildings and properties structured under
a net lease to healthcare operators. In addition, we own senior operating facilities which include independent living facilities and
properties that operate through management agreements with independent third-party operators, predominantly through RIDEA
structures that permit us, through a taxable REIT subsidiary, or TRS, to have direct exposure to resident fee income and incur
customary related operating expenses. In February 2016, we entered into an agreement to sell our 60% interest in the Senior
Housing Portfolio for $535 million, subject to proration and adjustment. We expect the buyer to assume our portion of the $648
million mortgage borrowing. We expect to receive approximately $150 million of net proceeds upon completion of the sale in
March 2016.

As of December 31, 2015, $6.7 billion, or 39.6%, of our assets were invested in healthcare properties. The following presents a
summary of our healthcare portfolio and diversity across property type based on net cash flow:

Healthcare by Property Type

Total Healthcare Portfolio $6.7 billion
Number of facilities 494
Number of units/beds” 27,980
MOB, 24.7%

1 0,
Weighted average occupancy 94% ST T
Weighted average lease coverage 1.6x S 26.6%
Weighted average lease term 8.8 years

ATF-Nat Leass 143%

Net cash flow related to:

Hospital, 4 8%
Medical office buildings 25%
Net lease 45%
Senior operating facilities - RIDEA/ILF 30%

(1) Represents number of units for ALF/ILF property types and number of beds for SNF property types.



Hotel Portfolio

Our hotel portfolio is a geographically diverse portfolio primarily comprised of extended stay hotels and premium branded select

service hotels primarily located in major metropolitan markets with the majority affiliated with top hotel brands.

December 31, 2015, $3.4 billion, or 20.3%, of our assets were invested in hotel properties.

The following presents a summary of our hotel portfolio and diversity across geographic location based on number of rooms:

Total Hotel Portfolio
Number of hotels
Number of rooms

Weighted average occupancy

Rooms by brand:
Marriott

Hilton

Starwood

Hyatt

Intercontinental

Manufactured Housing Communities

$3.4 billion
167
22,092

75%

75%
16%
4%
4%

1%

Hotel by Geographic Location

Southeast, 23 9%

Northeast, 24 2%

Midwest, 7.5%

Mid-Atlantic, 11.0%

As of

Our manufactured housing portfolio consists of communities that lease pad rental sites for placement of factory built homes located
throughout the United States. The manufactured housing industry has traditionally demonstrated low cash flow volatility and
steady annual rent increases, although there is no assurance that will continue to be the case. Currently, we are exploring the sale

of our manufactured housing portfolio. There is no assurance we will enter into any transactions on favorable terms, if at all.

Asof December 31,2015, $1.8 billion, or 10.4%, of our assets were invested in manufactured housing communities. The following
presents a summary of our manufactured housing communities portfolio and diversity across geographic location based on net

cash flow:

Total Manufactured Housing Portfolio
Number of communities

Number of pad rental sites

Number of manufactured homes
Number of states

Weighted average occupancy

Net cash flow related to:

Pad rental sites

Other

$1.8 billion
136
33,055
4,081
14

86%

87%

13%

Manufactured Housing Communities by
Geographic Location

Florida, 21.5%

Colorado, 28 8%

Kansas, 44%

New York, 5.1% Wyoning, 3%

Utah, 184%



Net Lease Properties

Our real estate that is net leased to corporate tenants is primarily comprised of industrial, office and retail properties. These net
lease properties are typically leased to a single tenant who agrees to pay basic rent, plus all taxes, insurance, capital and
operating expenses arising from the use of the leased property generally leaving us, as owner, with minimal ongoing
operational or expense obligations. We may also invest in properties that are leased to tenants for which we are responsible for
some of the operating expenses and capital costs. At the end of the lease term, the tenant typically has a right to renew the
lease at market rates or to vacate the property with no further ongoing obligation.

As of December 31, 2015, $782 million, or 4.6%, of our assets were invested in net lease properties, including one property
owned through an unconsolidated joint venture. The following presents a summary of our net lease portfolio and

diversity across geographic location based on number of properties:

Net Lease by Geographic Location

Total Net Lease Portfolio $782 million
Number of properties 64
Number of states 23 b
Total square feet 8.9 million
Weighted average occupancy 96% N—
Weighted average lease term 9.2
Net cash flow related to:
Soathwast, 4.6%
Industrial 51% HEATL R
Office 40%
Retail 9%

Multifamily Properties

Our multifamily portfolio primarily focuses on properties located in suburban markets that we believe are well suited to capture
the formation of new households. Currently, we are exploring the sale of our multifamily portfolio. In February 2016, we entered
in and are finalizing agreements to sell up to ten multifamily properties for $311 million with $210 million of mortgage financing
expected to be assumed as part of the transaction. We expect to receive $91 million of net proceeds and continue to explore the
sale of the remaining two properties. There is no assurance we will enter into any transactions on favorable terms, if at all.

As of December 31, 2015, $377 million, or 2.2%, of our assets were invested in multifamily properties, including one property
owned through an unconsolidated joint venture. The following presents a summary of our multifamily portfolio and diversity
across geographic location based on net cash flow:

Multifamily by Geographic Location

Total Multifamily Portfolio $377 million fa o
S Tennssses, 21.7%
Number of properties 12 it
Number of states 6
Floridz, 23.0%
Number of units 4,514 Abssiv T
Texas, 5.8%
Weighted average occupancy 94% A
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Multi-tenant Office

We, through a joint venture with SteelWave, acquired multi-tenant office properties in the western United States. As of
December 31, 2015, $176 million, or 1.0%, of our assets were invested in multi-tenant office properties. The following presents
a summary of our multi-tenant office portfolio and diversity across geographic location based on cost:

Multi-tenant Office by Geographic Location

Total Multi-tenant Office Portfolio $176 million
Number of properties 13 SRR
Number of states 3
Colorado, 62.4%
Total square feet 1,021,400
Texas, 11.0%
Weighted average occupancy 89%
PE Investments

Our PE Investments own limited partnership interests in real estate private equity funds acquired in the secondary market and are
managed by institutional-quality sponsors, which we refer to as fund interests. In February 2016, we entered into an agreement
to sell substantially all of our interest in PE Investment II for proceeds of $184 million and are exploring the sale of our remaining
PE Investments. As of December 31, 2015, $1.1 billion, or 6.5%, of our assets were invested in PE Investments through
unconsolidated ventures or direct investments. The following tables present a summary of our PE Investments (dollars in millions):

Underlying Fund

Interests
Number of Initial NAV as Expected
Number General Initial a Percentage Assets, at Implied Future

PE Investment") Initial Closing Date ~ Amount of Funds Partners NAV of Cost? Cost Leveragem Funding“)
PE Investment I February 15,2013 $ 1540 49 26 $ 802.4 662% $ 17,600 432% $ 2
PE Investment ITT December 31, 2013 26.8 8 4 80.3 119.0% 2,000 38.6% —
PE Investment IV May 30, 2014 7.6 1 1 8.8 113.4% 600 36.5% —
PE Investment V July 1, 2014 7.7 3 1 23.0 57.8% 700 50.2% —
PE Investment VI July 30, 2014 75.3 20 12 98.3 77.5% 8,400 45.2% 1
PE Investment VII August 15,2014 30.2 14 12 65.7 79.2% 900 48.1% —
PE Investment IX October 2, 2014 129.2 11 7 232.8 135.3% 19,100 25.6% 2
PE Investment X December 4, 2014 128.5 13 7 160.4 92.5% 4,500 51.0% —
PE Investment XI May 1, 2015 42 2 1 7.9 64.0% 1,600 34.8% —
PE Investment XII May 5, 2015 2.6 1 1 6.1 212.0% 800 28.1% —
PE Investment XIIT May 22, 2015 287.4 11 5 454.8 90.5% 2,400 48.7% 3
PE Investment XIV September 9, 2015 552 15 5 100.4 51.8% 8,000 59.4% 50
PE Investment XV November 12, 2015 6.8 1 1 95.6 137.8% 600 42.0% —

Subtotal 915.5 149 83 2,136.5 67,200 $ 58
PE Investment 11 July 3, 2013 186.2 24 15 910.0 73.5% 19,800 387% $ 243 ©

Total $ 1,101.7 173 0 98 7 $3,046.5 $ 87,000 -

(1) Based on financial data reported by the underlying funds as of September 30, 2015, which is the most recent financial information from the underlying funds,
except as otherwise noted.

(2) Net cost represents total funded capital less distributions received.

(3) Represents implied leverage for funds with investment-level financing, calculated as the underlying borrowing divided by assets at fair value.

(4) Includes an estimated amount of expected future contributions to funds and any deferred purchase price as of December 31, 2015.

(5) We, together with NorthStar Real Estate Income Trust, Inc., or NorthStar Income, have an ownership interest in PE Investment I of 51%, of which we own
70.5% and NorthStar Income owns 29.5%.

(6) In February 2016, we entered into an agreement to sell substantially all of our interest in PE Investment II for proceeds of $184 million, of which $145
million was received and the remaining is expected in March 2016 upon consent from the initial seller. In connection with the sale, the buyers will assume
our $243 million portion of the deferred purchase price obligation of the joint venture upon receiving consent from the initial seller.

(7) Includes 28 funds and 21 general partners held across multiple PE Investments.
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Our Proportionate Share of PE Investments

December 31, 2015
Three Months Inception to
Ended Year Ended Date®
Income” $ 24 S 1981 $ 414.7
Return of capital 97.1 441.8 808.8
Total distributions 139.5 639.9 1,223.5
Contributions® 9.6 59.5 105.8
Net $ 1299 § 5804 $ 1,117.7

(1) Recorded in equity in earnings in the consolidated statement of operations.

(2) Represents activity from the respective initial closing date through December 31, 2015.

(3) Contributions for the year ended December 31, 2015 includes a payment of the deferred purchase price obligation of the PE Investment II joint
venture and PE Investment III.

The following presents the underlying fund interests in our PE Investments by investment type and geographic location based
on NAV as of September 30, 2015:

PE Investments by Underlying Investment Type" PE Investments by Underlying Geographic Location”

Lodging, 13.2%

Burops, 155%___ Wast, 12.7%

Residentizl'Condo, 11.1%

Officz, 24.0%
Noatheast, 20.0%

Primarily
Various U5  10.4%
Healthears, 1.0%

B o
Companies, 1.0% fultifmily, 9.1% DAy 2
Industrisl, 1.5%

Southesst, 6.0%
Finsncial Sarvices, 1L7%_/  Other, 2.6%
. Midwast, 1.8%

(1) Based on individual fund financial statements and includes our remaining interest in PE Investment II, substantially all of which was sold in February 2016.

Corporate Investments

RXR Realty

In December 2013, we entered into a strategic transaction with RXR Realty, a leading real estate owner, developer and investment
management company focused on high-quality real estate investments in the New York Tri-State area. The investment includes
an approximate 27% equity interest in RXR Realty, which represented a carrying value of $89 million as of December 31, 2015.

Aerium
In June 2014, we acquired a 15% interest in Aerium, a pan-European real estate investment manager specializing in commercial
real estate properties. The investment in Aerium represented a carrying value of $17 million as of December 31, 2015.

SteelWave

In September 2014, we entered into a debt and equity investment with SteelWave, comprised of a 40% interest in the common
equity of certain entities affiliated with SteelWave. SteelWave is a leading real estate investment manager, owner and operator
with a portfolio of commercial assets focused in key markets in the western United States. The investment in Steel Wave represented
a carrying value of $7 million as of December 31, 2015.

Commercial Real Estate Debt

Overview

Our CRE debt investment strategy is focused on originating, acquiring and asset managing CRE debt investments, including first
mortgage loans, subordinate mortgage and mezzanine loans and participations in such loans and preferred equity interests.

We emphasize direct origination of our debt investments as this allows us a greater degree of control over how they are underwritten
and structured and it provides us the opportunity to syndicate senior or subordinate interests in the loan to maximize returns, if
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desired. Further, it facilitates a more direct relationship with our borrowers which helps us maintain a robust pipeline, provides
an opportunity for us to earn origination and other fees and offers us an important advantage when considering any potential future
modifications or restructurings.

The supply/demand imbalance driven by the large amount of maturing CRE loans could create an opportunity for us. Even with
some increased supply by lenders, demand for debt financing is allowing investors with capital and real estate expertise, such as
us, the opportunity to make investments with attractive risk/return profiles. We are currently focused on monetizing many of our
CRE debt investments through sales.

We believe we have built a franchise with a reputation for providing capital to high-quality real estate owners who want a responsive
and flexible balance sheet lender. Given that we are a lender who generally retains control of the loans we originate, we are able
to maintain flexibility in how we structure loans to meet the needs of our borrowers. Typical CMBS and other capital markets
driven lenders generally cannot provide these types of loans due to constraints within their funding structures and because of their
requirement to sell the entire loan to third parties and relinquish all control. Even when we finance our investments through
securitizations, we maintain a significant capital investment in our loans. Our centralized investment organization has enabled
senior management to review potential new loans early in the origination process which, unlike many large institutional lenders
with several levels of approval required to commit to a loan, allows us to respond quickly and provide a high degree of certainty
to our borrowers that we would close a loan on terms substantially similar to those initially proposed. We believe that this level
of service has enhanced our reputation in the marketplace. In addition, we believe the early and active role of senior management
in our portfolio management process has been key to maximizing recoveries of invested capital from our investments and our
ability to be responsive to changing market conditions.

Our Portfolio

AsofDecember 31,2015, $515 million, or 3.0%, of assets were invested in CRE debt, excluding CRE debt financed in consolidated
N-Star CDOs, CRE debt held for sale and other CRE debt accounted for as joint ventures, consisting of 25 loans with an average
investment size of $20 million and weighted average extended maturity of 5.1 years. We directly originated approximately 93%
of our current portfolio of CRE debt investments (excluding debt investments acquired in connection with Griffin-American). In
February 2016, we sold or committed to sell seven loans with a total principal amount of $225 million at par, with $47 million of
proceeds used to pay down our loan facility, resulting in $178 million of net proceeds.

The following table presents a summary of our CRE debt investments, excluding amounts held for sale, as of December 31, 2015
(dollars in thousands):

5 3)
Weighted Average Floating Rate

Allocation by Spread as % of
Principal Carrying Investment Fixed Over Principal
Number® Amount Value Type? Rate LIBOR Yield” Amount
Asset Type:
First mortgage loans 11 $ 286,628 $ 260,237 55.6% 7.09% 4.95% 6.18% 55.8%
Mezzanine loans 6 22,361 18,630 4.3% 9.04% 4.00% 8.39% 39.9%
Subordinate interests 4 171,044 169,781 33.2% 13.04% 5.65% 8.72% 59.0%
Corporate loans 4 35,215 30,681 6.9% 12.93% — 14.84% —
Total/Weighted average 25 $ 515248  § 479,329 100.0% 10.51% 5.26% 8.12% 52.5%

(1)  Excludes amounts related to joint ventures and CRE debt held for sale and underlying our N-Star CDOs.

(2) Based on principal amount.

(3) Excludes an aggregate principal amount of $131 million related to three CRE debt investments that were originated prior to 2008, three non-performing
loans and one first mortgage loan acquired with deteriorated credit quality.

(4) Based on initial maturity and for floating-rate debt, calculated using one-month LIBOR as of December 31, 2015 and for CRE debt with a LIBOR floor,
using such floor.
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The following presents our $515 million CRE debt portfolio’s diversity across property type and geographic location based
on principal amount.

Debt Investments by Property Type Debt Investments by Geographic Location

i&-hslnfmuly: 224% Bouthwest, 16.4%

Northeast, 40.2%.

Southeast, 13 5%
Hotel, 33.4%

Midwest, 1.0%

Non-U%., 5.0% Bufultipl= location,
<

Commercial Real Estate Securities

We historically originated or acquired CRE debt and securities investments that were predominately financed through permanent,

non-recourse CDOs. We sponsored nine CDOs, three of which were primarily collateralized by CRE debt and six of which were

primarily collateralized by CRE securities. In addition, we acquired the equity interests of two CRE debt focused CDOs, CSE

RE 2006-A CDO, or CSE CDO, and CapLease 2005-1 CDO, or CapLease CDO. We refer to those CRE debt and securities

investments that serve as collateral for N-Star CDO financing transactions as legacy CRE debt and securities, respectively. At the

time of issuance of the N-Star CDOs, we retained the below investment grade bonds, which are referred to as subordinate
bonds, and preferred shares and equity notes, which are referred to as equity interests. In addition, since the initial issuance of
the N-Star CDOs, we repurchased CDO bonds originally issued to third parties at discounts to par. These repurchased CDO
bonds and retained subordinate bonds are herein collectively referred to as N-Star CDO bonds. We own the equity interests in
all of our N-Star CDO financing transactions whether or not we consolidate these transactions on our balance sheet.
Substantially all of our N-Star CDO equity is invested in our CRE debt CDOs. In fact, our CRE debt CDOs have distributed
regular cash flow since their inception. We do not, however, own undivided interests in any of the assets within our N-Star
CDOs and all senior and junior bondholders of the CDOs have economic interests that are senior to our equity interests. In
September 2015, N-Star CDO IV was liquidated and the third-party senior bondholders of N-Star CDO IV were repaid in full.

We historically consolidated these CDO financing transactions under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States,
or U.S. GAAP. Our legacy CDO business is winding down, resulting in liquidation and deconsolidation of certain of our N-Star
CDOs. Repurchased N-Star CDO bonds that are consolidated are not presented as an investment but rather are eliminated in
our consolidated financial statements and, as a result, the interest and realization of any discount will generally not be recorded
as income in our consolidated statements of operations under U.S. GAAP. All of our CRE debt CDOs were deconsolidated in
2013 and currently only N-Star securities CDOs I and IX continue to be consolidated. All N-Star CDOs are past their
reinvestment period and given the nature of these transactions, these CDOs are amortizing over time as the underlying assets
pay down or are sold.

Our CRE securities portfolio is predominately comprised of N-Star CDO bonds and N-Star CDO equity of our deconsolidated
N-Star CDOs and includes other securities, mostly conduit CMBS, meaning each asset is a pool backed by a large number
of commercial real estate loans. We have also invested in opportunistic CRE securities such as an investment in a “B-piece”
CMBS. More recently, we are pursuing the sale of certain of our CRE securities. Subsequent to year end, we sold five CRE
securities for $54 million of net proceeds.
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The following table presents our interest in the N-Star CDOs as of December 31, 2015 (dollars in thousands):

Number Amount®
N-Star CDO bonds®®
AAA 2 $ 108,900
AA through BBB 20 273,069
Below investment grade 10 160,447
32 542,416
N-Star CDO equity® 4 71,003
Total 36 $ 613,419

M
@

(©)
Q)

Based on principal amount for N-Star CDO bonds and amortized cost for N-Star CDO equity.

Based on original credit rating. Includes N-Star CDO bonds with a principal amount of $143 million related to our securities CDOs that are
eliminated in consolidation.

Unencumbered N-Star CDO bonds are owned by us, of which $408 million of principal amount were repurchased at a discount to par at a weighted
average original credit rating of A/ A2 and a weighted average purchase price of 39%.

Subsequent to year end, we sold four N-Star CDO bonds for $27 million of net proceeds. There is no assurance we will receive the maximum
amount of proceeds from sales of N-Star CDO bonds or sell on favorable terms, if at all.

(5) Represents our equity interests in the deconsolidated CRE debt N-Star CDOs.
The following table presents a summary of our deconsolidated N-Star CRE debt CDOs as of December 31, 2015 (dollars in
thousands):
N-Star VI N-Star VIII CapLease CSE
Issue/Acquisition Date Mar-06 Dec-06 Aug-11 Jul-10 Total
Balance sheet as of December 31, 2015
Assets, principal amount $ 258,020 $ 742333 § 122,771 $ 472,354 $ 1,595,478
CDO bonds, principal amount® 189,435 569,487 107,390 409,680 1,275,992
Net assets S 68585 S 172,846 § 15,381 $ 62,674 S 319,486
CDO quarterly cash distributions and coverage tests®
Equity notes and subordinate bonds $ 272 $ 4,773 $ 575 $ 752 $ 6,372
Collateral management and other fees™” 255 712 60 210 1,237
Interest coverage cushion at December 31, 2015 (IC)™" 903 5,294 421 989
Overcollateralization cushion (OC)
At December 31, 2015 52,524 120,568 9,815 91,152
At offering 17,412 42,193 5987 © (151,595) ©
(1) Based on remittance report issued on date nearest to December 31, 2015.
(2) Includes all outstanding CDO bonds payable to third parties and all CDO bonds owned by us.
(3) IC and OC coverage to the most constrained class.
(4) Based on cash receipts.
(5) Based on trustee report as of August 31, 2011, closest to the date of acquisition.
(6) Based on trustee report as of June 24, 2010, closest to the date of acquisition.

The following presents the diversity across property type and geographic location of the CRE debt in our deconsolidated N-Star
CDOs, based on principal amount, as of December 31, 2015:

CRE Debt in N-Star CDOs by Property Type CRE Debt in N-Star CDOs by Geographic Location

Industrial, 0.7%
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Morthaast, 33.5%
Midwast, 15.4%

Healthears, 14.6%
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s Nen-US., 1.6%
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Financing Strategy

We seek to access a wide range of secured and unsecured debt and public and private equity capital sources to fund our investment
activities and asset growth.

We predominantly use investment-level financing as part of our strategy to prudently leverage our investments and deliver attractive
risk-adjusted returns to our stockholders. We pursue a variety of financing arrangements such as mortgage notes from the CMBS
market, government-sponsored agencies, finance companies, banks and securitization financing transactions. In addition, we use
corporate-level financing such as credit facilities and other term borrowings. We generally seek to limit our reliance on recourse
borrowings. Borrowing levels for our CRE investments may be dependent upon the nature of the assets and the related financing
that is available.

The availability of attractive long-term, non-recourse, non mark-to-market assignable financing through the CMBS and agency
financing markets has bolstered opportunities to acquire real estate in the past few years. For longer duration, stable investment
cash flow such as those derived from net lease assets, we tend to use fixed rate financing. For investment cash flow with greater
growth potential such as hotels and healthcare under a RIDEA structure, we tend to use floating rate financing which provides
prepayment flexibility and may provide a better match between underlying cash flow and potential increases in interest rates.

Our financing strategy for debt investments is to obtain match-funded borrowing at rates that provide a positive net spread. In
late 2011, we began using secured term credit facilities provided by major financial institutions to partially finance CRE debt,
which currently provide for up to $200 million. Additionally, we have historically demonstrated the ability to securitize our CRE
debt investments and expect to continue to pursue similar transactions to finance our newly-originated debt investments that might
initially be financed on our credit facilities. In November 2012 and August 2013, we, and on behalf of NorthStar Income, entered
into securitized financing transactions (Securitization 2012-1 and Securitization 2013-1) with an aggregate $610 million of principal
amount of bonds issued providing permanent, non-recourse, non-mark-to-market financing for newly-originated CRE debt
investments of ours and NorthStar Income. In January 2015, Securitization-2012-1 with $228 million principal amount of original
bonds issued was repaid in full. We will continue to seek to use the capital markets to finance any new debt investments. As of
February 25, 2016, we had $25 million outstanding on our loan facility.

With respect to corporate-level financing, in August 2014, we entered into a corporate revolving credit facility, subsequently
amended, or Corporate Revolver, with certain commercial bank lenders, with a total current commitment of $250 million. In
September 2014, we entered into a corporate term borrowing with a commercial bank lender with respect to the establishment of
term borrowings. However, given recent market conditions, we are currently focused on exploring sales to generate liquidity to
repurchase our common stock and reduce such corporate recourse borrowings. Subsequent to year end, our Corporate Revolver
was repaid and we expect our remaining corporate recourse borrowings to be repaid from proceeds from sales initiatives. Refer
to Liquidity and Capital Resources in “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations”
for further discussion

Historically, we used CDOs to finance legacy CRE debt and securities investments. Our legacy CDO business is winding down
as we invest in a broader, more diverse range of CRE assets. As a result, such legacy business is a significantly smaller portion
of our business today than in the past.

Portfolio Management

NSAM performs portfolio management services on our behalf. The comprehensive portfolio management process that generally
includes day-to-day oversight by the portfolio management and servicing team, regular management meetings and an exhaustive
quarterly credit review process. These processes are designed to enable management to evaluate and proactively identify asset-
specific credit issues and trends on a portfolio-wide basis. Nevertheless, we cannot be certain that such review will identify all
issues within our portfolio due to, among other things, adverse economic conditions or events adversely affecting specific assets;
therefore, potential future losses may also stem from investments that are not identified during these credit reviews. NSAM uses
many methods to actively manage our credit risk to preserve our income and capital, which includes our ability to manage our
assets ina manner that minimizes credit losses that could decrease income and portfolio value. For CRE equity and debt investments,
frequent re-underwriting and dialogue with borrowers/tenants/operators/partners and regular inspections of our collateral and
owned properties have proven to be an effective process for identifying issues early. With respect to our healthcare properties,
we consider the impact of regulatory changes on operator performance and property values. During the quarterly credit review,
or more frequently as necessary, investments are put on highly-monitored status and identified for possible asset impairment/loan
loss reserves, as appropriate, based upon several factors, including missed or late contractual payments, significant declines in
collateral performance and other data which may indicate a potential issue in our ability to recover our invested capital from an
investment. The portfolio management process related to CRE debt and securities underlying our deconsolidated CDOs is limited
to monitoring the CDO bonds and equity interests in such CDO financing transactions.
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Regulation

We are subject, in certain circumstances, to supervision and regulation by state, federal and international governmental authorities
and are subject to various laws and judicial and administrative decisions imposing various requirements and restrictions, which,
among other things:

» regulate our public disclosures, reporting obligations and capital raising activity;

*  require compliance with applicable REIT rules;

» regulate credit granting activities;

*  require disclosures to customers;

» govern secured transactions;

»  set collection, taking title to collateral, repossession and claims-handling procedures and other trade practices;
+ regulate land use and zoning;

» regulate the foreign ownership or management of real property or mortgages;

+ regulate the ability of foreign persons or corporations to remove profits earned from activities within the country to the
person’s or corporation’s country of origin;

+ regulate tax treatment and accounting standards; and

+ regulate use of derivative instruments and our ability to hedge our risks related to fluctuations in interest rates and
exchange rates.

We have elected, qualified and expect to continue to qualify to be taxed as a REIT under Section 856 through 860 of the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, or the Internal Revenue Code. As a REIT, we must currently distribute, at a minimum, an
amount equal to 90% of our taxable income. In addition, we must distribute 100% of our taxable income to avoid paying corporate
federal income taxes. REITs are also subject to a number of organizational and operational requirements in order to elect and
maintain REIT status. These requirements include specific share ownership tests and assets and gross income composition tests.
If we fail to continue to qualify as a REIT in any taxable year, we will be subject to federal income tax (including any applicable
alternative minimum tax) on our taxable income at regular corporate tax rates. Even if we qualify for taxation as a REIT, we may
be subject to state and local income taxes and to federal income tax and excise tax on our undistributed income. In addition, we
own healthcare and hotel assets through structures permitted by RIDEA, where we participate directly in the operational cash flow
of a property.

Under the Protecting Americans from Tax Hikes Act of 2015, or the PATH Act, enacted on December 18, 2015, several Internal
Revenue Code provisions relating to REITs and their stockholders were revised. These new rules were enacted with varying
effective dates, some of which were retroactive. Stockholders are urged to consult their tax advisors to determine the effect of
the PATH Act in their particular circumstances.

We believe that we are not, and intend to conduct our operations so as not to become regulated as, an investment company
under the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, or the Investment Company Act. We have relied, and intend to
continue to rely on current interpretations of the staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, in an effort to
continue to qualify for an exemption from registration under the Investment Company Act. For more information on the
exemptions that we use refer to “Risk Factors - Maintenance of our Investment Company Act exemption imposes limits on our
operations” in the 2015 Form 10-K.

Real estate properties owned by us and the operations of such properties are subject to various international, federal, state and
local laws and regulations concerning the protection of the environment, including air and water quality, hazardous or toxic
substances and health and safety. In addition, such properties are required to comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1990, or the ADA, the Fair Housing Act, applicable fire and safety regulations, building codes and other land use regulations. For
further information regarding environmental matters and the ADA, refer to “Environmental Matters” and “ADA” below.

Under a RIDEA structure, we are permitted to own an interest in the licensed operator of healthcare facilities through a TRS. In
contrast to triple net leased assets, where we are merely a landlord, such ownership may result in increased regulatory risks
associated with the operation of healthcare properties. As such, we or our operators or managers, as the case may be, are subject
to numerous international, federal, state and local healthcare laws and regulations that are subject to frequent and substantial
changes (sometimes applied retroactively) resulting from legislation, adoption of rules and regulations and administrative and
judicial interpretations of existing laws. Refer to “Healthcare Regulation” below.

In addition, we own hotels, which are subject to various covenants, laws, ordinances and regulations, including regulations relating
to common areas. We believe each of our hotels has the necessary permits and approvals to operate its business.
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We are also subject to regulation governing mortgage lending. Although most states do not regulate commercial real estate finance,
certain states impose limitations on interest rates and other charges and on certain collection practices and creditor remedies and
require licensing of lenders and financiers and adequate disclosure of certain contract terms. We are also required to comply with
certain provisions of the Equal Credit Opportunity Act that are applicable to CRE loans.

We are also subject to regulation with respect to certain of our loan servicing activities, such as Regulation AB, which requires
certain disclosures regarding our servicing activities and compliance with servicing criteria and also requires that we deliver
compliance statements.

In the judgment of management, while we do incur significant expense complying with the various regulations to which we are
subject, existing statutes and regulations have not had a material adverse effect on our business. However, it is not possible to
forecast the nature of future legislation, regulations, judicial decisions, orders or interpretations, nor their impact upon our future
business, financial condition, results of operations or prospects.

Environmental Matters

Awide variety of federal, state and local environmental and occupational health and safety laws and regulations affect our properties.
These complex federal and state statutes, and their enforcement, involve a myriad of regulations, many of which involve strict
liability on the part of the potential offender. Some of these federal and state statutes may directly impact us. Under various
federal, state and local environmental laws, ordinances and regulations, an owner of real property or a secured lender, such as us,
may be liable for the costs of removal or remediation of hazardous or toxic substances at, under or disposed of in connection with
such property, as well as other potential costs relating to hazardous or toxic substances (including government fines and damages
for injuries to persons and adjacent property). The cost of any required remediation, removal, fines or personal or property damages
and the owner’s or secured lender’s liability therefore could exceed or impair the value of the property, and/or the assets of the
owner or secured lender. In addition, the presence of such substances, or the failure to properly dispose of or remediate such
substances, may adversely affect the owner’s ability to sell or rent such property or to borrow using such property as collateral
which, in turn, could reduce our revenues.

ADA

Our properties must comply with the ADA and any similar state or local laws to the extent that such properties are
“public accommodations” as defined in those statutes. The ADA may require removal of barriers to access by persons
with disabilities in certain public areas of our properties where such removal is readily achievable. To date, we have
not received any notices of noncompliance with the ADA that have caused us to incur substantial capital expenditures to
address ADA concerns. Should barriers to access by persons with disabilities be discovered at any of our
properties, we may be directly or indirectly responsible for additional costs that may be required to make facilities
ADA-compliant. Noncompliance with the ADA could result in the imposition of fines or an award of damages to
private litigants. The obligation to make readily achievable accommodations pursuant to the ADA is an ongoing
one and we continue to assess our properties and make modifications as appropriate in this respect.

Healthcare Regulation
Overview

Assisted living, memory care, independent living, hospitals, skilled nursing facilities and other healthcare providers that operate
healthcare properties in our portfolio are subject to extensive federal, state and local laws, regulations and industry standards
governing their operations. Failure to comply with any of these, and other, laws could result in loss of licensure; loss of certification
or accreditation; denial of reimbursement; imposition of fines; suspension or exclusion from federal and state healthcare programs;
or closure of the facility. Although the properties within our portfolio may be subject to varying levels of governmental scrutiny,
we expect that the healthcare industry, in general, will continue to face increased regulation and pressure in the areas of fraud and
abuse, cost control and management of the provision of services, among others. We also expect that efforts by third-party payors,
such as the federal Medicare program, state Medicaid programs and private insurers, to impose greater and more stringent cost
controls upon operators will intensify and continue. Changes in laws, regulations, reimbursement, and enforcement activity can
all have a significant effect on the operations and financial condition of our tenants, managers and operators, which in turn may
adversely impact us, as set forth below and under “Risk Factors” in the 2015 Form 10-K.

Fraud and Abuse Enforcement

Healthcare providers, including, but not limited to skilled nursing facilities and hospitals (and some senior housing facilities), are
subject to federal and state laws and regulations that govern the operations and financial and other arrangements that may be
entered into by healthcare providers, and prohibiting fraudulent and abusive practices by such providers. These laws include: (i)
laws requiring providers to furnish only medically necessary services and submit to the government valid and accurate statements
for each service; (ii) state anti-kickback laws and the Federal Anti-Kickback Statute, which generally prohibit persons from offering,
providing, soliciting, or receiving remuneration to induce either the referral of an individual or the furnishing of a good or service
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for which payment may be made under a government healthcare program, such as Medicare or Medicaid; (iii) the federal physician
self-referral law (commonly known as the Stark Law), which generally prohibits the submission of claims to Medicare for payment
that were the result of a referral by a physician who has a financial relationship with the health service provider and analogous
state laws; and (iv) the Civil Monetary Penalties Act and the Federal False Claims Act including its “whistleblower” provisions,
which prohibits, among other things, the knowing presentation of a false or fraudulent claim for certain healthcare services.
Additionally, certain laws, including HIPAA and the Health Reform Laws (both defined and discussed further below) have
broadened the federal fraud and abuse laws to enhance both the scope (e.g. private payors) and the penalties for non-compliance
with the laws.

Enforcement of healthcare fraud has increased due in large part to amendments to the Federal False Claims Act that encourages
private individuals to sue on behalf of the government. Sanctions for violations of these laws, regulations, and other applicable
guidance may include, but are not limited to, criminal and/or civil penalties and fines, loss of licensure, immediate termination
of government payments and exclusion from government healthcare programs, any of which could have a material adverse
effect on the ability of an operator to meet its financial obligations to us.

Reimbursement

Federal, state and private managed care payor reimbursement methodologies applied to healthcare providers continue to
evolve. Federal and state authorities have considered and may seek to implement new or modified reimbursement
methodologies that may negatively impact healthcare property operations. The impact of any such changes, if implemented,
may result in a material adverse effect on our healthcare property operations.

Skilled Nursing Facilities and Hospitals. Skilled nursing facilities and hospitals typically receive most of their revenues from
the Medicare and Medicaid programs, with the balance representing reimbursement payments from private managed care
payors, including private insurers and self-pay patients. Skilled nursing facilities and hospitals are subject to periodic pre-
and post-payment reviews, and other audits by federal and state authorities. A review or audit of a property operator’s claims
could result in recoupments, denials or delay of payments in the future, each of which could have a significant negative
consequence.

Medicare Reimbursement. Medicare, a federal program, is a significant payor source for our skilled nursing facilities and hospitals.
Skilled nursing facilities are reimbursed under the Medicare Skilled Nursing Facility Prospective Payment System, or SNF PPS.
Hospitals are reimbursed by Medicare under prospective payment systems which vary based upon the type of hospital,
geographic location and service furnished. For skilled nursing facilities and hospitals, there are risks that costs will exceed the
fixed payments, and payments will be insufficient as compared to actual costs of delivering care, which could result in financial
difficulties for the facilities. Recent attention on billing practices and payments and/or ongoing government pressure to
reduce spending by government healthcare programs, could result in lower payments to skilled nursing facilities and/or
hospitals and, as a result, may impair an operator’s ability to meet its financial obligations to us.

Medicaid Reimbursement. Medicaid is also a significant payor source for our skilled nursing facilities and hospitals. The
federal and state governments share responsibility for financing Medicaid. The percentage of Medicaid dollars used for long-
term care varies from state to state, due in part to different ratios of elderly population and eligibility requirements. Within
certain federal guidelines, states have a fairly wide range of discretion to determine eligibility and reimbursement methodology.
Many states reimburse long-term care facilities using fixed daily rates, which are applied prospectively based on patient acuity and
the historical costs incurred in providing patient care. Certain states are attempting to slow the rate of growth in Medicaid
expenditures by freezing rates or restricting eligibility and benefits. In addition, federal budgetary proposals could have lower
federal spending for Medicaid, potentially impacting provider Medicaid reimbursement rates. Finally, certain states have
elected not to expand their Medicaid eligibility criteria pursuant to recent healthcare reform laws, as described further below. In
these states, there may be fewer individuals receiving insurance through state Medicaid programs and healthcare providers
may continue to have a population of uninsured patients that require treatment. Other states that have opted to expand
Medicaid may later choose to discontinue or modify that expansion. Reductions in Medicaid reimbursement rates or patient
eligibility could materially affect revenues of our facilities.

Senior Housing Facilities (assisted living, independent living and memory care facilities, excluding skilled nursing facilities).
While the majority of revenues received by the operators of our senior housing facilities are from private pay sources, a small
portion of their revenue is received from Medicaid reimbursement. There can be no guarantee that a state Medicaid program
will continue to reimburse for services at current levels or continue to be available to our residents. Rates generated at facilities
will vary by payor mix, market conditions and resident acuity. Rates paid by self-pay residents are set by the facilities and are
determined by local market conditions and operating costs.

Licensure, Certification and CON

Hospitals, skilled nursing, senior housing facilities and other healthcare providers that operate healthcare properties in our portfolio
are subject to extensive state licensing and registration laws. The failure of our operators and tenants to maintain or renew any
required license, certification, accreditation or regulatory approval could prevent a facility from operating in the manner
intended by the operators or tenants.
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Certain of our healthcare facilities are subject to a variety of state certificate of need, or CON, laws and regulations, which may
restrict the ability of operators to add new properties or expand an existing facility’s size or services. In addition, CON laws
may constrain the ability of an operator to transfer responsibility for operating a particular facility to a new operator.

Healthcare Reform

The Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010, or PPCA, and the Healthcare and Education Reconciliation Act of
2010, which amends PPCA, collectively, the Health Reform Laws, and certain follow-on laws (e.g., the Improving Medicare
Post-Acute Transformation, or IMPACT, Act of 2014) serve as the primary vehicle for comprehensive healthcare reform in the
United States and are becoming effective through a phased approach, which began in 2010 and will conclude in 2018. The
laws are intended to reduce the number of individuals in the United States without health insurance and significantly change the
means by which healthcare is organized delivered and reimbursed. Healthcare reform legislation includes: (i) program integrity
provisions that both create new authorities and expand existing authorities for federal and state governments to address fraud,
waste and abuse in federal health programs; (ii) expanded reporting requirements and responsibilities related to
property ownership and management, patient safety and care quality; and (iii) new initiatives to strengthen post-acute care services
and promote relationships between acute and post-acute care providers. The inability or failure to comply with these reform
laws could impact the ability of our operators to participate in federal health programs, causing revenues to decline and
ultimately impact their ability to meet their financial obligations to us.

Information Privacy and Security

Healthcare providers are subject to a myriad of state and federal laws which protect the privacy and security of information.
The Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, or HIPAA, provides for communication of health information
through standard electronic transaction formats and for the privacy and security of health information. Operators also may face
significant financial exposure if they fail to maintain the privacy and security of medical records and other personal health
information about individuals. The Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health, or HITECH Act,
strengthened the HHS Secretary’s authority to impose civil monetary penalties for HIPAA violations.

For additional information regarding regulations applicable to us, refer to “Risk Factors” in the 2015 Form 10-K.
Competition

We are subject to increased competition in seeking CRE investments. We compete with many third parties engaged in
real estate investment activities including publicly-traded REITs, non-traded REITs, insurance companies,
commercial and investment banking firms, private equity funds and other investors. Some of these competitors,
including other REITs and private real estate companies and funds, have substantially greater financial resources than we
do. Such competitors may also enjoy significant competitive advantages that result from, among other things, a lower cost
of capital and enhanced operating efficiencies.

Future competition from new market entrants may limit the number of suitable investment opportunities offered to us. It may
also result in higher prices, lower yields and a narrower spread over our borrowing costs, making it more difficult for us to originate
or acquire new investments on attractive terms.

Employees

As of December 31, 2015, we had 25 co-employees with NSAM. Most of our employees at the time of the spin off
of our historical asset management business on June 30, 2014, or NSAM Spin-off, became employees of NSAM
and executive officers, employees engaged in our loan origination business at the time of the NSAM Spin-off and
certain other employees became co-employees of both us and NSAM. As of December 31, 2015, NSAM had
276 employees, domestic and internationally.

Corporate Governance and Internet Address

We emphasize the importance of professional business conduct and ethics through our corporate governance initiatives. Our
board of directors consists of a majority of independent directors; the audit, nominating and corporate governance and
compensation committees of our board of directors are composed exclusively of independent directors. We have
adopted corporate governance guidelines and a code of business conduct and ethics, which delineate our standards for our
officers, directors and employees.
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Our internet address is www.nrfc.com. The information on our website is not incorporated by reference in this Annual Report.
We make available, free of charge through a link on our website, our annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on
Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to such reports, if any, as filed or furnished with the SEC, as soon as
reasonably practicable after such filing or furnishing. We also post corporate presentations on our website from time-to-time.
Our website further contains our code of business conduct and ethics, code of ethics for senior financial officers, corporate
governance guidelines and the charters of our audit committee, nominating and corporate governance committee and
compensation committee of our board of directors. Within the time period required by the rules of the SEC and the NYSE we
will post on our website any amendment to our code of business conduct and ethics and our code of ethics for senior financial
officers as defined in the code.
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PROPERTIES

Our properties are part of our real estate segment, except for one REO included in our real estate debt segment, and are described
under “Business - Our Investments” in this Annual Report. The following table presents information with respect to our real estate
investments as of December 31, 2015 (dollars in thousands):

Percentage Leased/ Number of  Lease Exp(ilration Gross Carr};ing

Location Capacity Occupied Properties Date’ Value® € Borrowings
Healthcare

Medical Office Building Square Feet

Alabama 147,157 93% 2 Various $ 62,398 § 33,926
Arizona 59,808 62% 1 Various 14,727 8,088
Arkansas 121,205 68% 5 Various 32,023 15,481
California 228,159 89% 4 Various 82,535 57,917
Colorado 321,100 75% 8 Various 80,396 62,576
Florida 200,870 82% 5 Various $ 72,206 $ 34,804
Georgia 389,834 90% 14 Various 116,121 80,945
Hawaii 22,751 100% 1 Jun-17 9,586 8,814
Idaho 76,415 100% 1 Various 27,297 24,215
Illinois 364,364 81% 7 Various 90,991 80,395
Indiana 1,213,806 93% 33 Various 367,448 265,182
Louisiana 203,886 86% 4 Various 47,571 35,393
Michigan 137,486 87% 3 Various 39,970 33,971
Minnesota 34,531 100% 2 Mar-16 10,092 7,362
Mississippi 62,436 100% 1 Apr-25 14,573 11,500
Nevada 64,866 98% 1 Various 27,849 19,179
New Jersey 67,537 99% 1 Various 39,587 31,771
New Mexico 53,219 100% 3 Mar-19 14,659 15,905
New York 362,037 100% 6 Dec-33 156,965 154,082
North Carolina 121,939 97% 2 Various 41,862 36,878
Ohio 272,392 89% 5 Various 86,915 28,332
Oklahoma 62,383 100% 2 Jun-23 11,572 11,944
South Carolina 90,330 76% 2 Various 21,481 10,437
Tennessee 263,658 97% 5 Various 106,905 78,860
Texas 1,011,175 90% 30 Various 305,812 234,194
Washington 95,670 97% 1 Various 65,630 22,548
Total Medical Office Building 6,049,514 90% 149 1,947,171 1,404,699

Skilled Nursing Facilities™”

Alabama 46,108 100% 1 Jan-27 9,989 9,783
Arizona 39,669 100% 1 Apr-26 18,547 11,623
California 104,744 100% 2 Aug-21 17,493 22,205
Florida 984,573 100% 22 Dec-25 272,626 180,795
Georgia 270,465 84% 7 Jan-27 132,330 108,000
Illinois 708,075 100% 10 Apr-22 141,177 81,993
Indiana 752,706 100% 19 Jun-17 115,709 95,296
Kentucky 67,706 100% 1 Mar-25 13,930 9,430
Louisiana 66,177 100% 1 Jan-27 24,389 20,341
Maryland 37,076 100% 1 Dec-20 11,060 7,235
Massachusetts 90,783 100% 3 May-28 13,462 18,485
Michigan 69,205 100% 2 Dec-20 13,109 8,576
North Carolina 67,164 100% 2 Mar-25 12,026 8,883
Oregon 119,206 100% 6 May-26 36,682 28,238
Pennsylvania 829,305 100% 11 Mar-29 232,355 203,426
Tennessee 146,132 100% 4 Nov-24 52,955 43,658
Virginia 284,339 100% 8 May-24 72,896 53,671
Washington 111,005 100% 3 May-26 16,789 15,017
Total Skilled Nursing Facilities 4,794,438 99% 104 1,207,524 926,655

Assisted Living Facilities-RIDEA

Alabama 30,109 18% 1 Dec-25 2,594 4,540
Arizona 93,477 86% 1 Dec-25 12,710 8,998
California 172,760 89% 6 Dec-22 66,617 34,109
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. . Percentage .Leased/ Number. of  Lease Exp(igation Gross Ca}{)la;ing .
Location Capacity Occupied Properties Date’ Value Borrowings
Colorado 388,035 100% 2 Aug-31 101,974 109,903
Georgia 64,687 96% 1 Nov-19 8,361 6,911
Illinois 1,158,558 96% 22 Jun-26 216,561 181,860
Kansas 81,810 95% 1 Jan-20 13,185 5,322
Massachusetts 55,301 100% 5 May-28 12,466 10,674
Nebraska 26,683 87% 1 Nov-19 5,962 2,558
North Carolina 47,494 96% 2 Dec-25 17,562 11,132
Ohio 949,312 97% 30 May-30 220,686 201,215
Oklahoma 208,251 81% 5 Mar-20 30,757 9,469
Oregon 590,159 87% 15 Dec-25 130,922 101,278
South Carolina 58,909 83% 1 Dec-25 21,785 16,183
Tennessee 113,037 84% 2 Jun-21 26,934 15,712
Texas 748,997 84% 8 Sep-25 158,980 119,037
Washington 233,879 92% 6 Jan-25 62,518 43,801
Total Assisted Living Facilities-RIDEA 5,021,458 91% 109 $ 1,110,574 $§ 882,702
Assisted Living Facilities
Florida 29,677 100% 2 Dec-27 550 755
Tllinois 55,498 100% 1 Dec-21 6,322 6,043
Indiana 289,071 100% 9 Jun-17 36,920 25,834
Minnesota 215,428 100% 11 Aug-24 51,566 37,800
North Carolina 229,359 100% 6 Dec-27 124,365 95,505
Oregon 549,120 100% 10 Oct-23 103,978 78,555
United Kingdom 961,915 100% 44 Sep-28 432,910 327,890
Total Assisted Living Facilities 2,330,068 100% 83 756,611 572,382
Hospitals
California 295,547 100% 5 Sep-27 109,431 112,098
Georgia 31,067 100% 1 Sep-33 19,191 14,626
Louisiana 26,423 100% 1 Jan-26 11,379 12,931
Missouri 83,858 100% 3 Sep-33 34,804 33,707
Oklahoma 37,466 100% 1 Nov-21 20,354 12,398
Texas 191,445 100% 2 Various 34,270 37,976
Utah 34,897 100% 1 Sep-33 14,942 15,595
Total Hospitals 700,703 100% 14 244,371 239,331
Total Healthcare® 18,896,181 94% 459 5,266,251 4,025,769
Hotels
Marriott Rooms
Arizona 418 NA 3 NA 50,098 37,976
California 1,618 NA 12 NA 292,354 252,706
Colorado 288 NA 2 NA 51,319 47,400
Connecticut 447 NA 4 NA 46,134 35,170
Florida 1,642 NA 9 NA 232,648 184,294
Georgia 838 NA 6 NA 105,994 73,569
Illinois 339 NA 2 NA 47,584 31,839
Kentucky 176 NA 2 NA 19,373 18,680
Louisiana 225 NA 2 NA 33,108 31,148
Maine 78 NA 1 NA 11,014 10,000
Maryland 715 NA 5 NA 78,492 66,280
Massachusetts 345 NA 3 NA 65,649 53,162
Michigan 809 NA 6 NA 108,522 90,334
New Hampshire 416 NA 4 NA 56,414 43,782
New Jersey 1,402 NA 9 NA 210,952 186,208
New York 439 NA 4 NA 67,719 53,614
North Carolina 427 NA 3 NA 46,969 33,049
Ohio 441 NA 3 NA 50,414 34,464
Oklahoma 80 NA 1 NA 7,181 7,377
Pennsylvania 460 NA 4 NA 61,617 52,254
Tennessee 459 NA 3 NA 65,819 50,919
Texas 2,425 NA 20 NA 313,528 261,842
Virginia 1,473 NA 11 NA 154,440 131,108
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. . Percentage .Leased/ Number. of  Lease Exp(ilration Gross Ca}{)la;ing .
Location Capacity Occupied Properties Date’ lue Borrowings
Washington 664 NA 5 NA 137,055 123,151
Total Marriott 16,624 124 2,314,397 1,910,326
Hilton
California 382 NA 4 NA 53,381 43,237
Colorado 281 NA 2 NA 34,439 27,688
Connecticut 157 NA 1 NA 19,372 14,300
Florida 202 NA 2 NA 29,167 25,435
Georgia 136 NA 1 NA 12,795 10,110
Kentucky 173 NA 1 NA 36,707 34,075
Louisiana 115 NA 1 NA 15,095 11,476
Maryland 83 NA 1 NA 7,615 5,800
New Hampshire 247 NA 2 NA 46,681 35,306
New Jersey 142 NA 1 NA 25,732 18,216
New Mexico 151 NA 1 NA $ 27,374 § 19,582
New York 571 NA 4 NA 110,958 91,958
North Carolina 424 NA 3 NA 71,364 55,103
Ohio 86 NA 1 NA 13,354 8,835
Pennsylvania 150 NA 1 NA 17,573 15,450
Texas 173 NA 2 NA 18,778 14,140
Total Hilton 3,473 28 540,385 430,711
Starwood
Alabama 111 NA 1 NA 18,141 16,850
Florida 216 NA 1 NA 33,036 30,550
Maryland 155 NA 1 NA 11,108 9,500
New Jersey 224 NA 1 NA 39,584 31,160
North Carolina 130 NA 1 NA 20,345 19,491
Total Starwood 836 5 122,214 107,551
Hyatt
California 254 NA 2 NA 84,819 72,250
Massachusetts 157 NA 1 NA 32,753 29,055
New Jersey 116 NA 1 NA 14,510 7,680
Texas 280 NA 2 NA 34,286 28,850
Total Hyatt 807 6 166,368 137,835
Intercontinental Hotel Group
Texas 352 NA 4 NA 40,326 42,008
Total Intercontinental Hotel Group 352 4 40,326 42,008
Total Hotel 22,092 167 3,183,690 2,628,431
Net Lease
Industrial Square Feet
Arizona 322,070 100% 1 Dec-26 21,456 13,520
California 793,562 100% 2 May-28 80,371 48,012
Colorado 57,966 100% 1 Jun-27 7,869 4,951
Florida 133,397 100% 2 Nov-23 5,098 3,293
Georgia 574,514 100% 3 Jul-25 31,513 20,418
Illinois 1,421,531 100% 6 Jul-25 58,765 34,253
Indiana 117,376 100% 1 Apr-26 2,841 2,076
Kentucky 274,002 100% 2 Mar-26 10,050 7,453
Michigan 513,261 100% 4 Aug-27 24,065 18,624
Minnesota 101,680 100% 1 Dec-24 6,116 3,950
Missouri 144,786 100% 1 Feb-31 3,709 2,471
New Jersey 99,783 100% 1 Aug-24 5,953 3,300
New York 66,100 100% 1 Jun-23 6,139 5,381
North Carolina 437911 100% 1 Jul-30 8,439 8,323
Ohio 464,466 100% 3 Apr-25 19,021 13,635
South Carolina 365,086 100% 2 Jul-27 14,440 10,263
Texas 222,061 100% 3 Mar-31 8,742 5,902
Total Industrial 6,109,552 100% 35 314,587 205,825
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Percentage Leased/ Number of  Lease Expiration Gross Carr};ing

Location Capacity Occupied Properties Date’ Value® € Borrowings
Office
California 244,416 100% 3 Dec-19 37,194 25,748
Colorado 183,529 100% 1 Nov-22 38,459 30,174
Florida 68,723 100% 2 Jun-27 7,256 4,309
Georgia 54,284 100% 1 Jun-27 6,031 4,070
Indiana 333,600 100% 1 Dec-25 33,977 25,674
New Jersey 121,038 100% 1 Jul-17 22,395 15,486
Ohio 199,112 100% 1 Dec-17 33,559 —
South Carolina 165,000 100% 1 Oct-20 34,854 28,363
Utah 117,553 100% 1 Apr-17 20,837 12,646
Total Office® 1,487,255 100% 12 234,562 146,470
Retail
Illinois 50,000 100% 1 Jan-22 $ 5810 § 5,122
Indiana 50,000 100% 1 Aug-24 3,642 —
Kansas 48,780 100% 1 Mar-23 6,909 5,475
Maine 52,900 100% 1 Sep-23 6,687 3,240
Massachusetts 104,200 100% 2 Jan-24 11,439 8,430
New Hampshire 115,558 100% 3 Oct-21 20,314 7,483
New York 46,533 100% 1 Jan-22 3,187 3,973
Total Retail 467,971 100% 10 57,988 33,723
Total Net Lease 8,064,778 100% 57 607,137 386,018
Multi-tenant Office Square Feet
California 228,524 100% 2 Sep-20 42,423 30,287
Colorado 669,115 82% 10 Oct-18 95,293 70,795
Texas 123,761 100% 1 Apr-18 18,578 11,906
Total Multi-tenant Office 1,021,400 89% 13 156,294 112,988
Grand Total 696 $ 9,213,372 $ 7,153,206
Pad Rental Sites/
Assets of Properties Held for Sale Units/Square Feet
Manufactured Housing 33,055 86% 136 NA $ 1,594,667 $ 1,274,643
Senior Housing Portfolio 3,582,832 95% 32 NA 842,408 648,211
Multifamily” 4,016 94% 11 Various 328,267 249,709
Other® 521,686 29% 8 Various 86,650 56,561
Total Assets of Properties Held for Sale s $ 2,851,992 $ 2,229,124

M
@
(€)
Q)
®)
©)
@)

®

Based on initial term and represents the weighted average lease term if more than one lease. For RIDEA facilities, the weighted average lease term of the
operator is included.

Represents operating real estate before accumulated depreciation as presented in our consolidated financial statements and excludes purchase price allocations
related to net intangible and other assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2015. Refer to “Note 3. Operating Real Estate” of “Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data.”

The grand total includes an allowance for operating real estate impairment of $4.9 million.

Includes three properties with a cost of $13 million owned pursuant to the RIDEA structure.

Excludes portfolio level financing of $75 million as of December 31, 2015.

Excludes a joint venture with three buildings with a carrying value of $27 million. Our net lease portfolio totals 8.9 million square feet and was 96% leased,
with a weighted average lease term of 9.2 years, including such joint venture as of December 31, 2015.

Excludes a joint venture investment with a carrying value of $38 million. Our multifamily portfolio totals 4,514 units and was 94% leased, including such
joint venture as of December 31, 2015.

Includes a borrowing of $15 million related to a property held for sale in the Griffin-American Portfolio.
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MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock is listed on the NYSE under the symbol “NRF.” The following table presents the high, low and last sales
prices for our common stock, adjusted for any Reverse Stock Split, as reported on the NYSE, and dividends per share with respect
to the periods indicated:

Period High Low Close Dividends

2015

Fourth Quarter™® $ 2554 $ 1560 $ 17.03 $ 0.40
Third Quarter® $ 3248 $ 23.66 $ 2470 $ 075 ¥
Second Quarter $ 3820 $ 31.80 $ 31.80 $ 0.80
First Quarter $ 3892 $ 3538 $ 3624 $ 0.80
2014

Fourth Quarter $ 3742 % 3356 $ 3516 $ 0.80
Third Quarter® $ 3772 $ 3220 $ 3534 $ 080
Second Quarter® $ 70.56 $ 58.68 § 6952 $ 1.00
First Quarter $ 6524 $ 5472 $ 64.56 $ 1.00

(1) OnFebruary 25,2016, we declared a dividend of $0.40 per share of common stock. This dividend will be paid on March 11, 2016 to stockholders
of record as of the close of business on March 7, 2016.

(2) Both the NSAM Spin-off and NRE Spin-off resulted in a decrease in our stock price subsequent to such spin-offs.

(3) The dividend per share represents the first dividend declared subsequent to the NRE Spin-off in the fourth quarter 2015 and NSAM Spin-off in
the third quarter 2014.

The following table presents our dividends declared on common stock, on a per share basis, for the years ended 2015 and 2014:

Declaration Date Dividend

2015

November 3" $ 0.75
August 4% $ 0.80
May 5@ $ 0.80
February 25 $ 0.80
M@)

October 29 $ 0.80
August 6 $ 1.00
May 7 $ 1.00
February 26 $ 1.00

(1) Represents the dividend subsequent to the NRE Spin-off.
(2) Adjusted for the Reverse Split effected on November 1, 2015.

Refer to “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Liquidity and Capital
Resources” for a discussion of our dividend policy. On February 25, 2016, the closing sales price for our common stock, as
reported onthe NYSE, was $12.47. As of February 25,2016, there were 3,826 record holders of our common stock and 184,377,751
shares outstanding. This figure does not reflect the beneficial ownership of shares held in nominee name.

Performance Graph

Set forth below is a graph comparing the cumulative stockholder return on shares of our common stock with the cumulative
total return of the NAREIT All REIT Index and the Russell 2000 Index. The period shown commences on December 31, 2010
through December 31, 2015, the end of our most recently completed fiscal year. The graph assumes an investment of $100 on
December 31, 2010 and the reinvestment of any dividends. The stock price performance shown on this graph is not necessarily
indicative of further price performance. The information on the graph and the table below was obtained from NAREIT®,
Russell Investments and Bloomberg Finance, LP.
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NorthStar Realty Finance Corp.

Total Return Performance
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Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities
None.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Affiliated Purchasers

The following table provides the information with respect to purchases made by us of our common stock during the three months

ended December 31, 2015:
Total Number of Approximate Dollar
Total Number of Shares Purchased as Value of Shares that
Shares Average Price Paid Part of Publicly May Yet Be Purchased
Period Repurchased” per Share” Announced Program”  Under the Program®®
November 1 - November 30 2,321,050 $ 18.67 3,064,400 $ 438,498,876
December 1 - December 31 3,405,968 $ 16.58 6,470,368 $ 382,025,797

(1) Adjusted for the one-for-two reverse stock split completed on November 1, 2015.

(2) On September 29, 2015, we announced that our board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to $500 million of our outstanding common

stock. The authorization expires on September 29, 2016, unless otherwise extended by our board of directors.
(3) Since announcement, we acquired 6.5 million shares for $118 million, with $382 million remaining under the authorization.
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The information below should be read in conjunction with “Risk Factors” in our 2015 Form 10-K and “Forward-Looking
Statements,” “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and our consolidated
financial statements and the related notes thereto included in “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,” included in this
Annual Report.

The selected historical consolidated information presented for the five years ended December 31, 2015 relates to our operations
and has been derived from our audited consolidated statements of operations included in this Annual Report or our prior
Annual Reports on Form 10-K, as amended (if applicable). The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2015 include: (i) our results of operations for the two months ended December 31, 2015 which represents our
results of operations following the NRE Spin-off on October 31, 2015; and (ii) our results of operations for the ten months
ended October 31, 2015 which includes a carve-out of revenues and expenses attributable to NRE recorded in discontinued
operations. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 include: (i) our results of
operations for the six months ended December 31, 2014 which represents our results of operations following the NSAM
Spin-off; and (ii) our results of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 which includes a carve-out of revenues
and expenses attributable to NSAM recorded in discontinued operations. Our historical financial information for the three
years ended December 31, 2013 was prepared on the same basis as the ten months ended October 31, 2015 and six months
ended June 30, 2014. As a result, our results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 may not be
comparative to our results of operations reported for the prior period presented. In addition, we have reclassified certain
amounts in our historical audited consolidated financial statements, including amounts related to certain properties reclassified
as held for sale during the period. These reclassifications had no effect on our reported net income (loss) or CAD.

Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Operating Data: (Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Total property and other revenues $ 1,817,436 $§ 679,500 $ 240,847 $ 114308 $ 109,402
Net interest income on debt and securities 218,805 298,139 266,357 335,496 355,921
Total expenses 2,210,001 1,062,287 370,765 240,076 289,887
Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated ventures 219,077 165,053 91,726 88 (2,738)
Income (loss) from continuing operations (158,713) (276,385) (79,149) (257,718) (234,173)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (108,554) (44,701) (8,761) (17,450) (25,551)
Net income (loss) (267,267) (321,086) (87,910) (273,089) (242,526)
Net income (loss) attributable to NorthStar Realty Finance Corp. common
stockholders (327,497) (371,507) (137,453) (288,587) (263,014)
Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic $ (1.87) $ 3.79) $ (2.60) $ 9.22) $ (11.34)

Diluted $ (1.87) $ 3.79) $ (2.60) $ 9.22) $ (11.34)
Dividends per share of common stock"® $ 275 8 3.60 3 340 3 264 3 1.84

(1) Adjusted for the Reverse Split completed on November 1, 2015.
(2) The dividend per share for the third and fourth quarter 2015 represents the dividends declared subsequent to the NRE Spin-off.

As of December 31,
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Balance Sheet Data: (Dollars in thousands)

Cash and cash equivalents $ 224,101 $ 296,964 $ 635,990 $ 444927 $ 144,508
Operating real estate, net 8,702,259 10,212,004 2,370,183 1,390,546 1,089,449
Real estate debt investments, net 501,474 1,067,667 1,031,078 1,832,231 1,710,582
Real estate debt investments, held for sale 224,677 — — — —
Investments in private equity funds, at fair value 1,101,650 962,038 586,018 — —
Investments in unconsolidated ventures 155,737 207,777 142,340 111,025 96,143
Real estate securities, available for sale 702,110 878,514 1,052,320 1,124,668 1,473,305
Assets of properties held for sale 2,742,635 29,012 30,063 — 3,198
Total assets 15,403,045 15,178,712 6,360,050 5,513,778 5,006,437
Total borrowings 10,533,785 9,734,262 3,342,071 3,790,072 3,509,126
Total liabilities 11,187,315 10,465,056 3,662,587 4,182,914 3,966,823
Preferred stock 939,118 939,118 697,352 504,018 241,372
Total equity 4,215,730 4,713,656 2,697,463 1,330,864 1,039,614
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Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Other Data: (Dollars in thousands)
Cash flow provided by (used in):
Operating activities $ 520,658 $ 144,856 $ 240,674 $ 76,911  § 59,066
Investing activities (3,006,574) (7,054,227) (2,285,153) 51,901 383,323
Financing activities 2,417,491 6,572,518 2,235,542 171,607 (423,320)
Effect of foreign currency translation on cash and cash
equivalents (4,438) (2,173) — — —

CAD for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $572 million. NOI for the three months ended December 31, 2015 was $221
million. Refer to “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations - Non-GAAP Financial
Measures” for details on the calculation of CAD and NOI including a reconciliation of CAD to net income (loss) attributable to
common stockholders calculated in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in
“Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in this Annual Report and risk factors in Part I, Item 1A. “Risk Factors” of the
2015 Form 10-K. References to “N-Star,” “NorthStar Realty,” “we,” “us” or “our” refer to NorthStar Realty Finance Corp. and
its subsidiaries unless the context specifically requires otherwise.

Introduction

We are a diversified commercial real estate company, with 85% of our total assets invested directly or indirectly in real estate,
of which 78% is invested in direct real estate. We generated 89% of our revenue from our real estate portfolio for the year
ended December 31, 2015. We invest in multiple asset classes across commercial real estate that we expect will generate
attractive risk-adjusted returns and may take the form of acquiring real estate, originating or acquiring senior or subordinate
loans, as well as pursuing opportunistic CRE investments. We seck to generate stable cash flow for distribution to our
stockholders through our diversified portfolio of commercial real estate assets and in turn build long-term franchise value.
However, given recent market conditions, we are currently focused on exploring sales to generate liquidity to repurchase our
common stock and reduce our leverage.

We are a Maryland corporation and completed our initial public offering in October 2004. We conduct our operations so as to
continue to qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes.

Significant Developments

Strategic Initiatives

We continue to execute a series of strategic initiatives with the goal of maximizing long-term shareholder value. These
initiatives include: (i) sales of all or portions of certain real estate assets; (ii) sales of all or a portion of our PE Investments; and
(ii1) sales and/or accelerated repayments of our CRE debt and securities investments. Additionally, in connection with our
continuous evaluation of our capital allocation strategy, we revised our dividend policy.

Proceeds from such sales initiatives, along with capital retained from our revised dividend policy, are currently expected to be
used for opportunistically repurchasing our common stock, which we believe is currently trading at a significant discount to
underlying net asset value and toward repayment of a significant portion of our corporate recourse borrowing obligations which
total $590 million (excluding $280 million of trust preferred securities with maturities beginning in 2035). Since the beginning
of the fourth quarter 2015 through February 2016, assets sold or committed to sell totaled $2.0 billion, of which net proceeds to
us are expected to be approximately $930 million.

In addition, our board of directors formed a special committee and the special committee retained UBS Investment Bank as its
financial advisor to explore a potential recombination transaction with NSAM. The special committee will be comprised solely
of independent directors that are not on the board of directors of NSAM, including the new independent director appointed to
the board of directors effective March 1, 2016. There can be no assurance that the exploration of corporate strategic initiatives
will result in the identification or consummation of any strategic transaction or initiative.

Spin-offs

On June 30, 2014, we completed the NSAM Spin-off in the form of a tax-free distribution. Effective upon the NSAM Spin-off,
we are externally managed and advised by an affiliate of NorthStar Asset Management Group Inc. (NYSE: NSAM), which together
with its affiliates is referred to as NSAM.

On October 31, 2015, we completed the NRE Spin-off of our European real estate business into a separate publicly-traded REIT
in the form of a taxable distribution. In connection with the NRE Distribution, each of our common stockholders received shares
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of NorthStar Europe’s common stock on a one-for-six basis, before giving effect to a one-for-two Reverse Split of our common
stock. We contributed to NorthStar Europe approximately $2.6 billion of European real estate, at cost (excluding our European
healthcare properties), comprised of 52 properties spanning across some of Europe’s top markets and $250 million of cash. NSAM
manages NorthStar Europe pursuant to a long-term management agreement, on substantially similar terms as our management
agreement with NSAM.

Summary of Business

Our primary business lines are as follows:

Real Estate - Our real estate business concentrates on various types of investments in commercial real estate located
throughout the United States that includes healthcare, hotel, manufactured housing communities, net lease, multifamily and
multi-tenant office properties. In addition, it includes certain healthcare properties located outside of the United States and
PE Investments, diversified by property type and geography.

*  Healthcare - Our healthcare properties are comprised of a diverse portfolio of medical office buildings, senior housing,
skilled nursing and other healthcare properties. The majority of our healthcare properties are medical office buildings
and properties structured under a net lease to healthcare operators. In addition, we own senior operating facilities,
which include independent living facilities and healthcare properties that operate through management agreements
with independent third-party operators, predominantly through RIDEA structures that permit us, through a TRS to have
direct exposure to resident fee income and incur customary related operating expenses. In February 2016, we entered
into an agreement to sell our 60% interest in the Senior Housing Portfolio for $535 million, subject to proration and
adjustment. We expect the buyer to assume our portion of the $648 million of related mortgage financing. We expect
to receive approximately $150 million of net proceeds upon completion of the sale in March 2016. Such asset and
related liability is classified as held for sale on our consolidated balance sheet.

e Hotel - Our hotel portfolio is a geographically diverse portfolio primarily comprised of extended stay hotels and
premium branded select service hotels primarily located in major metropolitan markets with the majority affiliated
with top hotel brands.

e Manufactured Housing - Our manufactured housing portfolio consists of communities that lease pad rental sites for
placement of factory built homes located throughout the United States. In addition, the portfolio includes manufactured
homes and receivables related to the financing of homes sold to residents. Currently, we are exploring the sale of our
manufactured housing portfolio and such assets and related liabilities are classified as held for sale on our consolidated
balance sheet.

*  Net Lease - Our net lease properties are primarily industrial, office and retail properties typically under net leases to
corporate tenants.

e Multifamily - Our multifamily portfolio primarily focuses on properties located in suburban markets that are well suited
to capture the formation of new households. Currently, we are exploring the sale of our multifamily portfolio and in
February 2016, we entered in and are finalizing agreements to sell up to ten multifamily properties for $311 million
with $210 million of related mortgage financing expected to be assumed as part of the transaction. We expect to receive
$91 million of net proceeds and continue to explore the sale of the remaining two properties. Such assets and related
liabilities are classified as held for sale on our consolidated balance sheet.

e Multi-tenant Office - We pursue the acquisition of multi-tenant office properties currently focused on the western
United States.

* PE Investments - Our real estate business also includes investments (directly or indirectly in joint ventures) owning
PE Investments managed by institutional quality sponsors and diversified by property type and geography. In February
2016, we sold substantially all of our interest in PE Investment II for $184 million of proceeds and are exploring the
sale of our remaining PE Investments.

Commercial Real Estate Debt - Our CRE debt business is focused on originating, acquiring and asset managing senior and
subordinate debt investments secured primarily by commercial real estate and includes first mortgage loans, subordinate
mortgage and mezzanine loans and participations in such loans and preferred equity interests. We may from time to time
take title to collateral in connection with a CRE debt investment as real estate owned, or REO, which would be included
in our CRE debt business. In February 2016, we sold or committed to sell seven debt investments with a total principal
amount of $225 million at par, with $47 million of proceeds used to pay down our loan facility, resulting in $178 million
of net proceeds.

Commercial Real Estate Securities - Our CRE securities business is predominately comprised of N-Star CDO bonds and
N-Star CDO equity of deconsolidated N-Star CDOs and includes other securities, mostly conduit CMBS, meaning each
asset is a pool backed by a large number of commercial real estate loans. We also invested in opportunistic CRE securities
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such as an investment in a “B-piece” CMBS. Subsequent to year end, we sold certain CRE securities for $54 million of
net proceeds.

We have the ability to invest in a broad spectrum of commercial real estate assets and seek to provide attractive risk-adjusted
returns. Our ability to invest across the CRE market creates complementary and overlapping sources of investment opportunities
based upon common reliance on real estate fundamentals and application of similar portfolio management skills to maximize
value and to protect capital. Additionally, we have pursued opportunistic investments across all our business lines including CRE
equity and debt investments. Examples of opportunistic investments include PE Investments, strategic joint ventures and
repurchasing our CDO bonds at a discount to their principal amount.

In 2015, we issued aggregate capital of $1.3 billion from the issuance of common equity. In 2014, we issued aggregate net capital
of $2.6 billion, including $1.3 billion from the issuance of common equity (including the remaining shares issued under a forward
sale agreement in February 2015 for net proceeds of $122 million), $1.1 billion as part of the consideration for the merger of with
Griffin-American and $242 million from the issuance of preferred equity.

We predominantly use investment-level financing as part of our strategy to prudently leverage our investments and deliver attractive
risk-adjusted returns to our stockholders. We pursue a variety of financing arrangements such as mortgage notes from the CMBS
market, government-sponsored agencies, finance companies, banks and securitization financing transactions. In addition, we use
corporate-level financing such as credit facilities and other term borrowings. We generally seek to limit our reliance on recourse
borrowings. Borrowing levels for our CRE investments may be dependent upon the nature of the assets and the related financing
that is available.

The availability of attractive long-term, non-recourse, non mark-to-market, assignable financing through the CMBS and agency
financing markets has bolstered opportunities to acquire real estate in the past few years. For longer duration, stable investment
cash flow such as those derived from net lease assets, we tend to use fixed rate financing. For investment cash flow with greater
growth potential such as hotels and healthcare under a RIDEA structure, we tend to use floating rate financing which provides
prepayment flexibility and may provide a better match between underlying cash flow and potential increases in interest rates.

Our financing strategy for debt investments is to obtain match-funded borrowing at rates that provide a positive net spread. In
late 2011, we began using secured term credit facilities provided by major financial institutions to partially finance CRE debt
which currently provide for an aggregate of up to $200 million. Additionally, we have historically demonstrated the ability to
securitize our CRE debt investments and expect to continue to pursue similar transactions to finance our newly-originated debt
investments that might initially be financed on our credit facilities. In November 2012 and August 2013, we, and on behalf of
NorthStar Income entered into securitization financing transactions with an aggregate $610 million of principal amount of bonds
issued providing permanent, non-recourse, non-mark-to-market financing for newly-originated CRE debt investments of ours and
NorthStar Income. We will continue to seek to use the capital markets to finance any new debt investments. In January 2015,
Securitization-2012-1 with $228 million principal amount of original bonds issued was repaid in full.

With respect to corporate-level financing, in August 2014, we entered into a Corporate Revolver with certain commercial bank
lenders, with a total current commitment amount of $250 million for a three-year term. In September 2014, we entered into a
corporate term borrowing with a commercial bank lender with respect to the establishment of term borrowings. Subsequent to
year end, our Corporate Revolver was repaid and we expect our remaining corporate recourse borrowings to be repaid from
proceeds from sales initiatives. Refer to Liquidity and Capital Resources for further discussion.

We believe that we maintain a competitive advantage through a combination of deep industry relationships and access to market
leading CRE credit underwriting and capital markets expertise which enables us to manage credit risk across our business lines
as well as to structure and finance our assets efficiently. Our ability to invest across the spectrum of commercial real estate
investments allows us to take advantage of complementary and overlapping sources of investment opportunities based on acommon
reliance on CRE fundamentals and application of similar underwriting and asset management skills as we seek to maximize
stockholder value and to protect our capital. However, we are currently focused on exploring sales to generate liquidity to repurchase
our common stock and reduce our leverage.

Sources of Operating Revenues and Cash Flows

We primarily generate revenue from rental and other operating income from our real estate properties and net interest income on
our CRE debt and securities portfolios. Additionally, we record equity in earnings of unconsolidated ventures, including from PE
Investments. Our income is primarily derived through the difference between revenue and the cost at which we are able to finance
our investments. We may also acquire investments which generate attractive returns without any leverage.

Operations of our hotel portfolio are affected by seasonal patterns resulting from overall economic cycles, geographic locations,
weather and customer mix at the hotels. Generally, we expect our hotel portfolio to have higher revenue, operating income and
cash flow in the second and third quarters of each year and lower revenue, operating income and cash flow in the first and fourth
quarters of each year.
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Profitability and Performance Metrics

We calculate CAD and NOI as metrics to evaluate the profitability and performance of our business (refer to “Non-GAAP Financial
Measures” for a description of these metrics).

Outlook and Recent Trends

The U.S. economy has improved, with the Federal Reserve raising the Federal Funds Rate for the first time in nine years in
December 2015. Concerns remain regarding low inflation in the United States, a stronger U.S. dollar, slow global growth and
international market volatility. Many other global central banks are easing monetary conditions to combat their low inflation and
stagnant growth.

Our business and operations are dependent on the commercial real estate industry generally, which in turn is dependent upon broad
economic conditions in the United States, Europe, China and elsewhere. Recently, concerns over global economic conditions,
energy and commodity prices, geopolitical issues, deflation, foreign exchange rates, the availability and cost of credit, the sovereign
debt crisis, the Chinese economy, the U.S. mortgage market and a potentially weakening real estate market in the United States
have contributed to increased economic uncertainty and diminished expectations for the global economy. These factors, combined
with volatile prices of oil and declining business and consumer confidence, may precipitate an economic slowdown, as well as
cause extreme volatility in security prices. The concern of a possible recession is resulting in uncertainty regarding the timing of
the next Federal Reserve increase to the Federal Funds Rate.

CRE fundamentals remain relatively healthy across U.S. property types. Robust investor demand in 2014 for commercial real
estate increased transaction activity and prices as rent and vacancy fundamentals improved across most property sectors and
continued to improve in 2015, especially in the real estate private markets. However, property price appreciation has slowed and
the markets may be in the later stage of the current real estate cycle and could lead to a recession.

Global economic and political headwinds, along with global market instability and the risk that maturing commercial real estate
debt may have difficulties being refinanced, among other factors, may continue to cause periodic volatility in the commercial real
estate market for some time. It is currently estimated that approximately $1.4 trillion of commercial real estate debt in the United
States will mature through 2018. While there appears to be a supply of available liquidity and improved fundamentals in the
commercial real estate market, we still anticipate that certain of these loans will not be able to be refinanced, potentially inhibiting
growth and contracting credit.

The recent volatility in the equity markets has and may continue to diminish our capital raising activity. A return to weak economic
conditions in the future, such as those of the credit crisis of 2008, could reduce a tenant’s/operator’s/resident’s/guest’s ability to
make payments in accordance with the contractual terms and could weaken demand for companies to lease or occupy new space.
To the extent that market rental and occupancy rates weaken, property-level cash flow could be negatively affected, and therefore,
reduce our ability to make distributions to stockholders.

Our Strategy

Our primary business objectives are to invest in commercial real estate property and other real estate assets that we expect will
generate attractive risk-adjusted returns and in turn will generate stable cash flow for distribution to our stockholders. Until
recently, our investment activity and uses of available cash liquidity was focused on acquiring real estate, originating or acquiring
loans, as well as pursuing opportunistic CRE investments across our businesses. Opportunistic investments have included investing
in real estate private equity funds, strategic joint ventures and repurchasing our N-Star CDO bonds at discounts to par.

Availability and cost of capital impacts our profitability and earnings since we would be required to raise new capital to fund a
majority of this growth. Given recent market conditions, we are currently focused on exploring sales to generate liquidity to
repurchase our common stock, reduce our corporate recourse borrowings and prudently manage our portfolio so it is well positioned.

Until recently, we had been actively raising capital. In 2015, we issued aggregate capital of $1.3 billion and in 2014 we issued
aggregate capital of $2.6 billion (including shares issued under a forward sale agreement in February 2015 for net proceeds of
$122 million). Further, we have access to other forms of corporate-level financing. In August 2014, we entered into a Corporate
Revolver with certain commercial bank lenders, with a total current commitment amount of $250 million for a three-year term,
subject to certain conditions. In September 2014, we entered into a corporate term borrowing with a commercial bank lender.
Subsequent to year end, our Corporate Revolver was repaid and we expect our remaining corporate recourse borrowings to be
repaid from proceeds from sales initiatives.

In addition, we have a loan facility of $200 million to finance the origination of CRE first mortgage loans, of which $25 million
is currently outstanding. Additionally, we have historically demonstrated the ability to securitize our CRE debt investments and
expect to continue to pursue similar transactions to finance our newly-originated debt investments that might initially be financed
on our credit facilities. In November 2012 and August 2013, we, and on behalf of NorthStar Income, entered into securitization
financing transactions with an aggregate $610 million of principal amount of bonds issued to finance debt investments on a
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permanent, non-recourse, non-mark-to-market basis that were previously financed on credit facilities. In January 2015,
Securitization-2012-1 with $228 million principal amount of original bonds issued was repaid in full.

Critical Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

Our consolidated financial statements include the accounts of NorthStar Realty Finance Corp., NorthStar Realty Finance Limited
Partnership, or our Operating Partnership, and their consolidated subsidiaries. We consolidate variable interest entities, or VIEs,
where we are the primary beneficiary and voting interest entities which are generally majority owned or otherwise controlled by
us. All significant intercompany balances are eliminated in consolidation.

Variable Interest Entities

A VIE is an entity that lacks one or more of the characteristics of a voting interest entity. A VIE is defined as an entity in which
equity investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the
entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties. The determination of whether
an entity is a VIE includes both a qualitative and quantitative analysis. We base the qualitative analysis on our review of the design
of the entity, its organizational structure including decision-making ability and relevant financial agreements and the quantitative
analysis on the forecasted cash flow of the entity. We reassess the initial evaluation of an entity as a VIE upon the occurrence of
certain reconsideration events.

A VIE must be consolidated only by its primary beneficiary, which is defined as the party who, along with its affiliates and agents
has both the: (i) power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the VIE’s economic performance; and (ii) obligation
to absorb the losses of the VIE or the right to receive the benefits from the VIE, which could be significant to the VIE. We determine
whether we are the primary beneficiary of a VIE by considering qualitative and quantitative factors, including, but not limited to:
which activities most significantly impact the VIE’s economic performance and which party controls such activities; the amount
and characteristics of its investment; the obligation or likelihood for us or other interests to provide financial support; consideration
of'the VIE’s purpose and design, including the risks the VIE was designed to create and pass through to its variable interest holders
and the similarity with and significance to our business activities and the other interests. We reassess the determination of whether
we are the primary beneficiary of a VIE each reporting period. Significant judgments related to these determinations include
estimates about the current and future fair value and performance of investments held by these VIEs and general market conditions.

We evaluate our CRE debt and securities, investments in unconsolidated ventures and securitization financing transactions, such
as our CDOs and our liabilities to subsidiary trusts issuing preferred securities to determine whether they are a VIE. We analyze
new investments and financings, as well as reconsideration events for existing investments and financings, which vary depending
on type of investment or financing.

Voting Interest Entities

A voting interest entity is an entity in which the total equity investment at risk is sufficient to enable it to finance its activities
independently and the equity holders have the power to direct the activities of the entity that most significantly impact its economic
performance, the obligation to absorb the losses of the entity and the right to receive the residual returns of the entity. The usual
condition for a controlling financial interest in a voting interest entity is ownership of a majority voting interest. If we have a
majority voting interest in a voting interest entity, the entity will generally be consolidated. We do not consolidate a voting interest
entity if there are substantive participating rights by other parties and/or kick-out rights by a single party or through a simple
majority vote.

We perform on-going reassessments of whether entities previously evaluated under the voting interest framework have become
VIEs, based on certain events, and therefore subject to the VIE consolidation framework.

Investments in Unconsolidated Ventures

A non-controlling, unconsolidated ownership interest in an entity may be accounted for using the equity method, at fair value or
the cost method.

Under the equity method, the investment is adjusted each period for capital contributions and distributions and its share of the
entity’s net income (loss). Capital contributions, distributions and net income (loss) of such entities are recorded in accordance
with the terms of the governing documents. An allocation of net income (loss) may differ from the stated ownership percentage
interest in such entity as a result of a preferred return and allocation formula, if any, as described in such governing documents.

We may account for an investment in an unconsolidated entity at fair value by electing the fair value option. We elected the fair
value option for PE Investments and certain investments in unconsolidated ventures. PE Investments are recorded as investments
in private equity funds, at fair value. We record the change in fair value for our share of the projected future cash flow of such
investments from one period to another in equity in earnings (losses) from unconsolidated ventures in the consolidated statements
of operations. Any change in fair value attributed to market related assumptions is considered unrealized gain (loss).
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We may account for an investment that does not qualify for equity method accounting or for which the fair value option was not
elected using the cost method if we determine the investment in the unconsolidated entity is insignificant. Under the cost method,
equity in earnings is recorded as dividends are received to the extent they are not considered a return of capital, which is recorded
as a reduction of cost of the investment.

Fair Value Option

The fair value option provides an election that allows a company to irrevocably elect fair value for certain financial assets and
liabilities on an instrument-by-instrument basis at initial recognition. We may elect to apply the fair value option for certain
investments due to the nature of the instrument. Any change in fair value for assets and liabilities for which the election is made
is recognized in earnings.

Operating Real Estate

Operating real estate is carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Ordinary repairs and maintenance are
expensed as incurred. Major replacements and improvements which improve or extend the life of the asset are capitalized
and depreciated over their useful life. Operating real estate is depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets.

We follow the purchase method for an acquisition of operating real estate, where the purchase price is allocated to tangible assets
such as land, building, tenant and land improvements and other identified intangibles, such as goodwill. Costs directly related to
an acquisition deemed to be a business combination are expensed and included in transaction costs in our consolidated statements
of operations. We evaluate whether REO constitutes a business and whether business combination accounting is appropriate. Any
excess upon taking title to collateral between the carrying value of a loan over the estimated fair value of the property is charged
to provision for loan losses.

Operating real estate, including REO, which has met the criteria to be classified as held for sale, is separately presented on the
consolidated balance sheets. Such operating real estate is recorded at the lower of its carrying value or its estimated fair value
less the cost to sell. Once a property is determined to be held for sale, depreciation is no longer recorded.

Real Estate Debt Investments

CRE debt investments are generally intended to be held to maturity and, accordingly, are carried at cost, net of unamortized loan
fees, premium and discount. CRE debt investments that are deemed to be impaired are carried at amortized cost less a loan loss
reserve, if deemed appropriate, which approximates fair value. CRE debt investments where we do not have the intent to hold
the loan for the foreseeable future or until its expected payoff are classified as held for sale and recorded at the lower of cost or
estimated value.

Real Estate Securities

We classify our CRE securities investments as available for sale on the acquisition date, which are carried at fair value. We have
historically elected to apply the fair value option for our CRE securities investments. For those CRE securities for which the fair
value option was elected, any unrealized gains (losses) from the change in fair value is recorded in unrealized gains (losses) on
investments and other in the consolidated statements of operations.

We may decide to not elect the fair value option for certain CRE securities due to the nature of the particular instrument. For those
CRE securities for which the fair value option was not elected, any unrealized gain (loss) from the change in fair value is recorded
as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income, or OCI, in the consolidated statements of equity, to the extent
impairment losses are considered temporary.

Intangible Assets and Intangible Liabilities

We record acquired identified intangibles, which includes intangible assets (such as value of the above-market leases, in-place
leases, goodwill and other intangibles) and intangible liabilities (such as the value of below-market leases), based on estimated
fair value. The value allocated to the above or below-market leases is amortized over the remaining lease term as a net adjustment
to rental income. Other intangible assets are amortized into depreciation and amortization expense on a straight-line basis over
the remaining lease term.

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net tangible and intangible assets acquired in a business
combination and is not amortized. The Company analyzes goodwill for impairment on an annual basis and whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of goodwill may not be fully recoverable. We first assess qualitative
factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit, related to such goodwill, is less than
the carrying amount as a basis to determine whether the two-step impairment test is necessary. The first step in the impairment
test compares the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying amount. If the carrying amount exceeds fair value, the second
step is required to determine the amount of the impairment loss, if any, by comparing the implied fair value of the reporting unit
goodwill with the carrying amount of such goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is derived by performing a hypothetical
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purchase price allocation for the reporting unit as of the measurement date, allocating the reporting unit’s estimated fair value to
its net assets and identifiable intangible assets. The residual amount represents the implied fair value of goodwill. To the extent
this amount is below the carrying value of goodwill, an impairment loss is recorded in the consolidated statements of operations.

Events or circumstances which could indicate a potential impairment include (but are not limited to) issues with local, state or
federal governments; on-going or projected negative operating income or cash flow; a significant change in payor mix related to
healthcare assets; and/or a significant change in the occupancy rate and/or rising interest rates.

A discounted cash flow model is performed based on management’s forecast of operating performance for each reporting unit to
assess fair value. In addition, we look at comparable companies and representative transactions to validate management’s
expectations, where possible. The inputs used in the annual test is updated for current market conditions and forecasts. The two
main assumptions used in measuring goodwill impairment, include the cash flow from operations from each of our reporting units
and the weighted average cost of capital. The starting point for each of the reporting unit’s cash flow from operations is the detailed
annual plan. The detailed planning process takes into consideration many factors including EBITDAR, EBITDAR margins,
revenue growth rate and capital spending requirements, among other items which impact the individual reporting unit projections.
Cash flow beyond the specific operating plans are estimated using a terminal value calculation, which incorporate historical and
forecasted financial cyclical trends for each reporting unit and considered long-term earnings growth rates. The financial and credit
market volatility directly impacts our fair value measurement through our weighted average cost of capital that we use to determine
the discount rate. During times of volatility, significant judgment must be applied to determine whether credit changes are a short-
term or long term trend. Fair value of the reporting unit is using significant unobservable inputs or Level 3 in the fair value
hierarchy. These inputs are based on internal management estimates, forecasts and judgments.

The annual impairment test for the reporting units related to a healthcare portfolio acquired in 2014 was conducted as of October
1 and the remaining reporting units related to the Griffin-American Portfolio as of December 31, 2015. Management used an
independent third-party valuation party specialist to assist. Based on the step one analysis performed, management determined
the fair value for all of reporting units were in excess of the respective reporting unit’s carrying value, with four exceptions, related
to the healthcare portfolio acquired in 2014. As a result, we estimated the impairment loss for such reporting units to be $25.5
million and recorded an estimated preliminary impairment charge for such amount in the fourth quarter 2015. Due to the timing
and complexity of step two of the impairment test, which is required to determine the actual impairment, we were unable to finalize
the amount of impairment prior to filing form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015. Step two of the impairment test will
be completed in the first quarter 2016 and any such adjustment will be recorded.

In addition, our reporting units associated with the Griffin-American Portfolio each had calculated fair value that were between
9% and 14% in excess of the respective carrying value. We continue to monitor the cash flow for these reporting units as they
each contain goodwill.

Fair Value Measurement

The fair value of financial instruments is categorized based on the priority of the inputs to the valuation technique and categorized
into a three-level fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs used to measure the
financial instruments fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are recorded at fair value on our consolidated balance sheets and are categorized based on the inputs
to the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1. Quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in an active market.

Level 2.  Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on the following:

(a) Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.

(b) Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in non-active markets.

(©) Pricing models whose inputs are observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

(d) Pricing models whose inputs are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data

for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3. Prices or valuation techniques based on inputs that are both unobservable and significant to the overall fair
value measurement.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

Financial assets and liabilities recorded at fair value on a recurring basis are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level
of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Financial assets and liabilities recorded at fair value on a recurring basis
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using Level 3 inputs was 83% of total assets and substantially all liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis, respectively,
as of December 31, 2015. Our non-recurring financial measurements include the measurement of provision for loan losses on our
CRE debt investments, impairment on operating real estate and goodwill and provision for loss on equity investments, if any.
These measurements are considered Level 3 fair value measurements.

Transfers into Level 3 for CRE securities for the year ended December 31, 2015 totaled $24 million and principally related to the
nature of the price used to estimate fair value (third-party pricing service or broker quotations) and the amount of available market
data to corroborate such prices. Transfers out of Level 3 for CRE securities for the year ended December 31, 2015 totaled $3
million. We recognized net unrealized/realized gains and losses of $23 million related Level 3 in our consolidated statements of
operations for the year ended December 31, 2015.

Management determines the prices are representative of fair value through a review of available data, including observable inputs,
recent transactions as well as our knowledge and experience of the market.

With respect to valuation for CRE securities, we generally obtain at least one quote from a pricing service or broker. Furthermore,
we may use internal pricing models to establish arm’s length prices. Generally, the quote from the pricing service is used to
determine fair value for the securities. The quotes are not adjusted. The pricing service uses market-based measurements based
on valuation techniques that reflect market participants’ assumptions and maximize the use of relevant observable inputs including
prices for similar assets, benchmark yield curves and market corroborated inputs such as contractual terms, discount rates for
similar securities and credit (such as credit support and delinquency rates). We believe such broker quote is generally based on a
market transaction of comparable securities.

To determine the fair value of CRE securities, we maintain a comprehensive quarterly process that includes a valuation committee
comprised of senior members of the investment and accounting teams that is designed to enable management to ensure the prices
used are representative of fair value and the instruments are properly classified pursuant to the fair value hierarchy.

Initially, a member of the investment team on the valuation committee reviews the prices at quarter end to ensure current market
conditions are fairly presented. The investment team is able to assess these values because they are actively engaged in the market,
reviewing bid lists, recent sales and frequently have discussions with various banks and other financial institutions regarding the
state of the market. We then perform a variety of analyses to ensure the quotes are in a range which we believe to be representative
of fair value and to validate the quotes obtained and used in determining the ultimate value used in the financial statements. At
the portfolio level, we evaluate the overall change in fair value versus the overall change in the market. We review significant
changes in fair value for individual instruments, both positive and negative, from the prior period. We perform back testing on
any securities sold to validate the quotes used for the prior quarter. Where multiple quotes are available, we evaluate any large
variance between the high and low price. We obtain any available market data that provides insight into the price through recent
or comparable security trades, multiple broker bids and other pertinent information. This data may be available through the pricing
service or based on data directly available to us. If as part of any of these processes, we are aware of data which we believe better
supports the fair value, we challenge the quote provided by either the pricing service or broker. Any discrepancy identified from
our processes are reviewed and resolved. The valuation committee approves the final prices. We believe these procedures are
designed to enable us to estimate fair value.

Once we determine fair value of CRE securities, we review to ensure the instrument is properly classified pursuant to the fair
value hierarchy consistent with U.S. GAAP through our understanding of the valuation methodologies used by the pricing service
via discussion with representatives of the pricing service and review of any documentation describing its valuation methodology.

Generally, when fair value is based on the pricing service or multiple broker quotes, we believe, based on our analysis, such quotes
are based on observable inputs and are therefore classified as Level 2. Where the price is based on either a single broker quote
or an internal pricing model, we generally consider such price to be based on less observable data and therefore classify such
instruments as Level 3.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Non-recurring Basis

Non-financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the consolidated financial statements consist of real estate held for
sale, which are measured on a non-recurring basis, have been determined to be Level 3 within the valuation hierarchy, where
applicable, based on estimated sales price, adjusted for closing costs and expenses, determined by discounted cash flow analysis,
direct capitalization analyses or a sales comparison approach if no contracts had been consummated. The discounted cash flow
and direct capitalization analyses include all estimated cash inflows and outflows over a specific holding period and, where
applicable, any estimated debt premiums. This cash flow is comprised of unobservable inputs which included forecasted rental
revenues and expenses based upon existing in-place leases, market conditions and expectations for growth. Capitalization rate
and discount rate used in these analyses were based upon observable rates that we believed to be within a reasonable range of
current market rates for the respective properties.

Valuations were prepared using internally-developed valuation models. These valuations are reviewed and approved, during each
reporting period, by management, as deemed necessary, including personnel from the accounting, finance and asset management
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and the valuations are updated as appropriate. Inaddition, we may engage third-party valuation experts to assist with the preparation
of certain of its valuations.

All other non-financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the financial statements on a non-recurring basis are subject
to fair value measurement and disclosure. Non-financial assets and liabilities included on our consolidated balance sheets and
measured on a nonrecurring basis consist of goodwill and long-lived assets, including other acquired intangibles.

Revenue Recognition

Operating Real Estate

Rental and escalation income from operating real estate is derived from leasing of space to various types of tenants and healthcare
operators. The leases are for fixed terms of varying length and generally provide for annual rentals and expense reimbursements
to be paid in monthly installments. Rental income from leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the respective
leases. The excess of rents recognized over amounts contractually due pursuant to the underlying leases are included in unbilled
rent receivable on our consolidated balance sheets. Escalation income represents revenue from tenant/operator leases which
provide for the recovery of all or a portion of the operating expenses and real estate taxes paid by us on behalf of the respective
property. This revenue is accrued in the same period as the expenses are incurred.

We generate operating income from healthcare and hotel properties permitted by RIDEA. Revenue related to healthcare properties
includes resident room and care charges and other resident charges. Revenue related to operating hotel properties primarily consists
of room and food and beverage sales. Revenue is recognized when such services are provided, generally defined as the date upon
which a resident or guest occupies a room or uses the healthcare property or hotel services and is recorded in resident fee income
for healthcare properties and hotel related income for hotel properties in the consolidated statements of operations.

Real Estate Debt Investments

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis and any related premium, discount, origination costs and fees are amortized over
the life of the investment using the effective interest method. The amortization is reflected as an adjustment to interest income in
our consolidated statements of operations. The amortization of a premium or accretion of a discount is discontinued if such loan
is reclassified to held for sale.

Real Estate Securities

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method with any premium or discount amortized or accreted through
earnings based on expected cash flow through the expected maturity date of the security. Changes to expected cash flow may
result in a change to the yield which is then applied retrospectively for high-credit quality securities that cannot be prepaid or
otherwise settled in such a way that the holder would not recover substantially all of the investment or prospectively for all other
securities to recognize interest income.

Credit Losses and Impairment on Investments

Operating Real Estate

Our real estate portfolio is reviewed on a quarterly basis, or more frequently as necessary, to assess whether there are any indicators
that the value of our operating real estate may be impaired or that its carrying value may not be recoverable. A property’s value
is considered impaired if management’s estimate of the aggregate expected future undiscounted cash flow to be generated by the
property is less than the carrying value of the property. In conducting this review, management considers U.S and global
macroeconomic factors and real estate sector conditions together with investment specific and other factors. To the extent an
impairment has occurred, the loss is measured as the excess of the carrying value of the property over the estimated fair value of
the property and recorded in impairment losses in our consolidated statements of operations.

An allowance for a doubtful account for a tenant/operator receivable is established based on a periodic review of aged receivables
resulting from estimated losses due to the inability of tenant/operator to make required rent and other payments contractually due.
Additionally, we establish, on a current basis, an allowance for future tenant/operator/resident/guest credit losses on unbilled rent
receivable based on an evaluation of the collectability of such amounts.

Real Estate Debt Investments

Loans are considered impaired when based on current information and events, it is probable that we will not be able to collect
principal and interest amounts due according to the contractual terms. We assess the credit quality of the portfolio and adequacy
of loan loss reserves on a quarterly basis or more frequently as necessary. Significant judgment of management is required in this
analysis. We consider the estimated net recoverable value of the loan as well as other factors, including but not limited to the fair
value of any collateral, the amount and the status of any senior debt, the quality and financial condition of the borrower and the
competitive situation of the area where the underlying collateral is located. Because this determination is based on projections of
future economic events, which are inherently subjective, the amount ultimately realized may differ materially from the carrying
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value as of the balance sheet date. If upon completion of the assessment, the estimated fair value of the underlying collateral
is less than the net carrying value of the loan, a loan loss reserve is recorded with a corresponding charge to provision for
loan losses. The loan loss reserve for each loan is maintained at a level that is determined to be adequate by management to
absorb probable losses.

Income recognition is suspended for a loan at the earlier of the date at which payments become 90-days past due or when, in the
opinion of management, a full recovery of income and principal becomes doubtful. When the ultimate collectability of the principal
ofanimpaired loanis in doubt, all payments are applied to principal under the cost recovery method. When the ultimate collectability
of the principal of an impaired loan is not in doubt, contractual interest is recorded as interest income when received, under the
cash basis method until an accrual is resumed when the loan becomes contractually current and performance is demonstrated to
be resumed. A loan is written off when it is no longer realizable and/or legally discharged.

Investments in Unconsolidated Ventures

We review our investments in unconsolidated ventures for which we did not elect the fair value option on a quarterly basis, or
more frequently as necessary, to assess whether there are any indicators that the value may be impaired or that its carrying value
may not be recoverable. An investment is considered impaired if the projected net recoverable amount over the expected holding
period is less than the carrying value. In conducting this review, we consider U.S. and global macroeconomic factors, including
real estate sector conditions, together with investment specific and other factors. To the extent an impairment has occurred and
is considered to be other than temporary, the loss is measured as the excess of the carrying value of the investment over the
estimated fair value and recorded in provision for loss on equity investment in our consolidated statements of operations.

Real Estate Securities

CRE securities for which the fair value option is elected are not evaluated for other-than-temporary impairment, or OTTI, as any
change in fair value is recorded in our consolidated statements of operations. Realized losses on such securities are reclassified
to realized gain (loss) on investments and other as losses occur.

CRE securities for which the fair value option is not elected are evaluated for OTTI quarterly. Impairment of a security is considered
to be other-than-temporary when: (i) the holder has the intent to sell the impaired security; (ii) it is more likely than not the holder
will be required to sell the security; or (iii) the holder does not expect to recover the entire amortized cost of the security. When
a CRE security has been deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired due to (i) or (ii), the security is written down to its fair
value and an OTTI is recognized in the consolidated statements of operations. In the case of (iii), the security is written down to
its fair value and the amount of OTTI is then bifurcated into: (a) the amount related to expected credit losses; and (b) the amount
related to fair value adjustments in excess of expected credit losses. The portion of OTTI related to expected credit losses is
recognized in our consolidated statements of operations. The remaining OTTI related to the valuation adjustment is recognized
as a component of accumulated OCI in our consolidated statements of equity. The portion of OTTI recognized through earnings
is accreted back to the amortized cost basis of the security through interest income, while amounts recognized through OCI are
amortized over the life of the security with no impact on earnings. CRE securities which are not high-credit quality are considered
to have an OTTI if the security has an unrealized loss and there has been an adverse change in expected cash flow. The amount
of OTTI is then bifurcated as discussed above.

Determination of Fair Value

The following is a description of the valuation techniques used to measure fair value of assets and liabilities accounted for at fair
value on a recurring basis and the general classification of these instruments pursuant to the fair value hierarchy.

Investments in Private Equity Funds

We account for PE Investments at fair value which is determined based on a valuation model using assumptions for the timing
and amount of expected future cash flow for income and realization events for the underlying assets in the funds and discount
rate. This fair value measurement is generally based on unobservable inputs and, as such, is classified as Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy. We are not using the NAV (practical expedient) of the underlying funds for purposes of determining fair value.

Investments in Unconsolidated Ventures

We account for certain investments in unconsolidated ventures at fair value determined based on a valuation model using
assumptions for the timing and amount of expected future cash flow for income and realization events for the underlying assets
and discount rate. Additionally, we account for certain CRE debt investments made in connection with certain investments in
unconsolidated ventures at fair value, which is determined based on comparing the current yield to the estimated yield for newly
originated loans with similar credit risk. These fair value measurements are generally based on unobservable inputs and, as such,
are classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
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Real Estate Securities

N-Star CDO Bonds

The fair value of N-Star CDO bonds is determined using quotations from nationally recognized financial institutions that generally
acted as underwriter for the transactions. These quotations are not adjusted and are generally based on a valuation model with
observable inputs such as interest rate and other unobservable inputs for assumptions related to the timing and amount of expected
future cash flow, discount rate, estimated prepayments and projected losses. The fair value of subordinate N-Star CDO bonds is
determined using an internal price interpolated based on third-party prices of the more senior N-Star CDO bonds of the respective
CDO. All N-Star CDO bonds are classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

N-Star CDO Equity

The fair value of N-Star CDO equity is determined based on a valuation model using assumptions for the timing and amount of
expected future cash flow for income and realization events for the underlying collateral of these CDOs and discount rate. This
fair value measurement is generally based on unobservable inputs and, as such, is classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Other CRE Securities

Other CRE securities are generally valued using a third-party pricing service or broker quotations. These quotations are not
adjusted and are based on observable inputs that can be validated, and as such, are classified as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.
Certain CRE securities may be valued based on a single broker quote or an internal price which may have less observable pricing,
and as such, would be classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Management determines the prices are representative of
fair value through a review of available data, including observable inputs, recent transactions as well as its knowledge of and
experience in the market.

Derivative Instruments

Derivative instruments are valued using a third-party pricing service. These quotations are not adjusted and are generally based
on valuation models with observable inputs such as interest rates and contractual cash flow, and as such, are classified as Level 2
of the fair value hierarchy. Derivative instruments are also assessed for credit valuation adjustments due to the risk of non-
performance by us and derivative counterparties. Derivatives held in non-recourse CDO financing structures where, by design,
the derivative contracts are senior to all the CDO bonds payable, there is no material impact of a credit valuation adjustment.

CDO Bonds Payable

CDO bonds payable are valued using quotations from nationally recognized financial institutions that generally acted as underwriter
for the transactions. These quotations are not adjusted and are generally based on a valuation model with observable inputs such
as interest rate and other unobservable inputs for assumptions related to the timing and amount of expected future cash flow,
discount rate, estimated prepayments and projected losses. CDO bonds payable are classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Junior Subordinated Notes

Junior subordinated notes are valued using quotations from nationally recognized financial institutions. These quotations are not
adjusted and are generally based on a valuation model with observable inputs such as interest rate and other unobservable inputs
for assumptions related to the implied credit spread of our other borrowings and the timing and amount of expected future cash
flow. Junior subordinated notes are classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, issued an accounting update requiring a company to recognize
as revenue the amount of consideration it expects to be entitled to in connection with the transfer of promised goods or services
to customers. The accounting standard update will replace most of the existing revenue recognition guidance currently promulgated
by U.S. GAAP. In July 2015, the FASB decided to delay the effective date of the new revenue standard by one year. The effective
date of the new revenue standard for us will be January 1, 2018. We are in the process of evaluating the impact, if any, of the
update on our consolidated financial position, results of operations and financial statement disclosures.

In February 2015, the FASB issued updated guidance that changes the rules regarding consolidation. The pronouncement eliminates
specialized guidance for limited partnerships and similar legal entities and removes the indefinite deferral for certain investment
funds. The new guidance is effective for annual periods and interim periods within those annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2015, with early adoption permitted. We will adopt the new standard on January 1, 2016 and it is not expected to
have a material impact on our consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In April 2015, the FASB issued an accounting update changing the presentation of financing costs in financial statements. Under
the new guidance, an entity would present these costs in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the related liability rather
than as an asset. Amortization of the costs would continue to be reported as interest expense. The new guidance is effective for
annual periods and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2015, with early adoption permitted. In the fourth quarter 2015
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we adopted this guidance and the impact to the consolidated balance sheet from the reclassification of such costs was a reduction
to both total assets and total liabilities of $91 million and $148 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

In September 2015, the FASB issued updated guidance that eliminates the requirement that an acquirer in a business combination
account for measurement-period adjustments retrospectively. Under the new guidance, an acquirer will recognize a measurement-
period adjustment during the period in which it determines the amount of the adjustment. The new guidance is effective for annual
periods and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2015, with early adoption permitted. We adopted this guidance in the
third quarter 2015 and it did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial position, results of operations and financial
statement disclosures.

In January 2016, the FASB issued an accounting update that addresses certain aspects of recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of financial instruments. The new guidance is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years,
beginning after December 15, 2017. We are currently assessing the impact of the guidance on our consolidated financial position,
results of operations and financial statement disclosures.

In February 2016, the FASB issued an accounting update that requires lessees to present right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
on the balance sheet. The new guidance is to be applied using a modified retrospective approach at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period in the financial statements and is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including
interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. We are evaluating the impact that this guidance will have
on its consolidated financial position, results of operations and financial statement disclosures.

Results of Operations

Comparison of the Year Ended December 31, 2015 to December 31, 2014 (dollars in thousands):
The following table represents our results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 (dollars in thousands).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 includes: (i) our results of operations for the two
months ended December 31, 2015 which represents our results of operations following the NRE Spin-off on October 31, 2015;
and (ii) our results of operations for the ten months ended October 31, 2015 which includes a carve-out of revenues and expenses
attributable to NRE recorded in discontinued operations.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 includes: (i) our results of operations for the six
months ended December 31, 2014 which represents our results of operations following the NSAM Spin-off on June 30, 2014; and
(i) our results of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 which includes a carve-out of revenues and expenses attributable
to NSAM recorded in discontinued operations. As a result, results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2015 may not
be comparative to our results of operations reported for the prior period presented.
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Years Ended December 31, Increase (Decrease)

2015 2014 Amount %
Property and other revenues
Rental and escalation income $ 732,425 $ 349,951 § 382,474 109.3 %
Hotel related income 784,151 237,039 547,112 230.8 %
Resident fee income 271,394 77,516 193,878 250.1 %
Other revenue 29,466 14,994 14,472 96.5 %
Total property and other revenues 1,817,436 679,500 1,137,936 167.5 %
Net interest income
Interest income 227,483 310,116 (82,633) (26.6)%
Interest expense on debt and securities 8,678 11,977 (3,299) (27.5)%
Net interest income on debt and securities 218,805 298,139 (79,334) (26.6)%
Expenses
Management fee, related party 198,695 82,756 115,939 140.1 %
Interest expense—mortgage and corporate borrowings 486,408 231,894 254,514 109.8 %
Real estate properties—operating expenses 915,701 318,477 597,224 187.5 %
Other expenses 26,607 8,920 17,687 198.3 %
Transaction costs 31,427 172,416 (140,989) (81.8)%
Impairment losses 31,951 — 31,951 NA
Provision for (reversal of) loan losses, net 4,201 3,769 432 11.5 %
General and administrative expenses
Salaries and related expense 13,744 22,124 (8,380) (37.9%
Equity-based compensation expense 27,693 24,885 2,808 113 %
Other general and administrative expenses 16,658 12,357 4,301 34.8 %
Total general and administrative expenses 58,095 59,366 (1,271) 2.1)%
Depreciation and amortization 456,916 184,689 272,227 147.4 %
Total expenses 2,210,001 1,062,287 1,147,714 108.0 %
Other income (loss)
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments and other (204,112) (231,697) 27,585 (11.9%
Realized gain (loss) on investments and other 14,407 (77,064) 91,471 (118.7)%
Gain (loss) from deconsolidation of N-Star CDOs — (31,423) 31,423 NA
Income (loss) before equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated
ventures and income tax benefit (expense) (363,465) (424,832) 61,367 (14.9)%
Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated ventures 219,077 165,053 54,024 32.7 %
Income tax benefit (expense) (14,325) (16,6006) 2,281 (13.1%
Income (loss) from continuing operations (158,713) (276,385) 117,672 (42.6)%
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (108,554) (44,701) (63,853) 142.8 %
Net income (loss) $ (267,267) $ (321,086) $ 53,819 (16.8)%

Property and Other Revenues
Rental and Escalation Income

Rental and escalation income increased $382.5 million, primarily attributable to new acquisitions in 2014 and 2015 including
healthcare, industrial and multi-tenant office investments ($383.8 million) and increased income from our manufactured housing
and multifamily investments ($15.5 million), offset by lower income from healthcare properties transitioned to a RIDEA structure
in 2015 ($11.7 million) and lower income from our net lease and remaining healthcare properties ($5.1 million), all in our real
estate segment.

Hotel Related Income
Hotel related income increased $547.1 million related to new hotel acquisitions in 2014 and 2015 in our real estate segment.
Resident Fee Income

Resident fee income increased $193.9 million, primarily related to the healthcare RIDEA properties acquired in 2014
($138.1 million) and healthcare properties transitioned to a RIDEA structure in 2015 ($55.7 million), all in our real estate segment.

Other Revenue

Other revenue increased $14.5 million primarily due to a fee ($9.5 million) in our CRE debt segment, origination fees ($3.0 million)
in our corporate segment and other real estate related fees ($2.4 million) in our real estate segment, offset by a decrease
in administrative fees from our deconsolidated N-Star CDOs ($0.4 million) recorded in our N-Star CDOs segment.

41



Net Interest Income

Net interest income is generated on our interest-earning assets less related interest-bearing liabilities and is primarily related to
our CRE debt, securities and N-Star CDO segments and includes certain CRE debt and notes receivable investments included as
part of our real estate segment. For assets financed in a CDO, also referred to as legacy investments, the N-Star CDO segments
are based on the primary collateral of the CDO financing transaction and as such may include other types of investments.

The following table presents the average balance of interest-earning assets less related interest-bearing liabilities, associated interest
income and expense and corresponding yield earned and incurred for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014. Amounts
presented have been impacted by the timing of new investments and repayments during the periods (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014
Average Interest WA Yield/ Average Interest WA Yield/
Carryi Income(/z) Financ&lg Carryi Income, by Financ(gslg
Value Expense Cost Value Expense Cost
Interest-earning assets:
CRE debt investments $ 883,581 $ 103,313 11.69% $  1,195758 § 164,902 13.79%
CRE securities investments 879,323 124,170 14.12% 1,045,422 145,214 13.89%
$ 1,762,904 227,483 12.90% $ 2,241,180 310,116 13.84%
Interest-bearing liabilities:
CDO bonds payable $ 500207 $ 4257 323% 9 s 702,191 $ 5,893 3.24% ©
Securitization bonds payable — 151 —% 70,080 2,394 3.42%
Loan facilities 70,639 4,270 6.04% 84,721 3,690 4.36%
$ 570,846 8,678 3.07% $ 856,992 11,977 3.37%

Net interest income $ 218,805 $ 298,139

(1) Based on amortized cost for CRE debt and securities investments, principal amount for CDO bonds payable, securitization bonds payable and loan facilities.
All amounts are calculated based on quarterly averages. Additionally, amounts include manufactured housing notes receivables recorded in other assets
based on carrying value.

(2) Includes the effect of amortization of premium or accretion of discount and deferred fees.

(3) Calculated as interest income or expense divided by average carrying value.

(4) Includes $6.3 million and $4.6 million of interest income related to manufactured housing notes receivables recorded in other assets and included in our real
estate segment for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

(5) We use interest rate swaps in CDO financing transactions to manage interest rate risk. Weighted average financing cost includes $11.6 million and
$16.9 million of net cash payments on interest rate swaps recorded in unrealized gain (loss) in our consolidated statements of operations for the years
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Interest income decreased $82.6 million, primarily attributable to decreased income on debt investments due to pay offs
($59.0 million) in our CRE debt segment and CRE securities ($34.9 million) in our N-Star CDOs segment, offset by increased
income on investments in deconsolidated N-Star CDO bonds and equity notes ($5.7 million) in our CRE securities segment and
increased income on debt investments and notes receivables ($5.5 million) in our real estate segment.

Interest expense decreased $3.3 million, primarily attributable to reduced interest expense primarily related to the pay off of
Securitization 2012-1 ($1.7 million) in the CRE debt segment and the pay down of N-Star CDO bonds payable ($1.6 million) in
our CRE securities segment.

Expenses
Management Fee, Related Party

For the year ended December 31, 2015, we recorded $190.0 million related to the base management fee and $8.7 million related
to the incentive fee to NSAM in our corporate segment. For the six months ended December 31, 2014, we recorded $79.4 million
related to the base management fee and $3.3 million related to the incentive fee to NSAM in our corporate segment.

Interest Expense—Mortgage and Corporate Borrowings

Interest expense on mortgage and corporate borrowings increased $254.5 million, primarily attributable to increased interest
expense related to new mortgage and other notes payable associated with new property acquisitions in 2014 and 2015
($264.6 million), all in our real estate segment, and increased interest expense on our corporate borrowings ($26.2 million),
offset by decreased interest expense on the senior notes that were repaid in September 2014 ($9.5 million), lower interest
expense due to conversions of exchangeable senior notes ($13.9 million) in our corporate segment and lower interest expense
from our remaining net lease and healthcare properties ($13.7 million) in our real estate segment.
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Real Estate Properties—Operating Expenses

Real estate operating expenses primarily relate to utilities, real estate taxes, insurance and repair and maintenance expense and
with respect to RIDEA properties, salaries, food and beverage and resident services. Real estate properties operating expenses
increased $597.2 million, primarily attributable to new acquisitions in 2014 and 2015 comprised of healthcare, hotel, industrial
and multi-tenant office investments and healthcare properties transitioned to a RIDEA structure in 2015, all in our real estate
segment ($599.5 million).

Other Expenses

Other expenses primarily represents third-party asset management, audit and legal fees and other administrative related fees related
to portfolio management of our real estate segment and other expenses such as legal and consulting fees for loan modifications
and restructurings and other expenses associated with managing the N-Star CDOs. Other expenses increased $17.7 million related
to new acquisitions in 2014 and 2015 in our real estate segment.

Transaction Costs

Transaction costs represent costs such as professional fees associated with new investments, dead deal costs and restructuring
costs which are related to specific transactions. For the year ended December 31,2015, transaction costs of $31.4 million primarily
related to real estate acquisitions and restructurings, which includes transaction costs related to acquisitions in our healthcare, hotel
and manufactured housing portfolios ($25.7 million), in our real estate segment. For the year ended December 31,2014, transaction
costs of $172.4 million primarily related to real estate acquisitions and restructurings, which includes transaction costs related to
the merger of Griffin-American ($72.9 million), the acquisitions of our hotel portfolios ($53.8 million), acquisitions and
restructurings related to our other healthcare portfolios ($30.0 million) and our other acquisitions, all in our real estate segment.

Impairment Losses

Impairment losses of $32.0 million related to impairment on goodwill of certain RIDEA healthcare properties ($25.5 million) and
a healthcare RIDEA property and a net lease property ($6.4 million), all in our real estate segment.

Provision for (Reversal of) Loan Losses, Net

For the year ended December 31, 2015, provision for loan losses, net of $4.2 million related to five loans ($3.4 million) in our
CRE debt segment and notes receivable related to our manufactured housing portfolio ($0.8 million) in our real estate segment.
For the year ended December 31, 2014, provision for loan losses, net of $3.8 million related to two loans ($2.8 million) in our
CRE debt segment and notes receivable related to our manufactured housing portfolio ($1.0 million) in our real estate segment.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses are principally incurred at the corporate level. General and administrative expenses decreased
$1.3 million primarily attributable to the following:

Salaries and related expense decreased $8.4 million primarily due to most of our existing employees at the time of the
NSAM Spin-off becoming employees of NSAM.

Equity-based compensation expense is comprised of (dollars in thousands):

Time-Based Awards Performance-Based Awards Total
Years Ended December 31, Years Ended December 31, Years Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
NorthStar Realty" $ 22,000 $ 22332 $ 5693 $ 2,553 $ 27,693 $ 24,885
Allocation to NSAM® — 6,800 — 6,945 — 13,745
Total $ 22,000 $ 29,132 $ 5,693 $ 9,498 $ 27,693 $ 38,630

(1) Includes equity-based compensation expense related to grants issued subsequent to the NSAM Spin-off by NorthStar Realty to employees of
NorthStar Realty and NSAM in connection with NorthStar Realty’s obligation under the management agreement (refer to Note 10. Related Party
Arrangements). In connection with this obligation, for the year ended December 31, 2015, NorthStar Realty recorded equity-based compensation
expense of $13 million and $2 million of time-based awards and performance-based awards, respectively.

(2) Recorded in discontinued operations. The allocation to NSAM for 2014 is equity-based compensation expense for the six months ended June
30,2014.

Other general and administrative expenses increased $4.3 million related to higher corporate expenses.
Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $272.2 million, primarily related to new acquisitions in 2014 and 2015
($276.7 million), offset by a decrease related to our multifamily properties as they are classified as held for sale in 2015
($2.1 million) and lower expense from our net lease and remaining healthcare properties ($1.8 million), all in our real estate segment.
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Other Income (Loss)

Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments and Other

Unrealized gain (loss) on investments and other is primarily related to the non-cash change in fair value adjustments and the
remaining amount is related to net cash payments on interest rate swaps. The following table presents a summary of unrealized
gain (loss) on investments and other by operating segment for the years ended December 31,2015 and 2014 (dollars in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 2015

N-Star CDOs
Real CRE CRE
Estate Securities Securities Corporate Total
Change in fair value of:
Real estate securities, available for sale'” $ — 3 5312 $ (20,122) $ $  (14,810)
PE Investments'” (33,241) — — (33,241)
CDO bonds payable, at fair value” — — (29,275) — (29,275)
Junior subordinated notes, at fair value" — — — 31,279 31,279
Derivatives, at fair value (1,954) — 10,387 (95,908) (87,475)
Foreign currency remeasurement® (14,635) 10 — (3,650) (18,275)
Investments in unconsolidated ventures'” (40,437) — — — (40,437)
Subtotal unrealized gain (loss) (90,267) 5,322 (39,010) (68,279) (192,234)
Net cash payments on derivatives (328) — (11,550) — (11,878)
Total unrealized gain (loss) on investments and other $ (90,595) $ 5322 $ (50,560) $ (68,279) $ (204,112)
(1) Represents financial assets and liabilities for which the fair value option was elected.
(2) Represents foreign currency remeasurement on investments, cash and deposits primarily denominated in Euros.
Year Ended December 31, 2014
N-Star CDOs
Real CRE CRE CRE
Estate Debt Securities Securities Corporate Total
Change in fair value of:
Real estate securities, available for sale” $ — 3 — $ (23814) $ 11,490 $ $  (12,324)
PE Investments'” 32,621 — — — 32,621
CDO bonds payable, at fair value'” — — — (217,608) (217,608)
Junior subordinated notes, at fair value("” — — — — (13,969) (13,969)
Derivatives, at fair value (2,898) — — 11,082 — 8,184
Foreign currency remeasurement® (9,479) (1,310) — — (930) (11,719)
Subtotal unrealized gain (loss) 20,244 (1,310) (23,814) (195,036) (14,899) (214,815)
Net cash payments on derivatives — — (232) (16,650) (16,882)
Total unrealized gain (loss) on investments and other $ 20244 $ (1,310) $ (24,046) $ (211,686) $ (14,899) $ (231,697)

(1) Represents financial assets and liabilities for which the fair value option was elected.
(2) Primarily represents foreign currency remeasurement on an investment denominated in Euros.
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Realized Gain (Loss) on Investments and Other

The following table presents a summary of realized gain (loss) on investments and other by segment for the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014 (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

Description Segment 2015 2014
Conversion of exchangeable senior notes Corporate $ (1,308) $ (65,771)
Foreign exchange Corporate (1,137) —
Sale of REO CRE Debt 2,980 —
Sale of real estate debt CRE Debt — (2,920)
Sales/repayments from N-Star CDO bonds"" CRE Securities 13,333 9,571
Liquidation of N-Star CDO IV CRE Securities 9,437 —
Sales of N-Star CDO securities N-Star CDOs - CRE securities (8,677) 2,742
Repurchase of N-Star CDO bonds N-Star CDOs - CRE securities (3,859) (13,927)
Healthcare and net lease property related Real Estate 3,198 (3,659)
Mortgage payoff of a net lease property Real Estate 2,074 —
Sale of manufactured homes Real Estate (1,709) (3,893)
Other Various 75 793
Total $ 14,407 § (77,064)

(1) Represents cash accelerated amortization on N-Star CDO bonds.
Gain (Loss) from Deconsolidation of N-Star CDOs

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the loss of $31.4 million is related to the deconsolidation of N-Star CDOs I1I and V, which
was predominately due to the reversal of prior unrealized gains on CDO bonds payable recorded in prior periods due to the election
of the fair value option.

Equity in Earnings (Losses) of Unconsolidated Ventures and Income Tax Benefit (Expense)
Equity in Earnings (Losses) of Unconsolidated Ventures
The following table presents a summary of our equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated ventures, substantially all of which

is generated from investments in our real estate segment, for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

Increase
2015 2014 (Decrease)
PE Investments $ 198,159 $ 150,801 § 47,358
Investment in RXR Realty 16,037 8,003 8,034
Other unconsolidated ventures 4,881 6,249 (1,368)

Total $§ 219,077 $ 165.053 § 54,024

—— —— ——
Income Tax Benefit (Expense)

Income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2015 represents a net expense of $14.3 million primarily related to a provision
for income tax for our PE Investments ($15.0 million), hotel properties ($4.7 million), our corporate interests in RXR Realty and
SteelWave ($10.8 million) and other various real estate investments ($0.3 million), offset by a net benefit for our RIDEA healthcare
properties ($16.5 million), all in our real estate segment. Income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2014 represents a
net expense of $16.6 million primarily related to a provision for income tax for our PE Investments ($16.8 million) and other
various real estate investments ($1.6 million), offset by the effect of net operating loss carryforward related to our hotel and
healthcare portfolios operating under a RIDEA structure ($1.8 million).
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Discontinued Operations
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

Discontinued operations primarily represents activity related to NorthStar Europe and NSAM prior to their respective spin-offs.
NSAM’s revenues exclude the effect of any fees that it would have earned in connection with the management agreement with us
(dollars in thousands):

Increase
Years Ended December 31, (Decrease)
2015 2014 Amount %
NSAM
Total revenues $ — $ 56013 $  (56,013)" (100.0)%
Total expenses — 63,216 (63,216) (100.0)%
NSAM income (loss) in discontinued operations — (7,203) 7,203 (100.0)%
NRE
Total revenues 89,600 1,647 $ 87,953 @ 5,340.2 %
Total expenses®®) 205,406 38,050 167,356 439.8 %
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments and other (10,812) — (10,812) NA
Realized gain (loss) on investments and other 5 (170) 175 (102.9)%
Income (loss) before income tax benefit (expense) provision (126,613) (36,573) (90,040) 246.2 %
Income tax benefit (expense) 18,070 — 18,070 NA
NRE income (loss) in discontinued operations (108,543) (36,573) (71,970) NA
Income (loss) from operating real estate discontinued operations (11) (925) 914 (98.8)%
Total income (loss) from discontinued operations § (108,554) § (44.701) $ (63,853) 142.8 %

(1) Represents revenues and expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2014 prior to the NSAM Spin-off.

(2) Includes $109.4 million and $31.7 million of transaction costs related to acquisitions for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
(3) Includes $42.4 million and $0.5 million of depreciation and amortization for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

(4) The increase is a result of the acquisition of three European portfolios in 2015.

Comparison of the Year Ended December 31, 2014 to December 31, 2013 (dollars in thousands):
The following table represents our results of operations for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 (dollars in thousands).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2014 includes: (i) our results of operations for the six
months ended December 31, 2014 which represents our results of operations following the NSAM Spin-off on June 30, 2014; and
(i1) our results of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 which includes a carve-out of revenues and expenses attributable
to NSAM recorded in discontinued operations. As a result, results of operations for the year ended December 31, 2014 may not
be comparative to our results of operations reported for the prior period presented.
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Years Ended December 31, Increase (Decrease)

2014 2013 Amount %
Property and other revenues
Rental and escalation income $ 349,951 $ 235,124 § 114,827 48.8 %
Hotel related income 237,039 — 237,039 NA
Resident fee income 77,516 — 77,516 NA
Other revenue 14,994 5,723 9,271 162.0 %
Total property and other revenues 679,500 240,847 438,653 182.1 %
Net interest income
Interest income 310,116 303,989 6,127 2.0 %
Interest expense on debt and securities 11,977 37,632 (25,655) (68.2)%
Net interest income on debt and securities 298,139 266,357 31,782 11.9 %
Expenses
Management fee, related party 82,756 — 82,756 NA
Interest expense—mortgage and corporate borrowings 231,894 141,027 90,867 64.4 %
Real estate properties—operating expenses 318,477 73,668 244,809 3323 %
Other expenses 8,920 4,558 4,362 95.7 %
Transaction costs 172,416 12,464 159,952 1,283.3 %
Provision for (reversal of) loan losses, net 3,769 (8,786) 12,555 (142.9)%
General and administrative expenses
Salaries and related expense 22,124 26,421 (4,297) (16.3)%
Equity-based compensation expense 24,885 11,784 13,101 111.2 %
Other general and administrative expenses 12,357 16,159 (3,802) (23.5)%
Total general and administrative expenses 59,366 54,364 5,002 9.2 %
Depreciation and amortization 184,689 93,470 91,219 97.6 %
Total expenses 1,062,287 370,765 691,522 186.5 %
Other income (loss)
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments and other (231,697) (32,677) (199,020) 609.1 %
Realized gain (loss) on investments and other (77,064) 32,376 (109,440) (338.0)%
Gain (loss) from deconsolidation of N-Star CDOs (31,423) (299,802) 268,379 (89.5)%
Other income (loss) — 38 (38) NA
Income (loss) before equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated
ventures and income tax benefit (expense) (424,832) (163,626) (261,2006) 159.6 %
Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated ventures 165,053 91,726 73,327 79.9 %
Income tax benefit (expense) (16,600) (7,249) (9,357) 129.1 %
Income (loss) from continuing operations (276,385) (79,149) (197,236) 249.2 %
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (44,701) (8,761) (35,940) 410.2 %
Net income (loss) $ (321,086) $ (87,910) $ (233,176) 265.2 %

Property and Other Revenues
Rental and Escalation Income

Rental and escalation income increased $114.8 million, primarily attributable to new acquisitions in 2014 including healthcare,
industrial and a full year related to manufactured housing and multifamily investments ($154.2 million), offset by lower income
from our net lease and healthcare properties ($6.9 million), all in our real estate segment and lower income related to REOs that
were deconsolidated in the N-Star CDO CRE debt segment ($32.5 million).

Hotel Related Income

We generated hotel related income of $237.0 million related to new hotel acquisitions in 2014. We did not own any hotel properties
prior to 2014.

Resident Fee Income

We generated resident fee income of $77.5 million in 2014 primarily related to the healthcare RIDEA properties acquired during
the year. We did not own any RIDEA properties prior to 2014.

Other Revenue

Other revenue increased $9.3 million primarily due to an increase in real estate related fees ($5.9 million) in our real estate segment
and administrative fees from our deconsolidated N-Star CDOs which were eliminated in consolidation in 2013 ($3.4 million) in
our N-Star CDOs segment.
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Net Interest Income

Net interest income is generated on our interest-earning assets less related interest-bearing liabilities and is recorded as part of our
CRE debt, securities and N-Star CDO segments and includes certain CRE debt and notes receivable investments included as part
of our real estate segment. For assets financed in a CDO, also referred to as legacy investments, the N-Star CDO segments are
based on the primary collateral of the CDO financing transaction and as such may include other types of investments.

The following table presents the average balance of interest-earning assets less related interest-bearing liabilities, associated interest
income and expense and corresponding yield earned and incurred for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013. Amounts
presented have been impacted by the timing of new investments and repayments during the periods (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013
Average Interest WA Yield/ Average Interest WA Yield/
Carryi Income, by Financ&lg Carryi Income(/z) Financ&lg
Value Expense Cost Value Expense Cost
Interest-earning assets:
CRE debt investments'” $ 1,195,758 $ 164,902 13.79%  $ 1,547,091 $ 145,427 9.40%
CRE securities investments 1,045,422 145,214 13.89% 1,554,922 158,562 10.20%
$ 2,241,180 310,116 13.84% $ 3,102,013 303,989 9.80%
Interest-bearing liabilities:
CDO bonds payable $ 702,191 § 5,893 324% 0§ 227598 $ 29,913 3.63% ©
Securitization bonds payable 70,080 2,394 3.42% 97,973 3,058 3.12%
Loan facilities 84,721 3,690 4.36% 69,869 4,233 6.80%
Secured term loan — — —% 8,776 428 4.88%
$ 856,992 11,977 3.37% $ 2,452,604 37,632 3.71%

Net interest income $ 298,139 $ 266,357

(1) Based on amortized cost for CRE debt and securities investments, principal amount for CDO bonds payable, securitization bonds payable and loan facilities.
All amounts are calculated based on quarterly averages. Additionally, amounts include manufactured housing notes receivables recorded in other assets
based on carrying value.

(2) Includes the effect of amortization of premium or accretion of discount and deferred fees.

(3) Calculated as interest income or expense divided by average carrying value.

(4) Includes $4.6 million and $0.2 million of interest income related to manufactured housing notes receivables recorded in other assets and included in our real
estate segment for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

(5) We use interest rate swaps in CDO financing transactions to manage interest rate risk. Weighted average financing cost includes $16.9 million and $52.7
million of net cash payments on interest rate swaps recorded in unrealized gain (loss) in our consolidated statements of operations for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Interest income increased $6.1 million, primarily attributable to increased income on debt investments ($96.2 million) in our
CRE debt segment, debt investments and notes receivables ($4.7 million), in our real estate segment and investments in
deconsolidated N-Star CDO bonds and equity notes ($42.9 million) in our CRE securities segment, offset by decreased
interest income on CRE debt and securities investments ($137.8 million) in the N-Star CDOs segment primarily attributable
to the deconsolidation of N-Star CDO bonds payable.

Interest expense decreased $25.7 million, primarily attributable to the deconsolidation of N-Star CDO bonds payable ($23.6 million)
and reduced interest on other borrowings ($2.1 million) in the CRE debt segment.

Expenses
Management Fee, Related Party

For the six months ended December 31, 2014, we recorded $79.4 million related to the base management fee and $3.3 million
related to the incentive fee to NSAM. The management contract with NSAM commenced on July 1, 2014, and as such, there were
no management fees incurred for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and the year ended December 31, 2013.

Interest Expense—Mortgage and Corporate Borrowings

Interest expense on mortgage and corporate borrowings increased $90.9 million, primarily attributable to increased interest expense
related to new mortgage and other notes payable associated with new property acquisitions ($105.7 million) in our real estate
segment, our corporate borrowings ($8.5 million) and senior notes at the corporate level that were repaid at maturity ($11.5 million),
offset by lower interest expense from mortgage notes on REO that were deconsolidated ($9.4 million)in our N-Star CDO CRE
debt segment and lower interest expense at the corporate level primarily due to conversions of exchangeable senior notes
($25.5 million).

48



Real Estate Properties—Operating Expenses

Real estate operating expenses primarily relate to utilities, real estate taxes, insurance and repair and maintenance and with
respect to RIDEA properties, salaries, food and beverage and resident services. Real estate properties operating expenses
increased $244.8 million, primarily attributable to new acquisitions in 2014 comprised of healthcare, hotel and industrial
properties and a full year related to manufactured housing and multifamily investments ($261.7 million), offset by lower
expenses from our net lease and remaining healthcare properties ($1.9 million), all in our real estate segment and REO that
were deconsolidated ($15.2 million) in our N-Star CDO CRE debt segment.

Other Expenses

Other expenses primarily represents third-party asset management, audit and legal fees and other administrative related fees related
to portfolio management of our real estate segment and other expenses such as legal and consulting fees for loan modifications
and restructurings and other expenses associated with managing the N-Star CDOs. Other expenses increased $4.4 million related
to new acquisitions in 2014 in our real estate segment.

Transaction Costs

Transaction costs represent costs such as professional fees associated with new investments, dead deal costs and restructuring
costs which are related to specific transactions. For the year ended December 31,2014, transaction costs of $172.4 million primarily
related to real estate acquisitions and restructurings, which includes transaction costs related to the merger of Griffin-American
($72.9 million), the acquisitions of hotel portfolios ($53.8 million), acquisitions and restructurings related to our other healthcare
portfolios ($30.0 million) and our other acquisitions, all in our real estate segment. For the year ended December 31, 2013,
transaction costs of $12.5 million related to our acquisition of manufactured housing communities ($3.5 million), multifamily
properties ($3.8 million) and PE Investments ($4.2 million), all in our real estate segment.

Provision for (Reversal of) Loan Losses, Net

For the year ended December 31, 2014, provision for loan losses, net of $3.8 million related to two loans ($2.8 million) in our
CRE debt segment and notes receivable related to our manufactured housing portfolio ($1.0 million) in our real estate segment.
For the year ended December 31, 2013, reversal of provision for loan losses, net in our CRE debt segment of $8.8 million related
to reversals of provision for loan loss of $15.1 million primarily associated with a loan loss on a mezzanine loan ($6.3 million),
offset by a reversal of provision for loan loss for a mezzanine loan for which we contemporaneously took title to the collateral
($4.0 million) and a reversal of a provision for loan loss in September 2013 primarily related to a loan that paid off at par during
the fourth quarter.

General and Administrative Expenses

General and administrative expenses are principally incurred at the corporate level. General and administrative expenses increased
$5.0 million primarily attributable to the following:

Salaries and related expense decreased $4.3 million primarily due to most of our existing employees at the time of the
NSAM Spin-off becoming employees of NSAM.

Equity-based compensation expense is comprised of (dollars in thousands):

Time-Based Awards Performance-Based Awards Total
Years Ended December 31, Years Ended December 31, Years Ended December 31,
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
NorthStar Realty $ 22332 $ 8,940 $ 2,553 § 2,844 § 24,885 § 11,784
Allocation to NSAM® 6,800 3,928 6,945 1,249 13,745 5,177
Total $ 29,132 § 12,868 $ 9,498 $ 4,093 § 38,630 § 16,961

(1) Recorded in discontinued operations. The allocation to NSAM for 2014 is equity-based compensation expense for the six months ended June
30,2014 and a full year for 2013.

Other general and administrative expenses decreased $3.8 million due to the NSAM Spin-off.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization expense increased $91.2 million, primarily related to new acquisitions ($105.9 million) in our
real estate segment, offset by lower expense related to REO that were deconsolidated ($14.6 million) in our N-Star CDO
CRE debt segment.
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Other Income (Loss)

Unrealized Gain (Loss) on Investments and Other

Unrealized gain (loss) on investments and other is primarily related to the non-cash change in fair value adjustments and the
remaining amount is related to net cash payments on interest rate swaps. The following table presents a summary of unrealized
gain (loss) on investments and other by operating segment for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 (dollars in thousands):

Change in fair value of:
Real estate securities, available for sal
PE Investments'"
CDO bonds payable, at fair value!”

Junior subordinated notes, at fair value®"

Derivatives, at fair value

Foreign currency remeasurement®
Subtotal unrealized gain (loss)

Net cash payments on derivatives

Total unrealized gain (loss) on investments and other

(5

(1)

Year Ended December 31, 2014

(1) Represents financial assets and liabilities for which the fair value option was elected.
(2) Represents foreign currency remeasurement on investments, cash and deposits primarily denominated in Euros.

Change in fair value of:
Real estate securities, available for sale
CDO bonds payable, at fair value”
Junior subordinated notes, at fair value'
Derivatives, at fair value
Foreign currency remeasurement®
Subtotal unrealized gain (loss)
Net cash payments on derivatives

Total unrealized gain (loss) on investments and other

(1)

1

N-Star CDOs
Real CRE CRE CRE
Estate Debt Securities Securities Corporate Total
$ — 3 — $ (23814) $ 11,490 § — 3 (12,324)
32,621 — — — — 32,621
— — (217,608) — (217,608)
— — — (13,969) (13,969)
(2,898) — 11,082 — 8,184
(9,479) (1,310) — (930) (11,719)
20,244 (1,310) (23,814) (195,036) (14,899) (214,815)
— — (232) (16,650) — (16,882)
$ 20,244 $§ (1,310) $ (24,046) $ (211,686) $ (14,899) $ (231,697)
Year Ended December 31, 2013
N-Star CDOs
CRE CRE CRE CRE
Debt Securities Debt Securities ~ Corporate Total
$ — $ 3916 $ (2,407) $ 93,171 §$ — § 94,680
— — — (106,626) — (106,626)
— — — — (4,030) (4,030)
— — — 33,730 — 33,730
2,300 — — — — 2,300
2,300 3,916 (2,407) 20,275 (4,030) 20,054
— — (10,285) (42,446) — (52,731)
$ 2300 $ 3916 $ (12,692) $ (22,171) $ (4,030) $ (32,677)

(1) Represents financial assets and liabilities for which the fair value option was elected.
(2) Primarily represents foreign currency remeasurement on an investment denominated in Euros.

Realized Gain (Loss) on Investments and Other

The following table presents a summary of realized gain (loss) on investments and other by segment for the years ended
December 31, 2014 and 2013 (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

Description Segment 2014 2013
Conversion of exchangeable senior notes Corporate $ (65,771) $ (10,918)
Sale of real estate debt CRE Debt (2,920) (1,769)
Sales/repayments from N-Star CDO bonds"” CRE Securities 9,571 —
Sales of N-Star CDO securities N-Star CDO CRE debt — (1,421)
Sales of N-Star CDO securities N-Star CDO CRE securities 2,742 39,240
Liquidation of N-Star CDO II N-Star CDO CRE securities — 7,020
Repurchase of N-Star CDO bonds N-Star CDO CRE securities (13,927) (12,360)
Healthcare and net lease property related Real Estate (3,659) —
Sale of manufactured homes Real Estate (3,893) (879)
Sale of timeshare units Real Estate — 12,215
Other Various 793 1,248
Total

(1) Represents cash accelerated amortization on N-Star CDO bonds.

5 (7064 5 32376
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Gain (Loss) from Deconsolidation of N-Star CDOs

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the loss of $31.4 million is related to the deconsolidation of N-Star CDOs 111 and V, which
was predominately due to the reversal of prior unrealized gains on CDO bonds payable recorded in prior periods due to the
election of the fair value option. For the year ended December 31, 2013, the loss of $299.8 million is related to the
deconsolidation of N-Star CDOs IV, VI, VII and VIII, the CapLease CDO and the CSE CDO, which was predominately due
to the reversal of the unrealized gains on the CDO liabilities that were recorded in prior periods due to the election of the fair
value option.

Equity in Earnings (Losses) of Unconsolidated Ventures and Income Tax Benefit (Expense)
Equity in Earnings (Losses) of Unconsolidated Ventures

The following table presents a summary of our equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated ventures, substantially all of which is
generated from investments in our real estate segment, for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

Increase
2014 2013 (Decrease)
PE Investments $ 150,801 $ 88,842 $ 61,959
Investment in RXR Realty 8,003 — 8,003
Other unconsolidated ventures 6,249 2,884 3,365

Total $ 165053 $§ 91,726 § 73,327

Income Tax Benefit (Expense)

Income tax expense for the year ended December 31,2014 represents a net expense of $16.6 million primarily related to a provision
for income tax for our PE Investments ($16.8 million) and other various real estate investments ($1.6 million), offset by the effect
of net operating loss carryforward related to our hotel and healthcare portfolios operating under a RIDEA structure ($1.8 million),
all in our real estate segment. Income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2013 represents income tax of $7.2 million
related to a provision for income tax on our PE Investments ($6.2 million) and a sales tax of timeshare units ($1.0 million), both
in our real estate segment.

Discontinued Operations
Income (Loss) from Discontinued Operations

Discontinued operations primarily represents activity related to NorthStar Europe and NSAM prior to their respective spin-offs.
NSAM’s revenues exclude the effect of any fees that it would have earned in connection with the management agreement with us
(dollars in thousands):

Increase
Years Ended December 31, (Decrease)
2014 2013 Amount %
NSAM
Total revenues $ 56,013 $ 89,938 § (33,925) " (37.7)%
Total expenses 63,216 90,343 27,127) © (30.0)%
NSAM income (loss) in discontinued operations (7,203) (405) (6,798) NM
NRE
Total revenues 1,647 — 1,647 NA
Total expenses 38,050 — 38,050 @ NA
Realized gain (loss) on investments and other (170) — (170) NA
NRE income (loss) in discontinued operations (36,573) — (36,573) NA
Income (loss) from operating real estate discontinued operations (925) (8,356) 7,431 (88.9)%
Total income (loss) from discontinued operations $ (44,701) $ (8,761) $ (35,940) 410.2 %

(1) The decrease is a result of the year ended December 31, 2014 representing only six months of total revenues and expenses of NSAM prior to the NSAM
Spin-off on June 30, 2014, compared to a full year of activity of NSAM for the year ended December 31, 2013.
(2) Includes $31.7 million of transaction costs related to acquisitions for the year ended December 31, 2014.
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Liquidity and Capital Resources

We require capital to fund our operating expenses and investment activities, including the repurchase of our common stock. Our
capital sources may include cash flow from operations, net proceeds from asset repayments and sales, borrowings under credit
facilities, financings secured by our assets such as mortgage notes, securitization financing transactions, long-term senior and
subordinate corporate capital such as revolving credit facilities, senior term loans, senior notes, senior exchangeable notes, trust
preferred securities, perpetual preferred stock and common stock. For instance, we are currently exploring the sale of certain real
estate, CRE debt and securities, and subsequent to year end, have sold or committed to sell $2.0 billion of assets to generate
liquidity to repurchase our common stock and reduce our leverage. Proceeds from these sales initiatives, along with capital retained
from our revised dividend policy, are currently expected to be used for repurchasing our common stock, which we
believe is currently trading at a large discount to underlying net asset value and toward the repayment of all of our
corporate recourse borrowing obligations which total $590 million (excluding $280 million of trust preferred securities with
maturities beginning in 2035).

In addition, in connection with the NSAM Spin-off, we entered into a revolving credit agreement with NSAM pursuant to which
we make available, on an “as available basis,” up to $250 million of financing to NSAM subject to certain conditions (refer to
Related Party Arrangements). The terms of the NSAM revolving credit facility contain various representations, warranties,
covenants and conditions, including the condition that our obligation to advance proceeds to NSAM is dependent upon us and its
affiliates having at least $100 million of either unrestricted cash and cash equivalents or amounts available under committed lines
of credit, after taking into account the amount NSAM seeks to draw under the facility. In addition, in connection with the NRE
Spin-off, we provided NorthStar Europe with an initial capitalization of $250 million.

We seek to meet our long-term liquidity requirements, including the repayment of borrowings and our investment funding needs,
through existing cash resources, issuance of debt or equity capital, return of capital from investments and the liquidation or
refinancing of assets. Nonetheless, our ability to meet a long-term (beyond one year) liquidity requirement may be subject to
obtaining additional debt and equity financing. Any decision by our lenders and investors to provide us with financing will depend
upon a number of factors, such as our compliance with the terms of our existing credit arrangements, our financial performance,
industry or market trends, the general availability of and rates applicable to financing transactions, such lenders’ and investors’
resources and policies concerning the terms under which they make capital commitments and the relative attractiveness of
alternative investment or lending opportunities.

As a REIT, we are required to distribute at least 90% of our annual REIT taxable income to our stockholders, including taxable
income where we do not receive corresponding cash, and we intend to distribute all or substantially all of our REIT taxable income
in order to comply with the REIT distribution requirements of the Internal Revenue Code and to avoid federal income tax and the
non-deductible excise tax. On a quarterly basis, our board of directors determines an appropriate common stock dividend based
upon numerous factors, including CAD, REIT qualification requirements, availability of existing cash balances, borrowing capacity
under existing credit agreements, access to cash in the capital markets and other financing sources, our view of our ability to realize
gains in the future through appreciation in the value of our assets, general economic conditions and economic conditions that more
specifically impact our business or prospects. Future dividend levels are subject to adjustment based upon our evaluation of the
factors described above, as well as other factors that our board of directors may, from time-to-time, deem relevant to consider
when determining an appropriate common stock dividend.

We currently believe that our existing sources of funds should be adequate for purposes of meeting our short-term liquidity needs.
Unrestricted cash as of February 23, 2016 was approximately $476 million.

Capital Raise
In 2015, we issued aggregate capital of $1.3 billion from the issuance of common equity.
Securitization Financing Transactions

We have historically demonstrated the ability to securitize our CRE debt investments and expect to continue to pursue similar
transactions to finance our newly-originated debt investments that might initially be financed on our credit facilities. In 2012 and
2013 we, and on behalf of NorthStar Income, entered into two securitization financing transactions with an aggregate $610 million
of principal amount of bonds issued providing permanent, non-recourse, non-mark-to-market financing for CRE debt investments
of ours and NorthStar Income’s. In January 2015, Securitization-2012-1 with $228 million principal amount of original bonds
issued was repaid in full.

Corporate Borrowings

In August 2014, we entered into our Corporate Revolver with certain commercial bank lenders, with a total current amount of
$250 million for a three year term. Additionally, in September 2014, we entered into a corporate term arrangement with respect
to the establishment of term borrowings. Subsequent to year end, our Corporate Revolver was repaid and we expect our remaining
corporate recourse borrowings to be repaid from proceeds from sales initiatives.
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Loan Facility

With respect to investment-level financing, we maintain a loan facility that provides up to $200 million to finance the origination
of first mortgage loans and senior loan participations secured by commercial real estate. The interest rate and advance rate depend
on asset type and characteristic. Subsequent to year end, the maturity date for the facility was extended for one year with final
maturity in March 2018. As of February 25, 2016, we had $25 million outstanding under our loan facility.

Our loan facility contains representations, warranties, covenants, conditions precedent to funding, events of default and
indemnities that are customary for agreements of this type. We are currently in compliance with all of our financial
covenants under our loan facility.

Exchangeable Senior Notes

For the year ended December 31, 2015, holders exchanged $14 million principal amount of our 5.375% Exchangeable Senior
Notes for an aggregate 0.9 million shares of our common stock, after giving effect to the Reverse Split. As of February 25, 2016,
we had $31 million in principal amount of exchangeable senior notes outstanding.

Cash Flows

The following presents a summary of our consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014
and 2013 (dollars in thousands).

The consolidated cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2015 includes: (i) our cash flow for the two months ended
December 31, 2015, including our cash flow following the NRE Spin-off on October 31, 2015; and (ii) our cash flow for the ten
months ended October 31, 2015, attributable to revenues and expenses of NorthStar Europe recorded in discontinued operations.

The consolidated cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2014 includes: (i) our cash flow for the six months ended December
31,2014, including our cash flow following the NSAM Spin-off on June 30, 2014; and (ii) our cash flow for the six months ended
June 30, 2014, attributable to revenues and expenses of NSAM recorded in discontinued operations.

As a result, cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2015 may not be comparative to our cash flows reported for the prior
periods presented.

Years Ended December 31,
Cash flow provided by (used in): 2015 2014 2013
Operating activities $ 520,658 $ 144,856 $ 240,674
Investing activities (3,006,574) (7,054,227) (2,285,153)
Financing activities 2,417,491 6,572,518 2,235,542
Effect of foreign currency translation on cash and cash equivalents (4,438) (2,173) —
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ (72,863) $ (339,026) $ 191,063

Year Ended December 31, 2015 Compared to December 31, 2014

Net cash provided by operating activities was $521 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to $145 million for
the year ended December 31, 2014. The increase was primarily due to new investment activity.

Net cash used in investing activities was $3.0 billion for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to $7.1 billion for the year
ended December 31, 2014. The decrease in net cash used was primarily due to less acquisitions in 2015 as compared to 2014.
2015 includes European real estate acquired and subsequently spun off as part of the NRE Spin-off.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $2.4 billion for the year ended December 31, 2015 compared to $6.6 billion for the
year ended December 31, 2014. The primary cash inflows for the year ended December 31, 2015 was $1.3 billion of net new
capital, $2.1 billion of net new borrowings, $340 million of proceeds from NRE Senior Notes, now the primary obligation of
NorthStar Europe, and $88 million of net contributions from non-controlling interests, offset by $644 million for the payment of
dividends, $360 million distributed to NorthStar Europe in connection with the NRE Spin-off, $105 million for the payment of
financing costs, $116 million for the repurchase of our common stock and $116 million for net repurchase/repayment of CDO
bonds. The primary cash inflows for the year ended December 31, 2014 was $1.4 billion of net new capital, $6.2 billion of net
new borrowings and $227 million of net contributions from non-controlling interests, offset by $438 million for the payment of
dividends, $119 million distributed to NSAM in connection with the NSAM Spin-off, $481 million for the repayment of the 2014
Senior Notes and $80 million for net repurchase/repayment of CDO bonds.
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Year Ended December 31, 2014 Compared to December 31, 2013

Net cash provided by operating activities was $145 million for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $241 million for
the year ended December 31, 2013. The decrease was primarily due to an increase in transaction costs incurred related to new
real estate acquisitions.

Net cash used in investing activities was $7.1 billion for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $2.3 billion for the year
ended December 31, 2013. The increase in net cash used was primarily due to an increase of $4.8 billion of new acquisitions of
operating real estate.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $6.6 billion for the year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $2.2 billion for
the year ended December 31, 2013. The primary cash inflows for the year ended December 31, 2014 was $1.4 billion of net
new capital, $6.2 billion of net new borrowings and $227 million of net contributions from non-controlling interests, offset
by $438 million for the payment of dividends, $119 million distributed to NSAM in connection with the NSAM Spin-off,
$481 million for the repayment of the 2014 Senior Notes and $80 million for net repurchase/repayment of CDO bonds. The
primary cash inflows for the year ended December 31, 2013 was $1.8 billion of net new capital and $1.2 billion of net new
borrowings, offset by $542 million for net repurchase/repayment of CDO bonds, $10 million for net swap activities and
$227 million for the payment of dividends.

Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The following table presents contractual obligations and commitments as of December 31, 2015 (dollars in thousands):

Payments Due by Period
Total Less than 1 year 1-3 years 3-5 years More than 5 years
Mortgage and other notes payable $ 7,297,081 $ 87,534 § 329,050 $ 6,274271 $ 606,226
CDO bonds payable 436,491 — — — 436,491
Credit facilities and term borrowings 662,053 — 662,053 —
Exchangeable senior notes" 31,360 — 12,955 1,000 17,405
Junior subordinated notes 280,117 — — — 280,117
Borrowings of properties, held for sale 2,214,305 55,621 47,390 74,955 2,036,339
Operating leases®® 148,082 4,984 10,183 10,225 122,690
Outstanding unfunded commitments™ 9,300 1,755 7,545 —
PE Investments'® 57,800 10,000 47,800 —
Estimated interest payments"”’ 1,969,701 417,035 776,778 433,590 342,298
Total $ 13,106,290 $ 576,929 § 1,893,754 § 6,794,041 $ 3,841,566

(1) The 7.25% Notes, 8.875% Notes and 5.375% Notes have a final maturity date of June 15, 2027, June 15, 2032 and June 15, 2033, respectively. The above
table reflects the holders’ repurchase rights which may require us to repurchase the 7.25% Notes, 8.875% Notes and 5.375% Notes on June 15, 2017, June
15, 2019 and June 15, 2023, respectively. Each of these Notes may be exchanged at any time prior to maturity at the option of the respective holder in
accordance with the terms of the applicable indenture. In 2016, through February 25, 2016, we exchanged an aggregate $0.6 million principal amount of
exchangeable senior notes and settled all such exchanges in shares of our common stock.

(2) Represents ground leases on certain operating real estate.

(3) Our future funding commitments on CRE debt investments are subject to certain conditions that borrowers must meet to qualify for such fundings. Fundings
are categorized by estimated funding period. Assuming that all debt and real estate investments that have future fundings meet the terms to qualify for such
funding, represents our equity requirement on the remaining future funding requirements. Excludes a $2.0 million future funding commitment associated
with a loan sold subsequent to year end.

(4) Includes an estimated $10 million associated with future fundings and any deferred purchase price. Such amount excludes our portion of the deferred
purchase obligation of PE Investment II joint venture of $243 million. In February 2016, substantially all of our interest in PE Investment II was sold and
our portion of the deferred purchase price obligation of the PE Investment II joint venture will be assumed by the buyers upon consent of the initial seller.

(5) Estimated interest payments are based on the weighted average life of the borrowing, including borrowings of assets held for sale. Applicable LIBOR
benchmark plus the respective spread as of December 31, 2015 was used to estimate payments for our floating-rate liabilities.

The table above does not include the amounts payable to NSAM under the management agreement. The annualized fee payable
to NSAM is approximately $186 million as of December 31, 2015. In addition, the table above does not include: (i) the revolving
credit agreement with NSAM pursuant to which we make available to NSAM, on an “as available basis,” up to $250 million of
financing; and (ii) our commitment to purchase shares of NSAM’s Sponsored Companies’ common stock. Refer to “Related Party
Arrangements” for a further discussion.

Guarantee Agreements

We maintain certain guaranty agreements that are excluded from the table above including guarantee agreements with various
hotel franchisors, pursuant to which we guaranteed the franchisees’ obligations, including payments of franchise fees and marketing
fees, for the term of the agreements, which expires from 2029 to 2034. As of December 31, 2015, the aggregate amount remaining
under these guarantees is $6 million.
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In July 2015, NorthStar Europe issued $340 million principal amount of 4.625% senior notes due December 2016, or NRE Senior
Notes. In connection with the NRE Spin-off, the NRE Senior Notes are senior unsubordinated and unsecured primary obligations
of NorthStar Europe and we continue to guarantee payments subsequent to the NRE Spin-off.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2015, we had off-balance sheet arrangements with respect to retained interests in certain deconsolidated
N-Star CDOs. Refer to Note 17. “Variable Interest Entities” in “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” for a discussion
of such retained interests in such N-Star CDOs in our consolidated financial statements. In each case, our exposure to loss is
limited to the carrying value of our investment.

Additionally, we have certain arrangements which do not meet the definition of off-balance sheet arrangements, but do have
some of the characteristics of off-balance sheet arrangements, including certain investments in unconsolidated ventures.
Refer to Note 5. “Investments in Private Equity Funds” and Note 6. “Investments in Unconsolidated Ventures” in “Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data” for a discussion of such unconsolidated ventures in our consolidated financial
statements. In each case, our exposure to loss is limited to the carrying value of our investment.

Related Party Arrangements

NorthStar Asset Management Group

Management Agreement

Upon completion of the NSAM Spin-off, we entered into a management agreement with an affiliate of NSAM for an initial term
of 20 years, which automatically renew for additional 20-year terms each anniversary thereafter unless earlier terminated. As
asset manager, NSAM is responsible for our day-to-day operations, subject to the supervision of our board of directors. Through
its global network of subsidiaries and branch offices, NSAM performs services and engages in activities relating to, among other
things, investments and financing, portfolio management and other administrative services, such as accounting and investor
relations, to us and our subsidiaries other than our CRE loan origination business. The management agreement with NSAM
provides for a base management fee and incentive fee. The management contract with NSAM commenced on July 1, 2014, and
as such, there were no management fees incurred for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and year ended December 31, 2013.

In connection with the NRE Spin-off, NorthStar Europe entered into a management agreement with NSAM with an initial term
of20 years on terms substantially consistent with the terms of our management agreement with NSAM. Our management agreement
with NSAM was amended and restated in connection with the NRE Spin-off to, among other things, adjust the annual base
management fee and incentive fee hurdles for the NRE Spin-off.

Base Management Fee

For the year ended December 31, 2015, we incurred $190 million related to the base management fee. For the six months ended
December 31,2014, we incurred $79 million related to the base management fee. The base management fee to NSAM will increase
subsequent to December 31, 2015 by an amount equal to 1.5% per annum of the sum of:

*  cumulative net proceeds of all future common equity and preferred equity issued by us;
*  equity issued by us in exchange or conversion of exchangeable notes based on the stock price at the date of issuance;

* any other issuances by us of common equity, preferred equity or other forms of equity, including but not limited to limited
partnership interests, or LTIP Units, in our Operating Partnership (excluding units issued to us and equity-based
compensation, but including issuances related to an acquisition, investment, joint venture or partnership); and

* cumulative CAD in excess of cumulative distributions paid on common stock, LTIP units or other equity awards beginning
the first full calendar quarter after the NSAM Spin-off.

Additionally, our equity interest in RXR Realty and Aerium is structured so that NSAM is entitled to the portion of distributable
cash flow from each investment in excess of the $10 million minimum annual base amount.

Incentive Fee

For the year ended December 31, 2015 and the six months ended December 31, 2014, we incurred $9 million and $3 million,
respectively, related to the incentive fee. The incentive fee is calculated and payable quarterly in arrears in cash, equal to:

»  the product of: (a) 15% and (b) our CAD before such incentive fee, divided by the weighted average shares outstanding
for the calendar quarter, when such amount is in excess of $0.68 per share and up to $0.78 per share, after giving effect
to the Reverse Split and the NRE Spin-off, or the 15% Hurdle; plus
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»  the product of: (a) 25% and (b) our CAD before such incentive fee, divided by the weighted average shares outstanding
for the calendar quarter, when such amount is in excess of $0.78 per share, after giving effect to the Reverse Split and
the NRE Spin-off, or the 25% Hurdle;

*  multiplied by our weighted average shares outstanding for the calendar quarter.

In addition, NSAM may also earn an incentive fee from our healthcare investments in connection with NSAM’s Healthcare
Strategic Partnership (refer to below).

Weighted average shares represents the number of shares of our common stock, LTIP Units or other equity-based awards (with
some exclusions), outstanding on a daily weighted average basis. With respect to the base management fee, all equity issuances
are allocated on a daily weighted average basis during the fiscal quarter of issuance. With respect to the incentive fee, such amounts
will be appropriately adjusted from time to time to take into accountthe effect of any stock split, reverse stock split, stock dividend,
reclassification, recapitalization or other similar transaction.

Additional Management Agreement Terms

If we were to spin-off any asset or business in the future, such entity would be managed by NSAM on terms substantially similar
to those set forth in the management agreement between us and NSAM. The management agreement further provides that the
aggregate base management fee in place immediately after any future spin-off will not be less than our aggregate base management
fee in place immediately prior to such spin-off.

Our management agreement with NSAM provides that in the event of a change of control of NSAM or other event that could be
deemed an assignment of the management agreement, we will consider such assignment in good faith and not unreasonably
withhold, condition or delay our consent. The management agreement further provides that we anticipate consent would be granted
for an assignment or deemed assignment to a party with expertise in commercial real estate and $10 billion of assets under
management. The management agreement also provides that, notwithstanding anything in the agreement to the contrary, to the
maximum extent permitted by applicable law, rules and regulations, in connection with any merger, sale of all or substantially all
of the assets, change of control, reorganization, consolidation or any similar transaction of us or NSAM, directly or indirectly, the
surviving entity will succeed to the terms of the management agreement.

Payment of Costs and Expenses and Expense Allocation

We are responsible for all of our direct costs and expenses and will reimburse NSAM for costs and expenses incurred by NSAM
on our behalf. In addition, NSAM may allocate indirect costs to us related to employees, occupancy and other general and
administrative costs and expenses in accordance with the terms of, and subject to the limitations contained in, our management
agreement with NSAM, or the G&A Allocation. Our management agreement with NSAM provides that the amount of the G&A
Allocation will not exceed the following: (i) 20% of the combined total of: (a) our and NorthStar Europe’s, or the NorthStar Listed
Companies’, general and administrative expenses as reported in their consolidated financial statements excluding (1) equity-based
compensation expense, (2) non-recurring items, (3) fees payable to NSAM under the terms of the applicable management agreement
and (4) any allocation of expenses to the NorthStar Listed Companies, or NorthStar Listed Companies’ G&A; and (b) NSAM’s
general and administrative expenses as reported in its consolidated financial statements, excluding equity-based compensation
expense and adding back any costs or expenses allocated to any managed company of NSAM; less (ii) the NorthStar Listed
Companies’ G&A. The G&A Allocation may include our allocable share of NSAM’s compensation and benefit costs associated
with dedicated or partially dedicated personnel who spend all or a portion of their time managing our affairs, based upon the
percentage of time devoted by such personnel to our affairs. The G&A Allocation may also include rental and occupancy,
technology, office supplies, travel and entertainment and other general and administrative costs and expenses also allocated based
on the percentage of time devoted by personnel to our affairs. In addition, we will pay directly or reimburse NSAM for an allocable
portion of any severance paid pursuant to any employment, consulting or similar service agreements in effect between NSAM
and any of its executives, employees or other service providers.

In connection with the NRE Spin-off and the related agreements, the NorthStar Listed Companies’ obligations to reimburse NSAM
for the G&A Allocation and any severance are shared among the NorthStar Listed Companies, at NSAM’s discretion, and the 20%
cap on the G&A Allocation, as described above, applies on an aggregate basis to the NorthStar Listed Companies. NSAM currently
determined to allocate these amounts based on assets under management.

For the year ended December 31, 2015 and the six months ended December 31, 2014, NSAM allocated $10 million, of which
$1 million is recorded in discontinued operations related to NorthStar Europe, and $5 million, respectively, to us.

In addition, we, together with NorthStar Europe and any company spun-off from us or NorthStar Europe, will pay directly or
reimburse NSAM for up to 50% of any long-term bonus or other compensation that NSAM’s compensation committee determines
shall be paid and/or settled in the form of equity and/or equity-based compensation to executives, employees and service providers
of NSAM during any year. Subject to this limitation and limitations contained in any applicable management agreement between
NSAM and NorthStar Europe or any company spun-off from us or NorthStar Europe, the amount paid by us, NorthStar Europe
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and any company spun-off from us or NorthStar Europe will be determined by NSAM in its discretion. At the discretion of
NSAM’s compensation committee, this compensation may be granted in shares of our restricted stock, restricted stock units, LTIP
Units or other forms of equity compensation or stock-based awards; provided that if at any time a sufficient number of shares of
our common stock are not available for issuance under our equity compensation plan, such compensation shall be paid in the form
of RSUs, LTIP Units or other securities that may be settled in cash. Our equity compensation for each year may be allocated on
an individual-by-individual basis at the discretion of the NSAM compensation committee and, as long as the aggregate amount
of the equity compensation for such year does not exceed the limits set forth in the management agreement, the proportion of any
particular individual’s equity compensation may be greater or less than 50%.

We were responsible for paying approximately 50% of the 2014 long-term bonuses earned under the NorthStar Asset Management
Group Inc. Executive Incentive Bonus Plan, or NSAM Bonus Plan. Long-term bonuses were paid to executives in the form of
equity-based awards of both us and NSAM, subject to performance-based and time-based vesting conditions over the four-year
performance period from January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2017. The long-term bonuses paid in the form of equity-based
awards of ours were adjusted for the NRE Spin-off and Reverse Split in the same manner as all other equity-based awards of ours.

Investment Opportunities

Under the management agreement, we agreed to make available to NSAM for the benefit of NSAM and its managed companies,
including us, all investment opportunities that we source. NSAM agreed to fairly allocate such opportunities among NSAM’s
managed companies, including us, and NSAM in accordance with an investment allocation policy. Pursuant to the management
agreement, we are entitled to fair and reasonable compensation for our services in connection with any loan origination opportunities
sourced by us, which may include first mortgage loans, subordinate mortgage interests, mezzanine loans and preferred equity
interests, in each case relating to commercial real estate. Inception to date, we earned $3 million from NSAM for services in
connection with loan origination opportunities, which represents $1 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 and $2 million
for the six months ended December 31, 2014.

NSAM provides services with regard to such areas as payroll, human resources and employee benefits, financial systems
management, treasury and cash management, accounts payable services, telecommunications services, information technology
services, property management services, legal and accounting services and various other corporate services to us as it relates to
our loan origination business for CRE debt.

Credit Agreement

In connection with the NSAM Spin-off, we entered into a revolving credit agreement with NSAM pursuant to which we make
available to NSAM, on an “as available basis,” up to $250 million of financing with a maturity of June 30, 2019 at LIBOR plus
3.50%. The revolving credit facility is unsecured. NSAM expects to use the proceeds for general corporate purposes, including
potential future acquisitions. In addition, NSAM may use the proceeds to acquire assets on behalf of its managed companies,
including us, that it intends to allocate to such managed company but for which such managed company may not then have
immediately available funds. The terms of the revolving credit facility contain various representations, warranties, covenants and
conditions, including the condition that our obligation to advance proceeds to NSAM is dependent upon us and its affiliates having
at least $100 million of either unrestricted cash and cash equivalents or amounts available under committed lines of credit, after
taking into account the amount NSAM seeks to draw under the facility. As of December 31,2015, we have not funded any amounts
to NSAM in connection with this agreement.

Healthcare Strategic Joint Venture

In January 2014, NSAM entered into a long-term strategic partnership with James F. Flaherty III, former Chief Executive Officer
of HCP, Inc., focused on expanding our healthcare business into a preeminent healthcare platform, or the Healthcare Strategic
Partnership. In connection with the partnership, Mr. Flaherty oversees and seeks to grow both our healthcare real estate portfolio
and the portfolio of NorthStar Healthcare. In connection with entering into the partnership, we granted Mr. Flaherty certain RSUs
(refer to Note 11. “Equity-Based Compensation” in “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data”). The Healthcare Strategic
Partnership is entitled to incentive fees ranging from 20% to 25% above certain hurdles for new and existing healthcare real estate
investments held by us. For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, we did not incur any incentive fees related to the
Healthcare Strategic Partnership.

NSAM Sponsored Companies

Prior to the NSAM Spin-off, we had agreements with each of our previously sponsored companies: NorthStar Income, NorthStar
Healthcare and NorthStar Income II to manage their day-to-day operations, including identifying, originating and acquiring
investments on their behalf and earning fees for our services. For the six months ended June 30, 2014, we earned $22 million of
fees related to these agreements, which are recorded in discontinued operations in the consolidated statements of operations. In
addition, we were entitled to certain expense allocation for costs paid on behalf of the NSAM Sponsored Companies. For the six
months ended June 30, 2014, we received $14 million of reimbursement from the NSAM Sponsored Companies.
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We committed to purchase up to $10 million in shares of each of NSAM’s Sponsored Companies’ common stock during the
two year period from when each offering was declared effective through the end of their respective offering period, in the event
that NSAM Sponsored Companies’ distributions to its stockholders, on a quarterly basis, exceeds its modified funds from
operations (as defined in accordance with the current practice guidelines issued by the Investment Program Association).

We acquired an aggregate of $15 million of shares of NorthStar Income, NorthStar Healthcare and NorthStar Income 11
through December 31, 2015. In addition, pursuant to the management agreement with NSAM, we committed up to $10
million to invest as distribution support consistent with past practice in each future public non-traded NSAM Sponsored
Company, up to a total of five new companies per year. We have committed to invest as distribution support in the
following NSAM Sponsored Companies:

*  NorthStar/RXR New York Metro - In October 2015, NorthStar/RXR New York Metro Real Estate, Inc., or NorthStar/
RXR New York Metro, filed an amended registration statement with the SEC, seeking to offer an additional class of
common shares related to its $2 billion public offering. In December 2015, we and RXR Realty satisfied NorthStar/RXR
New York Metro’s minimum offering amount as a result of the purchase of 0.2 million shares of its common stock for
an aggregate $2.0 million. NSAM began raising capital for NorthStar/RXR New York Metro in the beginning of 2016.

*  NorthStar Corporate Fund - In October 2015, NorthStar Corporate Income Fund, or NorthStar Corporate Fund, filed its
amended registration statement on Form N-2 with the SEC seeking to raise up to $3 billion in a public offering of common
stock. Subsequent to year end, NorthStar Corporate Fund was declared effective by the SEC and expects to begin raising
capital in early 2016.

»  NorthStar Capital Fund - In October 2015, NorthStar Real Estate Capital Income Fund filed its registration statement on
Form N-2 with the SEC seeking to raise up to $3 billion in a public offering of common stock.

*  NorthStar Corporate Investment - In June 2015, NorthStar Corporate Investment, Inc. confidentially submitted its amended
registration statement on Form N-2 to the SEC seeking to raise up to $1 billion in a public offering of common stock.

N-Star CDOs

We earn certain collateral management fees from the N-Star CDOs primarily for administrative services. For the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, we earned $5 million, $6 million and $11 million in fee income, respectively, of which
$2 million, $3 million and $10 million were eliminated in consolidation. Prior to the third quarter 2013, all amounts were
eliminated in consolidation as all of the N-Star CDOs were consolidated by us.

Additionally, we earn interest income from the N-Star CDO bonds and N-Star CDO equity in deconsolidated N-Star CDOs.
For the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, we earned $58 million, $72 million and $12 million, respectively, of
interest income from such investments in deconsolidated N-Star CDOs.

American Healthcare Investors

In December 2014, NSAM acquired a 43% interest in AHI and James F. Flaherty III, a strategic partner of NSAM, acquired a
12% interest in AHI. AHI is a healthcare-focused real estate investment management firm that co-sponsored and advised
Griffin-American, until Griffin-American was acquired by us and NorthStar Healthcare. In connection with this acquisition, AHI
provides certain management and related services, including property management, to NSAM, NorthStar Healthcare and us assisting
NSAM in managing the current and future healthcare assets (excluding any joint venture assets) acquired by us and, subject to
certain conditions, other NSAM managed companies. For the year ended December 31, 2015 and from acquisition date
(December 8, 2014) to December 31, 2014, we incurred $2 million and an immaterial amount, respectively, of property
management fees to AHI.

Island Hospitality Management

In January 2015, NSAM acquired a 45% interest in Island. Island is a leading, independent select service hotel management
company that currently manages 160 hotel properties, representing $4 billion of assets, of which 110 hotel properties are owned
by us. Island provides certain asset management, property management and other services to us to assist in managing our hotel
properties. Island receives a base management fee of 2.5% to 3.0% of the monthly revenue of our hotel properties it manages
for us. For the period from NSAM’s acquisition date (January 9, 2015) to December 31, 2015, we incurred $17 million of
base property management and other fees to Island.

NSAM purchase of common stock

In 2015, NSAM purchased 2.7 million shares of our common stock in the open market for $50 million.
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Recent Sales or Commitments to Sell to NSAM Sponsored Companies
Subsequent to year end we sold or entered into agreements to sell certain assets to NSAM Sponsored Companies:

* In February 2016, we entered into an agreement to sell substantially all of our 70% interest in PE Investment II to the
existing owners of the remaining 30% interest, one a third party which purchased approximately 80% of the interest sold
and the other NorthStar Income which purchased the other approximate 20% interest of the interest sold. NorthStar
Income paid $37 million for its respective interest. As part of the transaction, both buyers will assume the deferred
purchase price obligation, on a pro rata basis, of the PE Investment II joint venture upon receiving consent from the initial
seller.

* In February 2016, we entered into an agreement to sell our 60% interest in the Senior Housing Portfolio to NorthStar
Healthcare, which owns the remaining 40% interest for, $535 million, subject to proration and adjustment. NorthStar
Healthcare will assume our portion of the $648 million of mortgage borrowing as part of the transaction. We expect to
receive approximately $150 million of net proceeds upon completion of the sale in March 2016.

* InFebruary 2016, we sold a 49% interest in one loan with a total principal amount of $40 million to a third party, at par,
with the remaining 51% interest sold to NorthStar Income II, also at par.

* In February 2016, we sold one CRE security with a carrying value of $13 million to NorthStar Income I1.

The board of directors of each NSAM Sponsored Company, including all of the independent directors, approved each of
the respective transactions after considering, among other matters, third-party pricing support.

Recent Developments
Dividends

On February 25, 2016, we declared a dividend of $0.40 per share of common stock, after giving effect to the Reverse Split. The
common stock dividend will be paid on March 11, 2016 to stockholders of record as of the close of business on March 7, 2016.
On January 28, 2016, we declared a dividend of $0.54688 per share of Series A preferred stock, $0.51563 per share of Series B
preferred stock, $0.55469 per share of Series C preferred stock, $0.53125 per share of Series D Preferred Stock and $0.54688 per
share of Series E Preferred Stock. Dividends were paid on all series of preferred stock on February 16, 2016 to stockholders of
record as of the close of business on February 8, 2016.

Strategic Initiatives

On February 25, 2016, we announced that our board of directors formed a special committee and the special committee retained
UBS Investment Bank as its financial advisor to explore a potential recombination transaction with NSAM. The special committee
will be comprised solely of independent directors that are not on the board of directors of NSAM, including the new independent
director appointed to the board of directors effective March 1, 2016. There can be no assurance that the exploration of corporate
strategic initiatives will result in the identification or consummation of any strategic transaction or initiative.

Inflation

Virtually all of our assets and liabilities are interest rate sensitive in nature. As a result, interest rates and other factors influence
our performance significantly more than inflation does. A change in interest rates may correlate with inflation rates. Substantially
all of the leases at our manufactured housing communities and multifamily properties allow for monthly or annual rent increases
which provide us with the opportunity to achieve increases, where justified by the market, as each lease matures. Such types of
leases generally minimize the risks of inflation on our manufactured housing communities and multifamily properties. Refer to
“Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk™ for additional details.

Non-GAAP Financial Measures
We use CAD and NOI, each a non-GAAP measure, to evaluate our profitability.
Cash Available for Distribution

We believe that CAD provides investors and management with a meaningful indicator of operating performance. We also believe
that CAD is useful because it adjusts for a variety of cash (such as transaction costs, cash flow related to N-Star CDO equity
interests and community fees) and non-cash items (such as depreciation and amortization, equity-based compensation, realized
gain (loss) on investments, provision for loan losses, asset impairment, bad debt expense and non-cash interest income and expense
items). We adjust for transaction costs because these costs are not a meaningful indicator of our recurring operating performance.
For instance, these transaction costs include costs such as professional fees associated with new investments or restructuring of
investments, which are expenses related to specific transactions. We adjust for the cash flow related to N-Star CDO equity interests
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which represents the net interest generated from the N-Star CDO equity interests. We also adjust for community fees received
in cash related to our independent living healthcare portfolio which represents a component of our aggregate net return
generated related to such investment. These cash flows are a component of our ongoing return on such investments, and
therefore, is adjusted in CAD as it provides investors and management with a meaningful indicator of our recurring operating
performance. Furthermore, CAD adjusts N-Star CDO bond discounts to record such investments on an effective yield basis over
the expected weighted average life of the investment. N-Star CDO bond discounts relates to repurchased CDO bonds of
consolidated CDO financing transactions at a discount to par. These CDO bonds typically have a low interest rate and the majority
of the return is generated from repurchasing the CDO bonds at a discount to expected recovery value. Because the return
generated through the accretion of the discount is a meaningful contributor to our recurring operating performance, such
accretion is adjusted in CAD. The computation for the accretion of the discount under U.S. GAAP and CAD is the same.
However, for CDO financing transactions that are consolidated under U.S. GAAP, the CDO bonds are not presented as an
investment but rather are eliminated in our consolidated financial statements. In addition, we adjust for distributions and
adjustments to joint venture partners, which represent the net return generated from our investments allocated to our non-
controlling interests. For our owned hotels, our CAD calculation is equivalent to earnings before interest taxes depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA), the hotel industry standard metric, which does not make an adjustment for furniture, fixtures and
equipment (FF&E) reserves. CAD may fluctuate from period to period based upon a variety of factors, including, but not
limited to, the timing and amount of investments, repayments and asset sales, capital raised, use of leverage, changes in the
expected yield of investments and the overall conditions in commercial real estate and the economy generally. Management
also believes that quarterly distributions are principally based on operating performance and our board of directors includes
CAD as one of several metrics it reviews to determine quarterly distributions to stockholders.

We calculate CAD by subtracting from or adding to net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders, non-controlling interests
and the following items: depreciation and amortization items including depreciation and amortization, straight-line rental
income or expense (excluding amortization of rent free periods), amortization of above/below market leases, amortization of
deferred financing costs, amortization of discount on financings and other and equity-based compensation; cash flow related to N-
Star CDO equity interests; accretion of consolidated N-Star CDO bond discounts; non-cash net interest income in consolidated N-
Star CDOs; unrealized gain (loss) from the change in fair value; realized gain (loss) on investments and other, excluding accelerated
amortization related to sales of CDO bonds or other investments; provision for loan losses, net; impairment on depreciable
property; bad debt expense; deferred tax benefit (expense); acquisition gains or losses; distributions and adjustments related to
joint venture partners; transaction costs; foreign currency gains (losses); impairment on goodwill and other intangible assets;
gains (losses) on sales; and one-time events pursuant to changes in U.S. GAAP and certain other non-recurring items. For
example, CAD has been adjusted to exclude non-recurring gain (loss) from deconsolidation of certain N-Star CDOs. These
items, if applicable, include any adjustments for unconsolidated ventures.

CAD should not be considered as an alternative to net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders, determined in accordance
with U.S. GAAP, as an indicator of operating performance. In addition, our methodology for calculating CAD may differ from
the methodologies used by other comparable companies, including other REITs, when calculating the same or similar supplemental
financial measures and may not be comparable with these companies.
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The following table presents a reconciliation of CAD to net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders for the three
months and year ended December 31, 2015 (dollars in thousands):

December 31, 2015
Three Months
Ended Year Ended

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders $ (72,282) $ (327,497)
Non-controlling interests (8,799) (24,008)
Adjustments:

Depreciation and amortization items” 145,950 549,047
N-Star CDO bond discounts'® 4,483 12,738
Non-cash net interest income in consolidated N-Star CDOs (10,196) (40,922)
Unrealized (gain) loss from fair value adjustments / Provision for loan losses, net 25,837 196,763
Realized (gain) loss on investments™ 3,296 11,055
Distributions / adjustments to joint venture partners (11,357) (43,717)
Transaction costs and other™® 39,691 92,023
Adjustments related to discontinued operations® 1,364 146,905
CAD $ 117,987 § 572,387

(1) The three months ended December 31, 2015 includes depreciation and amortization of $117.6 million (including $0.2 million related to unconsolidated
ventures and $0.7 million of cash flow related to community fees), straight-line rental income of $(7.0) million, amortization of above/below market leases
of $2.9 million, amortization of deferred financing costs of $15.3 million, amortization of discount on financings and other of $14.0 million (primarily related
to an early loan payoff and $1.2 million of net year end adjustments) and amortization of equity-based compensation of $3.0 million. The year ended
December 31, 2015 includes depreciation and amortization of $460.0 million (including $1.5 million related to unconsolidated ventures and $1.6 million of
cash flow related to community fees), straight-line rental income of $(30.0) million, amortization of above/below market leases of $11.7 million, amortization
of deferred financing costs of $58.0 million, amortization of discount on financings and other of $21.7 million (primarily related to an early loan payoff) and
amortization of equity-based compensation of $27.7 million.

(2) For CAD, realized discounts on CDO bonds are accreted on an effective yield basis based on expected maturity. For CDOs that were deconsolidated, CDO
bond accretion is included in net income attributable to common stockholders from the date of deconsolidation.

(3) The three months ended December 31, 2015 excludes $(4.6) million related to securities in our consolidated CDOs, $0.1 million of foreign currency and
$1.3 million of other real estate gains and includes $0.7 million related to the liquidation of CDO IV, $0.6 million related to losses in an unconsolidated
venture and $0.3 million related to tax recovery. The year ended December 31, 2015 excludes $(13.2) million related to securities in our consolidated CDOs,
$3.0 million related to a real estate asset sale in our consolidated CDO, $(1.1) million of foreign currency, $(1.3) million related to conversion of exchangeable
notes and $1.6 million of other real estate gains and includes $13.3 million primarily related to accelerated amortization on CDO bonds, $9.4 million related
to the liquidation of CDO IV, $2.1 million related to a mortgage payoff on a net lease property and $0.6 million related to losses in an unconsolidated venture.

(4) The three months ended December 31, 2015 includes $5.6 million of transaction costs, $5.6 million of cash flow related to N-Star CDO equity interests,
$(5.9) million of deferred taxes, $32.0 million of impairment losses (including $25.5 million of goodwill impairment) and $2.4 million of bad debt expense.
The year ended December 31, 2015 includes $31.4 million of transaction costs primarily related to costs associated with the acquisition of real estate, $28.3
million of cash flow related to N-Star CDO equity interests, $(6.0) million of deferred taxes, $32.0 million of impairment losses (including $25.5 million of
goodwill impairment) and $6.4 million of bad debt expense and certain non-recurring items.

(5) The three months ended December 31, 2015 includes one month of activity of NorthStar Europe prior to the NRE Spin-off with an adjustment of $1.4 million
to discontinued operations. The year ended December 31, 2015 includes ten months of activity of NorthStar Europe prior to the NRE Spin-off with an
adjustment of $146.9 million to discontinued operations.

Net Operating Income (NOI)

We believe NOI is a useful metric of the operating performance of our real estate portfolio in the aggregate. Portfolio results and
performance metrics represent 100% for all consolidated investments and represent our ownership percentage for unconsolidated
joint ventures. Net operating income represents total property and related revenues, adjusted for: (i) amortization of above/below
market rent; (ii) straight line rent; (iii) other items such as adjustments related to joint ventures, cash flow related to community
fees and non-recurring bad debt expense; and (iv) less property operating expenses. However, the usefulness of NOI is limited
because it excludes general and administrative costs, interest expense, transaction costs, depreciation and amortization expense,
realized gains (losses) from the sale of properties and other items under U.S. GAAP and capital expenditures and leasing costs
necessary to maintain the operating performance of properties, all of which may be significant economic costs. NOI may fail to
capture significant trends in these components of U.S. GAAP net income (loss) which further limits its usefulness.

NOI should not be considered as an alternative to net income (loss), determined in accordance with U.S. GAAP, as an indicator
of operating performance. In addition, our methodology for calculating NOI may differ from the methodologies used by other
comparable companies, including other REITs, when calculating the same or similar supplemental financial measures and may
not be comparable with these companies.
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The following table presents a reconciliation of NOI to property and other related revenues less property operating expenses for
our property types in our real estate segment the three months ended December 31, 2015 (dollars in thousands):

Manufactured Multi-tenant
Total® Healthcare® Hotel Housing® Net Lease Multifamily® Office
Property and other revenues
Rental and escalation income $ 194,384  § 117,301 $ — 45,046 $ 16,404 §$ 10,142 § 5,491
Hotel related income 189,912 — 189,912 — — — —
Resident fee income 71,930 71,930 — — — — —
Other revenue® 4,864 917 — 2,683 516 590 158
Total property and other revenues 461,090 190,148 189,912 47,729 16,920 10,732 5,649
Real estate properties—operating expenses 241,369 85,003 128,884 18,081 2,037 4910 2,454
Adjustments:
Interest income®® 2,816 1,262 — 1,554 — — —
Equity in earnings® 400 — — — 75 325 —
Amortization and other items®® (1,496) (1,384) (125) — (83) 451 (355)
NOI $ 221,441 $ 105,023 § 60,903 $ 31,202 § 14875  § 6,598 $ 2,840
(1)  Amounts exclude NOI related to properties in NorthStar Europe which was spun-off on October 31, 2015. NOI for the month prior to the NRE Spin-off was
$12.8 million.
(2) Certain other revenue earned is not included as part of NOI, including collateral management fees for administrative services in our N-Star CDOs, that are
not part of our real estate segment.
(3) Represents interest income earned from notes receivable on manufactured homes and loans in the Griffin-American Portfolio.
(4) Includes an adjustment related to our interest in an unconsolidated joint venture in a net lease and multifamily property.
(5) Primarily includes amortization of straight-line rental income, amortization of above/below market leases, cash flow related to community fees and non-
recurring bad debt.
(6) Subsequent to December 31, 2015, we entered into agreements or committed to sell certain of our owned real estate portfolios, including a portfolio of 32

senior housing properties, up to 10 multifamily properties and retained an advisor to sell all or a portion of our manufactured housing portfolio.
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QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are primarily subject to interest rate risk and credit risk. These risks are dependent on various factors beyond our control,
including monetary and fiscal policies, domestic and international economic conditions and political considerations. Our market
risk sensitive assets, liabilities and related derivative positions are held for investment and not for trading purposes.

Interest Rate Risk

Changes in interest rates affect our net income, which is the difference between the income earned on our investments and the
interest expense incurred in connection with our borrowings and derivatives.

Our general financing strategy has focused on the use of “match-funded” structures. This means that we seek to align the maturities
of our liabilities with the maturities on our assets as closely as possible in order to manage the risks of being forced to refinance
our liabilities prior to the maturities of our assets. Substantially all of our investments are financed with non-recourse mortgage
notes. In addition, we seek to match the interest rate on our assets with like-kind borrowings, so fixed-rate investments are financed
with fixed-rate borrowings and floating-rate assets are financed with floating-rate borrowings, directly or indirectly, through the
use of interest rate swaps, caps and other financial instruments or through a combination of these strategies. For longer duration,
relatively stable investment real estate cash flows such as those derived from net lease assets, we tend to use fixed rate financing.
For real estate cash flows with greater growth potential such as hotels and healthcare under a RIDEA structure, we tend to use
floating rate financing which provides prepayment flexibility and may provide a better match between underlying cash flow
projections and potential increases in interest rates.

Our CRE debt and securities investments bear interest at either a floating or fixed rate. The interest rate on our floating-rate assets
is a fixed spread over an index such as LIBOR and typically reprices every 30 days based on LIBOR in effect at the time. Given
the frequent and periodic repricing of our floating-rate assets, changes in benchmark interest rates are unlikely to materially affect
the value of our floating-rate portfolio. Changes in short-term rates will, however, affect income from these investments. However,
some of our non-legacy CRE debt originations have LIBOR floors that are in excess of current LIBOR. We will not benefit from
an increase in LIBOR until it is in excess of the floors.

As of December 31, 2015, a hypothetical 100 basis point increase in one-month LIBOR or the applicable index applied to our
floating-rate assets and liabilities (and related derivatives) would result in a decrease in net income of approximately $43 million
annually, of which $30 million of the change is attributable to floating rate financing of hotel and healthcare operating real estate
and does not reflect the potential increase in rental cash flow associated with economic growth that may be typical in a rising
interest rate environment.

Achange in interest rates could affect the value of our fixed-rate CRE debt and securities investments and our real estate investments.
For example, increasing interest rates could result in a higher required yield on investments, which could decrease the value on
existing fixed-rate investments in order to adjust their yields to current market levels. In addition, the value of our real estate
properties may be influenced by changes in interest rates and credit spreads (as discussed below) because value is typically derived
by discounting expected future cash flow generated by the property using interest rates (such as the 10-year U.S. Treasury Note
yield) plus a risk premium based on the property type and creditworthiness of the tenants/operators. A lower risk-free rate generally
results in a lower discount rate and, therefore, a higher valuation, and vice versa; however, an increase in the risk-free rate would
not impact our net income.

A change in the interest rate and credit spread may also impact our net book value as CRE securities are marked-to-market each
quarter with any change in fair value reflected in unrealized gains (losses) or OCI. Generally, as interest rates increase, the value
of fixed-rate securities within our CDO financing transaction, such as CMBS, decreases and as interest rates decrease, the value
of these securities will increase. A change in unrealized gains (losses) do not directly affect our operating cash flow or our ability
to pay a dividend to stockholders.

We use derivative instruments to manage interest rate exposure. These derivatives are typically in the form of interest rate swap
or cap agreements and the primary objective is to minimize interest rate risks associated with our investments and financing
activities. The counterparties of these arrangements are major financial institutions with which we may also have other financial
relationships. We are exposed to credit risk in the event of non-performance by these counterparties and we monitor their financial
condition. For example, in June 2015 we entered into a $2 billion notional 10-year fixed interest rate swap in order to seek to
hedge against future refinancing costs of certain of our mortgage borrowings. This swap is currently materially out of the money
and we have posted $74 million of margin as of February 25, 2016 for the benefit of our counterparty and may be subject to future
margin calls. If an early termination event occurs now with respect to this swap, which could be triggered by a change of control
or similar merger transaction, in addition to losing the margin we have posted we would currently be required to pay approximately
$160 million to our counterparty. As of December 31, 2015, our counterparties do not hold any cash margin as collateral against
our remaining derivative contracts. As of December 31, 2015, none of our derivatives qualify for hedge accounting treatment,
therefore, gains (losses) resulting from their fair value measurement at the end of each reporting period are recognized as an
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increase or decrease in unrealized gain (loss) on investments and other in our consolidated statements of operations. In addition,
we are, and may in the future be, subject to additional expense based on the notional amount of the derivative and a specified
spread over the applicable LIBOR. Because the fair value of these instruments can vary significantly between periods, we may
experience significant fluctuations in the amount of our unrealized gain (loss) in any given period. As of December 31, 2015, a
hypothetical 100 basis point increase (decrease) in the 10-year treasury forward curve applied to our interest rate swap would
result in an unrealized gain (loss) of approximately $172 million.

Credit Spread Risk

The value of our fixed and floating-rate investments also changes with market credit spreads. This means that when market-
demanded risk premium, or credit spread, increases, the value of our fixed- and floating-rate assets decrease and vice versa. Fixed-
rate assets are valued based on a market credit spread over the rate payable on fixed rate U.S. Treasury of like maturity. This
means that their value is dependent on the yield demanded on such assets by the market, based on their credit relative to U.S.
Treasuries. Floating-rate CRE debt and securities investments are valued based on a market credit spread over the applicable
LIBOR. Demand for a higher yield on investments results in higher or “wider” spread over the benchmark rate (usually the
applicable U.S. Treasuryyield) to value these assets. Under these conditions, the value of our portfolio should decrease. Conversely,
if the spread used to value these assets were to decrease or “tighten,” the value of these assets should increase.

Credit Risk

We are subject to the credit risk of the tenant/operators of our propertics. We seek to undertake a rigorous credit evaluation of
each tenant and healthcare operator prior to acquiring properties. This analysis includes an extensive due diligence investigation
of the tenant/operator’s business as well as an assessment of the strategic importance of the underlying real estate to the tenant/
operator’s core business operations. Where appropriate, we may seek to augment the tenant/operator’s commitment to the facility
by structuring various credit enhancement mechanisms into the underlying leases. These mechanisms could include security
deposit requirements or guarantees from entitics we deem creditworthy. In addition, we actively monitor lease coverage at each
facility within our healthcare portfolio.

Credit risk in our CRE debt and securities investments relates to each individual borrower’s ability to make required interest and
principal payments on scheduled due dates. We seck to manage credit risk through a comprehensive credit analysis prior to making
an investment, actively monitoring our portfolio and the underlying credit quality, including subordination and diversification of
our portfolio. Our analysis is based on a broad range of real estate, financial, economic and borrower-related factors which we
believe are critical to the evaluation of credit risk inherent in a transaction.

Our CRE debt investments are collateral dependent, meaning the principal source of repayment is from a sale or refinancing of
the collateral securing our debt. In the event that a borrower cannot repay our debt, we may exercise our remedies under the debt
agreements, which may include taking title to collateral. We describe many of the options available to us in this situation in the
“Portfolio Management” section in “Business” of this Annual Report. To the extent the value of the collateral underlying a CRE
debt investment exceeds the carrying value of the investment (including all debt senior to us) and the expense we incur in collecting
the debt, we would collect 100% of our investment. To the extent the carrying value of our CRE debt investment plus all senior
debt to our position exceeds the realizable value to our collateral (net of expenses), then we would incur a loss. CMBS investments
are generally junior in right of payment of interest and principal to one or more senior classes but benefit from the support of one
or more subordinate classes of securities or other form of credit support within a securitization transaction.
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CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Attached as exhibits to the 2015 Form 10-K are certifications of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, which are required in accordance with Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange
Act”). This “Controls and Procedures” section includes information concerning the controls and procedures evaluation referred
to in the certifications. “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” in this Annual Report sets forth the report of Grant
Thornton LLP, the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, regarding its audit of the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting set forth below in this section. This section should be read in conjunction with the certifications and the
Grant Thornton LLP report for a more complete understanding of the topics presented.

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The management of the Company established and maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that
material information relating to the Company and its subsidiaries required to be disclosed in the reports that are filed or submitted
under the Exchange Act are recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules
and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to management, including the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosures.

As of the end of the period covered by this report, management conducted an evaluation as required under Rules 13a-15(b) and
15d-15(b) under the Exchange Act under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in
Rules 13a-15 (e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act).

Based on this evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of the end of the
period covered by this report, the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures are effective. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a
control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that it will detect
or uncover failures to disclose material information otherwise required to be set forth in the Company’s periodic reports.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

(a) Managements annual report on internal control over financial reporting.

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. As defined in
Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(f), internal control over financial reporting is a process designed by, or under the supervision of, the
principal executive and principal financial officer and effected by the board of directors, management and other personnel, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with U.S. GAAP and includes those policies and procedures that: (i) pertain to the maintenance of
records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company;
(ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with GAAP, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Under the supervision and with the participation of management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
the Company carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015
based on the “Internal Control-Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO) (2013 framework).

Based upon this evaluation, management has concluded that the Company’s internal control over financial reporting was effective
as of December 31, 2015.

(b) Attestation report of the registered public accounting firm.

The Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, Grant Thornton LLP, independently assessed the effectiveness
of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015. Grant Thornton LLP has issued an
attestation report, which is included in “Financial Statements and Supplementary Data” of this Annual Report.

(c) Changes in internal control over financial reporting.

There have not been any changes in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act) during the most recent fiscal quarter that materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.
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Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

The Company’smanagement, including the Chief Executive Officerand Chief Financial Officer,does not expect that the Company’s
disclosure controls and procedures or the Company’s internal control over financial reporting will prevent or detect all error and
all fraud. A control system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that
the control system’s objectives will be met. The design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints,
and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs.
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CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA
The consolidated financial statements of NorthStar Realty Finance Corp. and the notes related to the foregoing consolidated
financial statements, together with the independent registered public accounting firm’s reports thereon are included in this section.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Board of Directors and Stockholders
NorthStar Realty Finance Corp.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of NorthStar Realty Finance Corp. (a Maryland corporation) and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related consolidated statements of operations,
comprehensive income (loss), equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015. Our
audits of the basic consolidated financial statements included the financial statement schedules listed in the index appearing under
Item 15. These financial statements and financial statement schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements and financial statement schedules based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of NorthStar Realty Finance Corp. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of their operations and
their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2015 in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement schedules, when considered
in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all material respects, the information
set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2015, based on criteria established in the 2013 Internal
Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and
our report dated February 29, 2016 expressed an unqualified opinion.

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

New York, New York

February 29, 2016
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
Board of Directors and Stockholders
NorthStar Realty Finance Corp.

We have audited the internal control over financial reporting of NorthStar Realty Finance Corp. (a Maryland corporation) and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2015, based on criteria established in the 2013 Internal Control-Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO). The Company’s
management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management Report on Internal Control
over Financial Reporting (“Management’s Report™). Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’sinternal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because

of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December
31, 2015, based on criteria established in the 2013 Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
the consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, and our report dated
February 29, 2016 expressed an unqualified opinion on those financial statements.

/s/ GRANT THORNTON LLP

New York, New York

February 29, 2016
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NORTHSTAR REALTY FINANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(Dollars in Thousands)

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Operating real estate, net
Real estate debt investments, net (refer to Note 4)
Real estate debt investments, held for sale
Investments in private equity funds, at fair value (refer to Note 5)
Investments in unconsolidated ventures (refer to Note 6)
Real estate securities, available for sale (refer to Note 7)

Receivables, net of allowance of $4,318 and $2,020 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively

Receivables, related parties

Unbilled rent receivable, net of allowance of $116 and $4,037 as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively

Derivative assets, at fair value
Intangible assets, net
Assets of properties held for sale (refer to Note 3)
Assets of discontinued operations (refer to Note 9)
Other assets
Total assets'”
Liabilities
Mortgage and other notes payable
Credit facilities and term borrowings
CDO bonds payable, at fair value
Securitization bonds payable
Exchangeable senior notes
Junior subordinated notes, at fair value
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Due to related party (refer to Note 10)
Derivative liabilities, at fair value
Intangible liabilities, net
Liabilities of properties held for sale (refer to Note 3)
Liabilities of discontinued operations (refer to Note 9)
Other liabilities
Total liabilities®
Commitments and contingencies
Equity
NorthStar Realty Finance Corp. Stockholders’ Equity
Preferred stock, $986,640 aggregate liquidation preference as of December 31, 2015 and 2014

Common stock, $0.01 par value, 500,000,000 shares authorized, 183,239,708 and 150,842,021 shares issued and

outstanding as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit)
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Total NorthStar Realty Finance Corp. stockholders’ equity
Non-controlling interests
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

Refer to accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,

2015 2014
224,101  $ 296,964
299,288 389,779

8,702,259 10,212,004
501,474 1,067,667
224,677 —

1,101,650 962,038
155,737 207,777
702,110 878,514

66,197 111,299
2,850 2,287
46,262 16,140
116 2,131
527,277 659,445
2,742,635 29,012
— 158,533
106,412 185,122
15,403,045 $ 15,178,712

7,164,576 $ 8,327,509
652,704 718,759
307,601 390,068

— 41,746
29,038 41,008
183,893 215,172
170,120 186,836
50,903 47,430
103,293 17,915
149,642 176,528
2,209,689 28,962
— 79,512
165,856 193,611

11,187,315 10,465,056

939,118 939,118

1,832 1,508
5,149,349 4,828,928
(2,309,564) (1,422,399)
18,485 49,540

3,799,220 4,396,695
416,510 316,961

4,215,730 4,713,656

15,403,045 $ 15,178,712
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NORTHSTAR REALTY FINANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands)

Assets of consolidated VIEs included in the total assets above:
Restricted cash
Operating real estate, net
Real estate debt investments, net
Real estate securities, available for sale
Receivables
Other assets
Total assets of consolidated VIEs
Liabilities of consolidated VIEs included in the total liabilities above:
CDO bonds payable, at fair value
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Derivative liabilities, at fair value
Other liabilities
Total liabilities of consolidated VIEs

(€)

Adjusted for the one-for-two reverse stock split completed on November 1, 2015

December 31,
2015 2014

$ 11,362 § 4,601
— 7,137
22,145 25,325
385,421 463,050
1,577 2,304
590 242
$ 421,095 $ 502,659
$ 307,601 $ 390,068
1,255 1,761
7,321 17,707
575 1,784
$ 316,752 $ 411,320

. Refer to Note 12. “Stockholders’ Equity” for additional disclosure.

Refer to accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NORTHSTAR REALTY FINANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Years Ended December 31,

20157 2014 2013
Property and other revenues
Rental and escalation income $ 732,425 $ 349,951 $ 235,124
Hotel related income 784,151 237,039 —
Resident fee income 271,394 77,516 —
Other revenue 29,466 14,994 5,723
Total property and other revenues 1,817,436 679,500 240,847
Net interest income
Interest income (refer to Note 10) 227,483 310,116 303,989
Interest expense on debt and securities 8,678 11,977 37,632
Net interest income on debt and securities 218,805 298,139 266,357
Expenses
Management fee, related party (refer to Note 10) 198,695 82,756 —
Interest expense—mortgage and corporate borrowings 486,408 231,894 141,027
Real estate properties—operating expenses 915,701 318,477 73,668
Other expenses 26,607 8,920 4,558
Transaction costs 31,427 172,416 12,464
Impairment losses 31,951 — —
Provision for (reversal of) loan losses, net 4,201 3,769 (8,786)
General and administrative expenses
Salaries and related expense 13,744 22,124 26,421
Equity-based compensation expense® 27,693 24,885 11,784
Other general and administrative expenses 16,658 12,357 16,159
Total general and administrative expenses 58,095 59,366 54,364
Depreciation and amortization 456,916 184,689 93,470
Total expenses 2,210,001 1,062,287 370,765
Other income (loss)
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments and other (204,112) (231,697) (32,677)
Realized gain (loss) on investments and other 14,407 (77,064) 32,376
Gain (loss) from deconsolidation of N-Star CDOs (refer to Note 17) — (31,423) (299,802)
Other income (loss) — — 38
Income (loss) before equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated ventures and income tax benefit
(expense) (363,465) (424,832) (163,626)
Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated ventures 219,077 165,053 91,726
Income tax benefit (expense) (14,325) (16,606) (7,249)
Income (loss) from continuing operations (158,713) (276,385) (79,149)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (refer to Note 9)?) (108,554) (44,701) (8,761)
Net income (loss) (267,267) (321,086) (87,910)
Net (income) loss attributable to non-controlling interests 24,008 22,879 5,973
Preferred stock dividends (84,238) (73,300) (55,516)
Net income (loss) attributable to NorthStar Realty Finance Corp. common stockholders $ (327,497) $ (371,507) $ (137,453)
Earnings (loss) per share:
Income (loss) per share from continuing operations $ (125) $ (333) $ (2.43)
Income (loss) per share from discontinued operations (0.62) (0.46) (0.17)
Basic S (1.87) (3.79) (2.60)
Diluted ) (3.79) (2.60)
Weighted average number of shares:“
Basic 174,873,074 98,035,886 52,953,880
Diluted 176345121 98,995229 55,044,584

(1) The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2015 includes: (i) the Company’s results of operations for the two months ended
December 31, 2015 which represents the activity following the NRE Spin-off; and (ii) the Company’s results of operations for the ten months ended October
31, 2015 which represents a carve-out of revenues and expenses attributable to NRE recorded in discontinued operations. As a result, the year ended
December 31, 2015 may not be comparable to the prior periods presented.

(2) Referto Note 9. “Spin-offs” for disclosure related to the Spin-offs.

(3) The six months ended June 30, 2014 and year ended December 31,2013 includes $13.7 million and $5.2 million, respectively, of equity-based compensation
recorded in discontinued operations.

(4) Adjusted for the one-for-two reverse stock split completed on November 1, 2015. Refer to Note 12. “Stockholders’ Equity” for additional disclosure.

Refer to accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NORTHSTAR REALTY FINANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(Dollars in Thousands)

Net income (loss)
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Unrealized gain (loss) on real estate securities, available for sale, net

Reclassification of swap (gain) loss into interest expense—mortgage and corporate borrowings
(refer to Note 15)

Reclassification of swap (gain) loss into gain (loss) from deconsolidation of N-Star CDOs (refer
to Note 17)

Foreign currency translation adjustment, net
Total other comprehensive income (loss)
Comprehensive income (loss)
Comprehensive (income) loss attributable to non-controlling interests

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to NorthStar Realty Finance Corp.

Years Ended December 31,

2015

2014 2013

$ (267,267) $ (321,086) $ (87.910)

(35,218) 58,872 (1,483)
934 915 4,885
— — 15,246
17,042 (5,155)
(17,242) 54,632 18,648
(284,500)  (266,454)  (69,262)
24,537 22,121 5,174

Refer to accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

73

$ (259,972) $ (244,333) $ (64,088)



NORTHSTAR REALTY FINANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF EQUITY

(Dollars and Shares in Thousands)

Balance as of December 31, 2012

Net proceeds from offering of common stock
Net proceeds from offering of preferred stock
Common stock related to transactions
Non-controlling interests—contributions
Non-controlling interests—distributions
Dividend reinvestment plan

Amortization of equity-based compensation
Equity component of exchangeable senior notes
Conversion of exchangeable senior notes
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Conversion of LTIP Units

Dividends on common stock and equity-based
awards (refer to Note 11)

Dividends on preferred stock

Net income (loss)

Balance as of December 31, 2013

Net proceeds from offering of common stock
Net proceeds from offering of preferred stock
Common stock related to transactions

Issuance of common stock in connection with
exercise of warrants

Non-controlling interests—contributions
Non-controlling interests—distributions
Dividend reinvestment plan

Amortization of equity-based compensation
Equity component of exchangeable senior notes
Conversion of exchangeable senior notes

Other comprehensive income (loss)
Conversion of LTIP Units

Spin-off of NSAM

Dividends on common stock and equity-based
awards (refer to Note 11)

Dividends on preferred stock

Net income (loss)

Balance as of December 31, 2014

Net proceeds from offering of common stock
Non-controlling interests—contributions

Non-controlling interests—distributions

Non-controlling interests—reallocation of interest in

Operating Partnership (refer to Note 13)
Dividend reinvestment plan

Amortization of equity-based compensation
Conversion of exchangeable senior notes
Other comprehensive income (loss)

Conversion of Deferred LTIP Units to LTIP Units
(refer to Note 13)

Retirement of shares of common stock
Issuance of restricted stock, net of tax withholding
Spin-off of NorthStar Europe (refer to Note 9)

Dividends on common stock and equity-based
awards (refer to Note 11)

Dividends on preferred stock
Net income (loss)

Balance as of December 31, 2015

Preferred Stock Common Stock” Additional lr;a;ning; A Other ¢ Norri:giar Non-
Paid-in (Accumulated  Comprehensive  Stockholders’  controlling Total
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital” Deficit) Income (Loss) Equity Interests Equity
21,466  $504,018 40,902 $ 409 $1,196358 § (376,685) $ (22,179) $ 1,301,921 $ 28943 $ 1,330,864
— — 33,062 331 1,305,288 — — 1,305,619 — 1,305,619
8,000 193,334 — — — — — 193,334 — 193,334
— — — — 17,712 — — 17,712 — 17,712
— — — — — — — — 19,774 19,774
— — — — — — — — (1,403) (1,403)
— — 7 — 249 — — 249 — 249
— — — — — — — — 16,961 16,961
— — — — 45,740 — — 45,740 — 45,740
— — 2,896 29 74,748 — — 74,771 — 74,771
— — — — — — 17,845 17,845 803 18,648
— — 335 3 10,127 — — 10,130 (10,130) —
= = = = = (171,798) = (171,798) (9,588) (181,386)
— — — — — (55,516) — (55,516) — (55,516)
— — — — — (81,937) — (81,937) (5.973) (87,910)
29,466  §$697,352 77202 $ 772 $2,650222 § (685,936) § (4334) $ 2,658,076 $ 39,387 § 2,697,463
- — 27,625 276 1,191,031 - - 1,191,307 - 1,191,307
10,000 241,766 — — — — — 241,766 — 241,766
= = 30,854 308 1,082,423 — - 1,082,731 — 1,082,731
— — 399 4 12 — — 16 — 16
— — — — — — — — 321,455 321,455
— — — — — — — — (13,593) (13,593)
— — 4 — 239 — — 239 — 239
— — — — 21,053 — — 21,053 16,322 37,375
— — — — (296,382) — — (296,382) — (296,382)
— — 12,454 125 320,179 — — 320,304 — 320,304
— — — — — — 53,874 53,874 758 54,632
— — 2,304 23 18,588 — — 18,611 (18,611) —
— - — — (158,437) — — (158,437) — (158,437)
— — — — — (364,956) — (364,956) (5,878) (370,834)
— — — — — (73,300) — (73,300) — (73,300)
— — — — — (298,207) — (298,207) (22,879) (321,086)
39,466 $939,118 150,842 $ 1,508 $4.828928 § (1.422399) $ 49,540 8 4,396,695 $ 316961 § 4,713,656
— — 38,000 380 1,325,860 — — 1,326,240 — 1,326,240
— — — — — — — — 126,484 126,484
— — — — — — — — (36,661) (36,661)
— — — — (14,548) — — (14,548) 14,548 —
— — 7 — 194 — — 194 — 194
— — — — 13,757 — — 13,757 11,935 25,692
— — 829 8 13,582 — — 13,590 — 13,590
= = = = = = (16,713) (16,713) (529) (17,242)
— — — — (18,730) — — (18,730) 18,730 —
— — (6.470) (64) (117,983) — — (118,047) — (118,047)
— — 32 — (3.602) — — (3.602) — (3.602)
— — — — (878,109) — (14,342) (892,451) (7.450) (899,901)
— — — — — (559,668) — (559,668) (3.500) (563,168)
— — — — — (84,238) — (84,238) — (84,238)
— — — — — (243,259) — (243,259) (24,008) (267.267)
39,466  $939,118 183240 $§ 1832 $5,149349 $§ (2,309,564) $ 18,485 § 3,799.220 § 416,510 $ 4,215,730

(1) Adjusted for the one-for-two reverse stock split completed on November 1, 2015. Refer to Note 12. “Stockholders’ Equity” for additional disclosure.
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NORTHSTAR REALTY FINANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Dollars in Thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by (used in) operating activities:

Equity in (earnings) losses of PE Investments
Equity in (earnings) losses of unconsolidated ventures
Depreciation and amortization

Amortization of premium/accretion of discount on investments

Interest accretion on investments
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Amortization of equity-based compensation
Unrealized (gain) loss on investments and other
Realized (gain) loss on investments and other
(Gain) loss on deconsolidation of N-Star CDOs
Impairment from discontinued operations
Impairment losses
Distributions from PE Investments (refer to Note 5)
Distributions from unconsolidated ventures
Distributions from equity investments
Amortization of capitalized above/below market leases
Straight line rental income, net
Deferred income taxes, net
Provision for (reversal of) loan losses, net
Allowance for uncollectible accounts
Other
Discount received
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Restricted cash
Receivables
Receivables, related parties
Other assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Due to related party
Other liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition of operating real estate
Acquisition of Griffin-American, net of cash
Improvements of operating real estate
Proceeds from sale of operating real estate
Deferred costs and intangible assets
Origination of or fundings for real estate debt investments
Acquisition of real estate debt investments
Proceeds from sale of real estate debt investments
Repayment on real estate debt investments
Investment in PE Investments (refer to Note 5)
Distributions from PE Investments (refer to Note 5)
Investment in unconsolidated ventures
Distributions from unconsolidated ventures
Acquisition of real estate securities, available for sale

Proceeds from the sale of real estate securities, available for sale

Repayment of real estate securities, available for sale
Change in restricted cash
Investment deposits and pending deal costs
Other assets
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
$ (267267) $  (321,086) $  (87,910)
(198,159) (150,801) (88,842)
(20,918) (14,252) (2,884)
499,347 185,222 94,840
(51,247) (76,040) (58,032)
(13,841) (22,064) (1,549)
48411 18,400 7,393
25,692 37,375 16,961
202,832 214,815 (20,054)
(14,407) 77,234 (31,414)
— 31,423 299,302

— 555 8,613
31,951 — —
198,159 150,801 88,842
7,531 3,514 4,744
26,469 19,453 7,028
14,015 1,189 (1,438)
(34,676) (9,263) (2,713)
(27,742) — —
4,201 3,769 (8,786)
5,457 10,858 1,138
912 502 148

— 3,223 7,815
(11,313) (83,159) (6,846)
29,632 (34,997) (10,912)
(657) 6,323 (11,946)
7,147 (37,169) (1,041)
26,931 56,284 32,860
1,973 47,430 —
30,225 25317 4,857
520,658 144,856 240,674
(3,367,580)  (3,466,610)  (1,624,959)
— (2,947.856) —
(150,197) (37,955) (11,028)
22,487 27,630 17,687
(4,809) (21,597) (769)
(72,596) (282,181) (744,209)
(72,950) (997) (56,301)
— 28,500 106,845
589,694 196,034 274,029
(609,616) (557,719) (664,392)
455207 230,598 135,607
(4,005) (73,254) (109,218)
23,403 11,873 11,782
(38,822) (36,519) (2,800)
95,664 94,763 223,992
116,410 63,902 187,622
35,849 (201,135) (30,736)
(13,226) — —
(11,487) (81,704) 1,695
(3,006,574)  (7,054227)  (2,285,153)

Refer to accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NORTHSTAR REALTY FINANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(Dollars in Thousands)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Borrowings from mortgage and other notes payable
Repayment of mortgage and other notes payable
Proceeds from CDO bonds reissuance
Repayment of CDO bonds
Repurchase of CDO bonds
Repayment of securitization bonds payable
Borrowings from credit facilities
Repayment of credit facilities
Repayment of secured term loan
Proceeds from exchangeable senior notes
Repurchase and repayment of exchangeable senior notes
Proceeds from Senior Notes
Repayment of 2014 Senior Notes
Payment of financing costs
Purchase of derivative instruments
Settlement of derivative instruments
Change in restricted cash
Net proceeds from common stock offering
Repurchase of common stock
Net proceeds from preferred stock offering
Proceeds from dividend reinvestment plan
Spin-off of NSAM (refer to Note 9)
Spin-off of NorthStar Europe (refer to Note 9)
Dividends
Contributions from non-controlling interests
Distributions to non-controlling interests

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Effect of foreign currency translation on cash and cash equivalents

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents—beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents—end of period

Years Ended December 31,

Refer to accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2015 2014 2013
$ 2200,141 $ 5932208 $ 1,252,085
(56,711) (383,018) (21,272)
— — 23,725
(90,069) (87,859) (655,575)
(25,531) (15,320) (44,222)
(41,831) (40,505) (15,794)
1,141,150 922,540 147,748
(1,211,877) (259,798) (138,798)
— — (105)

— — 345,000

— — (36,710)
340,000 — —
— (481,118) —
(105,445) (139,937) (28,280)
(29,599) (4,159) (9,563)
— 2,995 —

1,781 22,843 134,504
1,326,240 1,191,307 1,305,619
(116,046) — —
— 241,766 193,334

194 239 249

— (118,728) —
(360,410) — —
(643,858) (438,256) (227,314)
125,023 246,027 19,774
(36,661) (18,709) (8,863)
2,417,491 6,572,518 2,235,542
(4,438) (2,173) —
(72,863) (339,026) 191,063
296,964 635,990 444,927
$ 224101 S 296964 $ 635990



NORTHSTAR REALTY FINANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Business and Organization

NorthStar Realty Finance Corp. is a diversified commercial real estate company (the “Company” or “NorthStar Realty”). The
Company invests in multiple asset classes across commercial real estate (“CRE”) that it expects will generate attractive risk-
adjusted returns and may take the form of acquiring real estate, originating or acquiring senior or subordinate loans, as well as
pursuing opportunistic CRE investments. The Company is a Maryland corporation and completed its initial public offering in
October 2004. The Company conducts its operations so as to continue to qualify as a real estate investment trust (“REIT”) for
U.S. federal income tax purposes.

On March 13, 2015, the Company formed NorthStar Realty Finance Limited Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership and the
operating partnership of the Company (the “Operating Partnership”). The Company contributed substantially all of its assets to
the Operating Partnership in exchange for all of the common and preferred limited partnership interests in the Operating Partnership
and the assumption of certain of the Company’s liabilities. The Operating Partnership holds, directly or indirectly, substantially
all of the Company’s assets and the Company conducts its operations, directly or indirectly, through the Operating Partnership.

All references herein to the Company refer to NorthStar Realty Finance Corp. and its consolidated subsidiaries, including the
Operating Partnership, collectively, unless the context otherwise requires.

Spin-offs

On June 30, 2014, the Company completed the spin-off of its historical asset management business (“NSAM Spin-off”) in the
form of a tax-free distribution (the “NSAM Distribution”). Effective upon the NSAM Spin-off, the Company is externally managed
and advised by an affiliate of NorthStar Asset Management Group Inc. (NYSE: NSAM), which together with its affiliates is
referred to as NSAM.

On October 31,2015, the Company completed the spin-off of its European real estate business (the “NRE Spin-off”) into a separate
publicly-traded REIT, NorthStar Realty Europe Corp. (“NorthStar Europe™), in the form of a taxable distribution (the “NRE
Distribution”). In connection with the NRE Distribution, each of the Company’scommon stockholders received shares of NorthStar
Europe’s common stock on a one-for-six basis, before giving effect to a one-for-two reverse stock split of the Company’s common
stock (this orany suchreverse stock split hereinreferred to asthe “Reverse Split”). The Company contributed to NorthStar Europe
approximately $2.6 billion of European real estate, at cost (excluding the Company’s European healthcare properties), comprised
of 52 properties spanning across some of Europe’s top markets (“European Portfolio”) and $250 million of cash. NSAM manages
NorthStar Europe pursuant to a long-term management agreement, on substantially similar terms as the Company’s management
agreement with NSAM.

The NRE Spin-off and the NSAM Spin-off are herein collectively referred to as “Spin-offs.” Refer to Note 9. “Spin-offs” for
further disclosure.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Accounting

The accompanying consolidated financial statements and related notes of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (“U.S. GAAP”).

The year ended December 31, 2015 includes: (i) the Company’s results of operations for the two months ended
December 31, 2015 which represents the activity following the NRE Spin-off; and (ii) the Company’s results of operations for
the ten months ended October 31, 2015 which includes a carve-out of revenues and expenses attributable to NRE recorded
in discontinued operations. The year ended December 31, 2014 includes: (i) the Company’s results of operations for the
six months ended December 31, 2014 which represents the activity following the NSAM Spin-off; and (ii) the Company’s
results of operations for the six months ended June 30, 2014 which includes a carve-out of revenues and expenses
attributable to NSAM recorded in discontinued operations. As a result, the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 may not
be comparable to the prior period presented.

Periods prior to June 30, 2014 and October 31, 2015 present a carve-out of revenues and expenses presented in discontinued
operations associated with NSAM and NorthStar Europe, related to the Company’s historical asset management and European
real estate business. Expenses also included an allocation of indirect expenses of the Company to NSAM and NRE, including
salaries, equity-based compensation and other general and administrative expenses (primarily occupancy and other cost) based on
an estimate had the asset management and European real estate business been run as an independent entity. This allocation method
was principally based on relative headcount and management’s knowledge of the Company’s operations.
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Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, the Operating Partnership and their consolidated
subsidiaries. The Company consolidates variable interest entities (“VIE”) where the Company is the primary beneficiary and
voting interest entities which are generally majority owned or otherwise controlled by the Company. All significant intercompany
balances are eliminated in consolidation.

Variable Interest Entities

A VIE is an entity that lacks one or more of the characteristics of a voting interest entity. A VIE is defined as an entity in which
equity investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have sufficient equity at risk for the
entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other parties. The determination of whether
an entity is a VIE includes both a qualitative and quantitative analysis. The Company bases its qualitative analysis on its review
of the design of the entity, its organizational structure including decision-making ability and relevant financial agreements and the
quantitative analysis on the forecasted cash flow of the entity.

The Company reassesses its initial evaluation of an entity as a VIE upon the occurrence of certain reconsideration events.

A VIE must be consolidated only by its primary beneficiary, which is defined as the party who, along with its affiliates and agents
has both the: (i) power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the VIE’s economic performance; and (ii) obligation
to absorb the losses of the VIE or the right to receive the benefits from the VIE, which could be significant to the VIE. The
Company determines whether it is the primary beneficiary of a VIE by considering qualitative and quantitative factors, including,
but not limited to: which activities most significantly impact the VIE’s economic performance and which party controls such
activities; the amount and characteristics of its investment; the obligation or likelihood for the Company or other interests to provide
financial support; consideration of the VIE’s purpose and design, including the risks the VIE was designed to create and pass
through to its variable interest holders and the similarity with and significance to the business activities of the Company and the
other interests. The Company reassesses its determination of whether it is the primary beneficiary of a VIE each reporting period.
Significant judgments related to these determinations include estimates about the current and future fair value and performance
of investments held by these VIEs and general market conditions.

The Company evaluates its CRE debt and securities, investments in unconsolidated ventures and securitization financing
transactions, such as its collateralized debt obligations (“CDOs”) and its liabilities to subsidiary trusts issuing preferred securities
(“junior subordinated notes”) to determine whether they are a VIE. The Company analyzes new investments and financings, as
well as reconsideration events for existing investments and financings, which vary depending on type of investment or financing.

Voting Interest Entities

A voting interest entity is an entity in which the total equity investment at risk is sufficient to enable it to finance its activities
independently and the equity holders have the power to direct the activities of the entity that most significantly impact its economic
performance, the obligation to absorb the losses of the entity and the right to receive the residual returns of the entity. The usual
condition for a controlling financial interest in a voting interest entity is ownership of a majority voting interest. If the Company
has a majority voting interest in a voting interest entity, the entity will generally be consolidated. The Company does not consolidate
a voting interest entity if there are substantive participating rights by other parties and/or kick-out rights by a single party or through
a simple majority vote.

The Company performs on-going reassessments of whether entities previously evaluated under the voting interest framework have
become VIEs, based on certain events, and therefore subject to the VIE consolidation framework.

Investments in Unconsolidated Ventures

A non-controlling, unconsolidated ownership interest in an entity may be accounted for using the equity method, at fair value or
the cost method.

Under the equity method, the investment is adjusted each period for capital contributions and distributions and its share of the
entity’s net income (loss). Capital contributions, distributions and net income (loss) of such entities are recorded in accordance
with the terms of the governing documents. An allocation of net income (loss) may differ from the stated ownership percentage
interest in such entity as a result of a preferred return and allocation formula, if any, as described in such governing documents.

The Company may account for an investment in an unconsolidated entity at fair value by electing the fair value option. The
Company elected the fair value option for its investments (directly or indirectly in joint ventures) that own limited partnership
interests in real estate private equity funds (“PE Investments™) and certain investments in unconsolidated ventures (refer to Note 6).
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The Company records the change in fair value for its share of the projected future cash flow of such investments from one
period to another in equity in earnings (losses) from unconsolidated ventures in the consolidated statements of operations. Any
change in fair value attributed to market related assumptions is considered unrealized gain (loss).

The Company may account for an investment that does not qualify for equity method accounting or for which the fair value option
was not elected using the cost method if the Company determines the investment in the unconsolidated entity is insignificant.
Under the cost method, equity in earnings is recorded as dividends are received to the extent they are not considered a return of
capital, which is recorded as a reduction of cost of the investment.

Non-controlling Interests

A non-controlling interest in a consolidated subsidiary is defined as the portion of the equity (net assets) in a subsidiary not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. A non-controlling interest is required to be presented as a separate component
of equity on the consolidated balance sheets and presented separately as net income (loss) and other comprehensive income (loss)
(“OCI”) attributable to controlling and non-controlling interests. An allocation to a non-controlling interest may differ from the
stated ownership percentage interest in such entity as a result of a preferred return and allocation formula, if any, as described in
such governing documents.

Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that could affect the amounts reported in the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results
could materially differ from those estimates and assumptions.

Reclassifications

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified in the consolidated financial statements to conform to current period presentation
including amounts related to certain assets held for sale (refer to Note 3) and discontinued operations (refer to Note 9).

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The Company reports consolidated comprehensive income (loss) in separate statements following the consolidated statements
of operations. Comprehensive income (loss) is defined as the change in equity resulting from net income (loss) and OCI.
The components of OCI principally include: (i) unrealized gain (loss) on real estate securities available for sale for which the
fair value option is not elected; (ii) the reclassification of unrealized gain (loss) on real estate securities available for sale for
which the fair value option was not elected to realized gain (loss) upon sale or realized event; (iii) the reclassification of
unrealized gain (loss) to interest expense on derivative instruments that are or were deemed to be effective hedges; (iv)
foreign currency translation adjustment; and (v) reclassification of foreign currency translation into realized gain (loss) on
investments and other upon realized event.
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The following tables present the components of accumulated OCI for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
(dollars in thousands):

Unrealized
Gain (Loss) on Interest Rate Foreign
Available for Swap Gain Currency
Accumulated OCI Sale Securities (Loss) Translation Total
Balance as of December 31, 2012 $ (276) $ (21,903) $ — $ (22,179
Unrealized gain (loss) on real estate securities, available for sale (557) — — (557)
Reclassification of unrealized (gain) loss on real estate securities, available for
sale into realized gain (loss) on investments and other (9206) — — (926)
Reclassification of swap (gain) loss into interest expense—mortgage and
corporate borrowings (refer to Note 15) — 4,885 — 4,885
Reclassification of swap (gain) loss into gain (loss) from deconsolidation of N-
Star CDOs (refer to Note 17) — 15,246 — 15,246
Non-controlling interests 23 (826) — (803)
Balance as of December 31, 2013 $ (1,736) $ (2,598) $ — 3 (4,334)
Unrealized gain (loss) on real estate securities, available for sale 60,140 — — 60,140
Reclassification of unrealized (gain) loss on real estate securities, available for
sale into realized gain (loss) on investments and other (1,268) — — (1,268)
Reclassification of swap (gain) loss into interest expense—mortgage and
corporate borrowings (refer to Note 15) — 915 — 915
Foreign currency translation adjustment — — (5,155) (5,155)
Non-controlling interests (1,064) (11) 317 (758)
Balance as of December 31, 2014 $ 56,072 $ (1,694) $ (4,838) $ 49,540
Unrealized gain (loss) on real estate securities, available for sale (21,091) — — (21,091)
Reclassification of unrealized (gain) loss on real estate securities, available for
sale into realized gain (loss) on investments and other (14,127) — — (14,127)
Reclassification of swap (gain) loss into interest expense—mortgage and
corporate borrowings (refer to Note 15) — 934 — 934
Foreign currency translation adjustment — — 17,042 17,042
Reclassification of foreign currency translation upon NRE Spin-off — — (14,342) (14,342)
Non-controlling interests 162 7) 374 529
Balance as of December 31,2015 $ 21,016 $ (767) $ (1,764) $ 18,485

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly-liquid investments with an original maturity date of three months or less to be cash equivalents.
Cash, including amounts restricted, may at times exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation deposit insurance limit of
$250,000 per institution. The Company mitigates credit risk by placing cash and cash equivalents with major financial institutions.
To date, the Company has not experienced any losses on cash and cash equivalents.

Restricted Cash
Restricted cash primarily consists of amounts related to operating real estate and CRE debt investments. The following table

presents a summary of restricted cash as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 (dollars in thousands):

December 31,

2015 2014
Capital expenditures reserves $ 171,712 $ 211,010
Operating real estate escrow reserves'" 107,399 117,740
CRE debt escrow deposits 8,815 56,342
Cash in CDOs") 11,362 4,687
Total $ 299,288 $ 389,779

(1) Primarily represents insurance, real estate tax, repair and maintenance, tenant security deposits and other escrows related to operating real estate.
(2) Represents proceeds from repayments and/or sales pending distribution.
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Fair Value Option

The fair value option provides an election that allows a company to irrevocably elect fair value for certain financial assets and
liabilities on an instrument-by-instrument basis at initial recognition. The Company may elect to apply the fair value option for
certain investments due to the nature of the instrument. Any change in fair value for assets and liabilities for which the election
is made is recognized in earnings.

Operating Real Estate

Operating real estate is carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Ordinary repairs and maintenance are expensed
as incurred. Major replacements and improvements which improve or extend the life of the asset are capitalized and depreciated
over their useful life. Operating real estate is depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, summarized as follows:

Category: Term:

Building (fee interest) 15 to 40 years

Building improvements Lesser of the useful life or remaining life of the building
Building leasehold interests Lesser of 40 years or remaining term of the lease

Land improvements 10 to 30 years

Tenant improvements Lesser of the useful life or remaining term of the lease

The Company follows the purchase method for an acquisition of operating real estate, where the purchase price is allocated to
tangible assets such as land, building, tenant and land improvements and other identified intangibles, such as goodwill. Costs
directly related to an acquisition deemed to be a business combination are expensed and included in transaction costs in the
consolidated statements of operations. The Company evaluates whether real estate acquired in connection with a foreclosure,
UCC/deed in lieu of foreclosure or a consentual modification of a loan (herein collectively referred to as taking title to collateral)
(“REQO”) constitutes a business and whether business combination accounting is appropriate. Any excess upon taking title to
collateral between the carrying value of a loan over the estimated fair value of the property is charged to provision for loan losses.

Operating real estate, including REO, which has met the criteria to be classified as held for sale, is separately presented on the
consolidated balance sheets. Such operating real estate is recorded at the lower of its carrying value or its estimated fair value less
the cost to sell. Once a property is determined to be held for sale, depreciation is no longer recorded.

Minimum rental amounts due under leases are generally either subject to scheduled fixed increases or adjustments. The following
table presents approximate future minimum rental income under noncancelable operating leases to be received over the next five
years and thereafter as of December 31, 2015 (dollars in thousands):

Years Ending December 31:0

2016 $ 372,196
2017 353,178
2018 329,957
2019 315,227
2020 304,540
Thereafter 1,669,031

Total $ 3,344,129

(1)  Excludes rental income from healthcare and hotel properties permitted by the REIT Investment Diversification and Empowerment Act of 2007
(“RIDEA”) and manufactured housing communities, multifamily and independent living properties that are subject to short-term leases.

Real Estate Debt Investments

CRE debt investments are generally intended to be held to maturity and, accordingly, are carried at cost, net of unamortized loan
fees, premium and discount. CRE debt investments that are deemed to be impaired are carried at amortized cost less a loan loss
reserve, if deemed appropriate, which approximates fair value. CRE debt investments where the Company does not have the intent
to hold the loan for the foreseeable future or until its expected payoff are classified as held for sale and recorded at the lower of
cost or estimated value.
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Real Estate Securities

The Company classifies its CRE securities investments as available for sale on the acquisition date, which are carried at fair value.
The Company historically elected to apply the fair value option for its CRE securities investments. For those CRE securities for
which the fair value option was elected, any unrealized gains (losses) from the change in fair value is recorded in unrealized gains
(losses) on investments and other in the consolidated statements of operations.

The Company may decide to not elect the fair value option for certain CRE securities due to the nature of the particular instrument.
For those CRE securities for which the fair value option was not elected, any unrealized gain (loss) from the change in fair value
is recorded as a component of accumulated OCI in the consolidated statements of equity, to the extent impairment losses are
considered temporary.

Intangible Assets and Intangible Liabilities

The Company records acquired identified intangibles, which includes intangible assets (such as value of the above-market leases,
in-place leases, goodwill and other intangibles) and intangible liabilities (such as the value of below-market leases), based on
estimated fair value. The value allocated to the above or below-market leases is amortized over the remaining lease term as a net
adjustment to rental income. Other intangible assets are amortized into depreciation and amortization expense on a straight-line
basis over the remaining lease term.

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of net tangible and intangible assets acquired in a business
combination and is not amortized. The Company analyzes goodwill for impairment on an annual basis and whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of goodwill may not be fully recoverable. We first assess qualitative
factors to determine whether it is more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit, related to such goodwill, is less than
the carrying amount as a basis to determine whether the two-step impairment test is necessary. The first step in the impairment
test compares the fair value of the reporting unit with its carrying amount. If the carrying amount exceeds fair value, the second
step is required to determine the amount of the impairment loss, if any, by comparing the implied fair value of the reporting unit
goodwill with the carrying amount of such goodwill. The implied fair value of goodwill is derived by performing a hypothetical
purchase price allocation for the reporting unit as of the measurement date, allocating the reporting unit’s estimated fair value to
its net assets and identifiable intangible assets. The residual amount represents the implied fair value of goodwill. To the extent
this amount is below the carrying value of goodwill, an impairment loss is recorded in the consolidated statements of operations.

Events or circumstances which could indicate a potential impairment include (but are not limited to) issues with local, state or
federal governments; on-going or projected negative operating income or cash flow; a significant change in payor mix related to
healthcare assets; and/or a significant change in the occupancy rate and/or rising interest rates.

A discounted cash flow model is performed based on management’s forecast of operating performance for each reporting unit to
assess fair value. In addition, the Company looks at comparable companies and representative transactions to validate management’s
expectations, where possible. The inputs used in the annual test is updated for current market conditions and forecasts. The two
main assumptions used in measuring goodwill impairment, include the cash flow from operations from each of our reporting units
and the weighted average cost of capital. The starting point for each of the reporting unit’s cash flow from operations s the detailed
annual plan. The detailed planning process takes into consideration many factors including EBITDAR, EBITDAR margins,
revenue growth rate and capital spending requirements, among other items which impact the individual reporting unit projections.
Cash flow beyond the specific operating plans are estimated using a terminal value calculation, which incorporate historical and
forecasted financial cyclical trends for each reporting unit and considered long-term earnings growth rates. The financial and
credit market volatility directly impacts our fair value measurement through our weighted average cost of capital that we use to
determine the discount rate. During times of volatility, significant judgment must be applied to determine whether credit changes
are a short-term or long term trend. Fair value of the reporting unit is using significant unobservable inputs or Level 3 in the fair
value hierarchy. These inputs are based on internal management estimates, forecasts and judgments.

The annual impairment test for the reporting units related to a healthcare portfolio acquired in 2014 was conducted as of October
1 and the remaining reporting units related to the Griffin-American Portfolio as of December 31, 2015. Management used an
independent third-party valuation party specialist to assist. Based on the step one analysis performed, management determined
the fair value for all of reporting units were in excess of the respective reporting unit’s carrying value, with four exceptions,
related to the healthcare portfolio acquired in 2014. As a result, we estimated the impairment loss for such reporting units to
be $25.5 million and recorded an estimated preliminary impairment charge for such amount in the fourth quarter 2015. Due to
the timing and complexity of step two of the impairment test, which is required to determine the actual impairment, we were
unable to finalize the amount of impairment prior to filing form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2015. Step two of the
impairment test will be completed in the first quarter 2016 and any such adjustment will be recorded.
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Summary
The following tables presents identified intangibles as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 (dollars in thousands):

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net

Intangible assets:
In-place leases $ 289,124  § (82,089) $ 207,035 $ 316,129 § (49,656) $ 266,473
Above-market leases 268,426 (35,940) 232,486 273,522 (9,730) 263,792
Goodwill® 48,635 NA 48,635 75,806 NA 75,806
Other 41,149 (2,028) 39,121 53,724 (350) 53,374

Total $ 647,334 §  (120,057) $ 527,277 $ 719,181 § (59,736) $ 659,445
Intangible liabilities:
Below-market leases $ 177,931 $ (30,462) $ 147,469 $ 184,209 $ (14,838) $ 169,371
Other® 2,236 (63) 2,173 7,157 NA 7,157

Total $ 180,167 $ (30,525) $ 149,642 $ 191,366  $ (14,838) $ 176,528

(1) As of December 31, 2015, the weighted average amortization period for above-market leases, below-market leases and in-place leases is 11.8 years, 13.8
years and 9.8 years, respectively.

(2) Represents goodwill associated with two acquisitions of healthcare portfolios that operate through RIDEA structures. The first portfolio relates to a healthcare
portfolio acquired in 2014 ($25.5 million) and the second acquired with the acquisition of Griffin-American Healthcare REIT II, Inc. (“Griffin-American
Portfolio”) ($48.6 million). For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company recorded a goodwill impairment of $25.5 million related to the healthcare
portfolio acquired in 2014.

(3) Represents the value associated with a purchase price option associated with the Griftin-American Portfolio.

The following table presents a rollforward of goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 (dollars in thousands):

Balance as of December 31, 2013 $ —
Goodwill from acquisitions 75,806
Balance as of December 31, 2014 75,806
Goodwill from acquisitions 26,046
Disposal of goodwill" (26,046)
Impairment losses (25,531)
Adjustments from foreign currency translation (1,640)
Balance as of December 31, 2015 $ 48,635

(1) Represents goodwill associated with the European Portfolio’s contributed to NorthStar Europe upon completion of the NRE Spin-off.

The Company recorded amortization of acquired above-market leases, net of acquired below-market leases of $(11.3) million,
$(1.2) million and $1.4 million for the years ended December31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Amortization of
other intangible assets was $74.1 million, $20.3 million and $15.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014

and 2013, respectively.

The following table presents annual amortization of intangible assets and liabilities (dollars in thousands):

Intangible Assets”

Intangible Liabilities”

Years Ending In-place Above-market Below-market
December 31: Leases, Net Leases, Net Other, Net® Leases, Net Other, Net
2016 $ 53,017 $ 27,362 $ 2,925 $ 15,090 $ 50
2017 52,260 27,152 1,985 14,859 50
2018 50,725 26,957 1,698 14,091 50
2019 15,681 26,957 1,698 13,755 50
2020 5,942 26,832 1,698 13,697 50
Thereafter 29,410 97,226 14,874 75,977 1,923
Total $ 207,035 $ 232,486 $ 24878 $ 147,469 $ 2,173

(1) Identified intangibles will be amortized through periods ending December 2026.
(2) Excludes $14.2 million of intangible assets related to certain healthcare properties that are not amortized.
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Other Assets and Other Liabilities
The following table presents a summary of other assets and other liabilities as of December 31,2015 and 2014 (dollars in thousands):

December 31,

2015 2014

Other assets:
Investment-related reserves $ 47380 $ 24,800
Deferred tax assets'” 24,435 7,730
Prepaid expenses 22,573 25,326
Deferred costs 8,105 5,494
Notes receivable, net® 694 48,932
Due from servicer 642 64,583
Investment deposits and pending deal costs 568 4,298
Other 2,015 3,959

Total $ 106,412 $ 185,122

December 31,

2015 2014

Other liabilities:
Deferred tax liabilities $ 50,341 $ 38,303
PE Investments deferred purchase price (refer to Note 5) 44,212 39,759
Tenant security deposits 30,327 27,604
Prepaid rent and unearned revenue 24,697 16,458
Escrow deposits payable 11,753 67,750
Other 4,526 3,737

Total $ 165,856 $ 193,611

(1) AsofDecember 31,2015 and 2014, our taxable REIT subsidiaries (“TRS”) had deferred tax assets related to net operating loss carryforwards of
$2.3 million and $1.7 million, respectively, which is net of a valuation allowance of $24.2 million and $10.4 million as of December 31, 2015
and 2014, respectively.

(2) The change from prior year is primarily related to $57.3 million of manufactured housing notes receivables reclassified to assets of properties
held for sale as of December 31, 2015.

Revenue Recognition

Operating Real Estate

Rental and escalation income from operating real estate is derived from leasing of space to various types of tenants and healthcare
operators. The leases are for fixed terms of varying length and generally provide for annual rentals and expense reimbursements
to be paid in monthly installments. Rental income from leases is recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the respective
leases. The excess of rents recognized over amounts contractually due pursuant to the underlying leases are included in unbilled
rent receivable on the consolidated balance sheets. Escalation income represents revenue from tenant/operator leases which provide
for the recovery of all or a portion of the operating expenses and real estate taxes paid by the Company on behalf of the respective
property. This revenue is accrued in the same period as the expenses are incurred.

The Company generates operating income from healthcare and hotel properties permitted by RIDEA. Revenue related to
healthcare properties includes resident room and care charges and other resident charges. Revenue related to operating
hotel properties primarily consists of room and food and beverage sales. Revenue is recognized when such services are
provided, generally defined as the date upon which a resident or guest occupies a room or uses the healthcare property or
hotel services and is recorded in resident fee income for healthcare properties and hotel related income for hotel
properties in the consolidated statements of operations.

Real Estate Debt Investments

Interest income is recognized on an accrual basis and any related premium, discount, origination costs and fees are amortized over
the life of the investment using the effective interest method. The amortization is reflected as an adjustment to interest income in
the consolidated statements of operations. The amortization of a premium or accretion of a discount is discontinued if such loan
is reclassified to held for sale.
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Real Estate Securities

Interest income is recognized using the effective interest method with any premium or discount amortized or accreted through
earnings based on expected cash flow through the expected maturity date of the security. Changes to expected cash flow may
result in a change to the yield which is then applied retrospectively for high-credit quality securities that cannot be prepaid or
otherwise settled in such a way that the holder would not recover substantially all of the investment or prospectively for all other
securities to recognize interest income.

Credit Losses and Impairment on Investments

Operating Real Estate

The Company’s real estate portfolio is reviewed on a quarterly basis, or more frequently as necessary, to assess whether there
are any indicators that the value of its operating real estate may be impaired or that its carrying value may not be recoverable. A
property’s value is considered impaired if the Company’s estimate of the aggregate expected future undiscounted cash flow to be
generated by the property is less than the carrying value of the property. In conducting this review, the Company considers U.S.
and global macroeconomic factors and real estate sector conditions together with investment specific and other factors. To the
extent an impairment has occurred, the loss is measured as the excess of the carrying value of the property over the estimated fair
value of the property and recorded in impairment losses in the consolidated statements of operations.

An allowance for a doubtful account for a tenant/operator receivable is established based on a periodic review of aged receivables
resulting from estimated losses due to the inability of tenant/operator to make required rent and other payments contractually due.
Additionally, the Company establishes, on a current basis, an allowance for future tenant/operator/resident/guest credit losses on
unbilled rent receivable based on an evaluation of the collectability of such amounts.

Real Estate Debt Investments

Loans are considered impaired when based on current information and events, it is probable that the Company will not be able to
collect principal and interest amounts due according to the contractual terms. The Company assesses the credit quality of the
portfolio and adequacy of loan loss reserves on a quarterly basis or more frequently as necessary. Significant judgment of the
Company is required in this analysis. The Company considers the estimated net recoverable value of the loan as well as other
factors, including but not limited to the fair value of any collateral, the amount and the status of any senior debt, the quality and
financial condition of the borrower and the competitive situation of the area where the underlying collateral is located. Because
this determination is based on projections of future economic events, which are inherently subjective, the amount ultimately realized
may differ materially from the carrying value as of the balance sheet date. If upon completion of the assessment, the estimated
fair value of the underlying collateral is less than the net carrying value of the loan, aloan loss reserve is recorded with a corresponding
charge to provision for loan losses. The loan loss reserve for each loan is maintained at a level that is determined to be adequate
by management to absorb probable losses.

Income recognition is suspended for a loan at the earlier of the date at which payments become 90-days past due or when, in the
opinion of the Company, a full recovery of income and principal becomes doubtful. When the ultimate collectability of the principal
ofanimpaired loan is in doubt, all payments are applied to principal under the costrecovery method. When the ultimate collectability
of the principal of an impaired loan is not in doubt, contractual interest is recorded as interest income when received, under the
cash basis method until an accrual is resumed when the loan becomes contractually current and performance is demonstrated to
be resumed. A loan is written off when it is no longer realizable and/or legally discharged.

Investments in Unconsolidated Ventures

The Company reviews its investments in unconsolidated ventures for which the Company did not elect the fair value option on a
quarterly basis, or more frequently as necessary, to assess whether there are any indicators that the value may be impaired or that
its carrying value may not be recoverable. An investment is considered impaired if the projected net recoverable amount over the
expected holding period is less than the carrying value. In conducting this review, the Company considers U.S. and global
macroeconomic factors, including real estate sector conditions, together with investment specific and other factors. To the extent
an impairment has occurred and is considered to be other than temporary, the loss is measured as the excess of the carrying value
ofthe investment over the estimated fair value and recorded in provision for loss on equity investment in the consolidated statements
of operations.
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Real Estate Securities

CRE securities for which the fair value option is elected are not evaluated for other-than-temporary impairment (“OTTI”) as any
change in fair value is recorded in the consolidated statements of operations. Realized losses on such securities are reclassified
to realized gain (loss) on investments and other as losses occur.

CRE securities for which the fair value option is not elected are evaluated for OTTI quarterly. Impairment of a security is considered
to be other-than-temporary when: (i) the holder has the intent to sell the impaired security; (ii) it is more likely than not the holder
will be required to sell the security; or (iii) the holder does not expect to recover the entire amortized cost of the security. When
a CRE security has been deemed to be other-than-temporarily impaired due to (i) or (ii), the security is written down to its fair
value and an OTTI is recognized in the consolidated statements of operations. In the case of (iii), the security is written down to
its fair value and the amount of OTTI is then bifurcated into: (a) the amount related to expected credit losses; and (b) the amount
related to fair value adjustments in excess of expected credit losses. The portion of OTTI related to expected credit losses is
recognized in the consolidated statements of operations. The remaining OTTI related to the valuation adjustment is recognized
as a component of accumulated OCI in the consolidated statements of equity. The portion of OTTI recognized through earnings
is accreted back to the amortized cost basis of the security through interest income, while amounts recognized through OCI are
amortized over the life of the security with no impact on earnings. CRE securities which are not high-credit quality are considered
to have an OTTI if the security has an unrealized loss and there has been an adverse change in expected cash flow. The amount
of OTTI is then bifurcated as discussed above.

Troubled Debt Restructuring

CRE debt investments modified in a troubled debt restructuring (“TDR”) are modifications granting a concession to a borrower
experiencing financial difficulties where a lender agrees to terms that are more favorable to the borrower than is otherwise available
in the current market. Management judgment is necessary to determine whether a loan modification is considered a TDR. Troubled
debt that is fully satisfied via taking title to collateral, repossession or other transfers of assets is generally included in the definition
of TDR. Loans acquired as a pool with deteriorated credit quality that have been modified are not considered a TDR.

Equity-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for equity-based compensation awards, including awards granted to co-employees, using the fair value
method, which requires an estimate of fair value of the award. Awards may be based on a variety of measures such as time,
performance, market or a combination thereof. For time-based awards, fair value is determined based on the stock price on the
grant date. The Company recognizes compensation expense over the vesting period on a straight-line basis. For performance-
based awards, fair value is determined based on the stock price at the date of grant and an estimate of the probable achievement
of such measure. The Company recognizes compensation expense over the requisite service period, net of estimated forfeitures,
using the accelerated attribution expense method. For market-based measures, fair value is determined using a Monte Carlo
analysis under a risk-neutral premise using a risk-free interest rate. The Company recognizes compensation expense, over the
requisite service period, net of estimated forfeitures, on a straight-line basis. For awards with a combination of performance or
market measures, the Company estimates the fair value as if it were two separate awards. First, the Company estimates the
probability of achieving the performance measure. If it is not probable the performance condition will be met, the Company
records the compensation expense based on the fair value of the market measure, as described above. This expense is recorded
even if the market-based measure is never met. If the performance-based measure is subsequently estimated to be achieved, the
Company records compensation expense based on the performance-based measure. The Company would then record a cumulative
catch-up adjustment for any additional compensation expense.

Equity-based compensation issued to non-employees is accounted for using the fair value of the award at the earlier of the
performance commitment date or performance completion date. The awards are remeasured every quarter based on the stock price
as of the end of the reporting period until such awards vest, if any.

Foreign Currency

Assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency for which the functional currency is a foreign currency are translated
using the currency exchange rate in effect at the end of the period presented and the results of operations for such entities are
translated into U.S. dollars using the average currency exchange rate in effect during the period. The resulting foreign currency
translation adjustment is recorded as a component of accumulated OCI in the consolidated statements of equity.
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Assets and liabilities denominated in a foreign currency for which the functional currency is the U.S. dollar are remeasured using the
currency exchange rate in effect at the end of the period presented and the results of operations for such entities are remeasured into
U.S. dollars using the average currency exchange rate in effect during the period. The resulting foreign currency remeasurement
adjustment is recorded in unrealized gain (loss) on investments and other in the consolidated statements of operations.

Earnings Per Share

The Company’s basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is calculated by dividing net income (loss) attributable to common
stockholders by the weighted average number of common stock outstanding. Diluted EPS includes restricted stock and the
potential dilution that could occur if outstanding restricted stock units (“RSUs”) or other contracts to issue common stock,
assuming performance hurdles have been met, were converted to common stock (including limited partnership interests in
the Operating Partnership which are structured as profits interests (“LTIP Units”) (refer to Note 11), where such exercise or
conversion would result in a lower EPS. The dilutive effect of such RSUs and LTIP Units is calculated assuming all units are
converted to common stock.

Discontinued Operations

Subsequent to the early adoption of the accounting standards update on the presentation of discontinued operations beginning in
April 2014, the Company presents spin-offs of businesses and portfolios of properties that are sold or classified as held for sale
are as discontinued operations provided that the disposal represents a strategic shift that has (or will have) a major effect on our
operations and financial results.

Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be taxed as a REIT and to comply with the related provisions of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended, the (“Code”). Accordingly, the Company generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax to the
extent of its distributions to stockholders and as long as certain asset, income and share ownership tests are met. To maintain its
qualification as a REIT, the Company must annually distribute at least 90% of its REIT taxable income to its stockholders and
meet certain other requirements. The Company may also be subject to certain state, local and franchise taxes. Under certain
circumstances, federal income and excise taxes may be due on its undistributed taxable income. If the Company were to
fail to meet these requirements, it would be subject to U.S. federal income tax, which could have a material adverse impact on its
results of operations and amounts available for distributions to its stockholders. The Company believes that all of the criteria to
maintain the Company’s REIT qualification have been met for the applicable periods, but there can be no assurance that these
criteria will continue to be met in subsequent periods.

The Company maintains various TRSs which may be subject to U.S. federal, state and local income taxes and foreign taxes.
In general, a TRS of the Company may perform non-customary services for tenants, hold assets that the REIT cannot hold
directly and may engage in most real estate or non-real estate-related business. The Company has established
several TRSs in jurisdictions for which no taxes are assessed on corporate earnings. However, the Company generally must
include in earnings the income from these TRSs even if it has received no cash distributions. Additionally, the Company
has invested in certain real estate assets in Europe, the majority of which were contributed to NorthStar Europe as part of
the NRE Spin-off, for which local country level taxes will be due on earnings (or other measure) and in some cases
withholding taxes for the repatriation of earnings back to the REIT. The REIT will not generally be subject to any
additional U.S. taxes on the repatriation of its earnings.

Current and deferred taxes are recorded on the portion of earnings (losses) recognized by the Company with respect to its
interest in TRSs and taxable foreign subsidiaries. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are calculated based on temporary
differences between the Company’s U.S. GAAP consolidated financial statements and the federal, state, local and foreign tax
basis of assets and liabilities as of the consolidated balance sheet date. The Company evaluates the realizability of its deferred
tax assets (e.g., net operating loss and capital loss carryforwards) and recognizes a valuation allowance if, based on the
available evidence, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of its deferred tax assets will not be realized. When
evaluating the realizability of its deferred tax assets, the Company considers estimates of expected future taxable income, existing
and projected book/tax differences, tax planning strategies available and the general and industry specific economic outlook.
This realizability analysis is inherently subjective, as it requires the Company to forecast its business and general economic
environment in future periods. Changes in estimate of deferred tax asset realizability, if any, are included in provision for
income tax expense included in income tax benefit (expense) in the consolidated statements of operations.

87



NORTHSTAR REALTY FINANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The Company has assessed its tax positions for all open tax years, which includes 2012 to 2015 and concluded there were no
material uncertainties to be recognized. The Company’s accounting policy with respect to interest and penalties is to classify
these amounts as a component of income tax expense, where applicable. The Company has not recognized any such amounts
related to uncertain tax positions for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013. As of December 31, 2015, the tax years
that remain subject to examination by major tax jurisdictions generally include 2012 through 2015.

The Company recorded an income tax expense of $14.3 million, $16.6 million and $7.2 million for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued an accounting update requiring a company to
recognize as revenue the amount of consideration it expects to be entitled to in connection with the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers. The accounting standard update will replace most of the existing revenue recognition guidance currently
promulgated by U.S. GAAP. In July 2015, the FASB decided to delay the effective date of the new revenue standard by one
year. The effective date of the new revenue standard for the Company will be January 1, 2018. The Company is in the process
of evaluating the impact, if any, of the update on its consolidated financial position, results of operations and financial
statement disclosures.

In February 2015, the FASB issued updated guidance that changes the rules regarding consolidation. The pronouncement eliminates
specialized guidance for limited partnerships and similar legal entities and removes the indefinite deferral for certain investment
funds. The new guidance is effective for annual periods and interim periods within those annual periods beginning
after December 15, 2015, with early adoption permitted. The Company will adopt the new standard on January 1, 2016 and it
is not expected to have a material impact on its consolidated financial position or results of operations.

In April 2015, the FASB issued an accounting update changing the presentation of financing costs in financial statements.
Under the new guidance, an entity would present these costs in the balance sheet as a direct deduction from the related liability
rather than as an asset. Amortization of the costs would continue to be reported as interest expense. The new guidance is
effective for annual periods and interim periods beginning after December 15, 2015, with early adoption permitted. In the
fourth quarter 2015, the Company adopted this guidance and the impact to the consolidated balance sheet from the
reclassification of such costs was a reduction to both total assets and total liabilities of $91.2 million and $147.6 million as
of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

In September 2015, the FASB issued updated guidance that eliminates the requirement that an acquirer in a business
combination account for measurement-period adjustments retrospectively. Under the new guidance, an acquirer will recognize
a measurement-period adjustment during the period in which it determines the amount of the adjustment. The new guidance is
effective for annual periods and interim periods beginning after December 15,2015, with early adoption permitted. The Company
adopted this guidance in the third quarter 2015 and it did not have a material impact on the Company’s consolidated financial
position, results of operations and financial statement disclosures.

In January 2016, the FASB issued an accounting update that addresses certain aspects of recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of financial instruments. The new guidance is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within
those years, beginning after December 15,2017. The Company is currently assessing the impact of the guidance on the Company’s
consolidated financial position, results of operations and financial statement disclosures.

In February 2016, the FASB issued an accounting update that requires lessees to present right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
on the balance sheet. The new guidance is to be applied using a modified retrospective approach at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period in the financial statements and is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, including
interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is evaluating the impact that
this guidance will have on its consolidated financial position, results of operations and financial statement disclosures.
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3. Operating Real Estate

The following table presents operating real estate, net as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 (dollars in thousands):

2015 2014

Land $ 1,047,620 $ 1,472,667
Land improvements 148,295 1,070,507
Buildings and improvements 6,728,957 6,963,704
Building leasehold interests and improvements 723,573 591,626
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 346,628 286,340
Tenant improvements 165,539 159,159
Construction in progress 57,663 17,054

Subtotal 9,218,275 10,561,057
Less: Accumulated depreciation (511,113) (349,053)
Less: Allowance for Operating real estate impairment (4,903) —
Operating real estate, net™ $ 8,702,259 $ 10,212,004

December 31,

(1) As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, operating real estate was subject to $7.3 billion and $8.5 billion of mortgage notes payable, respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, depreciation expense was $382.1 million, $164.9 million and

$76.1 million, respectively.

Real Estate Acquisitions

The following table summarizes the Company’s acquisitions for the year ended December 31, 2015, excluding acquisitions related
to the European Portfolio that were spun off as part of the NRE Spin-off and certain real estate classified as held-for-sale (refer to

below) (dollars in millions):

Purchase Ownership Transaction
Acquisition Date Type Description Name Price” Properties  Financing  Equity Interest Costs
February - March
2015 Office Multi-tenant office SteelWave Portfolioc® ~ §  98.1 7 $ 673 § 282 95% $ 0.7
Medical office Griffin-American
June 2015 Healthcare  building Portfolio® 15.6 1 11.5 4.1 86% 0.1
Upscale extended stay
and premium branded
June 2015 Hotel select service NE Portfolio 175.5 9 132.3 452 100% 22
Upscale extended stay
and premium branded
July 2015 Hotel select and full service Miami Hotel Portfolio 154.2 3 115.5 38.7 100% 1.5

(1) Includes escrows and reserves and excludes transaction costs.

(2) Represents an additional acquisition related to the SteelWave Portfolio.

(3) Represents an additional acquisition related to the Griffin-American Portfolio.
(4) NorthStar Healthcare Income, Inc. (“NorthStar Healthcare”), a sponsored company of NSAM, is the non-controlling interest holder of the remaining 14%

of the Griffin-American Portfolio.
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The following table presents the initial allocation of the purchase price of the assets acquired and the liabilities issued or assumed
upon the closing of the following acquisitions: an additional acquisition related to the Griffin-American Portfolio, NE Portfolio
and Miami Hotel Portfolio that continue to be subject to refinement upon receipt of all information. The table excludes 2015
acquisitions related to the European Portfolio contributed to NorthStar Europe upon completion of the NRE Spin-off, a manufactured
housing portfolio and independent living facility portfolio (“Senior Housing Portfolio”) acquired, which was classified as operating
real estate held for sale as of December 31, 2015 (dollars in thousands):

Assets:

Land and improvements $ 32,830

Buildings, leasehold interests and improvements 269,826

Acquired intangibles'"” 1,372

Other assets acquired 37,249
Total assets acquired $ 341,277
Liabilities:

Mortgage and other notes payable $ 255,156

Other liabilities assumed 1,628
Total liabilities 256,784
Total NorthStar Realty Finance Corp. stockholders’ equity® 83,894
Non-controlling interests 599
Total liabilities and equity $ 341,277

(1) Acquired intangibles include in-place leases and unamortized lease origination costs.
(2) Stockholders’ equity excludes transaction costs incurred in connection with the acquisitions.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company recorded aggregate revenue of $42.6 million and a net loss of $0.9 million
related to these acquisitions. Net loss is primarily related to transaction costs, depreciation and amortization expense.

The following table presents the final allocation of the purchase price of the assets acquired and liabilities issued and assumed
upon the closing of the following portfolios (dollars in thousands):

Griffin-
American Hotel SteelWave
Portfolio® Portfolios®® Portfolio®
Assets:
Land and improvements $ 377,135 $ 159,640 $ 20,718
Buildings and improvements 3,323,346 635,668 64,392
Acquired intangibles” 458,545 2,076 9,812
Other assets acquired 237,933 132,963 3,189
Total assets acquired $ 4,396,959 $ 930,347 $ 98,111
Liabilities:
Mortgage and other notes payable $ 2,919,211 $ 713,676 $ 67,254
Other liabilities assumed® 240,513 4,625 1,813
Total liabilities 3,159,724 718,301 69,067
Total NorthStar Realty Finance Corp. stockholders’ equity 1,049,818 210,721 27,559
Non-controlling interests 187,417 1,325 1,485
Total equity 1,237,235 212,046 29,044
Total liabilities and equity $ 4,396,959 $ 930,347 $ 98,111

(1) Acquired intangibles include in-place leases, above-market leases and goodwill.

(2) Other liabilities assumed include below-market lease intangibles and deferred tax liabilities.

(3) For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company recorded revenue and net loss related to the Griffin-American Portfolio of $392.9 million
and $59.2 million, respectively. Net loss is primarily related to depreciation and amortization expense.

(4) Includes a $259.3 million hotel portfolio acquired in August 2014 and a $681.0 million hotel portfolio acquired in September 2014.

(5) Fortheyearended December 31,2015, the Company recorded aggregate revenue and net income of $256.7 million and $13.2 million, respectively.

(6) For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company recorded aggregate revenue and net loss of $20.2 million and $2.5 million, respectively.
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Real Estate Held for Sale

The following table summarizes the Company’s operating real estate held for sale as of December 31, 2015 (dollars in thousands):

Assets Liabilities
Mortgage and WA

Operating Real Intangible Other Notes Intangible Ownership
Description Properties Estate, Net" Assets, Net Total® Payable, Net Liabilities, Net Total Interest
Manufactured housing communities 136 $ 1,490,284 § 24,034 $ 1514318 § 1,262,725 $ — $ 1,262,725 94%
Senior Housing Portfolio™ 32 828,233 24,816 853,049 644,486 — 644,486 60%
Multifamily® 11 304,172 — 304,172 247,022 — 247,022 90%
Other 8 70,416 680 71,096 41,742 13,714 55,456 NA

Total 187 $ 2,693,105 $ 49,530 $§ 2,742,635 § 2,195,975 $ 13,714 $ 2,209,689

(1) Includes $57.3 million of manufactured housing notes receivables previously recorded in other assets.
(2) Represents operating real estate and intangible assets and liabilities, net of depreciation and amortization of $242.4 million.
(3) In February 2016, the Company entered into an agreement to sell its 60% interest in the $899 million Senior Housing Portfolio for $535 million, subject to

proration and adjustment. The Company expects to receive $150 million of net proceeds upon completion of the sale in March 2016. Refer to Related Party

Arrangements for further disclosure.

(4) InFebruary 2016, the Company entered in and is finalizing agreements to sell up to ten multifamily properties for $311 million with $210 million of mortgage
financing expected to be assumed as part of the transaction. The Company expects to receive $91 million of net proceeds and continues to explore the sale

of the remaining two properties.
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Real Estate Debt Investments

The following table presents CRE debt investments as of December 31, 2015 (dollars in thousands):

Weighted Average ©

Floating Rate
Allocation by Spread as % of
Principal Carrying Investment Over Principal
Number Amount Value Type® Fixed Rate LIBOR” Yield® Amount®
Asset Type:
First mortgage loans'"® 11 $ 286,628 $ 260,237 51.6% 7.09% 4.95% 6.18% 55.8%
Mezzanine loans 6 22,361 18,630 4.0% 9.04% 4.00% 8.39% 39.9%
Subordinate interests 4 171,044 169,781 30.8% 13.04% 5.65% 8.72% 59.0%
Corporate loans 4 35,215 30,681 6.3% 12.93% — 14.84% —
Subtotal/Weighted average®® 25 515,248 479,329 92.7% 10.51% 5.26% 8.12% 52.5%
CRE debt in N-Star CDOs
First mortgage loans 2 26,957 9,321 4.9% — 1.27% 3.10% 100.0%
Mezzanine loans 1 11,000 10,675 2.0% 8.00% — 8.24% —
Corporate loans 6 2,149 2,149 0.4% 6.74% — 6.74% —
Subtotal/Weighted average 9 40,106 22,145 7.3% 7.79% 1.27% 5.70% 67.2%
Total 34 $ 555,354 $ 501,474 100.0% 10.33% 4.79% 7.98% 53.5%
Real estate debt, held for sale® 7 $ 225,037 § 224,677 NA 13.65% 7.41% 10.89% 52.5%

(1) Includes a Sterling denominated loan of £66.7 million, of which £31.6 million is available to be funded as of December 31, 2015. This loan has various
maturity dates depending upon the timing of advances; however, will be no later than March 2022.

(2) Includes three loans that pursuant to certain terms and conditions which may or may not be satisfied, where the Company has an option to purchase the
properties securing these loans.

(3) Certain CRE debt investments serve as collateral for financing transactions including carrying value of $38.6 million for the Company’s loan facility. The
remainder is unleveraged. Assuming that all loans that have future fundings meet the terms to qualify for such funding, the Company’s cash requirement on
future fundings would be $9.3 million. Excludes $2.1 million future funding commitment associated with real estate debt, held for sale.

(4) In September 2015, the Company purchased four CRE debt investments for $72.9 million from N-Star CDO 1V, at fair value. Refer to Note 7 for further
disclosure.

(5) Based on principal amount.

(6) Excludes an aggregate principal amount of $130.9 million related to three CRE debt investments that were originated prior to 2008, three non-performing
loans and one first mortgage loan acquired with deteriorated credit quality.

(7)  $108.5 million principal amount (excluding CRE debt in N-Star CDOs) has a weighted average LIBOR floor of 0.82%. Includes one first mortgage loan
with a principal amount of $5.8 million with a spread over the prime rate.

(8) Based on initial maturity and for floating-rate debt, calculated using one-month LIBOR as of December 31, 2015 and for CRE debt with a LIBOR floor,
using such floor.

(9) In February 2016, the Company sold or committed to sell these seven loans at par, with $46.9 million of proceeds used to pay down the Company’s loan

facility, resulting in net proceeds of $178.2 million.

The following table presents CRE debt investments as of December 31, 2014 (dollars in thousands):

Weighted Average(x’ Floating Rate
Principal Carrying Alllll(;cezgz:nbty 881;21(1 Pﬁl:é;];)afl
Number Amount Value Type"” Fixed Rate LIBOR® Yield"” Amount”
Asset Type:
First mortgage loans"@©® 13 $ 434,671 $ 313,590 36.6% 9.51% 6.66% 9.34% 57.2%
Mezzanine loans 8 149,816 146,088 12.6% 13.79% 13.83% 14.05% 53.3%
Subordinate interests 8 201,564 200,237 17.0% 13.11% 12.33% 13.01% 40.7%
Corporate loans®'® 8 360,343 382,427 30.3% 12.37% — 12.99% —
Subtotal/Weighted average™ 37 1,146,394 1,042,342 96.5% 11.89% 9.15% 12.00% 35.6%
CRE debt in N-Star CDOs
First mortgage loans 2 26,957 11,360 2.3% — 1.27% 3.08% 100.0%
Mezzanine loans 1 11,000 11,000 0.9% 8.00% — 8.00% —
Corporate loans 6 2,965 2,965 0.3% 6.74% — 6.74% —
Subtotal/Weighted average 9 40,922 25,325 3.5% 7.73% 1.27% 5.64% 65.9%

Total 46 $  1,187316 $ 1,067,667 100.0% 11.82% 8.65% 11.85% 36.7%
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Includes a Sterling denominated loan of £66.7 million, of which £16.1 million is outstanding as of December 31, 2014. This loan has various maturity dates
depending upon the timing of advances; however, will be no later than March 2022.

Includes three loans that pursuant to certain terms and conditions which may or may not be satisfied, where the Company has an option to purchase the
properties securing these loans.

Includes $112.0 million of preferred equity investments for which the Company elected the fair value option.

Includes four revolving loans of $156.4 million, of which $60.7 million is outstanding as of December 31, 2014.

Certain CRE debt investments serve as collateral for financing transactions including carrying value of $35.8 million for Securitization 2012-1 and $140.6 million for
credit facilities. The remainder is unleveraged.

There are no loans on non-accrual status except for one first mortgage loan acquired with deteriorated credit quality with a carrying value of $5.7 million as
of December 31,2014. Certain loans have an accrual of interest at a specified rate that may be in addition to a current rate. Such loans represent an aggregate
$3.2 million carrying value where the Company does not recognize interest income on the accrual rate but does recognize interest income based on the current
rate.

Based on principal amount.

Excludes three CRE debt investments with an aggregate principal amount of $10.7 million that were originated prior to 2008.

$357.9 million principal amount (excluding CRE debt in N-Star CDOs) has a weighted average LIBOR floor of 0.84%. Includes one first mortgage loan
with a principal amount of $6.2 million with a spread over prime rate.

Based on initial maturity and for floating-rate debt, calculated using one-month LIBOR as of December 31, 2014 and for CRE debt with a LIBOR floor,
using such floor.

The following table presents maturities of CRE debt investments based on principal amount as of December 31, 2015
(dollars in thousands):

Maturity
Initial Including
Maturity Extensions'
Years ending December 31:

2016 $ 293,496 § 199,406
2017 251 50,376
2018 1,897 40,647
2019 — —
2020 — —
Thereafter 259,710 264,925
Total $ 555354 $ 555,354

(1) Assumes that all debt with extension options will qualify for extension at such maturity according to the conditions stipulated in the governing
documents.

The Company had three non-performing loans (“NPLs”) with an aggregate principal amount of $95.9 million as of
December 31, 2015 due to maturity defaults.

As of December 31, 2015, the weighted average maturity, including extensions, of CRE debt investments was 4.9 years.

Actual maturities may differ from contractual maturities as certain borrowers may have the right to prepay with or without
prepayment penalty. The Company may also extend certain contractual maturities in connection with loan modifications.

The principal amount of CRE debt investments differs from the carrying value primarily due to unamortized origination fees and
costs, unamortized premium and discount and loan loss reserves recorded as part of the carrying value of the investment. As of
December 31, 2015, the Company had $42.1 million of net unamortized discount and $1.6 million of net unamortized origination
fees and costs.
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Provision for Loan Losses

The following table presents activity in loan loss reserves on CRE debt investments for the years ended December 31,2015, 2014,
and 2013 (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013

Beginning balance $ 5,599 $ 2,880 $ 156,699
Provision for (reversal of) loan losses, net 2,240 0 2,719 o (8,786) @
Transfers to REO — — (5,623)
Write-offs / payoffs — — (20,210) @
Deconsolidation of N-Star CDOs — — (119,200)
Ending balance $ 7,839 $ 5,599 $ 2,880

(1)  Excludes $0.8 million of provision for loan losses relating to manufactured housing notes receivables recorded in assets of properties held for
sale as of December 31, 2015 and $1.0 million recorded in other assets as of December 31, 2014.

(2) Includes $4.0 million of reversal of previously recorded provisions for loan losses.

(3) Represents a write-off of a previously recorded loan loss reserve upon payoff of a loan.

(4) Excludes $1.2 million of provision for loan losses primarily relating to exit fees on loans held for sale.

Credit Quality Monitoring

CRE debt investments are typically loans secured by direct senior priority liens on real estate properties or by interests in entities
that directly own real estate properties, which serve as the primary source of cash for the payment of principal and interest. The
Company evaluates its debt investments at least quarterly and differentiates the relative credit quality principally based on:
(1) whether the borrower is currently paying contractual debt service in accordance with its contractual terms; and (ii) whether the
Company believes the borrower will be able to perform under its contractual terms in the future, as well as the Company’s
expectations as to the ultimate recovery of principal at maturity.

The Company categorizes a debt investment for which it expects to receive full payment of contractual principal and interest
payments as a “loan with no loan loss reserve.” The Company categorizes a debt investment as an NPL if it is in maturity default
and/or past due at least 90 days on its contractual debt service payments. The Company considers the remaining debt investments
to be of weaker credit quality and categorizes such loans as “other loans with a loan loss reserve/non-accrual status.” These loans
are not considered NPLs because such loans are performing in accordance with contractual terms but the loans have a loan loss
reserve and/or are on non-accrual status. Even if a borrower is currently paying contractual debt service or debt service is not due
in accordance with its contractual terms, the Company may still determine that the borrower may not be able to perform under its
contractual terms in the future and make full payment upon maturity. The Company’s definition of an NPL may differ from that
of other companies that track NPLs.

The following table presents the carrying value of CRE debt investments, by credit quality indicator, as of each applicable balance
sheet date (dollars in thousands):

December 31,
Credit Quality Indicator: 2015 2014
Loans with no loan loss reserve:
First mortgage loans $ 168,978 $ 324,251
Mezzanine loans 29,305 157,089
Subordinate interests 169,781 200,236
Corporate loans 32,830 385,391
Subtotal 400,894 1,066,967
Other loans with a loan loss reserve/non-accrual status:
First mortgage loans'" 4,137 700
Mezzanine loans® — —
Subtotal 4,137 700
Non-performing loans 96,443 —
Total $ 501,474 $ 1,067,667
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(1)  Excludes one first mortgage loan acquired with deteriorated credit quality with a carrying value of $3.1 million as of December 31, 2015 and two
first mortgage loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality with an aggregate carrying value of $5.7 million as of December 31, 2014 and
excludes manufactured housing notes receivables recorded in other assets.

(2) Includes one mezzanine loan with a 100% loan loss reserve with a principal amount of $3.8 million as of December 31,2015 and 2014, respectively.
Such loan is not considered a NPL as debt service is currently being received.

Impaired Loans

The Company considers impaired loans to generally include NPLs, loans with a loan loss reserve, loans on non-accrual status
(excluding loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality) and TDRs. The following table presents impaired loans as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014 (dollars in thousands):

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Principal Carrying Loan Loss Principal Carrying Loan Loss
Number  Amount® Value®V Reserve Number  Amount®” Value” Reserve
Class of Debt:
First mortgage loans 5 § 119,677 § 100,580 $ 4,073 1 $ 2,533  $ 700 $ 1,833
Mezzanine loans 1 3,766 — 3,766 1 3,766 — 3,766
Total 6 $§ 123443 § 100,580 $ 7,839 2 $ 6,299 § 700 $ 5,599

(1) Principal amount differs from carrying value primarily due to unamortized origination fees and costs, unamortized premium or discount and loan
loss reserves included in the carrying value of the investment. Excludes one first mortgage loan acquired with deteriorated credit quality with a
carrying value of $3.1 million as of December 31, 2015 and two first mortgage loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality with an aggregate
carrying value of $5.7 million as of December 31, 2014 and excludes manufactured housing notes receivables recorded in other assets.

The following table presents average carrying value of impaired loans by type and the income recorded on such loans subsequent
to them being deemed impaired for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 (dollars in thousands):

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014 December 31, 2013
Average Year Average Year Average Year
Carrying Ended Carrying Ended Carrying Ended
Number Value Income  Number Value Income  Number Value Income
Class of Debt:
First mortgage loans 5 $102,107 $ 2,707 1 $ 1,133 § — 5 $ 67,531 $ 1,050
Mezzanine loans 1 — 8 1 377 6 7 100,109 416
Subordinate interests — — — — — — 1 — 3
Corporate loans — — — — 19,530 —
Total/weighted average 6 $102,107 § 2,715 2 $ 1510 § 6 13 $ 187,170 $§ 1,469

As of December 31, 2015, the Company had two loans past due greater than 90 days.

5. Investments in Private Equity Funds

The following is a description of investments in private equity funds that own PE Investments either through unconsolidated
ventures (“PE Investment I” and “PE Investment II””) or consolidated ventures and direct investments (“PE Investment III to XV,”
collectively “Direct PE Investments™) which are recorded as investments in private equity funds at fair value on the consolidated
balance sheets. The Company elected the fair value option for PE Investments. As a result, the Company records equity in earnings
(losses) based on the change in fair value for its share of the projected future cash flow from one period to another. All PE
Investments are considered voting interest entities, except for two fund interests in PE Investment XIII (refer to Note 17). PE
Investment I and II are not consolidated by the Company due to the substantive participating rights of the partners in joint ventures
that own the interests in the real estate private equity funds. The Company does not consolidate any of the underlying real estate
private equity funds owned in Direct PE Investments as it does not own a majority voting interest in any such funds or is not the
primary beneficiary of such funds.
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The following tables summarize the Company’s PE Investments as of December 31, 2015 (dollars in millions):

Expected
Number of Purchase Future

PE Investment" Initial Closing Date NAV Reference Date® Funds Price Fundingm
PE Investment I February 15,2013 June 30, 2012 49 $ 282.1 $ 2
PE Investment [11Y December 31,2013 June 30,2013 8 39.8 —
PE Investment IV May 30, 2014 December 31, 2013 1 8.0 —
PE Investment V July 1,2014 September 30, 2013 3 12.0 —
PE Investment VI July 30,2014 June 30,2014 20 90.2 1
PE Investment VII August 15,2014 December 31, 2013 14 54.9 —
PE Investment IX October 2, 2014 March 31, 2014 11 217.7 2
PE Investment X December 4, 2014 June 30, 2014 13 152.4 —
PE Investment XI May 1, 2015 September 30, 2014 2 6.4 —
PE Investment XII May 5, 2015 June 30, 2014 1 6.2 —
PE Investment XIII May 22, 2015 December 31, 2014 11 441.1 3
PE Investment XIV® September 9, 2015 December 31, 2014 15 50.2 50
PE Investment XV November 12, 2015 December 31, 2014 1 60.0 —

Subtotal 149 1,421.0 $ 58
PE Investment I1¥ July 3,2013 September 30, 2012 24 3534 § 243 @

Total 173 o3 -

1,774.4

(1) OnAugust 19, 2014, the Company, through a subsidiary, entered into a joint venture with a third party to source and invest in real estate private equity funds.
For the year ended December 31, 2015, PE Investment VIII has not made any investments.

(2) Represents the net asset value (“NAV”) date on which the Company agreed to acquire the respective PE Investment.

(3) Includes an estimated amount of expected future contributions to funds and any deferred purchase price as of December 31, 2015. The actual amount of
future contributions underlying the fund interests that may be called and funded by the Company could vary materially from the Company’s expectations.

(4) PE Investment III paid $39.8 million to the seller for all of the fund interests, or 50% of the June 30, 2013 NAV, and paid the remaining $39.8 million, or
50% of the June 30, 2013 NAV, in December 2015 to a third party.

(5) PE Investment XIV paid $50.2 million to the seller for all of the fund interests, or 50% of the December 31, 2014 NAV, and will pay the remaining $47.8
million in equal installments one year and two years after the initial closing date, respectively. Such amount is included in other liabilities on the consolidated
balance sheets.

(6) InFebruary 2016, the Company entered into an agreement to sell substantially all of its interest in PE Investment II for proceeds of $184.1 million, of which
$145.1 million was received and the remaining is expected in March 2016 upon consent from the initial seller. In connection with the sale, the buyers will
assume the Company’s $243 million portion of the deferred purchase price obligation of the PE Investment II joint venture upon consent of the PE II Seller.

(7) The total number of funds includes 28 funds held across multiple PE Investments.

Carrying Value Year Ended December 31, 2015 Year Ended December 31, 2014
December 31, December 31,

PE Investment"® 2015 2014 Income®® Distributions Contributions Income® Distributions Contributions
PE Investment IV $ 1540 § 2186 $ 464 $ 887 § 21 8 66.1 § 972  § 1.1
PE Investment 119® 186.2 231.6 39.8 119.4 429 57.7 115.9 6.0
PE Investment III 26.8 51.0 1.9 26.3 0.2 5.7 25.6 0.3
PE Investment IV 7.6 7.8 1.3 1.5 — 0.8 0.9 —
PE Investment V 7.7 8.0 1.8 2.1 — 1.1 49 —
PE Investment VI 753 86.3 11.6 23.6 1.0 5.8 10.8 1.3
PE Investment VII 30.2 42.7 8.0 20.6 0.1 3.7 15.6 0.2
PE Investment IX 129.2 174.6 30.2 76.8 0.9 8.3 559 4.7
PE Investment X 128.5 141.4 20.8 34.0 0.5 1.6 12.7 0.2
PE Investment XI 42 — 0.7 1.4 — — — —
PE Investment XII 2.6 — 0.4 4.0 0.1 — — —
PE Investment XIII 287.4 — 30.8 193.4 8.8 — — —
PE Investment XIV 55.2 — 3.1 42.7 0.4 — — ==
PE Investment XV 6.8 — 1.3 5.4 2.5 — — —

Total® 1,101.7 § 962.0 198.1 § 639.9 S 59.5 $ 150.8  § 3395 $ 13.8

(1) On August 19, 2014, the Company, through a subsidiary, entered into a joint venture with a third party to source and invest in PE Investments. For the year
ended December 31, 2015, PE Investment VIII has not made any investments.
(2) Income is recorded gross of a current income tax expense of $11.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2015.
(3) Recorded in equity in earnings on the consolidated statement of operations. The year ended December 31, 2014 includes a reclassification between equity
in earnings and income tax expense of $16.8 million to conform with the current period presentation.
(4) The Company recorded an unrealized loss of $33.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2015, of which $24.4 million, represented a partial reversal of
an unrealized gain of $32.6 million recorded for the year ended December 31, 2014.

(5) Contributions for the year ended December 31, 2015 represents a payment of our portion of the deferred purchase price for PE Investment I1.

(6) As of December 31, 2015, cash flow is expected through June 30, 2024, with a weighted average expected remaining life of 1.5 years.
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Year Ended December 31, 2013

PE Investment Income™” Distributions Contributions

PE Investment I $ 583 § 1302 §$ 20.8
PE Investment II 30.5 104.9 11.6
PE Investment III — 9.0 0.3

Total $ 888 § 244.1 $ 32.7

(1) Recorded in equity in earnings in the consolidated statement of operations. The year ended December 31, 2013 includes a reclassification between equity
in earnings and income tax expense of $6.2 million to conform with the current period presentation.

Unconsolidated PE Investments
PE Investment |

In February 2013, the Company completed the initial closing (“PE I Initial Closing”) of PE Investment I which owns a portfolio
of limited partnership interests in real estate private equity funds managed by institutional-quality sponsors. Pursuant to the
terms of the agreement, at the PE I Initial Closing, the full purchase price was funded, excluding future capital commitments.
Accordingly, the Company funded $282.1 million and NorthStar Real Estate Income Trust, Inc. (“NorthStar Income™)
(together with the Company, the “NorthStar Entities”) funded $118.0 million. The NorthStar Entities have an aggregate
ownership interest in PE Investment I of 51%, of which the Company owns 70.5%. The Company assigned its rights to the
remaining 29.5% to a subsidiary of NorthStar Income. Teachers Insurance and Annuity Association of America (the “Class B
Partner”) contributed its interests in 49 funds subject to the transaction in exchange for all of the Class B partnership interests in
PE Investment I.

PE Investment I provides for all cash distributions on a priority basis to the NorthStar Entities as follows: (i) first, 85% to the
NorthStar Entities and 15% to the Class B Partner until the NorthStar Entities receive a 1.5x multiple on all of their invested capital,
including amounts funded in connection with future capital commitments; (ii) second, 15% to the NorthStar Entities and 85% to
the Class B Partner until the Class B Partner receives a return of its then remaining June 30, 2012 capital; and (iii) third, 51% to
the NorthStar Entities and 49% to the Class B Partner. All amounts paid to and received by the NorthStar Entities are based on
each partner’s proportionate interest.

The Company guaranteed all of its funding obligations that may be due and owed under PE Investment I agreements directly to
PE Investment I entities. The Company and NorthStar Income each agreed to indemnify the other proportionately for any
losses that may arise in connection with the funding and other obligations as set forth in the governing documents in the case of
a joint default by the Company and NorthStar Income. The Company and NorthStar Income further agreed to indemnify each
other for all of the losses that may arise as a result of a default that is solely caused by the Company or NorthStar Income, as the
case may be.

PE Investment 11

In June 2013, the Company, NorthStar Income and funds managed by Goldman Sachs Asset Management (‘“Vintage Funds™)
(each a “Partner”) formed joint ventures and entered into an agreement with Common Pension Fund E, a common trust fund
created under New Jersey law (“PE II Seller”), to acquire a portfolio of limited partnership interests in 24 real estate private
equity funds managed by institutional-quality sponsors. The aggregate reported NAV acquired was $910.0 million as of
September 30, 2012. In February 2016, the Company entered in an agreement to sell substantially all of its interest in PE
Investment II for proceeds of $184.1 million, of which $145.1 million was received with the remaining expected in March 2016
upon consent from PE II Seller. In connection with the sale, the buyers, including NorthStar Income, will assume the
Company’s $243 million portion of the deferred purchase price obligation of the PE Investment II joint venture upon receiving
such consent.

6. Investments in Unconsolidated Ventures

The following is a description of investments in unconsolidated ventures. The investments in RXR Realty LLC (“RXR
Realty”), Aerium Group (“Aerium”) and SteelWave, LLC (formerly known as Legacy Partners Commercial, LLC)
(“SteelWave”) are accounted for at fair value due to the election of the fair value option (refer to Note 14). The investments in
the NSAM Sponsored Companies (as defined below) were accounted for under the equity method prior to the NSAM Spin-off
and are accounted for under the cost method subsequent to the NSAM Spin-off. All other investments in unconsolidated
ventures are accounted for under the equity method.
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The following table summarizes the Company’s investments in unconsolidated ventures as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 and
for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 (dollars in millions):

Carrying Value Equity in Earnings (Losses)
Ownership December 31, Years Ended December 31,
Investment Interest 2015 2014 2015 2014 2013
RXR Realty" 27% $ 893 § 90.0 $ 16.0 $ 80 $ —
Aerium? 15% 16.5 62.8 1.3 2.5 —
LandCap® 49% 7.7 10.8 0.8 0.7 0.5
SteelWave'® 40% 6.8 5.0 1.9 0.4 —
CS/Federal® 50% 5.7 5.7 0.3 0.1 0.3
NSAM Sponsored Companies® 0.3% to 0.5% 14.0 115 0.3 0.3 0.6
NorthStar Realty Finance Trusts” N/A 3.7 3.7 — — —
Multifamily Joint Venture®™ 90% 3.5 9.9 0.3 (0.3) (0.7)
Other Various 8.5 8.4 — 2.6 22
Total $ 1557 $ 207.8  $ 209 $ 143§ 2.9

(1) In December 2013, the Company entered into a strategic transaction with RXR Realty, a leading real estate owner, developer and investment management
company focused on high-quality real estate in the New York Tri-State area. The Company’s equity interest in RXR Realty is structured so that NSAM is
entitled to certain fees in connection with RXR Realty’s investment management business. Refer to Note 10. “Related Party Arrangements - NorthStar Asset
Management Group - Management Agreement” for further disclosure.

(2) Aerium is a pan-European real estate investment manager specializing in commercial real estate properties. The Company recorded an unrealized loss on
its interest in Aerium of $40.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2015. The Company’s equity interest in Aerium is structured so that NSAM is entitled
to certain fees in connection with Aerium’s asset management business. Refer to Note 10. “Related Party Arrangements - NorthStar Asset Management Group
- Management Agreement” for further disclosure.

(3) InOctober 2007, the Company entered into a joint venture with Whitehall Street Global Real Estate Limited Partnership 2007 (“Whitehall”) to form LandCap
Partners and LandCap LoanCo. (collectively referred to as “LandCap”). The joint venture is managed by a third-party management group. The Company
and Whitehall agreed to no longer provide additional new investment capital in the LandCap joint venture.

(4) In September 2014, the Company entered into an investment with SteelWave, a real estate investment manager, owner and operator with a portfolio of
commercial assets focused in key markets in the western United States.

(5) CS Federal Drive, LLC (“CS/Federal”) owns three adjacent class A office/flex buildings in Colorado. The properties were acquired for $54.3 million and
were financed with two separate non-recourse mortgages totaling $38.0 million and the remainder in cash. The mortgages matured on February 11, 2016
and the Company is currently in negotiations with the lender. The mortgages have a fixed interest rate of 5.51% and 5.46%, respectively.

(6) Affiliates of NSAM also manage the Company’s previously sponsored companies: NorthStar Income, NorthStar Healthcare and NorthStar Real Estate Income
11, Inc. (“NorthStar Income II”’) and together with any new sponsored company (herein collectively referred to as the “NSAM Sponsored Companies”).

(7) The Company owns all of the common stock of NorthStar Realty Finance Trusts I through VIII (collectively, the “Trusts”). The Trusts were formed to issue
trust preferred securities. Refer to Note 17 for further disclosure.

(8) InlJuly2013,the Company through ajoint venture with a private investor, acquired a multifamily property with 498 units, located in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
for an aggregate purchase price of $41.0 million, including all costs, escrows and reserves. The property was financed with a non-recourse mortgage note
of $29.5 million and the remainder in cash. In April 2015, the property obtained additional non-recourse financing of $7.0 million. Both financings mature
on July 1, 2023 and have a weighted average fixed interest rate of 3.87%. The joint venture is exploring the sale of the property.

NSAM Sponsored Companies

The Company committed to purchase up to $10 million in shares of each of NSAM’s Sponsored Companies’ common stock during
the two year period from when each offering was declared effective through the end of their respective offering period, in the event
that NSAM Sponsored Companies’ distributions to its stockholders, on a quarterly basis, exceeds its modified funds from operations
(as defined in accordance with the current practice guidelines issued by the Investment Program Association).

In connection with the Company’s commitment to purchase shares of the NSAM Sponsored Companies, the Company acquired
an aggregate of $15.2 million of shares of NorthStar Income, NorthStar Healthcare and NorthStar Income 11 through December 31,
2015. In addition, pursuant to the management agreement with NSAM, the Company committed up to $10 million to invest as
distribution support consistent with past practice in each future public non-traded NSAM Sponsored Company, up to a total of
five new companies per year.

The Company has committed to invest as distribution support in the following NSAM Sponsored Companies:

*  NorthStar/RXR New York Metro Real Estate, Inc. - In October 2015, NorthStar/RXR New York Metro Real Estate, Inc.
(“NorthStar/RXR New York Metro”) filed an amended registration statement with the SEC, seeking to offer an additional
class of common shares related to its $2 billion public offering. In December 2015, the Company and RXR Realty satisfied
NorthStar/RXR New York Metro’s minimum offering amount as a result of the purchase of 0.2 million shares of its
common stock for an aggregate $2.0 million. NSAM began raising capital for NorthStar/RXR New York Metro in the
beginning of 2016.
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*  NorthStar Corporate Fund - In October 2015, NorthStar Corporate Income Fund (“NorthStar Corporate Fund”) filed an
amended registration statement on Form N-2 with the SEC seeking to raise up to $3 billion in a public offering of common
stock. Subsequent to year end, NorthStar Corporate Fund was declared effective by the SEC and expects to begin raising
capital in early 2016.

*  NorthStar Capital Fund - In October 2015, NorthStar Real Estate Capital Income Fund filed its registration statement on
Form N-2 with the SEC seeking to raise up to $3 billion in a public offering of common stock.

*  NorthStar Corporate Investment - In June 2015, NorthStar Corporate Investment, Inc. confidentially submitted an amended
registration statement on Form N-2 to the SEC seeking to raise up to $1 billion in a public offering of common stock.

Summarized Financial Information

The combined balance sheets for the unconsolidated ventures, including PE Investments and excluding unconsolidated ventures
accounted for under the cost method, as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows (dollars in thousands):

As of December 31,

2015 2014
Assets
Total assets $ 8,821,784 § 6,067,438
Liabilities and equity
Total liabilities $ 3,071,593  § 3,045,171
Equity" 5,750,191 3,022,267
Total liabilities and equity $ 8,821,784 § 6,067,438

(1) Includes non-controlling interest of $749.7 million and $944.7 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The combined statements of operations for the unconsolidated ventures, including PE Investments and excluding unconsolidated
ventures accounted for under the cost method, from acquisition date through the three years ended December 31, 2015 are as
follows (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2015" 2014 2013
Total revenues $ 1,287,014 $ 907,519 $ 322,944
Net income 781,196 443,158 180,537

(1) Includes summarized financial information for PE Investments for the nine months ended September 30, 2015, which is the most recent financial
information available from the underlying funds.

NSAM Sponsored Companies and certain PE Investments, for which the Company has elected the fair value option, are accounted
for under the cost method. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014 the aggregate carrying value of such cost method investments was
$234 million and $288 million, respectively.
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7. Real Estate Securities, Available for Sale

The following table presents CRE securities as of December 31, 2015 (dollars in thousands):

Cumulative Unrealized Allocation by  Weighted  Weighted
Principal Amortized . Fair Investment Average Average
Number Amount® Cost Gains (Losses) Value Type® Coupon Yield?
Asset Type:
N-Star CDO bonds"® 26 $ 401,848 $ 194908 $ 24332 $  (2.513) $ 216,727 31.3% 1.98% 22.01%
N-Star CDO equity®® 4 71,003 71,003 1,290 (27.,388) 44,905 5.5% NA 12.41%
CMBS and other securities'® 15 116,681 61,520 15,340 (21,295) 55,565 9.1% 2.15% 5.52%
Subtotal® 45 589,532 327,431 40,962 (51,196) 317,197 45.9% 2.01% 16.83%
CRE securities in N-Star CDOs™"”
CMBS 123 538,205 398,343 31,244 (103,076) 326,511 41.9% 3.48% 10.13%
Third-party CDO notes 8 55,509 50,047 — (43,362) 6,685 4.4% 0.01% —%
Agency debentures 8 87,172 31,774 6,384 (842) 37,316 6.8% — 4.57%
Unsecured REIT debt 1 8,000 8,285 691 — 8,976 0.6% 7.50% 5.88%
Trust preferred securities 2 7,225 7,225 — (1,800) 5,425 0.4% 2.25% 2.32%
Subtotal 142 696,111 495,674 38,319 (149,080) 384,913 54.1% 2.80% 8.56%
Total 187 $ 1,285643 $ 823,105 $ 79,281 $ (200276) $ 702,110 100.0% 2.46% 11.85%

(1)  Excludes $142.9 million principal amount of N-Star CDO bonds payable that are eliminated in consolidation.

(2) All securities are unleveraged. Subsequent to year end, the Company sold certain N-Star CDO bonds and CRE securities for $53.9 million of net
proceeds.

(3) Based on amortized cost for N-Star CDO equity and principal amount for remaining securities.

(4) Based on expected maturity and for floating-rate securities, calculated using the applicable LIBOR as of December 31, 2015.

(5) The fair value option was elected for these securities (refer to Note 14).

(6) The fair value option was elected for $48.7 million carrying value of these securities (refer to Note 14).

(7) Investments in the same securitization tranche held in separate CDO financing transactions are reported as separate investments.

(8) As of December 31, 2015, excluding the sales of N-Star CDO bonds subsequent to year end, the weighted average remaining life of the N-Star CDO bonds
and N-Star CDO equity is 2.0 years and 3.2 years, respectively.

The Company sponsored nine CDOs, three of which were primarily collateralized by CRE debt and six of which were primarily
collateralized by CRE securities. The Company acquired equity interests of two CRE debt focused CDOs, the CSE RE 2006-A
CDO (“CSE CDO”) and the CapLease 2005-1 CDO (“CapLease CDO”) sponsored by third parties. These CDOs are collectively
referred to as the N-Star CDOs and their assets are referred to as legacy investments. All N-Star CDOs are considered VIEs (refer
to Note 17). At the time of issuance of the sponsored CDOs, the Company retained the below investment grade bonds, which are
referred to as subordinate bonds, and preferred shares and equity notes, which are referred to as equity interests. In addition, the
Company repurchased CDO bonds originally issued to third parties at discounts to par. These repurchased CDO bonds and retained
subordinate bonds are herein collectively referred to as N-Star CDO bonds.

In September 2015, N-Star CDO IV was liquidated and the third-party senior bondholders of N-Star CDO IV were re-paid in full.
In connection with the liquidation, the Company purchased one CMBS for $5.8 million from N-Star CDO IV at fair value.
Additionally, the Company received $41.0 million from its equity interest in N-Star CDO [V, resulting in a net realized gain of
$9.4 million, a portion of which related to equity distributions that would have been received had N-Star CDO IV not been liquidated.

As of December 31, 2015, the Company’s CRE securities portfolio is comprised of N-Star CDO bonds and N-Star CDO equity
and other securities which are predominantly conduit commercial mortgage-backed securities (“CMBS”), meaning each asset is
apool backed by a large number of commercial real estate loans. As a result, this portfolio is typically well-diversified by collateral
type and geography. As of December 31,2015, excluding the sales of CRE securities subsequent to year end, contractual maturities
of CRE securities investments ranged from five months to 37 years, with a weighted average expected maturity of 3.6 years.
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The following table presents CRE securities as of December 31, 2014 (dollars in thousands):

Cumulative Unrealized Allocation by ~ Weighted = Weighted
Principal Amortized Fair Investment Average Average
Number Amount® Cost Gains Losses Value Type® Coupon Yield®
Asset Type:
N-Star CDO bonds'" 32 $ 461974 $ 205463 $ 58116 $  (1,270) $ 262,309 30.1% 1.83% 24.13%
N-Star CDO equity 5 137,143 137,143 522 (35,198) 102,467 8.9% NA 18.21%
CMBS and other securities® 15 119,089 64,616 12,241 (24,934) 51,923 7.8% 2.48% 5.51%
Subtotal® 52 718,206 407,222 70,879 (61,402) 416,699 46.8% 1.97% 19.18%
CRE securities in N-Star CDOs™"”
CMBS 144 636,035 458,186 50,432 (125,751) 382,867 41.5% 3.69% 9.96%
Third-party CDO notes 10 76,253 68,821 — (45,603) 23,218 5.1% 0.26% 1.32%
Agency debentures 8 87,172 30,371 10,164 (6) 40,529 5.7% — 4.56%
Unsecured REIT debt 1 8,000 8,396 955 — 9,351 0.5% 7.50% 5.88%
Trust preferred securities 2 7,225 7,225 — (1,373) 5,850 0.4% 2.25% 2.32%
Subtotal 165 814,685 572,999 61,551 (172,733) 461,815 53.2% 3.00% 8.48%
Total 217 $ 1,532,891 $ 980,221 $ 132,430 $ (234,135) $ 878,514 100.0% 2.57% 12.92%

(1)  Excludes $108.0 million principal amount of N-Star CDO bonds payable that are eliminated in consolidation.

(2) All securities are unleveraged.

(3) Based on amortized cost for N-Star CDO equity and principal amount for remaining securities.

(4) Based on expected maturity and for floating-rate securities, calculated using the applicable LIBOR as of December 31, 2014.
(5) The fair value option was elected for these securities (refer to Note 14).

(6) The fair value option was elected for $42.6 million carrying value of these securities (refer to Note 14).

(7) Investments in the same securitization tranche held in separate CDO financing transactions are reported as separate investments.

For the year ended December 31, 2015, proceeds from the sale of CRE securities was $95.7 million resulting in a net realized
gain of $14.1 million. For the year ended December 31, 2014, proceeds from the sale of CRE securities was $94.8 million
resulting in a net realized gain of $22.4 million. For the year ended December 31, 2013, proceeds from the sale of CRE
securities was $224.0 million resulting in a net realized gain of $35.4 million, which includes proceeds related to the
liquidation of N-Star CDO II.

CRE securities investments, not held in N-Star CDOs, include 28 securities for which the fair value option was not elected. As
of December 31, 2015, the aggregate carrying value of these securities was $223.7 million, representing $21.9 million of
accumulated net unrealized gains included in OCI. As of December 31, 2015, the Company held 23 securities with an
aggregate carrying value of $111.9 million with an unrealized loss of $2.5 million, one of which was in an unrealized loss
position for a period of greater than 12 months. Based on management’s quarterly evaluation, the Company recorded OTTI of
$4.0 million and $1.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, which was recorded in realized gain (loss) on
investments and other in the consolidated statements of operations. As of December 31, 2015, the Company does not intend to
sell these securities and it is more likely than not that the Company will not be required to sell these securities prior to recovery
of its amortized cost basis, which may be at maturity.
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8. Borrowings

The following table presents borrowings as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 (dollars in thousands):

Mortgage and other notes payable:”

Healthcare
East Arlington, TX
Ohio Portfolio
Lancaster, OH
Wilkinson Portfolio
Tuscola/Harrisburg, IL
Formation Portfolio®®

Minnesota Portfolio

Griffin-American - U.K.®

Griffin-American - U.S. - Fixed®
Griffin-American - U.S. - Floating®®’
Wakefield Portfolio
Healthcare Preferred®
Indiana Portfolio®
Subtotal Healthcare/weighted average
Hotel
Innkeepers Portfolio

K Partners Portfolio®
(5)

(5)

Courtyard Portfolio
Inland Portfolio®
NE Portfolio®®
Miami Hotel Portfolio™
Subtotal Hotel/weighted average
Manufactured housing communities
Manufactured Housing Portfolio 3
Manufactured Housing Portfolio 1
Manufactured Housing Portfolio 2
Subtotal Manufactured housing communities
Net lease
Fort Wayne, IN
Columbus, OH
Keene, NH
EDS Portfolio
Green Pond, NJ
Aurora, CO
DSG Portfolio
Indianapolis, IN
Milpitas, CA
Fort Mill, SC
Fort Mill, SC - Mezzanine
Industrial Portfolio®®
Salt Lake City, UT
South Portland, ME
Subtotal Net lease/weighted average

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Recourse vs.

Non- Final Contractual Principal Carrying Principal Carrying
Recourse Maturity Interest Rate® Amount Value® Amount Value®
Non-recourse May-17 5.89% $ 3,101 $ 3,101 $ 3,157 $ 3,149
Non-recourse Jan-19 LIBOR + 5.00% 19,948 18,848 20,230 19,999
Non-recourse Jan-19 LIBOR + 5.00% 2,261 2,261 2,442 2,396
Non-recourse Jan-19 6.99% 147,076 147,076 150,024 149,147
Non-recourse Jan-19 7.09% 7,268 7,268 7,412 7,342
Non-recourse ~ May-19®/Jan-25  LIBOR + 4.25%"/4.54% 701,819 695,060 705,608 692,935
Non-recourse Nov-19 LIBOR + 3.50% 37,800 37,800 37,800 36,990
Non-recourse Dec-19© LIBOR + 4.25%7 327,890 327,890 348,588 348,588

Dec-19/
Non-recourse  Jun-25 / Dec-35 4.68% 1,763,036 1,652,238 1,750,000 1,678,706
Non-recourse Dec-19© LIBOR +3.15%7 854,565 854,565 868,797 868,797
Non-recourse April-20 LIBOR + 4.00% 54,694 53,816 54,751 54,675
Non-recourse Jul-21 LIBOR + 7.75% 75,000 75,000 75,000 75,000
Non-recourse Sept-21 LIBOR + 4.50% 121,130 121,130 121,130 121,130
4.53%7 4,115,588 3,996,053 4,144,939 4,058,854
Non-recourse Jun-19° LIBOR + 3.39%" 840,000 837,137 840,000 830,322
Non-recourse Aug-19© LIBOR +3.25%7 211,681 210,660 211,681 208,905
Non-recourse Oct-19¢) LIBOR + 3.05%" 512,000 509,554 512,000 506,292
Non-recourse Nov-19¢© LIBOR + 3.60%” 817,000 811,927 817,000 806,287
Non-recourse Jun-20 LIBOR + 3.85% 132,250 130,824 — —
Non-recourse Jul-20©® LIBOR + 3.90%” 115,500 113,833 — —
3.73%7 2,628,431 2,613,935 2,380,681 2,351,806
— — — — — 297,428 296,856
— — — — — 236,900 233,096
— — — — — 639,909 631,874
— — 1,174,237 1,161,826
— — — — — 2,909 2,869
— — — — — 21,934 21,910
— — — — — 6,105 6,090
— — — — — 42,738 42,675
Non-recourse Apr-16 5.68% 15,486 15,481 15,799 15,778
Non-recourse Jul-16 6.22% 30,175 30,169 30,720 30,702
Non-recourse Oct-16 6.17% 30,481 30,428 31,126 31,006
Non-recourse Feb-17 6.06% 25,674 25,663 26,151 26,129
Non-recourse Mar-17 5.95% 18,827 18,807 19,459 19,420
Non-recourse Apr-17 5.63% 27,700 27,675 27,700 27,655
Non-recourse Apr-17 6.21% 663 663 1,079 1,079
Non-recourse Jul-17/Dec-17 421%" 221,125 224,635 221,131 226,746
Non-recourse Sept-17 5.16% 12,646 12,555 13,181 13,037
Non-recourse Jul-23 LIBOR + 2.15%" 3,241 3,190 3,597 3,534
4.91%7 386,018 389,266 463,629 468,630
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Multifamily®
Memphis, TN
Southeast Portfolio
Scottsdale, AZ

Subtotal Multifamily

Multi-tenant Office
Legacy Properties

Subtotal Multi-tenant Office

Other
Secured borrowing

Subtotal Other

Subtotal Mortgage and other notes payable®

Credit facilities and term borrowings:"”

Corporate Revolver!)
Corporate Term Borrowing

Loan Facility

Loan Facility 1
Subtotal Credit facilities and term borrowings
CDO bonds payable:

N-Star [

N-Star IX
Subtotal CDO bonds payable—VIE
Securitization bonds payable:

Securitization 2012-1
Subtotal Securitization financing transaction
Exchangeable senior notes:

7.25% Notes

8.875% Notes

5.375% Notes
Subtotal Exchangeable senior notes
Junior subordinated notes:"?

Trust I

Trust IT

Trust III

Trust IV

Trust V

Trust VI

Trust VII

Trust VIII
Subtotal Junior subordinated notes
Subtotal
Borrowings of properties, held for sale:”

EDS Portfolio”
Manufactured Housing Communities'”

Multifamily"®

Senior Housing Portfolio®

Subtotal Borrowings of properties, held for sale

Grand Total

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Recourse vs.
Non- Final Contractual Principal Carryin Principal Carrying
Recourse Maturity Interest Rate"® Amount Value® Amount Value®™
— — — — — 39,600 39,040
— — — — — 158,417 156,751
— — — — — 46,538 45,905
— — 244,555 241,696
Non-recourse ~ Nov-19/Feb-20”  LIBOR + 2.15%'" 112,988 111,266 45,584 44,697
112,988 111,266 45,584 44,697
Non-recourse May-23 LIBOR + 1.60% 54,056 54,056 — —
54,056 54,056 — —
7,297,081 7,164,576 8,453,625 8,327,509
Recourse Aug-17 LIBOR + 3.50%" 165,000 165,000 215,000 215,000
Recourse Sept-17 4.60% / 4.55%"2 425,000 417,039 425,000 412,717
— — — — — 14,850 14,527
Partial
Recourse"? Mar-18 2.95%7 72,053 70,665 77,930 76,515
662,053 652,704 732,780 718,759
Non-recourse Aug-38 7.01% 10,869 10,814 15,020 14,504
Non-recourse Aug-52 LIBOR + 0.48%" 425,622 296,787 545,939 375,564
436,491 307,601 560,959 390,068
— — — — — 41,831 41,746
— — 41,831 41,746
Recourse Jun-27 7.25% 12,955 12,955 12,955 12,955
Recourse Jun-32 8.875% 1,000 967 1,000 947
Recourse Jun-33 5.375% 17,405 15,116 31,633 27,106
31,360 29,038 45,588 41,008
Recourse Mar-35 LIBOR + 3.25%" 41,240 29,033 41,240 32,992
Recourse Jun-35 LIBOR +3.25%7 25,780 18,152 25,780 20,753
Recourse Jan-36 7.81% 41,238 27,003 41,238 32,784
Recourse Jun-36 7.95% 50,100 33,446 50,100 39,830
Recourse Sept-36 LIBOR +2.70%" 30,100 18,978 30,100 21,823
Recourse Dec-36 LIBOR +2.90%” 25,100 16,348 25,100 18,700
Recourse Apr-37 LIBOR + 2.50%" 31,459 18,960 31,459 22,492
Recourse Jul-37 LIBOR +2.70%" 35,100 21,973 35,100 25,798
280,117 183,893 280,117 215,172
8,707,102 8,337,812 10,114,900 9,734,262
Non-recourse Oct-15 5.37% 41,742 41,742 — —
Non-recourse Dec-21 - Dec-25 4.32%7 1,274,643 1,262,726 — —
Non-recourse  Apr-23 - Jul-23 4.08%7 249,709 247,019 — —
Non-recourse May-25 4.17% 648,211 644,486 — —
2,214,305 2,195,973 — —
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Refer to Note 15 for further disclosure regarding derivative instruments which are used to manage interest rate exposure.

For borrowings with a contractual interest rate based on LIBOR, represents three-month LIBOR for the Wakefield Portfolio and one-month LIBOR for the
other borrowings.

Carrying value represents fair value with respect to CDO bonds payable and junior subordinated notes due to the election of the fair value option (refer to
Note 14) and amortized cost, net of deferred financing costs for the other borrowings.

Mortgage and other notes payable are subject to customary non-recourse carveouts.

An aggregate principal amount of $6.6 billion is comprised of 22 senior mortgage notes totaling $5.1 billion and 16 mezzanine mortgage notes totaling

$1.5 billion.

Represents final maturity taking into consideration the Company’s extension options.

Contractual interest rate represents a weighted average. For borrowings with variable interest rates, the weighted average includes the current LIBOR as of
December 31, 2015.

Represents borrowings in N-Star CDOs.

The Company’s EDS Portfolio, manufactured housing portfolios, multifamily portfolio and Senior Housing Portfolio are classified as held for sale and
associated borrowings are expected to be assumed by a buyer, and therefore, classified as liabilities of assets held for sale. In October 2015, the mortgage
matured for the EDS Portfolio and the Company is currently in negotiations with the lender and is expected to give the property back to the lender.

The difference between principal amount and carrying value, if any, represents deferred financing costs.

Secured by collateral relating to a borrowing base comprised primarily of unlevered CRE debt, net lease and securities investments with a carrying value of
$666.6 million as of December 31, 2015.

Represents the respective fixed rate applicable to each borrowing under the Corporate Term Borrowing.

Recourse solely with respect to certain types of loans as defined in the governing documents.

Junior subordinated notes Trust Il had a fixed interest rate through December 31, 2015 when it changed to floating rate. Trusts III and IV have a fixed interest
rate until January 30, 2016 and June 30, 2016, respectively, when the rate will change to floating and reset quarterly to three-month LIBOR plus 2.83% to
2.80%, respectively.

The following table presents a reconciliation of principal amount to carrying value of the Company’s mortgage and other notes
payable by asset class as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 (dollars in thousands):

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Discount Deferred Discount Deferred
Principal (Premium), Financing Carrying Principal (Premium), Financing Carrying
Asset Class: Amount Net Costs, Net Value Amount Net Costs, Net Value
Healthcare $ 4,115,588 § 12,801 $ (132,336) $ 3,996,053 $ 4,144939 § (4,650) $ (81,435) $ 4,058,854
Hotel 2,628,431 — (14,496) 2,613,935 2,380,681 — (28,875) 2,351,806
Manufactured housing — — — — 1,174,237 2,288 (14,699) 1,161,826
Net lease 386,018 4,389 (1,141) 389,266 463,629 6,940 (1,939) 468,630
Multifamily — — — — 244,555 — (2,859) 241,696
Multi-tenant office 112,988 — (1,722) 111,266 45,584 — (887) 44,697
Other 54,056 — — 54,056 — - — —
Total $ 7,297,081 $ 17,190 8§ (149,695) § 7,164,576 8 8,453,625 § 4578 § (130,694) $ 8,327,509
The following table presents scheduled principal on borrowings, based on final maturity as of December 31, 2015 (dollars in
thousands):
Mortgage Credit
and Other CDO Facilities Junior Borrowings
Notes Bonds and Term Exchangeable  Subordinated of Properties,
Total Payable Payable  Borrowings Senior Notes" Notes Held for Sale
Years ending December 31:
2016 $ 143,155  $ 87,534 $ — 3 — 3 — 8 — 3 55,621
2017 926,647 317,896 — 590,000 — — 18,751
2018 124,801 11,154 — 72,053 12,955 — 28,639
2019 5,960,320 5,923,761 — — — — 36,559
2020 389,906 350,510 — — 1,000 — 38,396
Thereafter 3,376,578 606,226 436,491 — 17,405 280,117 2,036,339
Total $ 10921407 § 7.297.081 § 436491 § 662,053 § 31,360 8§ 280,117 § 2214305
(1) The 7.25% Notes, 8.875% Notes and 5.375% Notes have a final maturity date of June 15, 2027, June 15, 2032 and June 15, 2033, respectively. The above

table reflects the holders’ repurchase rights which may require the Company to repurchase the 7.25% Notes, 8.875% Notes and 5.375% Notes on June 15,
2017, June 15, 2019 and June 15, 2023, respectively.
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Credit Facilities and Term Borrowings

Corporate Borrowings

In August 2014, the Company obtained a corporate revolving credit facility (as amended, the “Corporate Revolver”) with certain
commercial bank lenders, with a three-year term. The Corporate Revolver is secured by collateral relating to a borrowing base
and guarantees by certain subsidiaries of the Company. In May 2015, the Company amended and restated the Corporate Revolver
to substitute the Operating Partnership as the borrower, with the Company becoming a guarantor. The Operating Partnership must
maintain at least $25.0 million of minimum liquidity based on the sum of unrestricted cash or cash equivalents and undrawn
availability during the term of the Corporate Revolver. In February 2016, the Company amended the agreement and decreased
the aggregate amount of the revolving commitment to $250 million, subject to certain conditions. Subsequent to year end, the
Corporate Revolver was repaid and there is currently no outstanding balance.

In September 2014, the Company entered into a corporate term borrowing agreement (as amended, the “Corporate Term
Borrowing”) with a commercial bank lender to establish term borrowings. In March 2015, the Company amended and restated
the Corporate Term Borrowing to substitute the Operating Partnership as the borrower, with the Company becoming a guarantor.
Borrowings may be prepaid at any time subject to customary breakage costs. In September and December 2014, the Company
entered into a credit agreement providing for a term borrowing under the Corporate Term Borrowing in a principal amount of
$275.0 million and $150.0 million, respectively, with a fixed interest rate of 4.60% and 4.55%, respectively, with each maturing
on September 19, 2017. There is no available financing remaining under the Corporate Term Borrowing.

The Corporate Revolver and the Corporate Term Borrowing and related agreements contain representations, warranties, covenants,
conditions precedent to funding, events of default and indemnities that are customary for agreements of these types. As of
December 31, 2015, the Company was in compliance with all of its financial covenants.

Loan Facility

In March 2013, a subsidiary of the Company entered into a master repurchase agreement (“Loan Facility 1) of $200.0 million to
finance first mortgage loans and senior interests secured by commercial real estate. In connection with Loan Facility 1, the
Company entered into a guaranty agreement under which the Company guaranteed certain of the obligations under Loan Facility
1. Loan Facility 1 and related agreements contain representations, warranties, covenants, conditions precedent to funding, events
of default and indemnities that are customary for agreements of these types. More specifically, the Company must maintain at
least $20.0 million in unrestricted cash or cash equivalents at all times during the term of Loan Facility 1. In addition, the Company
has agreed to guarantee certain customary obligations under Loan Facility 1 if the Company or an affiliate of the Company engage
in certain customary bad acts. As of December 31, 2015, the Company was in compliance with all of its financial covenants.

Currently, the Company has $38.8 million carrying value of loans financed with $25.2 million on Loan Facility 1.

During the initial term, Loan Facility 1 acts as a revolving credit facility that can be paid down as assets repay or are sold and
re-drawn upon for new investments.

Senior Notes

In March 2014, $172.5 million principal amount of the 7.50% Notes were exchanged for $481.1 million principal amount of
senior notes that matured on September 30, 2014 (the “2014 Senior Notes”). In connection with this exchange, the Company
recorded a loss of $22.4 million in realized gain (loss) on investments and other in the consolidated statements of operations. On
September 30, 2014, the Company repaid the 2014 Senior Notes in cash, including interest, in the amount of $488.3 million.

In July 2015, NorthStar Europe issued $340 million principal amount of 4.625% senior notes due December 2016 (“NRE Senior
Notes”). The Company received aggregate net proceeds of $331 million, after deducting the underwriters’ discount and other
expenses. NorthStar Europe loaned the Company the net proceeds from the issuance of the NRE Senior Notes, which were used
for general corporate purposes, including, among other things, the funding of acquisitions, including the Trianon Tower and the
repayment of the Company’sborrowings. The NRE Senior Notes are senior unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of NorthStar
Europe and were deemed repaid upon completion of the NRE Spin-off. The Company and the Operating Partnership continue to
guarantee payments on the NRE Senior Notes subsequent to the NRE Spin-off.
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Exchangeable Senior Notes

In 2007, the Company issued $172.5 million of 7.25% exchangeable senior notes (“7.25% Notes”) which were offered in
accordance with Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (“Rule 144A”), of which $13.0 million remains
outstanding as of December 31, 2015. The 7.25% Notes may be exchangeable upon the occurrence of specified events, and
at any time on or after June 15, 2017, and prior to the close of business on the second business day immediately preceding
the maturity date, into cash or common stock of the Company, or a combination thereof, if any, at the Company’s option. The
exchange price as of December 31, 2015 was $24.14 per share.

In 2012, the Company issued $82.0 million of 8.875% exchangeable senior notes (“8.875% Notes™) which were offered in
accordance with Rule 144A, of which $1.0 million remains outstanding as of December 31, 2015. The 8.875% Notes may be
exchangeable upon the occurrence of specified events, and at any time on or after June 15,2019, and prior to the close of business
on the second business day immediately preceding the maturity date, into cash or common stock of the Company, or a combination
thereof, if any, at the Company’s option. The exchange price as of December 31, 2015 was $8.10 per share.

In 2013, the Company issued $345.0 million of 5.375% exchangeable senior notes (“5.375% Notes”) which were offered
in accordance with Rule 144A, of which $17.4 million remains outstanding as of December 31, 2015. The 5.375% Notes may
be exchangeable upon the occurrence of specified events, and at any time on or after June 15, 2023, and prior to the close of
business on the second business day immediately preceding the maturity date, into cash or common stock of the Company, or a
combination thereof, if any, at the Company’s option. The exchange price as of December 31, 2015 was $13.67 per share. In
2015, $14.2 million principal amount of 5.375% Notes were exchanged for 0.8 million shares of common stock, after giving
effect to the Reverse Split. In connection with these conversions, the Company recorded a loss of $1.3 million in realized
gain (loss) on investments and other in the consolidated statements of operations for the year ended December 31, 2015. In
January 2016, $0.6 million principal amount of the 5.375% Notes were exchanged for 0.1 million shares of common stock.

All of the Company’s outstanding exchangeable senior notes contain unconditional guarantees by the Company on an
unsecured and unsubordinated basis.

The following table presents the components of outstanding exchangeable senior notes as of December 31,2015 and 2014 (dollars
in thousands):

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Principal Unamortized Carrying  Principal Unamortized Carrying
Amount Discount” Value Amount Discount Value
7.25% Notes $ 12,955 § — $§ 12955 $ 12955 $ — $ 12955
8.875% Notes 1,000 (33) 967 1,000 (53) 947
5.375% Notes 17,405 (2,289) 15,116 31,633 (4,527) 27,106
Total $ 31360 $ (2322) $§ 29.038 $ 45588 % (4.580) $ 41.008

(1) The remaining amortization period for the 8.875% Notes and 5.375% Notes is 3.5 years and 7.5 years, respectively.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the aggregate carrying value of the equity components of the exchangeable senior notes is
$13.5 million and $23.7 million, respectively, which is recorded as a component of additional paid-in capital. The following table
presents the components of interest expense related to outstanding exchangeable senior notes for the years ended December 31,
2015, 2014 and 2013 (dollars in thousands):

Interest and Amortization Expense

Interest Amortization Total Interest
Years Ended Expense Expense Expense
2015 $ 1,998 § 275 $ 2,273
2014 15,812 7,542 23,354
2013 32,475 8,416 40,891

(1) The effective interest rate of the 8.875% Notes and 5.375% Notes was 9.8% and 6.5% for the year ended December 31, 2015, respectively.
9. Spin-offs
Spin-off of Asset Management Business

Upon completion of the NSAM Spin-off, the asset management business of the Company is owned and operated by NSAM and
the Company is externally managed by an affiliate of NSAM through a management contract with an initial term of 20 years.
Subsequent to the NSAM Spin-off, the Company continues to operate its CRE debt origination business. Most of the employees
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of the Company at the time of the NSAM Spin-off became employees of NSAM and executive officers, employees engaged in
the Company’s loan origination business at the time of the NSAM Spin-off and certain other employees became co-employees of
both the Company and NSAM. In connection with the NSAM Spin-off, the advisory agreements between the Company and each
of the NSAM Sponsored Companies were terminated and affiliates of NSAM entered into new advisory agreements with each of
the NSAM Sponsored Companies on substantially the same terms as those in effect at the time of the NSAM Spin-off.

Spin-off of European Real Estate Business

On October 31, 2015, the Company completed the NRE Spin-off into a separate publicly-traded REIT, NorthStar Europe, in the
form of the NRE Distribution. In connection with the NRE Distribution, each of the Company’s common stockholders received
shares of NorthStar Europe’s common stock on a one-for-six basis, before giving effect to the Reverse Split. The Company
contributed to NorthStar Europe approximately $2.6 billion of European real estate, at cost (excluding the Company’s European
healthcare properties), comprised of 52 properties spanning across some of Europe’s top markets and $250 million of cash. NSAM
manages NorthStar Europe pursuant to a long-term management agreement, on substantially similar terms as the Company’s
management agreement with NSAM.

In connection with the NRE Spin-off, $2.8 billion of assets were transferred and $1.9 billion of liabilities were assumed by NRE.
Such transaction costs were expensed by NRE upon completion of the spin-off and included legal, accounting, tax and other
professional services and relocation and start-up costs. As of December 31, 2014, the carrying value of the assets and liabilities
classified as assets and liabilities of discontinued operations related to NorthStar Europe and consisted of the following (dollars
in thousands):

Assets
Operating real estate, net $ 89,288
Investment related deposits 58,647
Other assets 10,598
Total assets $ 158,533
Liabilities
Mortgage and other notes payable $ 75,562
Other liabilities 3,950
Total liabilities 79,512
Equity
NorthStar Europe stockholders’ equity 77,812
Non-controlling interests 1,209
Total equity 79,021
Total liabilities and equity $ 158,533
Summary

The following table presents a carve-out of revenues and expenses associated with NSAM and NRE and included in discontinued
operations in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
NSAM 2015 2014? 2013%?
Total revenues $ — 3 56,013 $ 89,938
Total expenses'” — 63,216 90,343
NSAM income (loss) in discontinued operations — (7,203) (405)
NorthStar Europe
Total revenues 89,600 1,647 —
Total expenses(s’(é) 205,406 38,050 —
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments and other (10,812) — —
Realized gain (loss) on investments and other 5 (170) —
Income (loss) before income tax benefit (expense) provision (126,613) (36,573) —
Income tax benefit (expense) 18,070 — —
NRE income (loss) in discontinued operations (108,543) (36,573) —
Income (loss) from operating real estate in discontinued operations® (11) (925) (8,356)
Total income (loss) from discontinued operations $ (108,554) $ (44.701) $ (8.761)
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(1) Represents ten months of total revenues and expenses of NorthStar Europe included in discontinued operations prior to the NRE Spin-off on
October 31, 2015.

(2) Represents six months of total revenues and expenses of NSAM included in discontinued operations prior to the NSAM Spin-off on June 30,
2014 and a full year of activity for 2013.

(3) Includes asset management and other fee income from NSAM Sponsored Companies earned prior to the NSAM Spin-off and selling commissions
and dealer manager fees earned by selling equity in the NSAM Sponsored Companies through NorthStar Securities. Additionally, revenues
exclude the effect of any fees that NSAM began earning in connection with the management agreement with the Company upon completion of
the NSAM Spin-off.

(4) Includes an allocation of indirect expenses of the Company to NSAM related to managing the NSAM Sponsored Companies and owning NorthStar
Securities, including salaries, equity-based compensation and other general and administrative expenses (primarily occupancy and other costs)
based on an estimate had the asset management business been run as an independent entity.

(5) Includes $109.5 million and $27.5 million of transaction costs related to acquisitions for the years ended December 31,2015 and 2014, respectively.

(6) Includes $42.4 million and $0.5 million of depreciation and amortization for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

(7) Represents an asset held for sale as of December 31, 2014 which was given back to the lender in 2015.

The following table presents certain data for operating real estate of discontinued operations related to NorthStar Europe and
NSAM (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013
Depreciation and amortization $ 42,431 $ 1,378  $ 1,390
Amortization of equity-based compensation") — 13,745 5,177
Unrealized gain (loss) on investments and other (10,812) — —
Realized gain (loss) on investments and other 5 (170) —
Acquisition of operating real estate 1,873,607 94,169 —
Improvements of operating real estate 1,286 82 —

(1) Represents an allocation to NSAM prior to the NSAM Spin-off for the six months ended June 30, 2014 and a full year for 2013.

10. Related Party Arrangements
NorthStar Asset Management Group

Management Agreement

Upon completion of the NSAM Spin-off, the Company entered into a management agreement with an affiliate of NSAM for an
initial term of 20 years, which automatically renew for additional 20-year terms each anniversary thereafter unless earlier terminated.
As asset manager, NSAM is responsible for the Company’s day-to-day operations, subject to the supervision of the Company’s
board of directors. Through its global network of subsidiaries and branch offices, NSAM performs services and engages in activities
relating to, among other things, investments and financing, portfolio management and other administrative services, such as
accounting and investor relations, to the Company and its subsidiaries other than the Company’s CRE loan origination business.
The management agreement with NSAM provides for a base management fee and incentive fee. The management contract with
NSAM commenced on July 1, 2014, and as such, there were no management fees incurred for the six months ended June 30, 2014
and year ended December 31, 2013.

In connection with the NRE Spin-off, NorthStar Europe entered into a management agreement with NSAM with an initial term
of20 years on terms substantially consistent with the terms of the Company’s management agreement with NSAM. The Company’s
management agreement with NSAM was amended and restated in connection with the NRE Spin-off to, among other things, adjust
the annual base management fee and incentive fee hurdles for the NRE Spin-off.

Base Management Fee

For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company incurred $190.0 million related to the base management fee. As of
December 31, 2015, $47.4 million is recorded in due to related party on the consolidated balance sheets. For the six months ended
December 31, 2014, the Company incurred $79.4 million related to the base management fee. The base management fee to NSAM
will increase subsequent to December 31, 2015 by an amount equal to 1.5% per annum of the sum of:

» cumulative net proceeds of all future common equity and preferred equity issued by the Company;

»  equity issued by the Company in exchange or conversion of exchangeable notes based on the stock price at the date
of issuance;
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» any other issuances by the Company of common equity, preferred equity or other forms of equity, including but not limited
to LTIP Units in our Operating Partnership(excluding units issued to the Company and equity-based compensation, but
including issuances related to an acquisition, investment, joint venture or partnership); and

»  cumulative cash available for distribution (“CAD”) of the Company in excess of cumulative distributions paid on common
stock, LTIP units or other equity awards beginning the first full calendar quarter after the NSAM Spin-off.

Additionally, the Company’s equity interest in RXR Realty and Aerium is structured so that NSAM is entitled to the portion of
distributable cash flow from each investment in excess of the $10 million minimum annual base amount.

Incentive Fee

For the year ended December 31, 2015 and the six months ended December 31, 2014, the Company incurred $8.7 million and
$3.3 million, respectively, related to the incentive fee. The incentive fee is calculated and payable quarterly in arrears in cash,
equal to:

» the product of: (a) 15% and (b) the Company’s CAD before such incentive fee, divided by the weighted average shares
outstanding for the calendar quarter, when such amount is in excess of $0.68 per share and up to $0.78 per share, after
giving effect to the Reverse Split and the NRE Spin-off (“15% Hurdle”); plus

»  the product of: (a) 25% and (b) the Company’s CAD before such incentive fee, divided by the weighted average shares
outstanding for the calendar quarter, when such amount is in excess of $0.78 per share, after giving effect to the Reverse
Split and the NRE Spin-off (“25% Hurdle”);

*  multiplied by the Company’s weighted average shares outstanding for the calendar quarter.

In addition, NSAM may also earn an incentive fee from the Company’s healthcare investments in connection with NSAM’s
Healthcare Strategic Partnership (refer to below).

Weighted average shares represents the number of shares of the Company’s common stock, LTIP Units or other equity-based
awards (with some exclusions), outstanding on a daily weighted average basis. With respect to the base management fee, all equity
issuances are allocated on a daily weighted average basis during the fiscal quarter of issuance. With respect to the incentive fee,
such amounts will be appropriately adjusted from time to time to take into account the effect of any stock split, reverse stock split,
stock dividend, reclassification, recapitalization or other similar transaction.

Additional Management Agreement Terms

If the Company were to spin-off any asset or business in the future, such entity would be managed by NSAM on terms substantially
similar to those set forth in the management agreement between the Company and NSAM. The management agreement further
provides that the aggregate base management fee in place immediately after any future spin-off will not be less than the aggregate
base management fee in place at the Company immediately prior to such spin-off.

The Company’s management agreement with NSAM provides that in the event of a change of control of NSAM or other event
that could be deemed an assignment of the management agreement, the Company will consider such assignment in good faith and
not unreasonably withhold, condition or delay our consent. The management agreement further provides that the Company
anticipate consent would be granted for an assignment or deemed assignment to a party with expertise in commercial real estate
and $10 billion of assets under management. The management agreement also provides that, notwithstanding anything in the
agreement to the contrary, to the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, rules and regulations, in connection with any
merger, sale of all or substantially all of the assets, change of control, reorganization, consolidation or any similar transaction of
us or NSAM, directly or indirectly, the surviving entity will succeed to the terms of the management agreement.

Payment of Costs and Expenses and Expense Allocation

The Company is responsible for all of its direct costs and expenses and will reimburse NSAM for costs and expenses incurred by
NSAM on its behalf. In addition, NSAM may allocate indirect costs to the Company related to employees, occupancy and other
general and administrative costs and expenses in accordance with the terms of, and subject to the limitations contained in, the
Company’s management agreement with NSAM (the “G&A Allocation”). The Company’s management agreement with NSAM
provides that the amount of the G&A Allocation will not exceed the following: (i) 20% of the combined total of: (a) the Company’s
and NorthStar Europe’s (the “NorthStar Listed Companies”) general and administrative expenses as reported in their consolidated
financial statements excluding (1) equity-based compensation expense, (2) non-recurring items, (3) fees payable to NSAM under
the terms of the applicable management agreement and (4) any allocation of expenses to the NorthStar Listed Companies (“NorthStar
Listed Companies’ G&A”); and (b) NSAM’s general and administrative expenses as reported in its consolidated financial
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statements, excluding equity-based compensation expense and adding back any costs or expenses allocated to any managed
company of NSAM; less (ii) the NorthStar Listed Companies’ G&A. The G&A Allocation may include the Company’s allocable
share of NSAM’s compensation and benefit costs associated with dedicated or partially dedicated personnel who spend all or a
portion of their time managing the Company’saffairs, based upon the percentage of time devoted by such personnel to the Company’s
affairs. The G&A Allocation may also include rental and occupancy, technology, office supplies, travel and entertainment and
other general and administrative costs and expenses also allocated based on the percentage of time devoted by personnel to the
Company’s affairs. In addition, the Company will pay directly or reimburse NSAM for an allocable portion of any severance paid
pursuant to any employment, consulting or similar service agreements in effect between NSAM and any of its executives, employees
or other service providers.

In connection with the NRE Spin-off and the related agreements, the NorthStar Listed Companies’ obligations to reimburse NSAM
for the G&A Allocation and any severance are shared among the NorthStar Listed Companies, at NSAM’s discretion, and the 20%
cap on the G&A Allocation, as described above, applies on an aggregate basis to the NorthStar Listed Companies. NSAM currently
determined to allocate these amounts based on assets under management.

For the year ended December 31, 2015 and the six months ended December 31, 2014, NSAM allocated $10.0 million, of which
$1.4 million is recorded in discontinued operations related to NorthStar Europe, and $5.2 million, respectively, to the Company.
As of December 31, 2015, $6.5 million is recorded in due to related party on the consolidated balance sheets.

In addition, the Company, together with NorthStar Europe and any company spun-off from the Company or NorthStar Europe,
will pay directly or reimburse NSAM for up to 50% of any long-term bonus or other compensation that NSAM’s compensation
committee determines shall be paid and/or settled in the form of equity and/or equity-based compensation to executives, employees
and service providers of NSAM during any year. Subject to this limitation and limitations contained in any applicable management
agreement between NSAM and NorthStar Europe or any company spun-off from the Company or NorthStar Europe, the amount
paid by the Company, NorthStar Europe and any company spun-off from the Company or NorthStar Europe will be determined
by NSAM in its discretion. At the discretion of NSAM’s compensation committee, this compensation may be granted in shares
of the Company’s restricted stock, restricted stock units, LTIP Units or other forms of equity compensation or stock-based awards;
provided that if at any time a sufficient number of shares of the Company’s common stock are not available for issuance under
the Company’s equity compensation plan, such compensation shall be paid in the form of RSUs, LTIP Units or other securities
that may be settled in cash. The Company’s equity compensation for each year may be allocated on an individual-by-individual
basis at the discretion of the NSAM compensation committee and, as long as the aggregate amount of the equity compensation
for such year does not exceed the limits set forth in the management agreement, the proportion of any particular individual’s equity
compensation may be greater or less than 50%.

The Company was responsible for paying approximately 50% of the 2014 long-term bonuses earned under the NorthStar Asset
Management Group Inc. Executive Incentive Bonus Plan (“NSAM Bonus Plan”). Long-term bonuses were paid to executives in
the form of equity-based awards of both the Company and NSAM, subject to performance-based and time-based vesting conditions
over the four-year performance period from January 1, 2014 through December 31, 2017. The long-term bonuses paid in the form
of equity-based awards of the Company were adjusted for the NRE Spin-off and Reverse Split in the same manner as all other
equity-based awards of the Company.

Investment Opportunities

Under the management agreement, the Company agreed to make available to NSAM for the benefit of NSAM and its managed
companies, including the Company, all investment opportunities sourced by the Company. NSAM agreed to fairly allocate such
opportunities among NSAM’smanaged companies, including the Company and NSAM in accordance with an investment allocation
policy. Pursuant to the management agreement, the Company is entitled to fair and reasonable compensation for its services in
connection with any loan origination opportunities sourced by the Company, which may include first mortgage loans, subordinate
mortgage interests, mezzanine loans and preferred equity interests, in each case relating to commercial real estate. Inception to
date, the Company earned $3.0 million from NSAM, recorded in other revenue, for services in connection with loan origination
opportunities, which represents $1.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2015 and $1.6 million for the six months ended
December 31, 2014.

NSAM provides services with regard to such areas as payroll, human resources and employee benefits, financial systems
management, treasury and cash management, accounts payable services, telecommunications services, information technology
services, property management services, legal and accounting services and various other corporate services to the Company as it
relates to its loan origination business for CRE debt.
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Credit Agreement

In connection with the NSAM Distribution, the Company entered into a revolving credit agreement with NSAM pursuant to
which the Company makes available to NSAM, on an “as available basis,” up to $250 million of financing with a maturity of
June 30, 2019 at LIBOR plus 3.50%. The revolving credit facility is unsecured. NSAM expects to use the proceeds for general
corporate purposes, including potential future acquisitions. In addition, NSAM may use the proceeds to acquire assets on
behalf of its managed companies, including the Company, that it intends to allocate to such managed company but for which
such managed company may not then have immediately available funds. The terms of the revolving credit facility contain various
representations, warranties, covenants and conditions, including the condition that the Company’s obligation to advance proceeds
to NSAM is dependent upon the Company and its affiliates having at least $100 million of either unrestricted cash and cash
equivalents or amounts available under committed lines of credit, after taking into account the amount NSAM seeks to draw under
the facility. As of December 31, 2015, the Company has not funded any amounts to NSAM in connection with this agreement.

Healthcare Strategic Joint Venture

In January 2014, NSAM entered into a long-term strategic partnership with James F. Flaherty III, former Chief Executive
Officer of HCP, Inc., focused on expanding the Company’s healthcare business into a preeminent healthcare platform (“Healthcare
Strategic Partnership”). In connection with the partnership, Mr. Flaherty oversees and seeks to grow both the Company’s
healthcare real estate portfolio and the portfolio of NorthStar Healthcare. In connection with entering into the partnership, the
Company granted Mr. Flaherty certain RSUs (refer to Note 11). The Healthcare Strategic Partnership is entitled to incentive
fees ranging from 20%to 25% above certain hurdles for new and existing healthcare real estate investments held by the
Company. For the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Company did not incur any incentive fees related to the
Healthcare Strategic Partnership.

N-Star CDOs

The Company earns certain collateral management fees from the N-Star CDOs primarily for administrative services. Such fees
are recorded in other revenue in the consolidated statements of operations. For the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and
2013, the Company earned $5.2 million, $5.9 million and $11.1 million in fee income, respectively, of which $2.3 million,
$2.6 million and $10.4 million were eliminated in consolidation. Prior to the third quarter 2013, all amounts were
eliminated in consolidation as all of the N-Star CDOs were consolidated by the Company.

Additionally, the Company earns interest income from the N-Star CDO bonds and N-Star CDO equity in deconsolidated N-Star
CDOs. For the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, the Company earned $57.5 million, $71.6 million and
$11.7 million, respectively, of interest income from such investments in deconsolidated N-Star CDOs. Refer to Note 7 and Note
17 for additional disclosure regarding the N-Star CDOs.

Securitization 2012-1

The Company entered into an agreement with NorthStar Income that provided that both the Company and NorthStar Income
receive the economic benefit and bear the economic risk associated with the investments each contributed into Securitization
2012-1, a securitization transaction entered into by the Company and NorthStar Income. In both cases, the respective retained
equity interest of the Company and NorthStar Income is subordinate to interests of the investment-grade bondholders of
Securitization 2012-1 and the investment-grade bondholders have no recourse to the general credit of the Company or NorthStar
Income. In the event that either the Company or NorthStar Income suffer a complete loss of the retained equity interests in
Securitization 2012-1, any additional losses would be borne by the remaining retained equity interests held by the Company or
NorthStar Income, as the case may be, prior to the investment-grade bondholders. In January 2015, the securitization was
repaid in full.

American Healthcare Investors

In December 2014, NSAM acquired a 43% interest in American Healthcare Investors LLC (“AHI”) and James F. Flaherty III, a
strategic partner of NSAM, acquired a 12% interest in AHI. AHI is a healthcare-focused real estate investment management
firm that co-sponsored and advised Griffin-American Healthcare REIT II, Inc. (“Griffin-American”), until Griffin-
American was acquired by the Company and NorthStar Healthcare. In connection with this acquisition, AHI provides
certain management and related services, including property management, to NSAM, NorthStar Healthcare and the Company
assisting NSAM in managing the current and future healthcare assets (excluding any joint venture assets) acquired by the
Company and, subject to certain conditions, other NSAM managed companies. For the year ended December 31, 2015 and
from acquisition date (December 8, 2014) to December 31, 2014, the Company incurred $1.7 million and $0.2 million,
respectively, of property management fees to AHI, which are recorded in real estate properties—operating expenses in the
consolidated statements of operations.
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Island Hospitality Management

In January 2015, NSAM acquired a 45% interest in Island Hospitality Management Inc. (“Island”). Island is a leading, independent
select service hotel management company that currently manages 160 hotel properties, representing $4.1 billion of assets, of which
110 hotel properties are owned by the Company. Island provides certain asset management, property management and other
services to the Company to assist in managing the Company’s hotel properties. Island receives a base management fee of 2.5%
to 3.0% of the monthly revenue of the hotel properties it manages for the Company. For the period from NSAM’s acquisition date
(January 9, 2015) to December 31, 2015, the Company incurred $16.6 million of base property management and other fees to
Island, which are recorded in real estate properties—operating expenses in the consolidated statements of operations.

NSAM purchase of common stock

In 2015, NSAM purchased 2.7 million shares of the Company in the open market for $49.9 million.

Recent Sales or Commitments to Sell to NSAM Sponsored Companies

Subsequent to year end, the Company sold or entered into agreements to sell certain assets to NSAM Sponsored Companies:

* In February 2016, the Company entered into an agreement to sell substantially all of its 70% interest in PE Investment
II to the existing owners of the remaining 30% interest, one the Vintage Funds which purchased approximately 80% of
the interest sold and the other NorthStar Income which purchased the other approximate 20% of the interest sold. NorthStar
Income paid $37.3 million for its respective interest. As part of the transaction, both buyers will assume the deferred
purchase price obligation, on a pro rata basis, of the PE Investment II joint venture upon receiving consent from the PE
II Seller.

* In February 2016, the Company entered into an agreement to sell its 60% interest in the Senior Housing Portfolio to
NorthStar Healthcare, which owns the remaining 40% interest, for $535 million, subject to proration and adjustment.
NorthStar Healthcare will assume the Company’s portion of the $648 million of mortgage borrowing as part of the
transaction. The Company expects to receive approximately $150 million of net proceeds upon completion of the sale
in March 2016.

* In February 2016, the Company sold a 49% interest in one loan with a total principal amount of $40.3 million to a third
party, at par, with the remaining 51% interest sold to NorthStar Income II, also at par.

* In February 2016, the Company sold one CRE security with a carrying value of $12.5 million to NorthStar Income II.

The board of directors of each NSAM Sponsored Company, including all of the independent directors, approved each of the
respective transactions after considering, among other matters, third-party pricing support.

11.  Equity-Based Compensation

The Company has issued equity-based awards to directors, officers, employees, consultants and advisors pursuant to the NorthStar
Realty Finance Corp. 2004 Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan (the “Stock Plan”) and the NorthStar Realty Executive Incentive Bonus
Plan, as amended (the “Plan” and collectively the “NorthStar Realty Equity Plans”).

Prior to the NSAM Spin-off, the Company conducted substantially all of its operations and made its investments through an
operating partnership which issued LTIP Units as equity-based compensation. Additionally, prior to the NSAM Spin-off, the
Company completed an internal corporate reorganization whereby the Company collapsed its three tier holding company structure,
including such operating partnership, into a single tier (the “Reorganization”). All of the vested and unvested equity-based awards
granted by the Company prior to the NSAM Spin-off remain outstanding following the Reorganization and the NSAM Spin-
off. Appropriate adjustments were made to all awards to reflect the Reorganization, the Reverse Split and the Spin-offs.
Pursuant to the Reorganization, such LTIP Units were converted into an equal number of shares of common stock of the
Company (refer to Note 13), which are referred to as restricted stock, and holders of such shares received an equal number
of shares of NSAM’s common stock in connection with the NSAM Spin-off, all of which generally remain subject to the
same vesting and other terms that applied prior to the NSAM Spin-off. In connection with the NSAM Spin-off, equity and
equity-based awards relating to the Company’s common stock, such as RSUs and Deferred LTIP Units, were adjusted to also
relate to an equal number of shares of NSAM’s common stock, but otherwise generally remain subject to the same vesting and
other terms that applied prior to the NSAM Spin-off. Vesting conditions for outstanding awards have been adjusted to reflect the
impact of NSAM in terms of employment for service based on awards and total stockholder return for performance-based
awards with respect to periods after the NSAM Spin-off.
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In connection with the formation of the Operating Partnership, the Operating Partnership issued LTIP Units to each holder of the
Company’s outstanding Deferred LTIP Units, which were equity awards representing the right to receive either LTIP units in the
Company’s successor operating partnership or, if such LTIP units were not available upon settlement of the award, shares of
common stock of the Company, in settlement of such Deferred LTIP Units on a one for one basis in accordance with the terms of
the outstanding Deferred LTIP Units. Conditioned upon minimum allocations to the capital account of the LTIP Unit for federal
income tax purposes, each LTIP Unit will be convertible, at the election of the holder, into one common unit of limited partnership
interest in the Operating Partnership (“OP Unit”). Each of the OP Units underlying these LTIP Units will be redeemable at the
election of the OP Unit holder for: (i) cash equal to the then fair market value of one share of the Company’s common stock; or
(i1) at the option of the Company in its capacity as general partner of the Operating Partnership, one share of the Company’s
common stock. LTIP Units issued remain subject to the same vesting terms as the Deferred LTIP Units.

In connection with the NRE Spin-off, equity and equity-based awards relating to the Company’s common stock, such as RSUs,
were adjusted to also relate to one share of NorthStar Europe common stock for each six shares of the Company’s common stock,
but otherwise generally remain subject to the same vesting and other terms that applied prior to the NRE Spin-off. Appropriate
adjustments were also made to all awards to reflect the Reverse Split.

Following the Spin-offs, the Company and the compensation committee of its board of directors (the “Committee”) continues to
administer all awards issued under the NorthStar Realty Equity Plans but NSAM and NorthStar Europe are obligated to issue
shares of their common stock or other equity awards of their subsidiaries or make cash payments in lieu thereof with respect to
dividend or distribution equivalent obligations to the extent required by such awards previously issued under the NorthStar Realty
Equity Plans. These awards will continue to be governed by the NorthStar Realty Equity Plans, as applicable, and shares of
NSAM’s common stock or NorthStar Europe’s common stock issued pursuant to these awards will not be issued pursuant to, or
reduce availability, under the NorthStar Realty Equity Plans.

All of the adjustments made in connection with the Reorganization, the Spin-offs and the Reverse Splits were deemed to be
equitable adjustments pursuant to anti-dilution provisions in accordance with the terms of the NorthStar Realty Equity Plans. As
a result, there was no incremental value attributed to these adjustments and these adjustments do not impact the amount recorded
for equity-based compensation expense for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013.

The following summarizes the equity-based compensation plans and related expenses.
All share amounts and related information disclosed below have been retrospectively adjusted to reflect the Reverse Split.
NorthStar Realty Equity Plans

Omnibus Stock Incentive Plan

In September 2004, the board of directors of the Company adopted the Stock Plan, and such plan, as amended and restated, was
further adopted by the board of directors of the Company on April 17, 2013 and approved by the stockholders on May 29, 2013.
The Stock Plan provides for the issuance of stock-based incentive awards, including incentive stock options, non-qualified stock
options, stock appreciation rights, shares of common stock of the Company, in the form of restricted stock and other equity-based
awards such as LTIP Units or any combination of the foregoing. The eligible participants in the Stock Plan include directors,
officers, employees, consultants and advisors of the Company.

As of December 31,2015, 81,377 unvested shares of restricted stock issued under the Stock Plan were outstanding and 1,568,645
shares of common stock remained available for issuance pursuant to the Stock Plan, which includes shares reserved for issuance
upon settlement of outstanding LTIP Units and RSUs, after giving effect to the Reverse Split. Holders of shares of restricted stock
or LTIP Units are entitled to receive dividends or distributions with respect to the Company’s shares of restricted stock and vested
and unvested LTIP Units for as long as such shares and LTIP Units remain outstanding.

Incentive Compensation Plan

In July 2009, the Committee approved the material terms of the Plan for the Company’s executive officers and other employees.
Pursuant to the Plan, an incentive pool was established each calendar year through 2013. The size of the incentive pool was
calculated as the sum of: (a) 1.75% of the Company’s “adjusted equity capital” for the year; and (b) 25% of the Company’s adjusted
funds from operations, as adjusted, above a 9% return hurdle on adjusted equity capital. Payout from the incentive pool is or was

subject to achievement of additional performance and/or time-based goals summarized below.

The portion of the incentive pool for the executive officers was divided into the following three separate incentive compensation
components: (a) an annual cash bonus, tied to annual performance of the Company and paid prior to or shortly after completion
of the year-end audit (“Annual Bonus”); (b) a deferred bonus, determined based on the same year’s performance, but paid 50%
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following the close of each of the first and second years after such incentive pool is determined, subject to the participant’s continued
employment through each payment date (“Deferred Bonus™); and (c) a long-term incentive in the form of RSUs, LTIP Units and/
or Deferred LTIP Units. RSUs are subject to the Company achieving cumulative performance hurdles and/or total stockholder
return hurdles established by the Committee for a three- or four-year period, subject to the participant’s continued employment
through the payment date. Upon the conclusion of the applicable performance period, each executive officer will receive a payout,
if any, equal to the value of one share of common stock at the time of such payout, including the dividends paid with respect to a
share of common stock following the first year of the applicable performance period, for each RSU actually earned (the “Long-
Term Amount Value”). The Long-Term Amount Value, if any, other than the portion related to dividends paid, will be paid in the
form of shares of common stock of the Company or LTIP Units in the Operating Partnership, to the extent available under the
NorthStar Realty Equity Plans, or in cash to the extent shares of common stock of the Company or LTIP Units in the Operating
Partnership are unavailable under the NorthStar Realty Equity Plans, and, pursuant to adjustments made in connection with the
NSAM Spin-off and the NRE Spin-off, shares of NSAM’s common stock or LTIP Units in NSAM’s operating partnership and
shares of NorthStar Europe’s common stock or LTIP Units in NorthStar Europe’s operating partnership (the “Long Term Amount
Payout”). These performance-based RSUs were adjusted to refer to combined total stockholder return of the Company and NSAM
with respect to periods after the NSAM Spin-off. These performance-based RSUs were again adjusted to refer to combined total
stockholder return of the Company, NorthStar Europe and NSAM after the NRE Spin-off. Restricted stock or LTIP Units granted
as a portion of the long-term incentive are subject to vesting based on continued employment during the performance period, but
are not subject to performance-based vesting hurdles.

Under the Plan, for 2011, the Company issued 381,449 RSUs to executive officers, after giving effect to the Reverse Split, which
were subject to vesting based on continued employment and achieving total stockholder return hurdles for the four-year period
ended December 31,2014. The grant date fair value was $4.32 per RSU, after giving effect to the Reverse Split, determined using
a risk-free interest rate of 0.42%. As of December 31, 2014, the Company determined the performance hurdle was met which
resulted in all of these RSUs vesting. To settle these RSUs, the Company issued 24,575 shares of common stock, net of the
minimum statutory tax withholding requirements, on January 1, 2015, after giving effect to the Reverse Split and the Operating
Partnership issued 334,871 LTIP Units, after giving effect to the Reverse Split. Under the Plan, for 2011, the Company also granted
381,449 LTIP Units to executive officers, after giving effect to the Reverse Split, which were subject to vesting in four annual
installments ending on January 29, 2015, subject to the executive officer’s continued employment through the applicable vesting
date, and were converted into shares of restricted stock pursuant to the Reorganization. The Company also granted 151,340 shares
of restricted stock (net of forfeitures occurring through December 31, 2015), after giving effect to the Reverse Split, to certain
non-executive employees, which were subject to vesting quarterly over three years beginning April 2012, subject to continued
employment through the applicable vesting date.

Under the Plan, for 2012, the Company issued 352,418 RSUs to executive officers, after giving effect to the Reverse Split, which
are subject to vesting based on continued employment and achieving total stockholder return hurdles for the four-year period
ending December 31, 2015. The grant date fair value was $9.86 per RSU, after giving effect to the Reverse Split, determined
using a risk-free interest rate of 0.44%. As of December 31, 2015, the Company determined the performance hurdle was met
which resulted in all of these RSUs vesting. To settle these RSUs, the Company issued 158,191 shares of common stock, net of
the minimum statutory tax withholding requirements, on January 4, 2016. Under the Plan, for 2012, the Company also granted
352,418 LTIP Units to executive officers, after giving effect to the Reverse Split, which were subject to vesting in four annual
installments beginning on January 29, 2013, subject to the executive officer’s continued employment through the applicable vesting
date, and were converted into shares of restricted stock pursuant to the Reorganization. The Company also granted 144,883 LTIP
Units (net of forfeitures occurring through December 31, 2015), after giving effect to the Reverse Split, to certain non-executive
employees which are subject to vesting quarterly over three years beginning April 2013, subject to continued employment through
the applicable vesting date, and were converted into shares of restricted stock pursuant to the Reorganization.

Under the Plan, for 2013, the Company issued 250,184 RSUs to executive officers, after giving effect to the Reverse Split,
which are subject to vesting based on continued employment and achieving total stockholder return hurdles for the four-year
period ending December 31, 2016. The grant date fair value was $21.57 per RSU, after giving effect to the Reverse Split,
determined using a risk-free interest rate of 0.63%. Under the Plan, for 2013, the Company also granted 250,184 Deferred LTIP
Units to executive officers, after giving effect to the Reverse Split, which are subject to vesting in four annual installments
beginning on January 29, 2014, subject to the executive officer’s continued employment through the applicable vesting date and
130,787 Deferred LTIP Units, after giving effect to the Reverse Split, which were subject to vesting based on continued
employment through December 31, 2015. The Company also granted 137,330 Deferred LTIP Units (net of forfeitures occurring
through December 31, 2015), after giving effect to the Reverse Split, to certain non-executive employees which were subject to
vesting quarterly over three years beginning April 2014, subject to continued employment through the applicable vesting date.
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Such Deferred LTIP Units were subsequently settled as LTIP Units in the Operating Partnership or shares of restricted stock,
which remain subject to the same vesting terms that applied to the Deferred LTIP Units.

NSAM Bonus Plan

In connection with the NSAM Bonus Plan, for 2014, approximately 31.65% of the long-term bonus was paid in Deferred LTIP
Units and approximately 18.35% of the long-term bonus was paid by the Company by issuing RSUs. In connection with the long-
term bonuses to be paid by the Company, in February 2015, the Company granted 519,115 Deferred LTIP Units to executive
officers, after giving effect to the Reverse Split, of which 25% were vested upon grant and the remainder was subject to vesting
in three equal annual installments beginning on December 31, 2015, subject to the executive officer’s continued employment
through the applicable vesting dates. The Company also granted 292,438 RSUs to NSAM’s executive officers, after giving effect
to the Reverse Split, subject to vesting based on continued employment and achieving total stockholder return hurdles for the four-
year period ending December 31, 2017. The grant date fair value of such RSUs was $18.64 per RSU, after giving effect to the
Reverse Split, determined using a risk-free interest rate of 1.00%. After the NRE Spin-off, these performance-based RSUs were
adjusted to refer to combined total stockholder return of the Company and NorthStar Europe. In the first quarter 2015, the Company
also granted 341,025 Deferred LTIP Units (net of forfeitures occurring through December 31, 2015), after giving effect to the
Reverse Split, to certain of NSAM’s non-executive employees, with substantially similar terms to the executive awards subject to
time based vesting conditions. Such Deferred LTIP Units were settled as LTIP Units in the Operating Partnership or shares of
restricted stock, which remain subject to the same vesting terms that applied to the Deferred LTIP Units.

In connection with the NSAM Bonus Plan, for 2015, a portion of the long-term bonus was paid in restricted shares of common
stock and a portion of the long-term bonus was paid by the Company by issuing RSUs. In connection with the 2015 long-term
bonuses paid by the Company, in February 2016, the Company granted 1,006,006 restricted shares of common stock to NSAM’s
executive officers, of which 25% were vested upon grant and the remainder is subject to vesting in equal installments on December
31,2016, 2017 and 2018, subject to the recipient’s continued employment through the applicable vesting dates. In connection
with the issuance of these shares, in February 2016, the Company retired 132,654 of the vested shares of common stock to satisfy
the minimum statutory withholding requirements. In addition, in February 2016, the Company granted 583,261 RSUs to NSAM’s
executive officers, which are subject to vesting based on the Company’s absolute total stockholder return, CAD and continued
employment over the four-year period ending December 31,2018. Following the determination of the number of these performance-
based RSUs that vest, the Company will settle the vested RSUs by issuing an equal number shares of common stock (or, if shares
are not then available, paying cash in an amount equal to the value of such shares) and the NSAM executives will be entitled to
receive the distributions that would have been paid with respect to a share of common stock (for each RSU that vests) on or after
January 1,2015. In February 2016, the Company also granted 517,055 shares of common stock and/or RSUs to its Chief Executive
Officer and certain of the Company’s and NSAM’s non-executive employees, with substantially similar terms to the executive
awards subject to time-based vesting conditions.

Other Issuances

Healthcare Strategic Joint Venture

In connection with entering into the Healthcare Strategic Partnership, the Company granted Mr. Flaherty 250,000 RSUs on January
22,2014, after giving effect to the Reverse Split, which vest on January 22, 2019, unless certain conditions are met. In connection
with the Spin-offs, the RSUs granted to Mr. Flaherty were adjusted to also relate to shares of NSAM’s common stock and NorthStar
Europe’s common stock. The RSUs are entitled to dividend equivalents prior to vesting and may be settled either in shares of
common stock of the Company, NSAM and NorthStar Europe or in cash at the option of the Company.

Summary

Equity-based compensation expense for the year ended December 31, 2015 represents the Company’s equity-based compensation
expense following the NSAM Spin-off. Equity-based compensation expense for the year ended December 31, 2014 represents:
(i) the Company’s expense for the six months ended December 31, 2014 following the NSAM Spin-off; and (ii) the Company’s
equity-based compensation expense for the six months ended June 30, 2014 after an allocation to NSAM related to our historical
asset management business had it been run as an independent entity. Equity-based compensation expense for the year ended
December 31, 2013 is prepared on the same basis as the six months ended June 30, 2014.
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The following table presents equity-based compensation expense for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 (dollars
in thousands):

Time-Based Awards Performance-Based Awards Total
Years Ended December 31, Years Ended December 31, Years Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013
NorthStar Realty " $ 22,000 $ 22332 $ 8940 $ 5693 $ 2553 $ 2,844 § 27,693 $ 24,885 $ 11,784
Allocation to NSAM® — 6,800 3,928 — 6,945 1,249 — 13,745 5,177
Total $ 22,000 $ 29,132 $ 12,868 S 5693 $ 9498 $ 4093 $ 27693 $ 38,630 @ $ 16,961

(1) Includes equity-based compensation expense related to grants issued subsequent to the NSAM Spin-off by NorthStar Realty to employees of NorthStar
Realty and NSAM in connection with NorthStar Realty’s obligation under the management agreement (refer to Note 10. Related Party Arrangements). In
connection with this obligation, for the year ended December 31, 2015, NorthStar Realty recorded equity-based compensation expense of $12.9 million and
$2.0 million of time-based awards and performance-based awards, respectively.

(2) Recorded in discontinued operations. The allocation to NSAM for 2014 is for equity-based compensation expense for the six months ended June 30, 2014
and a full year for 2013.

(3) Represents $28.0 million related to the NorthStar Realty Equity Plans and $10.6 million related to the NSAM Stock Plan.

The following table presents a summary of restricted stock and LTIP Units. The balance as of December 31, 2015 represents
unvested shares of restricted stock and LTIP Units that are outstanding, whether vested or not (grants in thousands):

Year Ended December 31, 2015

‘Weighted

Restricted LTIP Total Average
Stock® Units Grants Grant Price®
January 1, 2015 343 593 936 $ 37.20
Granted 7 1,289 1,296 29.71
Converted to common stock — 3) 3) 24.82
Forfeited (1) (11) (12) 28.26
Vesting of restricted stock (268) — (268) 11.45
December 31, 2015 81 1,868 1,949 35.83

(1) Includes 81,377 shares of restricted stock and 1,868,251 LTIP Units as of December 31, 2015, after giving effect to the Reverse Split.
(2) Amounts have been retrospectively adjusted to reflect the Reverse Split.

As of December 31,2015, equity-based compensation expense to be recognized over the remaining vesting period through August
2019 is $24.7 million, provided there are no forfeitures.

12.  Stockholders’ Equity
Reverse Split

On November 1, 2015, the Company effected a Reverse Split of its common stock with any fractional shares settled in cash. As
a result of the Reverse Split, common stock was reduced by dividing the par value prior to the Reverse Split by two (including

retrospective adjustment of prior periods) with a corresponding increase to additional paid-in capital. The par value per share of
common stock remained unchanged.

Share and per share amounts disclosed in the Company’s consolidated financial statements and the accompanying notes have been
retrospectively adjusted to reflect the Reverse Split, including common stock outstanding, earnings per share and shares or units
outstanding related to equity-based compensation, where applicable (refer to Note 11).

Common Stock

In February 2015, the Company issued the remaining 3.5 million shares of common stock, after giving effect to the Reverse Split,
under the forward sale agreement entered into in 2014, for net proceeds of $122.2 million.

In March 2015, the Company issued 6.0 million shares of its common stock at a public offering price of $37.30 per share, after
giving effect to the Reverse Split, and received net proceeds of $217.1 million. In connection with this offering, the
Company entered into a forward sale agreement with a financial institution to issue an aggregate of 28.5 million shares of its
common stock, after giving effect to the Reverse Split, subject to certain conditions. As of December 31, 2015, the Company
issued 28.5 million shares of common stock under this forward sale agreement, after giving effect to the Reverse Split, for net
proceeds of $986.9 million.
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Preferred Stock

The following table presents classes of cumulative redeemable preferred stock issued in a public offering and outstanding as of
December 31, 2015 (dollars in thousands):

Number of
Shares Amount”
Series A 8.75% 2,466,689 $ 59,453
Series B 8.25% 13,998,905 323,757
Series C 8.875%? 5,000,000 120,808
Series D 8.50%? 8,000,000 193,334
Series E 8.75%? 10,000,000 241,766
Total 39,465,594 $ 939,118

——— e e e

(1) 250 million shares have been authorized and all shares have a $0.01 par value. All preferred shares have a $25 per share liquidation preference.
(2) The Series C, D and E shares are currently not callable.

Share Repurchase

In September 2015, the Company’s board of directors authorized the repurchase of up to $500 million of its outstanding common
stock. The authorization expires in September 2016, unless otherwise extended by the Company’s board of directors. As of
December 31, 2015, the Company repurchased 6.5 million shares of its common stock, after giving effect to the Reverse Split, for
approximately $118.0 million, with $382.0 million remaining under the stock repurchase plan.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

In April 2007, as amended effective January 1, 2012, the Company implemented a Dividend Reinvestment Plan (the “DRP”),
pursuant to which it registered with the SEC and reserved for issuance 3,569,962 shares of its common stock, after giving effect
to the Reverse Split. Pursuant to the amended terms of the DRP, stockholders are able to automatically reinvest all or a portion
of their dividends for additional shares of the Company’s common stock. The Company expects to use the proceeds from the DRP
for general corporate purposes. For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company issued 7,146 shares of its common stock,
after giving effect to the Reverse Split, pursuant to the DRP for gross proceeds of $0.2 million.

Dividends

The following table presents dividends declared (on a per share basis) for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013:

Common Stock” Preferred Stock
Dividend Per Share
Declaration Dividend Per Declaration
Date Share® Date Series A Series B Series C Series D Series E

2015

February 25 $ 0.80 January 30 $ 054688 $ 051563 $  0.55469 $  0.53125 $  0.54688
May 5@ $ 0.80 May 5 $ 054688 $ 051563 $  0.55469 $  0.53125 $  0.54688
August 4 $ 0.80 August 4 $ 0.54688 $ 0.51563 $ 0.55469 $ 0.53125 $ 0.54688
November 3 $ 0.75 @ October 28 $ 0.54688 $ 0.51563 $ 0.55469 $ 0.53125 $ 0.54688
2014

February 26 $ 1.00 January 29 $ 0.54688 $ 0.51563 $ 0.55469 $ 0.53125 N/A
May 7 $ 1.00 May 7 $ 0.54688 $ 0.51563 $ 0.55469 $ 0.53125 N/A
August 6 $ 1.00 August 6 $ 0.54688 $ 0.51563 $ 0.55469 $ 0.53125 $ 0.54688
October 29 $ 0.80 @ October 29 $ 0.54688 $ 0.51563 $ 0.55469 $ 0.53125 $ 0.54688
2013

February 13 $ 0.72 February 1 $ 0.54688 $ 0.51563 $ 0.76424 N/A N/A
May 1 $ 0.76 May 1 $ 0.54688 $ 0.51563 $ 0.55469 $ 0.20660 N/A
July 31 $ 0.80 July 31 $ 0.54688 $ 0.51563 $ 0.55469 $ 0.53125 N/A
October 30 $ 0.84 October 30 $ 0.54688 $ 0.51563 $ 0.55469 $ 0.53125 N/A
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(1) For the year ended December 31, 2015, 99% of distributions paid were a return of capital and 1% of distributions paid were ordinary income.
For the year ended December 31, 2014, approximately 17% of distributions paid were ordinary income and 83% was a return of capital. For the
year ended December 31, 2013, 100% of distributions paid were a return of capital.

(2) Adjusted for the Reverse Split effected on November 1, 2015.

(3) Represents the first dividend subsequent to the NRE Spin-off.

Earnings Per Share

The following table presents EPS for the years ended December 31,2015, 2014 and 2013 (dollars and shares in thousands, except
per share data):

Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
Numerator:
Net income (loss) attributable to NorthStar Realty Finance Corp.
common stockholders $  (327497) $§ (371,507) $  (137,453)
Net income (loss) attributable to LTIP Units non-controlling interest (3,206) (5,296) (5,571)

Net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders and LTIP Units®” $  (330,703) $  (376,803) $  (143,024)

Denominator:??

Weighted average shares of common stock 174,873 98,036 52,954
Weighted average LTIP Units'"” 1,472 959 2,291
Weighted average shares of common stock and LTIP Units® 176,345 98,995 55,245
Earnings (loss) per share:® -
Basic 9 (1.87) § (3.79) § (2.60)
Diluted D D)

(1) The EPS calculation takes into account LTIP Units, which receive non-forfeitable dividends from the date of grant, share equally in the Company’s net income
(loss) and convert on a one-for-one basis into common stock.

(2) Excludes the effect of exchangeable senior notes, shares under the forward sale agreement, restricted stock and RSUs outstanding that were not dilutive as
of December 31, 2015. These instruments could potentially impact diluted EPS in future periods, depending on changes in the Company’s stock price and
other factors.

(3) Adjusted for the Reverse Split effected on November 1, 2015.

13.  Non-controlling Interests
Operating Partnership

Non-controlling interests include the aggregate LTIP Units held by limited partners (the “Unit Holders”) in the Operating Partnership
and the Company’s former operating partnership prior to the NSAM Spin-off. Net income (loss) attributable to this non-controlling
interest is based on the weighted average Unit Holders’ ownership percentage of the Operating Partnership for the respective
period. The issuance of additional common stock or LTIP Units changes the percentage ownership of both the Unit Holders and
the Company. Since an LTIP Unit is generally redeemable for cash or common stock at the option of the Company, it is deemed
to be equivalent to common stock. Therefore, such transactions are treated as capital transactions and result in an allocation
between stockholders’ equity and non-controlling interests on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets to account for the
change in the ownership of the underlying equity in the Operating Partnership. On a quarterly basis, the carry value of such non-
controlling interest is allocated based on the number of LTIP Units held by Unit Holders in total in proportion to the number of
LTIP Units in total plus the number of shares of common stock. In connection with the formation of the Operating Partnership in
March 2015, the Company recorded a non-controlling interest of $18.7 million related to LTIP Units. As of December 31, 2015,
LTIP Units of 1,868,251 were outstanding, after giving effect to the Reverse Split, representing a 1.0% ownership and non-
controlling interest in the Operating Partnership. Net income (loss) attributable to the Operating Partnership non-controlling
interest for the year ended December 31, 2015 was a net loss of $3.2 million. Net income (loss) attributable to the Company’s
former operating partnership non-controlling interest for the six months ended June 30, 2014 was a loss of $5.3 million. Since
the Operating Partnership was not formed until March 2015, there was no allocation of net income (loss) attributable to the Operating
Partnership non-controlling interest for the six months ended December 31, 2014. Net income (loss) attributable to the Operating
Partnership non-controlling interest for the year ended December 31, 2013 was a net loss of $5.6 million.
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Other

Other non-controlling interests represent third-party equity interests in ventures that are consolidated with the Company’s financial
statements. Net income (loss) attributable to the other non-controlling interests for the years ended December 31,2015, 2014 and
2013 was a net loss of $20.8 million, $17.6 million and $0.4 million, respectively.

The following table presents net income (loss) attributable to the Company’s common stockholders for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (219,780) $ (327,051) $ (129,394)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (107,717) (44,456) (8,059)
Net income (loss) attributable to NorthStar Realty Finance
Corp. common stockholders $ (327,497) $  (371,507) § (137,453)

14.  Fair Value
Fair Value Measurement

The fair value of financial instruments is categorized based on the priority of the inputs to the valuation technique and categorized
into a three-level fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3). If the inputs used to measure the
financial instruments fall within different levels of the hierarchy, the categorization is based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement of the instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are recorded at fair value on the consolidated balance sheets and are categorized based on the inputs
to the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1. Quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in an active market.

Level 2.  Financial assets and liabilities whose values are based on the following:

(a) Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.

(b) Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in non-active markets.

(©) Pricing models whose inputs are observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

(d) Pricing models whose inputs are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data

for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3. Prices or valuation techniques based on inputs that are both unobservable and significant to the overall fair
value measurement.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The following is a description of the valuation techniques used to measure fair value of assets and liabilities accounted for at fair
value on a recurring basis and the general classification of these instruments pursuant to the fair value hierarchy.

PE Investments

The Company accounts for PE Investments at fair value which is determined based on a valuation model using assumptions for
the timing and amount of expected future cash flow for income and realization events for the underlying assets in the funds and
discount rate. This fair value measurement is generally based on unobservable inputs and, as such, is classified as Level 3 of the
fair value hierarchy. The Company is not using the NAV (practical expedient) of the underlying funds for purposes of determining
fair value.
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Investments in Unconsolidated Ventures

The Company accounts for certain investments in unconsolidated ventures at fair value determined based on a valuation model
using assumptions for the timing and amount of expected future cash flow for income and realization events for the underlying
assets, discount rate and foreign currency exchange rates. Additionally, the Company accounts for certain CRE debt investments
made in connection with certain investments in unconsolidated ventures at fair value, which is determined based on comparing
the current yield to the estimated yield for newly originated loans with similar credit risk. These fair value measurements are
generally based on unobservable inputs and, as such, are classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Real Estate Securities

N-Star CDO Bonds

The fair value of N-Star CDO bonds is determined using quotations from nationally recognized financial institutions that generally
acted as underwriter for the transactions. These quotations are not adjusted and are generally based on a valuation model with
observable inputs such as interest rate and other unobservable inputs for assumptions related to the timing and amount of expected
future cash flow, discount rate, estimated prepayments and projected losses. The fair value of subordinate N-Star CDO bonds is
determined using an internal price interpolated based on third-party prices of the more senior N-Star CDO bonds of the respective
CDO. All N-Star CDO bonds are classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

N-Star CDO Equity

The fair value of N-Star CDO equity is determined based on a valuation model using assumptions for the timing and amount of
expected future cash flow for income and realization events for the underlying collateral of these CDOs and discount rate. This
fair value measurement is generally based on unobservable inputs and, as such, is classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Other CRE Securities

Other CRE securities are generally valued using a third-party pricing service or broker quotations. These quotations are not adjusted
and are based on observable inputs that can be validated, and as such, are classified as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. Certain
CRE securities may be valued based on a single broker quote or an internal price which may have less observable pricing, and as
such, would be classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Management determines the prices are representative of fair value
through a review of available data, including observable inputs, recent transactions as well as its knowledge of and experience in
the market.

Derivative Instruments

Derivative instruments are valued using a third-party pricing service. These quotations are not adjusted and are generally based
on valuation models with observable inputs such as interest rates and contractual cash flow, and as such, are classified as Level
2 of the fair value hierarchy. Derivative instruments are also assessed for credit valuation adjustments due to the risk of
non-performance by the Company and derivative counterparties. Derivatives held in non-recourse CDO financing structures
where, by design, the derivative contracts are senior to all the CDO bonds payable, there is no material impact of a credit
valuation adjustment.

CDO Bonds Payable

CDO bonds payable are valued using quotations from nationally recognized financial institutions that generally acted as underwriter
for the transactions. These quotations are not adjusted and are generally based on a valuation model with observable inputs such
as interest rate and other unobservable inputs for assumptions related to the timing and amount of expected future cash flow,
discount rate, estimated prepayments and projected losses. CDO bonds payable are classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Junior Subordinated Notes

Junior subordinated notes may be valued using quotations from nationally recognized financial institutions or an internal model.
A quotation from a financial institution is not adjusted. The fair value is generally based on a valuation model with observable
inputs such as interest rate and other unobservable inputs for assumptions related to the implied credit spread of the Company’s
other borrowings and the timing and amount of expected future cash flow. Junior subordinated notes are classified as Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy.

120



NORTHSTAR REALTY FINANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Financial assets and liabilities recorded at fair value on a recurring basis are classified in their entirety based on the lowest level
of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The following tables present financial assets and liabilities that were
accounted for at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 by level within the fair value hierarchy (dollars
in thousands):

December 31, 2015
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
PE Investments $ — 3 — S 1,101,650 $ 1,101,650
Investments in unconsolidated ventures'” — — 120,392 120,392
Real estate securities, available for sale:
N-Star CDO bonds — — 216,727 216,727
N-Star CDO equity — — 44,905 44,905
CMBS and other securities — 12,318 43,247 55,565
CRE securities in N-Star CDOs
CMBS — 261,552 64,959 326,511
Third-party CDO notes — — 6,685 6,685
Agency debentures — 37,316 — 37,316
Unsecured REIT debt — 8,976 — 8,976
Trust preferred securities — — 5,425 5,425
Subtotal CRE securities in N-Star CDOs — 307,844 77,069 384,913
Subtotal real estate securities, available for sale — 320,162 381,948 702,110
Derivative assets — 116 — 116
Total assets $ — 3 320,278 $ 1,603,990 $ 1,924,268
Liabilities:
CDO bonds payable $ — 3 — 307,601 $ 307,601
Junior subordinated notes — — 183,893 183,893
Derivative liabilities — 7,385 95,908 103,293
Total liabilities $ — 3 7,385 $ 587,402 $ 594,787

(1) Includes certain CRE debt investments made in connection with certain investments in unconsolidated ventures, for which the fair value option
was elected.
(2) Represents an interest rate swap entered into in the corporate segment in 2015 and includes a credit valuation adjustment.
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Assets:
PE Investments
Investments in unconsolidated ventures'”
Real estate securities, available for sale:
N-Star CDO bonds
N-Star CDO equity
CMBS and other securities
CRE securities in N-Star CDOs
CMBS
Third-party CDO notes
Agency debentures
Unsecured REIT debt
Trust preferred securities
Subtotal CRE securities in N-Star CDOs
Subtotal real estate securities, available for sale

Derivative assets
Total assets
Liabilities:
CDO bonds payable
Junior subordinated notes
Derivative liabilities
Total liabilities

December 31, 2014
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ — $ — 3 962,038 $ 962,038
— — 276,437 276,437
— — 262,309 262,309
— — 102,467 102,467
— 17,243 34,680 51,923
— 329,815 53,052 382,867
— — 23,218 23,218
— 40,529 — 40,529
— 9,351 — 9,351
— — 5,850 5,850
— 379,695 82,120 461,815
— 396,938 481,576 878,514
— 3,247 — 3,247
$ — 400,185 $ 1,720,051 $ 2,120,236
$ — 3 — $ 390,068 $ 390,068
— — 215,172 215,172
— 17,915 — 17,915
$ — $ 17915 $ 605,240 $ 623,155

M

was elected.

Includes certain CRE debt investments made in connection with certain investments in unconsolidated ventures, for which the fair value option

The following table presents the changes in fair value of financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis using Level 3 inputs to determine fair value for the year ended December 31, 2015 (dollars in thousands):

January 1, 2015
Transfers into Level 3
Transfers out of Level 3?

Purchases / borrowings / amortization / contributions

Sales

Pay downs / distributions

Gains:

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated ventures
Unrealized gains included in earnings
Realized gains included in earnings

Unrealized gain on real estate securities, available for sale
included in OCI

Losses:
Unrealized gains (losses) included in earnings
Realized gains (losses) included in earnings

Unrealized losses on real estate securities, available for sale
included in OCI

December 31, 2015

Gains (losses) included in earnings attributable to the change in
unrealized gains (losses) relating to assets or liabilities still held.

Year Ended December 31, 2015

Investments in Junior
PE Unconsolidated Real Estate CDO Bonds Subordinated
Investments Ventures Securities Payable Notes
$ 962,038 $ 276,437 $ 481,576  $ 390,068 $ 215,172
— — 24,170 — —
— — (3,052) — —
614,578 (4,053) 93,477 (25,531) —
— — (77,230) — —
(639,884) (125,285) (124,480) (90,070) —
198,159 19,177 — — —
— — 81,532 — (31,279)
— — 22,418 — —
— — 1,213 — —
(33,241) (45,884) (75,523) 29,275 —
— — (5,886) 3,859 —
— — (36,267) — —
$ 1,101,650 $ 120,392 $ 381,948 $ 307,601  $ 183,893
$ (33,241) $ (45,884) $ 6,009 $ (29,275) $ 31,279

M

Includes certain CRE debt investments made in connection with certain investments in unconsolidated ventures, for which the fair value option was elected.

(2) Transfers between Level 2 and Level 3 represent a fair value measurement from a third-party pricing service or broker quotations that have become more or
less observable during the period. Transfers are assumed to occur at the beginning of the year.

122



NORTHSTAR REALTY FINANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The following table presents the changes in fair value of financial assets and liabilities which are measured at fair value on a
recurring basis using Level 3 inputs to determine fair value for the year ended December 31, 2014 (dollars in thousands):

January 1, 2014

Transfers into Level 3?

Transfers out of Level 3

Purchases / borrowings / amortization / contributions
Sales

Pay downs / distributions

Gains:

Equity in earnings of unconsolidated ventures
Unrealized gains included in earnings
Realized gains included in earnings

Unrealized gain on real estate securities, available for sale
included in OCI

Deconsolidation of N-Star CDOs®

Losses:

Unrealized gains (losses) included in earnings
Realized gains (losses) included in earnings

Unrealized losses on real estate securities, available for sale
included in OCI

Deconsolidation of N-Star CDOs®

December 31, 2014

Gains (losses) included in earnings attributable to the change in

unrealized gains (losses) relating to assets or liabilities still held.

Year Ended December 31, 2014

Investments in Junior
PE Unconsolidated Real Estate CDO Bonds Subordinated
Investments Ventures' Securities Payable Notes
$ 586,018 $ 192,419 § 484,840 $ 384,183 § 201,203
— — 17,513 —
548,961 84,206 64,104 (15,320)
— — (65,504) — —
(339,598) (2,507) (48,511) (87,859) —
134,036 10,494 — —
32,621 — 44,308 —
_ — 15,626 —
— — 61,045 —
— — 873 (122,486)
— (8,175) (64,977) 217,608 13,969
— — (3,152) 13,942 —
— — (3,519) —
— — (21,070) —
$ 962,038 $ 276,437 ' $ 481,576 $ 390,068 $ 215,172
$ 32,621 $ (8,175) $ (37,487) $ (217,608) $ (13,969)

M
@

®)
Q)

Includes certain CRE debt investments made in connection with certain investments in unconsolidated ventures, for which the fair value option was elected.
Transfers between Level 2 and Level 3 represent a fair value measurement from a third-party pricing service or broker quotations that have become more or
less observable during the period. Transfers are assumed to occur at the beginning of the year.

Represents amounts recorded as a result of the deconsolidation of certain N-Star CDOs. Refer to Note 17 for further disclosure.

The amount for the year ended December 31, 2014 excludes a reclassification between equity in earnings and income tax expense of $16.8 million to conform

with the current period presentation.

There were no transfers, other than those identified in the tables above, during the periods ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

The Company relies on the third-party pricing exception with respect to the requirement to provide quantitative disclosures about
significant Level 3 inputs being used to determine fair value measurements related to CRE securities (including N-Star CDO
bonds), junior subordinated notes and CDO bonds payable. The Company believes such pricing service or broker quotation for
such items may be based on a market transaction of comparable securities, inputs including forecasted market rates, contractual
terms, observable discount rates for similar securities and credit (such as credit support and delinquency rates).

For the year ended December 31, 2015, quantitative information about the Company’s remaining Level 3 fair value measurements
on a recurring basis are as follows (dollars in thousands):

Key Unobservable
Fair Value Valuation Technique Inputs® Weighted Average
Discounted Cash Flow
PE Investments $ 1,101,650 Model Discount Rate 17%
Discounted Cash Flow Discount Rate/Credit
Investments in unconsolidated ventures”  § 120,392 Model/Credit Spread Spread 20%
Discounted Cash Flow
N-Star CDO equity $ 44,905 Model Discount Rate 18%

(1) Includes certain CRE debt investments made in connection with certain investments in unconsolidated ventures, for which the fair value option

was elected.

(2) Includes timing and amount of expected future cash flow.

123



NORTHSTAR REALTY FINANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Significant increases (decreases) in any one of the inputs described above in isolation may result in a significantly different fair
value for the financial assets and liabilities using such Level 3 inputs.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Non-recurring Basis

Non-financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the consolidated financial statements consist of real estate held for
sale, which are measured on a non-recurring basis, have been determined to be Level 3 within the valuation hierarchy, where
applicable, based on estimated sales price, adjusted for closing costs and expenses, determined by discounted cash flow analysis,
direct capitalization analyses or a sales comparison approach if no contracts had been consummated. The discounted cash flow
and direct capitalization analyses include all estimated cash inflows and outflows over a specific holding period and, where
applicable, any estimated debt premiums. This cash flow is comprised of unobservable inputs which included forecasted rental
revenues and expenses based upon existing in-place leases, market conditions and expectations for growth. Capitalization rate
and discount rate used in these analyses were based upon observable rates that the Company believed to be within a reasonable
range of current market rates for the respective properties.

Valuations were prepared using internally-developed valuation models. These valuations are reviewed and approved, during each
reporting period, by management, as deemed necessary, including personnel from the accounting, finance and operations and the
valuations are updated as appropriate. In addition, the Company may engage third-party valuation experts to assist with the
preparation of certain of its valuations.

All other non-financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value in the financial statements on a non-recurring basis are subject
to fair value measurement and disclosure. Non-financial assets and liabilities included on the consolidated balance sheets and
measured on a nonrecurring basis consist of goodwill and long-lived assets, including other acquired intangibles.

Fair Value Option

The Company has historically elected to apply the fair value option for the following financial assets and liabilities existing at the
time of adoption or at the time the Company recognizes the eligible item for the purpose of consistent accounting application:
CRE securities financed in N-Star CDOs; CDO bonds payable; and junior subordinated notes. Given past market volatility the
Company had observed that the impact of electing the fair value option would generally result in additional variability to the
Company’s consolidated statements of operations which management believes is not a useful presentation for such financial assets
and liabilities. Therefore, the Company more recently has not elected the fair value option for new investments in CRE securities
and securitization financing transactions. The Company may elect the fair value option for certain of its financial assets or liabilities
due to the nature of the instrument. In the case of PE Investments, certain investments in unconsolidated ventures (refer to Note
6) and N-Star CDO equity, the Company elected the fair value option because management believes it is a more useful presentation
for such investments. The Company determined recording such investments based on the change in fair value of projected future
cash flow from one period to another better represents the underlying economics of the respective investment.
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The following table presents the fair value of financial instruments for which the fair value option was elected as of December 31,
2015 and 2014 (dollars in thousands):

December 31,

2015 2014
Assets:
PE Investments $ 1,101,650 $ 962,038
Investments in unconsolidated ventures'" 120,392 276,437
Real estate securities, available for sale:®
N-Star CDO equity 44,905 102,467
CMBS and other securities 48,711 42,613
CRE securities in N-Star CDOs
CMBS 326,511 382,867
Third-party CDO notes 6,685 23218
Agency debentures 37,316 40,529
Unsecured REIT debt 8,976 9,351
Trust preferred securities 5,425 5,850
Subtotal CRE securities in N-Star CDOs 384,913 461,815
Subtotal real estate securities, available for sale 478,529 606,895
Total assets $ 1,700,571 $ 1,845,370
Liabilities:
CDO bonds payable $ 307,601 $ 390,068
Junior subordinated notes 183,893 215,172
Total liabilities $ 491,494 $ 605,240

(1) Includes certain CRE debt investments made in connection with certain investments in unconsolidated ventures, for which the fair value option
was elected.

(2) December 31, 2015 excludes 28 CRE securities including $216.7 million of N-Star CDO bonds and $6.9 million of CRE securities, for which
the fair value option was not elected. December 31, 2014 excludes 34 CRE securities including $262.3 million of N-Star CDO bonds and $9.3
million of CRE securities, for which the fair value option was not elected.

The Company attributes the change in the fair value of floating-rate liabilities to changes in instrument-specific credit spreads.
For fixed-rate liabilities, the Company attributes the change in fair value to interest rate-related and instrument-specific credit
spread changes.

Change in Fair Value Recorded in the Statements of Operations

The following table presents unrealized gains (losses) on investments and other related to the change in fair value of financial
assets and liabilities in the consolidated statements of operations for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 (dollars
in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
Assets:
Real estate securities, available for sale!" $ (14,810) $ (12,324) $ 94,676
PE Investments" (33,241) 32,621 —
Investments in unconsolidated ventures'” (40,437) — —
Foreign currency remeasurement® (18,275) (11,719) 2,300
Liabilities:
CDO bonds payable” (29,275) (217,608) (106,622)
Junior subordinated notes'” 31,279 (13,969) (4,030)
Subtotal unrealized gain (loss), excluding derivatives (104,759) (222,999) (13,676)
Derivatives (87,475) 8,184 33,730
Subtotal unrealized gain (loss) (192,234) (214,815) 20,054
Net cash payments on derivatives (refer to Note 15) (11,878) (16,882) (52,731)
Total $ (204,112) § (231,697) $ (32,677)

(1) Represents financial assets and liabilities for which the fair value option was elected.
(2) Represents foreign currency remeasurement on investments, cash and deposits primarily denominated in Euros.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments

In addition to the above disclosures regarding financial assets or liabilities which are recorded at fair value, U.S. GAAP requires
disclosure of fair value about all financial instruments. The following disclosure of estimated fair value of financial instruments
was determined by the Company using available market information and appropriate valuation methodologies. Considerable
judgment is necessary to interpret market data and develop estimated fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are
not necessarily indicative of the amounts the Company could realize on disposition of the financial instruments. The use of different
market assumptions and/or estimation methodologies may have a material effect on estimated fair value.

The following table presents the principal amount, carrying value and fair value of certain financial assets and liabilities as of
December 31, 2015 and 2014 (dollars in thousands):

December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Principal / ) Principal / .

Notional Carrying Notional Carrying

Amount Value Fair Value Amount Value Fair Value
Financial assets:"
Real estate debt investments, net $ 555,354 § 501,474  § 594,698 $ 1,187,316 $ 1,067,667 $ 1,066,911
Real estate debt investments, held for sale 225,037 224,677 224,677 — — —
Real estate securities, available for sale® 1,285,643 702,110 702,110 1,532,891 878,514 878,514
Derivative assets®® 4,173,872 116 116 3,848,859 3,247 3,247
Financial liabilities: "
Mortgage and other notes payable $ 7,297,081 $ 7,164,576  $ 7175374 $ 8,453,625 $ 8327509 $ 8,331,170
Credit facilities 662,053 652,704 652,704 732,780 718,759 718,759
CDO bonds payable®® 436,491 307,601 307,601 560,959 390,068 390,068
Securitization bonds payable — — — 41,831 41,746 41,929
Exchangeable senior notes 31,360 29,038 50,121 45,588 41,008 82,443
Junior subordinated notes®® 280,117 183,893 183,893 280,117 215,172 215,172
Derivative liabilities®® 2,225,750 103,293 103,293 318,726 17,915 17,915
Borrowings of properties held for sale 2,214,305 2,195,975 2,200,686 N/A N/A N/A

(1) The fair value of other financial instruments not included in this table is estimated to approximate their carrying value.

(2) Refer to “Determination of Fair Value” above for disclosures of methodologies used to determine fair value.

(3) Derivative assets and liabilities exclude timing swaps with an aggregate notional amount of $28.0 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014.
(4) The fair value option has been elected for these liabilities.

Disclosure about fair value of financial instruments is based on pertinent information available to management as of the
reporting date. Although management is not aware of any factors that would significantly affect fair value, such amounts have
not been comprehensively revalued for purposes of these consolidated financial statements since that date and current estimates of
fair value may differ significantly from the amounts presented herein.

Real Estate Debt Investments

For CRE debt investments, fair value was approximated by comparing the current yield to the estimated yield for newly originated
loans with similar credit risk or the market yield at which a third party might expect to purchase such investment. Fair value was
determined assuming fully-extended maturities regardless of structural or economic tests required to achieve such extended
maturities. For any CRE debt investments that are deemed impaired, carrying value approximates fair value. The fair value of
CRE debt investments held for sale is determined based on the expected sales price. These fair value measurements of CRE debt
are generally based on unobservable inputs and, as such, are classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Mortgage and Other Notes Payable

For mortgage and other notes payable, the Company primarily uses rates currently available with similar terms and remaining
maturities to estimate fair value. These measurements are determined using comparable U.S. Treasury rates as of the end of the
reporting period or market credit spreads over the rate payable on fixed rate U.S. Treasury of like maturities. These fair value
measurements are based on observable inputs, and as such, are classified as Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. For the borrowings
of properties held for sale, the Company uses available market information, which includes quoted market prices or recent
transactions, if available, to estimate their fair value and are, therefore, based on observable inputs, and as such, are classified as
Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.
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Securitization Bonds Payable

Securitization bonds payable are valued using quotations from nationally recognized financial institutions that generally acted as
underwriter for the transactions. These quotations are not adjusted and are generally based on observable inputs that can be
validated, and as such, are classified as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Credit Facilities

As of the reporting date, the Company believes the carrying value of its credit facilities approximates fair value. These fair value
measurements are based on observable inputs, and as such, are classified as Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

Exchangeable Senior Notes

For the exchangeable senior notes, the Company uses available market information, which includes quoted market prices or recent
transactions, if available, to estimate their fair value and are, therefore, based on observable inputs, and as such, are classified as
Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

15. Risk Management and Derivative Activities
Derivatives

The Company uses derivative instruments primarily to manage interest rate risk and such derivatives are not considered speculative.
These derivative instruments are typically in the form of interest rate swap, cap and foreign currency forward agreements and
the primary objective is to minimize interest rate risks associated with investment and financing activities. The counterparties of
these arrangements are major financial institutions with which the Company may also have other financial relationships. The
Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-performance by these counterparties and it monitors their financial
condition; however, the Company currently does not anticipate that any of the counterparties will fail to meet their obligations.

The following tables present derivative instruments that were not designated as hedges under U.S. GAAP as of December 31,2015
and 2014 (dollars in thousands):

. Fair Value Range of
N Notional Net Asset Fixed LIBOR / .
umber Amount (Liability) Forward Rate Range of Maturity

As of December 31, 2015:
Interest rate caps 14 $ 4,173,872 $ 116 2.50% - 5.00% January 2016 - December 2017
Interest rate swaps - N-Star CDOs 9 222,510 (7321) @ 5.02%-5.25% January 2017 - July 2018
Interest rate swaps - other 2 2,003,240 (95,972) 3.39% -4.17% July 2023 - December 2029

Total 25 $ 6,399,622 $ (103,177)
As of December 31, 2014:
Interest rate caps 21 $ 3,808,234 $ 2,131 2.50% - 5.00% January 2015 - December 2017
Interest rate swaps - N-Star CDOs 10 235,929 (17,707) @ 5.00%-5.25% June 2015 - July 2018
Interest rate swaps - other 2 82,797 (208) 0.62% - 5.00% January 2016 - July 2023

Total 33 $ 4,126,960 $ (15,784)

(1)  Excludes timing swaps with a notional amount of $28.0 million as of December 31, 2015 and 2014.

(2) Interest rate swaps in consolidated N-Star CDOs are liabilities and are only subject to the credit risks of the respective CDO transaction. As the interest rate
swaps are senior to all the liabilities of the respective CDO and the fair value of each of the CDO’s investments exceeded the fair value of the CDO’s derivative
liabilities, a credit valuation adjustment was not recorded.

The change in number and notional amount of derivative instruments from December 31, 2014 relates to derivatives entered into
at the corporate level and in connection with new acquisitions, offset by contractual notional amortization and the maturity of a
corporate interest rate cap and floor. The Company had no derivative financial instruments that were designated as hedges in
qualifying hedging relationships as of December 31, 2015 and 2014.
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The following table presents the fair value of derivative instruments, as well as their classification on the consolidated balance
sheets, as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 (dollars in thousands):

Balance Sheet December 31,
Location 2015 2014
Interest rate caps Derivative assets $ 116 $ 2,131
Interest rate swaps/foreign currency forwards Derivative liabilities $ 103,293  § 17,915

The following table presents the effect of derivative instruments in the consolidated statements of operations for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 (dollars in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,
Statements of Operations
Location 2015 2014 2013
Amount of gain (loss) recognized in earnings (loss):
Unrealized gain (loss) on
Adjustment to fair value of interest rate swaps and caps investments and other $ (87475 $ 8,184 § 33,730
Unrealized gain (loss) on
Net cash payment on derivatives investments and other $ (11,878) $ (16,882) $§ (52,731)
Interest expense—mortgage and
Amount of swap gain (loss) reclassified from OCI into earnings corporate borrowings $ 934) $ 915) $  (4,885)
Reclassification of swap gain (loss) into gain (loss) from Gain (loss) from
deconsolidation of N-Star CDOs (refer to Note 17) deconsolidation of N-Star CDOs ~ $ — § — § (15,246)
NorthStar Europe
Amount of gain (loss) recognized in earnings (loss):
Income (loss) from discontinued
Adjustment to fair value of interest rate swaps and caps operations $ (8,659 $ — § =
Income (loss) from discontinued
Adjustments to fair value of foreign currency forwards operations $  (1,933) $ — $ —
Income (loss) from discontinued
Net cash payment on derivatives operations $ (214) $ — § =

The Company’s counterparties held no cash margin as collateral against the Company’s derivative contracts as of December 31,
2015 and 2014. However, subsequent to year end, the Company posted $74.0 million of collateral related to an interest rate swap.

Risk Management

Concentrations of credit risk arise when a number of tenants, operators or issuers related to the Company’s investments are engaged in
similar business activities or located in the same geographic region to be similarly affected by changes in economic conditions. The
Company monitors its portfolios to identify potential concentrations of credit risks. With respect to the Company’s hotel
portfolio, for the year ended December 31, 2015, Island and Marriott Hotel Services, Inc. accounted for 72.5% and 27.5%,
respectively, of the Company’s hotel related income and 27.8% and 10.6%, respectively, of the Company’s total revenue. In
addition, with respect to the Company’s healthcare portfolio, for the year ended December 31, 2015, Senior Lifestyle Holding
Company, LLC was the healthcare operator as it related to 73.2% of the Company’s resident fee income and 9.7% of the Company’s
total revenue. Otherwise, the Company has no other tenant or operator that generates 10% or more of its total revenue. The
Company believes the remainder of its portfolios are reasonably well diversified and do not contain any unusual concentrations of
credit risks.

16. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company is involved in various litigation matters arising in the ordinary course of its business. Although the Company is
unable to predict with certainty the eventual outcome of any litigation, in the opinion of management, the current legal proceedings
are not expected to have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

Guaranty Agreements

In connection with certain hotel acquisitions, the Company entered into guaranty agreements with various hotel franchisors,
pursuant to which the Company guaranteed the franchisees’ obligations, including payments of franchise fees and marketing fees,
for the term of the agreements, which expires from 2029 to 2034. As of December 31, 2015, the aggregate amount remaining under
these guarantees is $5.5 million.
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In connection with the NRE Spin-off, the NRE Senior Notes are senior unsubordinated and unsecured primary obligations
of NorthStar Europe and the Company continues to guarantee payments subsequent to the NRE Spin-off.

Other

Effective January 1, 2005, the Company adopted the NorthStar Realty Limited Partnership 401(k) Retirement Plan (the “401(k)
Plan”) for its employees. Eligible employees under the 401(k) Plan may begin participation on the first day of the month after
they have completed 30 days of employment. The Company’s matching contribution is calculated as 100% of the first 3% and
50% of the next 2% of participant’s eligible earnings contributed (utilizing earnings that are not in excess of the amount
established by the Internal Revenue Service). The Company’s aggregate matching contribution for the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 was $0.1 million, $1.0 million and $0.8 million, respectively. The decrease from prior
years is due to most of the Company’s existing employees at the time of the NSAM Spin-off becoming employees of NSAM.

Obligations Under Ground Leases

The following table presents minimum future rental payments under the Company’s contractual ground lease obligations for
certain building leaseholds as of December 31, 2015 (dollars in thousands):

Years Ending December 31: Total®

2016 $ 4,984
2017 5,034
2018 5,149
2019 5,086
2020 5,139
Thereafter 122,690
Total minimum lease payments ~_$ 148,082

(1) Represents 55 ground leases of which 20 leases ground rent are paid directly by the tenants/operators.

17.  Variable Interest Entities

As of December 31, 2015, the Company has identified certain consolidated and unconsolidated VIEs. Assets of each of the VIEs
may only be used to settle obligations of the respective VIE. Creditors of each of the VIEs have no recourse to the general credit
of the Company.

Consolidated VIEs
N-Star CDOs

As of December 31, 2015, the Company serves as collateral manager and/or special servicer for N-Star CDOs I and IX which are
primarily collateralized by CRE securities. The Company consolidates these entities as the Company has the power to direct the
activities that most significantly impact the economic performance of these CDOs, and therefore, continues to be the primary
beneficiary.

The Company is not contractually required to provide financial support to any of these consolidated VIEs, however, the Company,
in its capacity as collateral manager and/or special servicer, may in its sole discretion provide support such as protective and other
advances it deems appropriate. The Company did not provide any other financial support to any of its consolidated VIEs for the
years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013.

Unconsolidated VIEs
N-Star CDOs

The Company delegated the collateral management rights for N-Star CDOs IV, VI and VIII and the CapLease CDO on
September 30, 2013 and the CSE CDO on December 31, 2013 to a third-party collateral manager/collateral manager delegate who
is entitled to a percentage of the senior and subordinate collateral management fees. The Company continues to receive fees
as named collateral manager or collateral manager delegate and retained administrative responsibilities. The Company evaluated
the fees paid to the third-party collateral manager/collateral manager delegate and concluded that such fees represented a variable
interest in the deconsolidated loan CDOs and that the third party was functioning as a principal. The Company determined that
the delegation of the Company’s collateral management power in the CDOs was a VIE reconsideration event and concluded that
these CDOs were still VIEs as the equity investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest. The Company
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then reconsidered if it was the primary beneficiary of such VIEs and determined that it no longer has the power to direct the
activities that most significantly impact the economic performance of these CDOs, which includes but is not limited to
selling collateral, and therefore is no longer the primary beneficiary of such CDOs. As a result, the Company does not
consolidate the assets and liabilities for N-Star CDOs IV, VI and VIII, CSE CDO and the CapLease CDO. In September 2015,
N-Star CDO IV was liquidated.

In March 2014, the Company determined it no longer had the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the
economic performance of N-Star CDO V due to the ability of a single party to remove the Company as collateral manager as a
result of an existing event of default. The Company was no longer the primary beneficiary of N-Star CDO V, and as a result, in
the first quarter 2014, the Company deconsolidated the assets and liabilities of this CDO.

In May 2014, the Company determined it no longer had the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the economic
performance of N-Star CDO III due to the ability of a single party to remove the Company as collateral manager as a result of
an existing event of default. The Company was no longer the primary beneficiary of N-Star CDO III, and as a result, in the
second quarter 2014, the Company deconsolidated the assets and liabilities of this CDO.

Similar events of default in the future, if they occur, could cause the Company to deconsolidate additional CDO
financing transactions.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, the deconsolidation of N-Star CDOs III and V resulted in an aggregate non-cash
realized loss on deconsolidation of $31.4 million recorded in the consolidated statement of operations, which was the
result of the deconsolidation of an aggregate $192.5 million of assets, $149.0 million of liabilities, net of $8.8 million of fair
value of N-Star CDO bonds recorded that no longer eliminated in consolidation and the reclassification of $3.3 million of
unrealized gain to loss from deconsolidation.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, the deconsolidation of N-Star CDOs IV, VI, VIII and CapLease CDO resulted in an
aggregate non-cash realized loss on deconsolidation of $299.8 million recorded in the consolidated statement of operations,
which was the result of the deconsolidation of an aggregate $1.8 billion of assets, $1.4 billion of liabilities, net of
$223.7 million of fair value of N-Star CDO bonds and equity recorded that no longer eliminated in consolidation and the
reclassification of $3.3 million of unrealized gain and $15.2 million of OCI swap loss to loss from deconsolidation.

Other Unconsolidated VIEs

Based on management’s analysis, the Company is not the primary beneficiary of the VIEs summarized below and as such, these
VIEs are not consolidated into the Company’s financial statements as of December 31, 2015. These unconsolidated VIEs are
summarized as follows:

Real Estate Debt Investments

The Company identified three CRE debt investments with an aggregate carrying value of $60.4 million as variable interests in a
VIE. The Company determined that it is not the primary beneficiary of such VIEs, and as such, the VIEs are not consolidated
in the Company’s financial statements. For all other CRE debt investments, the Company determined that these investments are
not VIEs and, as such, the Company continues to account for all CRE debt investments as loans.

Real Estate Securities

The Company identified two CRE securities, other than investments in N-Star CDOs, with an aggregate fair value of
$46.1 million as variable interests in VIEs. In connection with certain CMBS investments, the Company became the controlling
class and/or was named directing certificate holder of a securitization it did not sponsor. For one of these securitizations, an
affiliate of NSAM was appointed as special servicer. The special servicing business for certain securitizations was transferred to
NSAM in connection with the NSAM Spin-off. The Company determined each securitization was a VIE. However, the
Company determined at that time and continues to believe that it does not currently or potentially hold a significant interest in
any of these securitizations and, therefore, is not the primary beneficiary.
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NorthStar Realty Finance Trusts

The Company owns all of the common stock of the Trusts. The Trusts were formed to issue trust preferred securities. The Company
determined that the holders of the trust preferred securities were the primary beneficiaries of the Trusts. As a result, the Company
did not consolidate the Trusts and has accounted for the investment in the common stock of the Trusts under the equity method.
As of December 31, 2015, the Company’s carrying value and maximum exposure to loss related to its investment in the Trusts is
$3.7 million and is recorded in investments in unconsolidated ventures on the consolidated balance sheets.

PE Investments

In May 2015, in connection with the Company’s investment in PE Investment XIII, the Company determined that two of the
underlying funds are VIEs. The Company determined that the funds are a VIE as there is insufficient equity at risk in each limited
partnership and the general partner in each fund has the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the funds’
economic performance as the general partner performs such activities. As of December 31, 2015, the Company’s investment in
both funds is $32.2 million. As of December 31, 2015, the amount of expected future contributions to both funds is $2.5 million.

Summary of Unconsolidated VIEs

The following table presents the classification, carrying value and maximum exposure of unconsolidated VIEs as of
December 31, 2015 (dollars in thousands):

Junior Real Estate Real Estate
Subordinated Debt Securities, Maximum
Notes, at Investments, Available PE EXPOSU(l;?
Fair Value Net for Sale Investments Total to Loss
Real estate debt investments, net $ — 3 60,443  $ — 3 — 60,443 § 60,443
Investments in unconsolidated ventures 3,742 — — — 3,742 3,742
Investments in private equity funds, at fair value — — — 32,249 32,249 32,249
Real estate securities, available for sale:

N-Star CDO bonds — — 216,727 — 216,727 216,727
N-Star CDO equity — — 44,905 — 44,905 44,905
CMBS — — 46,074 — 46,074 46,074
Subtotal real estate securities, available for sale — — 307,706 — 307,706 307,706
Total assets 3,742 60,443 307,706 32,249 404,140 404,140
Junior subordinated notes, at fair value 183,893 — — — 183,893 NA
Total liabilities 183,893 — — — 183,893 NA
Net $ (180,151) $ 60,443  $ 307,706 $ 32249 8 220,247 $ 404,140

(1) The Company’s maximum exposure to loss as of December 31, 2015 would not exceed the carrying value of its investment.

The Company is not contractually required to provide financial support to any of its unconsolidated VIEs during the years ended
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 however, the Company, in its capacity as collateral manager/collateral manager delegate and/
or special servicer of the deconsolidated N-Star CDOs, may in its sole discretion provide support such as protective and other
advances it deems appropriate. As of December 31, 2015, there were no explicit arrangements or implicit variable interests that
could require the Company to provide financial support to any of its unconsolidated VIEs.
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18.  Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

The following tables presents selected quarterly information, which reflects prior period reclassifications related to discontinued
operations, for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 (dollars in thousands):

Three Months Ended
December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,
2015 2015 2015 2015

Property and other revenues $ 474355 §$ 486,776  $ 455,728 $ 400,577
Net interest income on debt and securities 38,511 59,105 57,529 63,660
Expenses 594,327 570,040 545,566 500,068
Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated ventures 47,339 60,359 57,736 53,643
Income (loss) from continuing operations (65,778) (91,947) 211 (1,199)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 5,756 (16,760) (84,464) (13,086)
Net income (loss) (60,022) (108,616) (84,342) (14,287)
Net income (loss) attributable to NorthStar Realty
Finance Corp. common stockholders (72,282) (126,111) (97,502) (31,602)
Earnings (loss) per share:"?

Basic $ 0.39) $ (0.69) $ (0.56) $ 0.20)

Diluted $ 0.39) $ (0.69) $ (0.56) S 0.20)
(1) The total for the year may differ from the sum of the quarters as a result of weighting.
(2) Adjusted for the Reverse Split effected on November 1, 2015.

Three Months Ended
December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,
2014 2014 2014 2014

Property and other revenues $ 295,085 $ 194,149 § 119,357  § 70,909
Net interest income on debt and securities 72,046 77,936 72,761 75,396
Expenses 463,494 296,515 191,711 110,567
Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated ventures 55,423 41,694 33,958 33,978
Income (loss) from continuing operations (81,991) (17,511) (59,916) (116,967)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (28,890) (9,100) (572) (6,139)
Net income (loss) (110,881) (26,609) (60,488) (123,108)
Net income (loss) attributable to NorthStar Realty
Finance Corp. common stockholders (116,453) (46,527) (73,566) (134,961)
Earnings (loss) per share:"?

Basic $ 0.93) $ 0.46) $ (0.84) $ (1.68)

Diluted $ 0.93) $ 0.46) $ 0.84) $ (1.68)

(1) The total for the year may differ from the sum of the quarters as a result of weighting.
(2) Adjusted for the Reverse Split effected on November 1, 2015.

19. Segment Reporting

The Company currently conducts its business through the following five segments (excluding the asset management business and
the European real estate business which the Company spun off on June 30, 2014 and October 31, 2015, respectively, which are
no longer separate operating segments), based on how management reviews and manages its business:

*  Real Estate - The real estate business concentrates on various types of investments in commercial real estate located
throughout the United States that includes healthcare, hotel, manufactured housing communities, net lease, multifamily and
multi-tenant office properties. In addition, it includes certain healthcare properties located outside of the United States and
PE Investments diversified by property type and geography.

132



NORTHSTAR REALTY FINANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

e Healthcare - The healthcare properties are comprised of a diverse portfolio of medical office buildings, senior housing,
skilled nursing and other healthcare properties. The majority of the healthcare properties are medical office buildings
and properties structured under a net lease to healthcare operators. In addition, the Company owns senior operating
facilities which include independent living facilities and healthcare properties that operate through management
agreements with independent third-party operators, predominantly through RIDEA structures that permit the Company,
through a TRS, to have direct exposure to resident fee income and incur customary related operating expenses. In
February 2016, the Company entered into an agreement to sell its 60% interest in a $899 million Senior Housing
Portfolio for $535 million, subject to proration and adjustment. The Company expects the buyer to assume its portion
of the $648 million of related mortgage financing. The Company expects to receive $150 million of net proceeds upon
completion of the sale in March 2016. Such asset and related liability is classified as held for sale on the Company’s
consolidated balance sheet.

* Hotel - The hotel portfolio is a geographically diverse portfolio primarily comprised of extended stay hotels and
premium branded select service hotels primarily located in major metropolitan markets with the majority affiliated
with top hotel brands.

e Manufactured Housing - The manufactured housing portfolio consists of communities that lease pad rental sites for
placement of factory built homes located throughout the United States. In addition, the portfolio includes manufactured
homes and receivables related to the financing of homes sold to residents. Currently, the Company is exploring the
sale of its manufactured housing portfolio and such assets and related liabilities are classified as held for sale on the
Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

e Net Lease - The net lease properties are primarily industrial, office and retail properties typically under net leases to
corporate tenants.

e Multifamily - The multifamily portfolio primarily focuses on properties located in suburban markets that are well suited
to capture the formation of new households. Currently, the Company is exploring the sale of its multifamily portfolio
and in February 2016, the Company entered in and is finalizing agreements to sell up to ten multifamily properties for
$311 million with $210 million of related mortgage financing expected to be assumed as part of the transaction. The
Company expects to receive $91 million of net proceeds and continue to explore the sale of the remaining two properties.
Such assets and related liabilities are classified as held for sale on the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.

e Multi-tenant Office - The Company pursues the acquisition of multi-tenant office properties currently focused on the
western United States.

*  PE Investments - The real estate business also includes investments (directly or indirectly in joint ventures) owning
PE Investments managed by institutional quality sponsors and diversified by property type and geography. In February
2016, the Company entered into an agreement to sell substantially all of its interest in PE Investment II for
$184.1 million of proceeds and is exploring the sale of its remaining PE Investments.

Commercial Real Estate Debt - The CRE debt business is focused on originating, acquiring and asset managing senior and
subordinate debt investments secured primarily by commercial real estate and includes first mortgage loans, subordinate
mortgage and mezzanine loans and participations in such loans and preferred equity interests. The Company may from
time to time take title to collateral in connection with a CRE debt investment as REO which would be included in the CRE
debt business. In February 2016, the Company sold or committed to sell seven loans with a total principal amount of $225.0
million at par, with $46.9 million of proceeds used to pay down the Company’s loan facility, resulting in $178.2 million of
net proceeds.

Commercial Real Estate Securities - The CRE securities business is predominately comprised of N-Star CDO bonds and
N-Star CDO equity of deconsolidated N-Star CDOs and includes other securities, mostly CMBS meaning each asset is a
pool backed by a large number of commercial real estate loans. The Company also invests in opportunistic CRE securities
such as an investment in a “B-piece” CMBS. In February 2016, the Company sold certain CRE securities for $53.9 million
of net proceeds.

N-Star CDOs - The Company historically originated or acquired CRE debt and securities investments that were
predominantly financed through permanent, non-recourse CDOs. The Company’s remaining consolidated CDOs are past
the reinvestment period and given the nature of these transactions, these CDOs are amortizing over time as the underlying
assets pay down or are sold. The Company has been winding down its legacy CDO business and investing in a broad and
diverse range of CRE assets. As a result, this distinct business is a significantly smaller portion of its business today than

133



NORTHSTAR REALTY FINANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

in the past. As of December 31, 2015, only N-Star securities CDOs I and IX continue to be consolidated. Refer to Note
17 for further disclosure regarding deconsolidated N-Star CDOs. The Company continues to receive collateral management
fees related to administrative responsibilities for deconsolidated N-Star CDO financing transactions, which are recorded
in other revenue and included in the N-Star CDOs segment.

*  Corporate - The corporate segment includes NSAM management fees incurred, corporate level interest income and interest
expense and general and administrative expenses.

The Company primarily generates revenue from rental income from its real estate properties, operating income from healthcare
and hotel properties permitted by the RIDEA and net interest income on the CRE debt and securities portfolios. Additionally,
the Company records equity in earnings of unconsolidated ventures, including from PE Investments. The Company’s
income is primarily derived through the difference between revenue and the cost at which the Company is able to finance its
investments. The Company may also acquire investments which generate attractive returns without any leverage.

Prior to the NSAM Spin-off, the Company generated fee income from asset management activities. The asset management
segment represents the consolidated results of operations and balance sheet of such asset management business which was
transferred to NSAM in connection with the NSAM Spin-off. Amounts related to the asset management business are reported
in discontinued operations and include an allocation of indirect expenses related to managing the NSAM Sponsored
Companies and owning NorthStar Securities, including salaries, equity-based compensation and other general and
administrative expenses (primarily occupancy and other costs) based on an estimate had the asset management business been
run as an independent entity.

Prior to the NRE Spin-off, the Company generated rental and escalation income from its European properties. The European
real estate segment represents the consolidated results of operations and balance sheet of such European real estate business
which was transferred to NRE in connection with the NRE Spin-off. Amounts related to the European real estate business are
reported in discontinued operations.

The following tables present segment reporting for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 (dollars in thousands):

Statement of Operations: (]:Vﬁ%?‘r”

Real CRE CRE CRE European Consolidated
Year Ended December 31, 2015 Estate" Debt Securities ~ Securities  Corporate Real Estate® Total
Rental and escalation income $ 732,123 $ — 3 — 3 302 $ — $ — $ 732,425
Hotel related income 784,151 — — — — — 784,151
Resident fee income 271,394 — — — — — 271,394
Net interest income on debt and securities 10,546 88,893 62,235 44,393 12,738 © — 218,805
Interest expense—mortgage and corporate borrowings 433,023 — — — 53,385 — 486,408
Income (loss) before equity in earnings (losses) and
income tax benefit (expense) (163,974) © 86,476 85,618 (15,612) (355,973) 7 — (363,465)
Equity in earnings (losses) of unconsolidated ventures 218,766 — — — 311 — 219,077
Income tax benefit (expense) (13,776) (555) 6 — — — (14,325)
Income (loss) from continuing operations 41,016 85,921 85,624 (15,612) (355,662) — (158,713)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations (11) — — — — (108,543) ® (108,554)
Net income (loss) 41,005 85,921 85,624 (15,612) (355,662) (108,543) ® (267,267)
Balance Sheet:
December 31, 2015:
Investments in private equity funds, at fair value 1,101,650 — — — — — 1,101,650
Investments in unconsolidated ventures 129,457 8,526 — — 17,754 — 155,737
Total Assets 13,871,796 66,527 913,402 422,953 128,367 — 15,403,045

(1) Includes $37.6 million of rental and escalation income and $2.3 million of net income from a portfolio of healthcare assets located in the United Kingdom.

(2) Based on CDO financing transactions that were primarily collateralized by CRE securities and may include other types of investments. $5.2 million of
collateral management fees were earned from CDO financing transactions for the year ended December 31, 2015, of which $2.3 million was eliminated in
consolidation. The eliminated amounts are recorded as other revenue in the Corporate segment and as an expense in the N-Star CDO segment.

(3) Represents the consolidated statements of operations of NRE reported in discontinued operations and includes an allocation of indirect expenses from the
Company (refer to Note 9).

(4) Primarily represents interest income earned from notes receivable on manufactured homes and interest income on loans in the Griffin-American portfolio.

(5) Represents income earned from CDO bonds repurchased at a discount, recognized using the effective interest method, that is eliminated in consolidation.
The corresponding interest expense is recorded in net interest income in the N-Star CDOs segment.

(6) Primarily relates to depreciation and amortization of $454.8 million.

(7) Includes management fees to NSAM of $198.7 million.

(8) Primarily relates to transaction costs of $109.5 million and depreciation and amortization of $42.4 million.
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Statement of Operations:

Year Ended December 31, 2014
Rental and escalation income
Hotel related income

Resident fee income

Net interest income on debt and
securities

Interest expense—mortgage and
corporate borrowings

Income (loss) before equity in
earnings (losses) and income tax
benefit (expense)

Equity in earnings (losses) of
unconsolidated ventures

Income tax benefit (expense)

Income (loss) from continuing
operations

Income (loss) from discontinued
operations

Net income (loss)
Balance Sheet:

December 31, 2014:

Investments in private equity funds, at

fair value

Investments in unconsolidated ventures

Total Assets

NORTHSTAR REALTY FINANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES

N-Star

CDOs"
Real CRE CRE CRE Asset European Consolidated

Estate Debt Securities  Securities  Corporate Management® Real Estate® Total

$ 348,666 $ — 3 — $ 1285 § — $ — $ — $ 349,951
237,039 — — — — — — 237,039
77,516 — = — = = — 77,516
5951 @ 145,159 82,246 63,216 1,567 © — — 298,139
183,042 = = = 48,852 = — 231,894
(170,495) @ 139,581 101,691 (185,730) (309,879) — — (424,832)
162,126 2,644 = = 283 = — 165,053
(15,904) (70) (205) (352) (75) — — (16,606)
(24,273) 142,155 101,486 (186,082)  (309,671) = = (276,385)
(925) — — — — (7,203) (36,573) 7 (44,701)
(25,198) 142,155 101,486  (186,082)  (309,671) (7,203) (36,573) 7 (321,086)
962,038 $ — s — 3 — 3 — $ — $ — $ 962,038
184,026 8,526 = = 15,225 = — 207,777
12,771,368 1,158,947 417,884 506,616 163,264 — 160,633 15,178,712

(1) Based on CDO financing transactions that were primarily collateralized by CRE securities and may include other types of investments. $5.9 million of
collateral management fees were earned from CDO financing transactions for the year ended December 31, 2014, of which $2.6 million was eliminated in
consolidation. The eliminated amounts are recorded as other revenue in the Corporate segment and as an expense in the N-Star CDO segment.

(2) Represents the consolidated statements of operations of NSAM reported in discontinued operations and includes an allocation of indirect expenses from the

Company (refer to Note 9).

(3) Represents the consolidated statements of operations of NRE reported in discontinued operations and includes an allocation of indirect expenses from the

Company (refer to Note 9).

(4) Primarily represents interest income earned from notes receivable on manufactured homes.
(5) Represents income earned from CDO bonds repurchased at a discount, recognized using the effective interest method, that is eliminated in consolidation.

The corresponding interest expense is recorded in net interest income in the N-Star CDOs segment.
(6) Includes depreciation and amortization of $182.1 million.
(7) Primarily relates to transaction costs of $27.5 million.
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Statement of Operations: N-Star CDOs"

Real CRE CRE CRE CRE Asset Consolidated
Year Ended December 31, 2013 Estate Debt Securities Debt Securities Corporate Management® Total
Rental and escalation income $ 202,765 $ 260 $ — $ 30947 § 1,152 $ — $ — $ 235,124
Net interest income on debt and 5 .
securities 833 @ 48,594 38,160 50,669 84,600 43,501 @ — 266,357

Interest expense—mortgage and
corporate borrowings 76,388 — — 9,876 — 54,763 — 141,027

Income (loss) before equity in
earnings (losses) and income tax

benefit (expense) (5,186) © 50,632 85,236 (312,148) 96,380 (78,540) — (163,626)
Equity in earnings (losses) of

unconsolidated ventures 88,949 3,594 — (817) — — — 91,726
Income tax benefit (expense) (7,249) — — — — — — (7,249)
Income (loss) from continuing

operations 76,514 54,226 85,236 (312,965) 96,380 (78,540) — (79,149)
Income (loss) from discontinued

operations (8,356) — — — — — (405) (8,761)
Net income (loss) 68,158 54,226 85,236 (312,965) 96,380 (78,540) (405) (87,910)

Balance Sheet:
December 31, 2013:

Investments in private equity funds, at

fair value $ 586,018 $ — S — 3 — 3 — 8 — $ — $ 586,018
Investments in unconsolidated ventures 113,735 14,222 — — — 14,383 — 142,340
Total Assets 3,343,402 1,211,079 413,184 — 733,528 627,148 31,709 6,360,050

(1) Based on CDO financing transactions that were primarily collateralized by CRE securities and may include other types of investments. $11.1 million of
collateral management fees were earned from CDO financing transactions for the year ended December 31, 2013, of which $10.4 million was eliminated in
consolidation. The eliminated amounts are recorded as other revenue in the Corporate segment and as an expense in the N-Star CDO segment.

(2) Represents the consolidated statements of operations of NSAM reported in discontinued operations and includes an allocation of indirect expenses from the
Company (refer to Note 9).

(3) Primarily represents interest income earned from notes receivable on manufactured homes and interest income on loans in the Griffin-American portfolio.

(4) Represents income earned from CDO bonds repurchased at a discount, recognized using the effective interest method, that is eliminated in consolidation.
The corresponding interest expense is recorded in net interest income in the N-Star CDOs segment.

(5) Includes depreciation and amortization of $75.8 million.
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20.  Supplemental Disclosures of Non-cash Investing and Financing Activities

The following table presents non-cash investing and financing activities for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013
(dollars in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013

Reclassification of operating real estate, net to asset held for sale $ 2,627,551 $ 22,323 § 30,063
Reclassification of mortgage note payable to liabilities held for sale 2,195,975 — 28,962
Net assets distributed in spin-off of European real estate business (refer to Note 9) 539,491 — —
Assumption of mortgage notes payable upon acquisition of operating real estate 273,023 870,871 —
Reclassification of operating real estate to intangible assets 247,602 160,511 25,497
Reclassification of CRE debt investment to held for sale 224,677 15,223 —
Reclassification of other assets to asset held for sale 57,323 — —
Reclassification of CRE debt investment and secured borrowing (refer to Note 10) 54,056 — —
Acquired assets and liabilities in connection with European real estate acquisitions 49,942 — —
Reclassification of intangible assets to asset held for sale 49,530 — —
Reclassification of deferred financing costs to mortgage notes and other payables 49,050 — —
Deferred purchase price for PE Investment XIV (refer to Note 5) 47,808 — —
Escrow deposit payable related to CRE debt investments 47,303 34,521 57,226
Reclassification of other liabilities to intangible liabilities 37,836 — —
Reduction of assets and liabilities held for sale via taking title 28,962 — —
Reclassification of other assets to operating real estate 25,577 — —
Conversion of Deferred LTIP Units to LTIP Units (refer to Note 13) 18,730 — —
Reclassification of escrow deposit payable to other liabilities 17,377 — —
Non-controlling interests—reallocation of interest in Operating Partnership (refer to Note 14,548

Conversion of exchangeable senior notes 13,590 320,304 74,778
Reclassification of deferred financing costs to credit facilities 9,525 — —
Dividends payable related to RSUs 3,548 — 2,128
Retirement of shares of common stock 2,001 — —
Contribution from non-controlling interest 1,461 75,428 —
Reclassification of deferred financing costs to exchangeable senior notes 384 — —
Non-cash related to PE Investments 218 15,581 17,473
Issuance of common stock in connection with the merger of Griffin-American — 1,075,930 —
Acquired assets in connection with the merger of Griffin-American — 503,784 —
Exchangeable senior notes exchanged for Senior Notes (refer to Note 8) — 296,382 —
Acquired liabilities in connection with the merger of Griffin-American — 229,015 —
Reclassification of operating real estate to other assets — 67,655 89,219
CRE debt investment payoff due from servicer — 64,092 —
Net assets distributed in spin-off of asset management business (refer to Note 9) — 39,709 —
Conversion of Old LTIP Units (refer to Note 11) — 18,611 10,129
Common stock related to transactions — 6,801 17,712
Real estate acquisition'” — — 135,361
Reduction of CRE debt investments'” — — 135,361
Assignment of mortgage note payable via sale — — 7,813
Increase in restricted cash” — — 2,730
Deferred purchase price for PE Investment III (refer to Note 5) — — 39,759
Reclassification of real estate debt investment to other assets — — 8,952
Equity component of exchangeable senior notes — — 45,740

(1) Non-cash activity occurred in connection with taking title to collateral.
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Cash Paid for Interest and Income Taxes

For the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014, and 2013, cash paid for interest on outstanding borrowings was $429.0 million,
$223.0 million and $158.9 million, respectively. The difference between interest expense on the consolidated statements of
operations and cash paid for interest is primarily due to reclassification of losses related to derivative instruments from OCI into
earnings and non-cash interest expense recorded on amortization of deferred financing costs related to borrowings. For the
years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, cash paid for income taxes was $26.5 million and $3.4 million, respectively. There
was an immaterial amount of cash paid for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2013.

21.  Subsequent Events
Dividends

On February 25, 2016, the Company declared a dividend of $0.40 per share of common stock, after giving effect to the Reverse
Split. The common stock dividend will be paid on March 11, 2016 to stockholders of record as of the close of business on March
7,2016. On January 28, 2016, the Company declared a dividend of $0.54688 per share of Series A preferred stock, $0.51563 per
share of Series B preferred stock, $0.55469 per share of Series C preferred stock, $0.53125 per share of Series D Preferred Stock
and $0.54688 per share of Series E Preferred Stock. Dividends were paid on all series of preferred stock on February 16,2016 to
stockholders of record as of the close of business on February 8, 2016.

Strategic Initiatives

On February 25, 2016, the Company announced that its board of directors formed a special committee and the special committee
retained UBS Investment Bank as its financial advisor to explore a potential recombination transaction with NSAM. The special
committee will be comprised solely of independent directors that are not on the board of directors of NSAM, including the new
independent director appointed to the board of directors effective March 1, 2016. There can be no assurance that the exploration
of corporate strategic initiatives will result in the identification or consummation of any strategic transaction or initiative.
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2015
Loan loss reserves

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Allowance for unbilled rent receivable

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014
Loan loss reserves

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Allowance for unbilled rent receivable

For the Year Ended December 31, 2013
Loan loss reserves

Allowance for doubtful accounts
Allowance for unbilled rent receivable

L. Charged to .
Beginning Costs and . Ending
Balance Expenses Deductions Balance
$ 5,599 2240 7 — 8 7839
2,020 6,678 (4,380) 4,318
4,037 — (3,921) 116
$ 11,656 $ 8,918 $ $ (8,301) $ 12,273
$ 280 S 2719 Vs $ — s 559
1,151 3,220 (2,351) 2,020
307 7,638 (3,908) 4,037
$ 4338 8§ 13,577 $ $ (6,259) $ 11,656
$ 156,699  § (8,786) $ $ (145,033)  $ 2,880
1,526 784 (1,159) 1,151
— 354 (47) 307
$ 158,225 § (7,648) $ $ (146,239) § 4,338

(1)  Excludes $0.8 million of provision for loan losses relating to manufactured housing notes receivables recorded in assets of properties held for sale

for the year ended December 31, 2015 and $1.0 million recorded in other assets for the year ended December 31, 2014, respectively.
(2)  Includes $1.2 million of provision for loan losses relating to loans held for sale for the year ended December 31, 2015.

139



s1eak 6¢ #1-920 780°01 4974 915°01 8706 8811 8T 0006 8811 918°L NI ‘9[[IAUOSIOPUIH
SIBdA 6¢ #1-920 YOE'LYy T8L°T 980°6% 180°1¥ S00°8 062 16L°0% S00°8 9€9°9¢ 0D “Aopoa10)
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 8Er'El wy 016°¢l S9T'11 S¥9°C or STTII SH9°T 206'91 X1 ‘00sLL{
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 00T°€€ 85€°T 855 e 85S°E — 80T (S — SIS'HE () NI “d[[IAsueAq
s1eak 6¢ #1-02Q #90°CT LEY 10S°CT 10S°C1 — 6€ 9% Tl — LEY'EL (e I ‘Bqeuedsyg
s1eak 6¢ #1-020 061°8 85T 8718 SLS'L €LS ST 0S8°L €LS S9T'L XL ‘stuug
s1eak 6¢ #1-92Q €8L°LT 8¥L 1€5°81 1€5°81 — 69 9781 — 966°6 (e XL ‘osed 19
s1eak () LO-AeIN L8EY 961 €85y 96 619°¢ €9 106 619°¢ 201°¢ X1, ‘Uoj3uIry Iseq
SIBAA 6¢ #1-92a S18°6 90¥ 12201 S¥T'6 9L6 6T 91T'6 9L6 y1¥°6 XL ‘01080
SIBAA 6¢ v1-000d 019°01 SOt SIOTI SLI6 0r8°1 9€1 6£0°6 0r8°T 088°6 I ‘saure[d soq
S1BdA 6¢ SI-Ue[/p1-09d  1+9°€T 0L6 119'%¢C 879°1C £96°C 011 8€S°1T £96°C 1€Y1 VD “Imedaq
s1eak 6¢ 71-00Qd 9LI'TI LOY €8S°T1 6£8°01 L 091 6L9°01 YL vL8°E DS ‘erlqunjo)
s1eak 6¢ #1-92Q 8LLYI 9IS ¥6T°S1 #SSEL 0rL1 81T 9€€°El oLl S€9°9 HO ‘Pue[PAd]D
SIBAA 6¢ ¥1-99a 07°TE 110°T cIv'ee $€T'8T 6LI°S 1L6 €9T°LT 6LIS £7S°TT VO “®ISIA B[Ny
SIBdA 6¢ #1-920 858°+C 0L0°T 876°ST €L6YT $S6 8L S68°7C Ss6 — HO “aypod1[[1y)
1Bk 6¢ #1-920 696°L 79¢ 1€€°8 STT'L 901°T 44 €0T°L 901°T 889 1 ‘uSredwey)
s1eak 6¢ #1-020 ¥9L°9T S80°1 678°LT TLS9T LLTT 811 ¥S¥9T LLTT 6L1°61 AN KD uosie)
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 S19°Tr ELY1 8801 86Ty 901°1 SLe LOLTY 901°1 TLy'ee NI ‘outre)
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 0589 8T¢ 8LIL 8LIL — 44 9G1°L — 008°9 (© N ‘PeQs|Ie)
SIBdA 6¢ #1-920 L9T'6 e 8LS6 S00°6 €LS 8T LL6'8 €LS 0LS*S AV uekig
SIedA 6¢ #1-920 6£8°91 €LS TIP'LI #5091 85€°1 €L 186°S1 8S€E°T 6T9°L1 NI ‘Singsumorgf
S1eak 6¢ #1-920 16L°1T L08 865°CT STE0T €LTT €9 79T°0C €LTT T6T°91 VO ‘poomuaig
s1eak 6¢ #1-020 019°81 9€9 9T6l 9T6l — 16€°C S$8°91 — €TLTI (¢ 14 ‘uojuopeIg
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-99@ TIzol 01 #19°01 #19°01 — 88T 9zE01 — — (o T4 ‘yorag uojukog
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 ST8'8 LLE 20T°6 8958 €9 85T 01¢'8 €9 718 NI ‘uojSurwoorg
steak 6¢ y1-99d 8SHLY 9€L] Y61°61 v61°6h — 691 ST0'6y — 80T°ST (9 TV ‘Iowdssog
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 689°61 TIL 10¥°0C 10¥°0C — 15T 0S1°0T — 8LE6 (9 AV ‘uojuog
S1eak 6¢ #1-920 126'%C L¥0'T 896°ST #8S°€T ¥8€°T 6%S SE0°€T ¥8€°T 801°CT HO ‘poomyoeag
s1eak 6¢ #1-020 796'81 €9L STL'6l STL61 — 19 #99°61 — 685°6 (¢ HO ‘e1aereg
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 60L°L 681 768°L 061°L 0L L9 €TI'L 0L 1€T°S NI ‘UoAY
s1eak 6¢ #1-020 8TH'Cl Sev £98°C1 66£01 YO¥°C 139 9€01 Yo¥°C T9¢°L VD ‘eIsny
s1edk 6¢ ¥1-99Q 688°C1 YLy €9¢°¢€1 96%°01 L98T 143 9%°01 L98°T SEVLL XL ‘ofjuewry
s1edk 6¢ #1-920 1S9 1743 898°9 898°9 — 1T L¥8°9 — 661°9 (6 XL 001V
s1edk 6¢ #1-920 L89°8T $  S€9 $ zeeel 9€€'8T $ 986 LS $  6LTSI $ 986 0EY°T1 $ XL udiqy
uipping 2>4J0 197120
AledyjedH

@3:&590 ﬂo.::UQA\ 1ejol, :c_eﬂmoo.:—aﬁ— ©)©) 1elog, mu-—@EPyQ.—&Em pue] ma-—&E?»O.—QEH m«_-u_.:o\wc.:m:: pue] squeIqUIMIUY el @ma_U

st uonedadaq aReq pajenuNIdY 29 Surpping 29 sguip[ing 29 Surpping uonedI0|

YOIYAA U0 Y1 ‘pue]
H uwnjo) O uwngo) A uwnjo) POLIdJ JO 3SO[D) ) PALLIE)) JUNOWY SS0.15) uonisinboy 350D [enruy g uwnjo) V uwnjo)
7 uwnjo) 0} Judnbasqng D uwmnjo)
pazirepde)
 uwnjo)
(Sspuesnoy J, ur s1e[jo(q)
STOT ‘T€ 1qUIdII( JO SV

NOILLVIDHIdAd dALVINNNDDV ANV ALVLSH TVAY - I A TAddHIS
SHRAVIAISANS ANV 'ddOD IDNVNIH ALTVHY dVLSHLION

140



s1eak 6¢ ¥1-99@ 6T€°0¢€ 0921 68S°1¢€ 15€°8T 8€T'E 691 T81°8C 8€TE 189°0€ X1 Treadooy
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-00 199°6¢€ LL6 8€9°9¢ 1€9°¢€ L00'€ S0l 9Tsee L00'€ 6%0°s€ AN “TIHPR0Y
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-00Q 062°6T €98 €51°0€ €5T°0€ — 709 6¥5°6C — LIE€T (e ON ‘Ustopey
s1eak 6¢ #1-00Q 19€°9T 9€6 L6T'LT L6T'LT — 06 LOT'LT — SITYT (9 A1 ‘0I[91800g
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-09@ 205°6 96€ 868°6 868°6 — 0S 878°6 — €959 (9 OS U0
s1eak 6¢ y1-99a 9€8°LT 789 0TS'8T 60S°91 110°'T 16 81191 110°C €29°TT TIN ‘TAON
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-99a 176°61 or8 18L°0C 0LL'8T 110°C L8€ €8¢€81 110°C SIEST NI “2[[1AS9[ON
s1eok 6¢ ¥1-92Q 099°L 76T TS6°L 9789 9TI°1 14 S08°9 9TI'l 189°¢ 14 “Loyory 1og MAON
s1eak 6¢ $1-00Q 8LT°6 09¢ 8€9°6 v16'8 ¥TL 43 7888 vTL 8€6°6 I “2qpiazedeN
s1eak 6¢ #1-00Q@ L9V OF YLTT L1y YLL'SE L96°T 60T $96°8¢ L96°T 9T1°8C NI “Ioisunjy
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-00Q 6¥€°6 sov vSL'6 8€9°8 9111 YL 7958 91Tl 9€1°8 NI ‘otounjy
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-99@ 0%9°9TT L89°€ LTE0TT 6TESTI 8667 65¢€ 0L6FTT 8667 €€0°61T AN ‘UMORIPPIA
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-99@ §59°'8 69€ ¥20°6 T19°8 (487 w 0LS'8 ty vEL'S NLL ‘sryduwapy
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 L9191 €8¢ 0SL91 889°%1 790°C €L SI9p1 790°C 195°€1 VD ‘ENALUIRN
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-00Q 6Tr'c S8l $19°¢ r19°¢ — I £09°¢ — 796°¢ (o X1 ‘upgng
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-00Q 668°S 65T 8ST°9 8ST°9 — 61 6€1°9 — 962°9 (¢) XL UOISBUIAT]
steak 6¢ ¥1-00@ 0¥€'6 L9€ LOL'6 vS1°6 (399 82! £10°6 €56 £89°9 I yuowa ]
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-99@ 680°TT €8y TLSTT TLSTT — 9¢ 9€S°TT — Pr6°TT (9 SO ‘uome]
steak 6¢ r1-92q LLE'E 891 Svs'e 9433 — I res'e — €78y () AN “se50p se]
s1eak 6¢ #1-92Q 818°C 091 8L6C 8L6°C — 6 696°C — 6Tr'c (9 VT ‘SapIRyD 9]
s1eak 6¢ $1-00 YST'SH €0L°1 LS6'9Y 6SL°EY 861°¢ 341 919°¢t 861°¢ 6T1°9¢€ NI ‘onokeye]
s1eak 6¢ #1-00Q@ 666°LT SL9 vL9'8T 60L°LT $96 S¢S PS9°LT $96 18€°TT VT 9quuiooe ]
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-00Q 99L°9L €85°C 6¥€°6L LOV'SL we'e S€T TLISL we's G8L°8S NLL “a[[raxouy]
steak 6¢ ¥1-99@ 6€1°T LL 91TT vT6'l 76T 9 816°T 76T PrLT XL U
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-99@ T09°8T Yr0°1 9%9°6T 0TI°sT 9TS'y 18¢€ 6€LYT 9TSy 69%°61 V0D “jear) suyop
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-00 0L1°8E LIY1 L8S°6€ L8S'6€ — LET 0St°6€ — ILLTE (9 [N “KnD Kosiop
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-00Q 919°91 L9 LST'LT TT’LYL $96°T 0L 5971 S96°T S0S°Y1 VD “1odsef
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-00Q 8ST°6T1 vL9Y T€8°€TI 86V P11 rEE6 1791 LS8TIT rEE6 091°C8 NI ‘stodeuerpuy
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-09@ T€9°TT LS YOTET YOT'ET — 8L 9TI'€T — 8IL'S (o TV “oIIAsunyg
steak 6¢ ¥1-99@ 6L8FT 96¥ SLEST £V0°ST (433 Ly 96671 (433 Y6STT X1 S1quny
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-92Q TIp's T ¥TL'S yTL'S — LL L¥9°S — L60't (¢ XL ‘U0ISnog
s1eak 6¢ y1-92Q LE6T L01 70T 90T = 9 8€0°T — €66 (o AV “doy
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-00Q 0sL'E 981 9¢6°¢ 9€6°¢ — 4! vT6'c — 9Ty (6 AN ‘Sqq0H
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-00Q 091°S€ €T€°T £81°9¢€ SESIE 8767 09L°T SLL'6T 8767 100°LE I “9[epsury
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-09@ LOT'6 6LE 985°6 €716 (347 8T SIT'6 (322 vI8'8 H ‘oI'H
s1eak 6¢ y1-99a €81°L § €T $ 9L YLE'S $ 790 v8Y $ 068 $  790C S6v°'8 $ 00D ‘youRY SPUBYSIH

@o:—&:—oo —uo.-_-—voA\ 1ejol, :c_eﬂ_oo.:—aﬁ— ©)©) 1elog, w«:@EP»@.—&Em pue] ma-&E?»P—QEH m«-&EP»O.-QEm pue] squeIqUIMIUY el m%a_U

st uonedadaq aReq pajenuNIdY 29 Surpping 29 sguip[ing 29 Surpping uonedI0|

UIIYAA U0 I ‘pue
H uwnjo) O uwngo) A uwnjo) POLIdJ JO 3SO[D) ) PALLIE)) JUNOWY SS0.15) uonisinboy 350D [enruy g uwnjo) V uwnjo)
7 uwnjo) 0} Judnbasqng D uwmnjo)
pazirepde)
 uwnjo)
(Sspuesnoy J, ur s1e[jo(q)
STOT ‘T€ 1qUIdII( JO SV

NOILLVIDHIdAd dALVINNNDDV ANV ALVLSH TVAY - I A TAddHIS
SHRAVIAISANS ANV 'ddOD IDNVNIH ALTVHY dVLSHLION

141



s1eak 6¢ #1-92Q 8ETHI 60% L9yl 6LTEL 89¢°1 |84 8€TEl 89¢°1 SS6°01 IO ‘Pueg
s1eak (f y1-KeN T6L°TT 8ST'1 0S0°tC (3454 L6S €78 0£9°CC L6S TOETT 1 ‘d10piAjeg
SIBdA 6¢ #1-920 68€°€ 011 66%°€ LITE 8¢ 01 LOT'E 8¢ ¥9°€ VA ‘uenseq
S1edk Of pI-KeN 87501 439 090°T1 6676 19L°1 — 6676 19L°1 SET'L AN “orowmeg
s1eak Of p1-KeN €r1°1T 0LO°T €1TTT 1€8°0T 78¢€°1 (141 11L°0T 81 08L°Cl 71 ‘eromny
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 L9V'TE 876 S6€°€E 9€0°0¢ 65€°€ €6 £76°6C 65€°€ 96T VD ‘Beuepy
s1eak (f y1-KeN 6¥9°¢l $69 eyl 7811 0Ts‘C — 7811 0Ts‘C T€0°L VA ‘d[epueuuy
s1edk Of y1-KeN L98°9 STy T6T'L I1SL°9 %S = I1SL°9 %S IST°L VA ‘uopsuiqy
SonIIoD ] SUISIAN PaJ[TYS
0E1°LLS'T 170°0L ILT°LY6°1 980°€T8°1 S80'%C1 TrLL1 #E°S08°1 S804C1 6697011 Suipping YO [BIAPIN [BI0L
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 L90% €0 0LTY 0LTY — €l LSTY — Sot'S () XL ‘UOMEYA\
s1eak 6¢ #1-020 TL8°TT 200°1 vL8€T 197°¢€C €19 901 Ss1°eT €19 SHLI 0D “ToISUIUISIA\
S1edk 6¢ #1-99Q £59°8 96 6168 ILY'L 8LY'1 (484 6S0°L 8LY'1 1168 TIAL ‘PloLWOO[ g 1S9
s1eak 6¢ jagetlel 4359 €S¢ G86°S [ — L1 895°S — 0L19 (¢ NI ‘MesIepy
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 176°8 Sev 9LE6 9LE6 — 6C LYE6 — 9L (¢ XL ‘BLIOIOIA
s1eak 6¢ gr-ung SHTrI 87¢ €LSHT €LS Y1 — S 8TSY1 — 00S°T1 (¢ SIN “BIgSOIA
s1eak 6¢ #1-020 ST €LS L18SI L18'SI — IL 9¥LS1 — S0TTI (o 11 ‘BUBQIN
s1eak 6¢ #1-020 7606 e 0r7'6 LS8°8 €8¢ 8T 678°8 €8¢ T9¢°L XL ‘BUBNIEX9],
s1edk 6¢ ¥1-99Q 968°01 Siy TIETT LLY0T €9 €€ #79°01 €9 TS9°L X1, Qpdway,
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 9€I'pl 165 LTLY1 LTLY1 — 0€1 L6S'Y1 — 880°8 (o ZV “odwop
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 9LTTI (%94 60L°T1 60L°T1 — 9¢ €LYTI — 19S°€T (6 ON ‘BAJAS
s1eak 6¢ #1-020 66 Y1 S9S 796°v1 898°C1 960°T 0 818°CI 960°T L1811 VD “08pLQ00Ig
s1eak 6¢ #1-020 G8LELT L69 8781 78781 — 6TC €5T81 — 7896 (9 T4 ‘BIqs1aled 1S
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 IL¥'S €L1 779°S TeT'S (484 T 80C°S 484 L8¥'E NI ‘uyof 1§
S1edA 6¢ ¥1-99Q #09°€9 920°C 0£9°9 €EEP9 L6T'1 90T LTI'Y9 L6T1 8¥S°TT VM ‘ueyodg
s1edk 6¢ #1-920 ¥89°81 S9L 6hr61 166°L1 8St°1 18t 01S°LI 8SH°1 10€°C1 XL ‘Yeopueusys
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 0v9°L 9LE 910°8 910°8 — S¢ 186°L — S60°L (9 NLL “9[[1A4q[ays
s1eak 6¢ #1-92Q hLY 9L1 6161 9Er'y €81 or 96t €8y 6%0t XL ‘Z1oYdg
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 7896 0l¥ 760°01 9868 901°1 43 7568 901°T 9¢°L NIA ‘[[oMes
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-090 SEEST LLS T16°s1 LIT'ST S6L 801 600°ST S6L 81L8 14 ‘ejoseres
S1edA 6¢ ¥1-99Q 6LY'ST SN ¥7s°9C SLE'IT 6v1°S 16 ¥8T°1T 6v1°S 780°61 VO ‘es0y ejueg
s1edk 6¢ jagetlel €L6°LY 61¥°C T6€°0L TS89 0S8°1 ST L10°89 058°1 €66°LE X1 ‘omuojuy ueg
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 6T8°11 9LS SOr°TI SO'TI — 99 0S€°Cl — 7878 (9 X1 ‘08uy ueg
s1eak 6¢ #1-020 L68%T T°0°1 616°ST w9 LLTT LL S9S¥T LLT'T £85°0C VT ‘uosmy
s1eak 6¢ #1-020 12484 $ 81 $  8TEY S9L'E § €96 4 $ €sLe § €96 $ L8tE $ X1 ‘Ha1moy

voa_‘_nEcU —uo.-_-—voA\ 1ejol, :c_eﬁmoo.:—aﬁ— ©)©) 1elog, wu=®—=u>c.-n=: pue] ma=oEo>c.—&EH m«.-&EP»P-QEm pue] squeIqUIMIUY el m%a_U

st uonedadaq aReq pajenuNIdY 29 Surpping 29 sguip[ing 29 Surpping uonedI0|

UIIYAA U0 I ‘pue
H uwnjo) O uwngo) A uwnjo) POLIdJ JO 3SO[D) ) PALLIE)) JUNOWY SS0.15) uonisinboy 350D [enruy g uwnjo) V uwnjo)
7 uwnjo) 0} Judnbasqng D uwmnjo)
pazirepde)
 uwnjo)
(Sspuesnoy J, ur s1e[jo(q)
STOT ‘T€ 1qUIdII( JO SV

NOILLVIDHIdAd dALVINNNDDV ANV ALVLSH TVAY - I A TAddHIS

SHRAVIAISANS ANV 'ddOD IDNVNIH ALTVHY dVLSHLION

142



1Bk 6¢ #1-02d L9Y'01 61¢ 98L°01 750°01 vEL 1€ 120°01 vEL 8168 VA “I00]A] MO]
s1eak Of p1-Key 150°6 6Ly 0€S°6 LSS'8 €L6 = LSS'8 €L6 0€T°9 T4 ‘POOMBUOT
s1eak Of y1-KeN 65S°€ LEE 968°¢ 766°C 706 LT1 S98°C 06 €16°C 1 ‘ujooury
SIBAA ¢ y1-02 ¥26'y €51 LLOS STLY (433 ST 0ILY (443 LOS Y VA ‘UOuEqa]
SIBdA Of y1-KeN 991°1€¢ 799°1 878°TE 155°0¢€ LLTT 24 LOS 0€ LLTT 0LL'81 14 ‘oe]
SIBdA Of PI-KeN 79761 920°1 887°0C 11881 LLY'T — 11881 LLY'T S6S 1 T4 ‘pue[aye]
s1edk Of LO-ung LILY ELIl 0¥6°S P6¥°S (144 — P6¥°S 9t 628t NI ‘oBueIne
s1eak Of PI-KeN vLLOT 158 STY'LI €0S91 (4401 — €0S91 (440! 879°S T “QaWIISSIY
s1eak (f y1-KeN £70°ST SIT°1 85T°9T SPlsT €111 6t 969°4C €111 £€8°91 1 wrof
S1edA Of y1-KeN 05S°6T 609°1 6S1°1€ 615°8C 0v9°C 6 0LY'8CT 0+9°C 8LL9I Td “9[[IAuosyoRf
S1edk 6¢ #1-920 689°1 1 00L°1 0LS 0EI’T 4 896 0EI°T 60T VIN ied opAH
s1eak Of LO-ung 809 SLOT £89°G LEO'S 919 — LEO'S 919 #60°S NI ‘uojSunungy
s1eak 6¢ #1-02Q 09€°€ 601 69%°¢ LLT'E 762 01 L9T°€ 76T €L6T VA ‘s8uudg 10H
s1eak Of Lo-ung T8L°S TLOT 7589 610°S SE8°T — 610°S SE8°1 098°S NI ‘HeqoH
s1edk Of LO-ung 109°1 08¢ 186°1 8Ll 661 — 8L1 661 1L NI ‘A1 propreq
SIBAA 6¢ #1-920 9vETI 9¢ 80L°CI 19%°11 LYT'1 9¢ STHIT LYT'1 00201 O ‘SSed SIUEID
S1BdA 6¢ #1-920 €LO6'LT 18 76781 LTELL L9T°1 S ELT'LI L9T°T 4344 VD “9[[iasouten
s1eak O y1-KeN LLETT SLOT 45454 €5€°TT 660°T IS¢ 200°CT 660°1 60v°C1 T “9[[IAsduren
s1eak (f LO-unf S¥6't 6 L88°S 60ty 8LY'1 — 60ty 8LY'1 8%0°C NI ‘QUABA\ 110,
s1eak () y1-KeN L8LTI S€9 TTrel T9€°TI 090°T 61 £PETI 090°T 8ELY T ‘SIAN 10
SIBAA Of y1-KeN 8L8°S L6T SLI'9 T68°S €8¢ — T6S°S €8¢ 0L¥'S T4 ‘d[epiopne 1o
SIBdA O y1-KeN 6v1°S 10€ 0SS 679% 18 — 679 128 6911 T4 ‘susng
S1edA Of LO-ung 811°C 16 609°C 667°C ore — 667°C 0re 91T NI SEnpung
s1edk Of p1-Key 8117 071 0T8°ST 198°€T 656°1 96% S9€°€T 656°1 8601 1 Imedaq
s1eak Of L0-80y T6L°6 10L°L €61'LI S61p1 86T°¢ €T€TI TL81 86C°¢ S0zT°Te VO ‘KD Areq
s1eak 6¢ y1-99a YLLY LL 158 1€0°€ 0Z8°1 6 720 0z8°1 0S0°L VIN ‘uoieq
SIBdA Of y1-KeN 9L¥'ST 9T°1 8€L°9T 8€1°6T 009°T €6¢ S8LYT 009°1 200°S1 I ‘poomisar)
SIBdA 6¢ #1-920 96¥°CC 099 951°€T 8L9°1T 8LY'1 L9 119°1C 8LY 1 610°1¢C VD ‘u0j3uIao)
S1eak 6¢ #1-920 110°8C 16L 708°8C 756'9C 0S8°1 8 898°9C 0S8°1 L¥1°0T VD ‘s10Au0)
s1eak Of Lo-ung 0909 ¥9€°T vTr'L 06€°9 ¥€0°T — 06€°9 7€0°T 6€€°8 NI “&1D erquinjo)
s1eak Of L0-1dy 6L6°€ €6 1167 vLSY Leg €€ 8494 LEE 098°C DN ‘suowrud])
S1edA 6¢ LO-ung 121y 868 610°S 0Ty SI8 — 0Ty SI8 (4147 NI ‘Ploy121say )
s1edk Of LO-ung 620°L STLT vSL'8 LLO'8 LLY — LLO'8 LLY £SHL NI ‘uoydpse)
SIeak 6¢ #1-920 08S°L (454 TI8'L OLY'L we (%4 Ly'L (443 6691 VA 1n03oog
s1eak Of 90-Inf 0L0°S S8T'1 §5€%9 LL6'S 8LE 806 690°S 8LE I11°s T4 ‘umoisyunorg
s1eak Of 90-Inf £99°S $  TSHl $  SII'L L¥9°9 S 89 198 $  98LS $ 891 £€20°9 $ DN ‘UIejunoA Joe[g
63:&5:0 ﬂo.::UQA\ 1ejol, =c_eﬂ_oo.=—aﬁ— ©)©) 1elog, w«:@EP»@.—&Em pue] ma-&E?»O.—QEH m«-&EP»P-QEm pue] squeIqUIMIUY el m%a_U
st uonedadaq aReq pajenuNIdY 29 Surpping 29 sguip[ing 29 Surpping uonedI0|
UIIYAA U0 I ‘pue
H uwnjo) O uwngo) A uwnjo) POLIdJ JO 3SO[D) ) PALLIE)) JUNOWY SS0.15) uonisinboy 350D [enruy g uwnjo) V uwnjo)
7 uwnjo) 0} Judnbasqng D uwmnjo)
pazirepde)
 uwnjo)
(Sspuesnoy J, ur s1e[jo(q)
ST0T ‘1€ 19quIdI( JO SV

NOILLVIDHIdAd dALVINNNDDV ANV ALVLSH TVAY - I A TAddHIS

SHRAVIAISANS ANV 'ddOD IDNVNIH ALTVHY dVLSHLION

143



s1edk Of LO-ung €9%°9 TLOT SES'L ¥20°S 118°C — ¥20°S 11§°C 11€°9 NI ‘Useqepy
s1eak Of LO-unf 96L°L LOY €078 1€S°L L9 — 1€S°L L9 S659 Td ‘Yordg 0I9A
s1eak Of Lo-ung €8L°6 6T1°C TIGTT 018°01 T01°1 (92 9€8°01 011 rh6°6 NI ‘uodry,
SIBAA (f y1-KeN 8TS‘S (284 ¥6°S $SE'S 065 — $SE'S 065 700y TIAL ‘SIOATY 221y ],
SIBAA Of y1-Key €SHIT €91°1 919°CC ¥TL0T 768°1 — $TL0T 768°1 0LT 11 14 ‘eduwre],
SIBdA 6¢ r1-00Q 9€€°TI 79¢ 869°CI L6L 01 106°1 € €9L°01 106°1 00201 VM ‘ewode],
s1edk Of LO-ung PIL'E SL6 689t 795y Y41 — 95y Y41 €ELY NI ‘osnoeIkg
s1eak Of LO-ung 01€’s €56 €979 69t P6L'T = 69t POLT rhe's NI ‘UBAI[[NS
s1eak (f 90-KeN vI8°c 66€°T €IT’S ¥80°S 621 (sp1°1) 62T9 6T1 €T 1 “‘Sulpals
SIBdA Of y1-KeN #S0°CI 10L SSLTI 99T°11 68%°1 i 99T°11 68%°1 06T°CI 14 ‘SIngsIRd 1S
S1edk Of P1-KeN YLTO1 629 £06°01 9566 L¥6 — 9566 L¥6 L8S*8 NL “Asteq £ppos
S1eak 6¢ #1-920 LILLT 99L £81°8C L09°ST 9L8°C 08 LTS'ST 9L8°C 956°CC VD “O[[IA[[oUS
s1eak 6¢ $1-00Q T89°€T LEL 68€7C Phbiee St6 €L 1L€°€T S¥6 17€°0T V71 ‘Hodoaamys
s1eak Of yI-KeN LLY'9T €88 09€°LT ¥S6°ST 90t'T 8 9¥6°ST 9011 SSE6 T4 ‘ejosereg
s1edk Of LO-ung L16'Y 1ST°1 891°9 868°S 01¢ — 868°S 01¢€ 10¥°S NI “o[[raysny
s1edk 6¢ #1-920 ey 8€8 091t 966°€C #91°0T SL 126°¢€C #91°0T 200° 1Y Vd ‘pIojsIofoy
s1eak Of Lo-ung §9T°C 144 11L°T 60T 619 — 60T 619 611°C NI ‘Hodxpoy
s1eak 6¢ #1-020 wi'L (414 PSEL 118°9 (972 1T 06L°9 (972 6€1°9 O ‘Puowpay
s1eak 6¢ y1-00Q SI6°T 8¢ €L6°T 01H'1 £9¢ 4 90t T £9¢ b6 MO “d[qiaduLg
s1eak 6¢ y1-990 66L°9 48 1169 16T°% 029°C €l 8LTY 079°C £7E°6 VIN ‘PIRYSHId
SIBAA 6¢ #1-92a LO¥'991 S00°S TIFILL €LY 991 6£6'7 61S 7S6°S91 6£6'7 09T°L¥1 vd ‘erydpepe[yd
1834 O LO-ung P11°9 €TS°1 LEY'L SEI°L 208 — SEI°L 208 LOSY NI ‘niog
18k Of p1-Key POEY1 9L 890°G1 LSOp1 110°1 €9 ¥66°€1 110°1 Sov'pl 14 “10qIef] wieq
s1eak Of p1-Key 668°91 066 688°L1 L18SI TL0°T — LI8SI TL0°T EPLTT Td ‘Yordg puowiQy
s1eak 6¢ y1-99Q 1S'C oL 15T 6S1°C 79¢ L TS1T 79¢ 0SS°T VA ‘erdwi[o
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-99a STS'T S 0LS°T 9¢€8 veL € €€8 YEL L9TT VA ‘Pudg YHoN
SIBdA Of y1-KeN 91L’9 (4% S9I°L L99°9 861 — L99°9 861 LSy JIARESIIIN
SIBdA Of L0-994 1€C°11 669°C 0€6°€1 ¥€6°C1 966 €LE 195°C1 966 0EY'6 A ‘SupEas 1N
s1edk Of 90-KeN T5€°S LEYT 6869 1279 89S (289°7) €01°6 89S £€8°¢ 1 ‘SLION
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 6L9°6 01¢ 6866 L09°6 8¢ 0€ LLS'6 8¢ €8L°6 TV Q0N
s1eak 6¢ $1-00Q ¥80°TT 9ze (st 7666 811 8¢ ¥56°6 8IH°1 6896 Vd UOIN
SIBdA 6¢ ¥1-09 98€°91 (434 8L8°91 SLE9T £0S IS $TE91 €0S LOT'ST N ‘uoj3ur|n
s1edk 6¢ #1-920 L¥0°0T 0LS L19°0T L18°81 OLL'T 65 88L°81 OLL'T LyLY1 VA ‘URIYIO[PIA
s1eak Of LO-ung 0T6°¢ #10°T vE6'y 0SLY ¥81 — 0SLY 81 1€8°€¢ NI ‘UMOR[PPIA
s1eak 6¢ #1-020 T6£91 69% 198°91 TTeSl 6€S°1 8 vLTSI 6€S°1 €TLYI NI ‘srqduapy
s1eak (f y1-KeN £Y8°L S OLv $ €IEg SET'L $  8LO'I $ — $  SETL $  8LO'I $  IpIS $ NLL “@J[TAUUTAPIA
63:&590 —uoh_=vo< 1ejol, =c_eﬂmoo.=—uﬁ— ©)©) 1elog, w«:@EP»P—&Em pue] ma-&E?»O.—QEH m«-&EP»Q.-QEm pue] squeIqUIMIUY el m%a_U
st uonedadaq aReq pajenuNIdY 29 Surpping 29 sguip[ing 29 Surpping uonedI0|
UIIYAA U0 I ‘pue
H uwnjo) O uwngo) A uwnjo) POLIdJ JO 3SO[D) ) PALLIE)) JUNOWY SS0.15) uonisinboy 350D [enruy g uwnjo) V uwnjo)
7 uwnjo) 0} Judnbasqng D uwmnjo)
pazirepde)
 uwnjo)
(Sspuesnoy J, ur s1e[jo(q)
ST0T ‘1€ 19quIdI( JO SV

NOILLVIDHIdAd dALVINNNDDV ANV ALVLSH TVAY - I A TAddHIS
SHRAVIAISANS ANV 'ddOD IDNVNIH ALTVHY dVLSHLION

144



s1eak Of LO-uef 80LY PST'T 796°S 00t'S 79 1434 996 79 86S°T AN ‘BISIA BT
s1eak (f y1-Ke] 0¥8°6 €39 1LE°0T 1¥6°6 (134 90€ S€9°6 (134 TLTL O ‘opueIn e
S1edk Of LO-uef 8LV 9SH°1 r€6°S 908°S 8Tl 60€ L6Y'S 8Tl 901°1 3O “oysySury
s1edk Of pI-KeN 8899 99¢ ¥S0°L ¥1T°9 0t8 0€T #86°S 0+8 1€SY O “AnD uonoung
s1eak Of y1-KeN 76601 06S 78S°11 T61°T1 06€ 6L SITTI 06€ 09€°6 O 1oAY pooH
s1eak Of Lo-ung G811y 8€EI°T £7€°S TEI's 161 €L 650°S 161 808°C I ‘Smqstuey
s1eak Of Lo-ung 9TI’L 879°1 PSL'8 w18 €19 65T'1 7889 €19 0687 HO ‘A1) 2r010
s1eak 6¢ y1-00Q 8LE'6 86T 9€9°6 91t'6 0Tz 6T L8E°6 0zT 0zr's 1 9[[1AUID
1834 (f y1-KeN 110°L 01y 1Tr'L 1€6°9 061 I£3 0069 06% 0TS°L JO ‘ssed syuein
184 O LO-uef SOLTI €81°1 881°¢I €179 SL6%9 98¢ LT6'S SL6%9 $0L9 VO 9A0ID) UdpIeD
s1eak (f LO-uef 600°€1 S0€T PIECT 7686 s 95t 9€r'6 s YO¥°L VD ‘uopa[ng
s1eak (f LO-uef €7E9 608°T TST°8 666°L 391 101 868°L 491 9L6Y I ‘PreYIe]
s1eak Of y1-Ke 950°ST ShL 108°ST 19671 0r8 8P1 €18yl 0r8 09°CI O “ouasng
SIBAA (f LO-uef 860°9 8T8°l 9T6°L €8L°L 94 790°1 12L9 (94 00Ly 3O ‘MDA
SIBAA Of P1-99Q/L0-UBl  9TE'6 6LS°1 S06°01 #60°01 118 01y 7896 118 SEI'6 I ‘weySuLyy
18K Of LO-KeN 091°CL 90€ 99%°C1 9STI1T 01T'1 89T 88601 01T1 #L9°01 VIA ‘uoieq
s1eak 6¢ y1-99Q 9L0°61 ¥$6 0€0°0T 19L°L1 697°C §9¢ 96€°L1 697°C 0ST°ST XL ‘Bsuy) sndio)
s1eak Of P1-KeN £0T°0L T€L°T YE6°IL €8%°C9 ISt'6 Y61 68779 1St°6 €8L°08 0D ‘s3utidg operojo)
SIBIA 6¢ #1920 6L0°01 8Ly LSS01 LL66 08S ¥S1 €786 08S SLS'L VM 308]d 339[10D
SIBdA Of y1-KeN TITe €ST°1 S9Ey oIy STt LT9 €15 STe 169 O ‘uopuI)
S1edA Of LO-uef 9TTHLL 09T°8 98+°C81 €98°L91 €09'%1 85€°1 S0S°991 €971 S00°6LT HO ‘neuurour)
S1edk Of $1-99Q/L0-UBl  8L8'S 0LS'T 8L €969 S8y TSL 1129 S8t 6€6°€ 1 ‘UOISa[IBYD)
s1eak Of Lo-uef 0Er'y 0€T 099% 0E¥'E 0€T’1 48! 81€°¢ 0€T°1 0r1°9 XL “Hed 1epa)
s1eak (f y1-Le]N T10°Cl 869 01L°Cl 06T°C1 0cy €8¢ LO6T1 0Ty 8668 ZV ‘opueln ese)
S1edk Of y1-KeN S€6'9 9TF'l 19¢°8 SPS'L 918 STe'e 0Ty 918 1169 VD ‘uojjjore)
S1edk Of LO-Uuef SH6°L #90°C 600°01 S¥0°6 796 vL8 1L1°8 796 95 VM ‘UopowaIg
s1eak Of p1-KeN 1¥9°C1 €9 SLTET SESTI OvL 43 €0S°CI 0bL ST5%6 VM ‘punoin apnegq
s1edk Of yI-KeN 878 9 7168 078 01s LOT S61°8 01¢ L69Y O KD 1oveg
s1eak Of y1-KeN 990°€T L19 €89°¢1 CLTET 01s T 6r1°cl 01¢ 00701 40 ‘Aueqry
VAQIY - S2BIIoD,] SUIATT paIsIssy

009°6T1°1 ¥T6°LL ¥TSLOT'T T67°060°1 TEO'LIT S61°GI1 L6T'SLO'T TEO'LIT $59°926 SAI[IIR] SulsAnN PIIDS [€)0L

s1eak 6¢ #1-920 S00°81 ws LyS*81 TLY'LI SL8 99 LI9°LI SL8 €T9°11 ZV ‘eung
s1eak Of yI-KeN 0SLT1 10L IS¥TI T6L01 659°1 — T6L01 659°1 969°01 T “UINOGAIA] 1S9
s1eak 6¢ #1-02Q €0T°S 0LT €LES 689 89 €9 979y 89 6LY'S Vd ‘UMOIUOSIEA
s1eak (f LO-ung 801§ 998°C $  60L€El $ ozrel S  68C — $ ozrel $  68C $  91I€6 $ NI ‘esniexep

payndwo) paamboy ®101, uopedxdaq o)) BI0L syudwdAoxdury pue spudwAoxdwy  syudwdAoadury puey sdQueIqUINdIUY ANe)s ‘A
st uonedadaq e Pajenunddy 29 Surp[ing 29 sguip[ing 2 Suipping uonedo|
YOIYAA U0 1] ‘pue]
H uwnpo) O uwnjo)) A uwnjo) POLIdJ JO 3SO[D) JE PILLIE)) JUNOWY SS0.I0) uonisinboy 350D [enIuy g uwnjo) V uwnjo)
7 uwnjo) 0} Judanbasqng D uwnjo)
pazirepde)
 uwnjo)
(Sspuesnoy J, ur s1e[jo(q)
ST0T ‘1€ 19quIdI( JO SV

NOILLVIDHIdAd dALVINNNDDV ANV ALVLSH TVAY - I A TAddHIS
SHRAVIAISANS ANV 'ddOD IDNVNIH ALTVHY dVLSHLION

145



s1eak Of Lo-ung SL8'S 10€°T 9LT'L S€8°9 843 999°T 691°S 843 06€Y HO ‘9SNOH 1Mo U0ISUISeA
s1eak (f LO-uef 8€€9 708°T Twi'g 090°8 8 16 696°L 8 9959 I ‘BI[epueA
s1edk Of y1-KeN 987°8 L1y €0L'8 €ILL 066 9L LEY'L 066 we'y VO ‘Yenin
s1edk Of vI-KeN 6171 LyL 7671 1261 020°C 202 61L°TI 020°C €E€°01 X1 BIAL
s1eak Of Lo-uef 886°¢C 8S1°1 9IS 606t LET €6C 919t LET 09ty 1 ‘e[oosny,
s1eak Of yI-KeN 90L°TT TLOT 8LLE€T 8151 09T°C 69¢°1 6¥1°0T 09T°C #95°S1 X1, ‘ordwag,
s1eak Of Lo-uer 179°8 YLT'T $68°01 6L0°01 918 81 L68°6 918 SST°8 [ “2I0wWedAg
s1eak (f y1-Ae]N 1€0°C€ €0S°1 PESEE Y6T'1€ 0¥CT ¥8¢C 010°1€ 0rCT £69°6T X, ‘pue Iesng
s1edk Of LO-uef YLL'S TI9°1 98€°L 6L8°9 LOS (1144 65¥°9 LOS TL6'T X1 Q[audydarg
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 8078 1€C 6£9°8 65°8 081 9T £EV'8 081 84T°6 71 ‘uojune)g
s1eak Of p1-KeN 00Ty 197 197 IrL'e 0cL Sic 9Ts°€e 0cL 509 MO “opiseag
s1edk Of LO-uef £Y8°L TTLT $95°6 Y8T'L 18T°C 8€T 9b0°L 18T°C STs'e VO ‘Buy ejueg
s1eak Of y1-KeN ¥$6°81 €68 LyS'61 LLT'8T 0LS°1 81 6ST8I1 0LS°1 YLV TT VO ‘ojuduieIoes
s1edk Of y1-KeN LEO'0E 811 SStiI€ G88°8C 0LST 891 LIL'8T 0LST 8LS°TT XL 00y punoy
s1edk Of y1-KeN 6584C 9II°l S00°9C SPR'ET 091°C 61T 979°¢tT 091°C wi'se IO ‘BIngasoy
s1eak Of pI-KeN €ILS €0¢€ 9109 9Tr'S 06S 911 01€S 06S ELEY O “IoARY an50Y
s1eak Of LO-uef G838y 8TI°1 €109 716y 101°1 86 718t 101°1 L06Y 1 PIOPO0Y
s1eak Of LO-Uef 0S6°€ €ET’l £80°S 798°Y 61T 81T LY 61T S8TY I ‘UosuIqoy
s1edh Of LO-uef 119% 16T°1 206°S ISL'S IS1 YLE LLE'S I1S1 6879 I ‘[nojuey
s1edh Of y1-KeN 0€L°9T 43 T9S°LT 79591 000°T 9p1 91¥91 000°T TEI'TI ON ‘ysrorey
s1edk Of p1-KeN 01€6 9T 9€L'6 9168 06L €81 €9L'8 06L 6£5°9 VM PIeyaIQ 1og
s1eak Of LO-Uuef LTSS 8€S°T S90°L 8.8°9 L81 18 L6L9 L81 7809 1 ‘sued
s1eak Of LO-uef 0L69 266°1 796'8 96L°8 991 08% 91¢8 991 980°8 1 “Keuj0
s1eak Of LO-uef 098°F SHb'T S0€°9 87S°S LSL ¥9¢ ¥81°S LSL IS 3O A1) ewoyepo
s1edh Of y1-KeN ¥19°8T 96€°1 0¥0°0€ 0158 0€S°T S9T SHT'8T 0€S°T 0TI°6T 00D ‘uud[3yoN
s1edk 6¢ #1-920 18494 19 209°C TIET 06T L S0€C 06T L8I°S I ‘uorZ IN
s1eak Of y1-KeN 90T°C 88¢ 65T ¥80°C 01¢ (9LY) 8789 01$ 0bS‘y TV 9lIQON
s1eak Of 71 92/L0 Uef  $T0°E€T 016°¢ ¥€6°9C €r1°1T 16L°S 1T 20661 16L°S TILSI N ‘srqduapy
s1eak Of y1-KeN SLS'TI 6+9 $TS°Tl PLYTT 059 881 989°T1 059 SIL°0T O QAU
s1eak (f LO-uef 691°CT 89¢€°¢ LES'ST 001°ST LEY $69 SOt PT LEY 1926 I ‘uooneN
s1edk Of LO-ung 61%°9 60€°1 8TLL 01s°s 81T°C S6¥ S10°S 81C°C 10S‘Y HO [IAsAIEIN
s1edk 6¢ #1-920 €069 L8] 060°L 008°9 06T 1T 6LL9 06T LLTL I JPWOYEN
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 SE8'I8 981°C 12078 1S0°6L 0L6t 9T S08°8L 0L6t 6L8°TL 1 ‘poomujoduI]
s1eak (f y1-Ae]N Teree #90°T 961°€T LS9°0T 6€S°CT 1€ 9T¥0T 6€S°CT L0991 X1 ‘A anSea]
s1eak Of Tl-uef/Lo-unf  691°CI €LET (443 4! 8TS'€l P10°T 7S9°1 PLYT1 #10°T 68 HO ‘191seoue]
s1eak (f y1-KeN €LL°0T §  TIOT $  S8L1T SLS0T $  0IT1 61L $  9s8°61 $ 01T €81°91 $ DS ‘1AM T

63:&5:0 —uo.-_-—voA\ 1ejo, :c_eﬂmoo.:—aﬁ— ©)©) 1elog, mu=o—=u>ch&=—~ pue] m«=o~=o>ch&=—~ maEOE?»O.—QEm pue] sueIqUIMIUY djels ,%:U

st uonedadaq Aeq pajenuNIdY 29 Surpping 2 sguip[ing 2 Suipping uoned0|

UIIYAA U0 I ‘puey
H uwnjo) O uwngo) J uwnjo) POLIdJ JO 3SO[D) )& PALLIE)) JUNOWY SSO0.1D) uonisinboy 150D [eniuy g uwnjo) V uwnjo)
7 uwnjo) 0} Judnbasqng D uwnpo)
pazirepde)
( uwnfo)
(Sspuesnoy J, ur s1e[jo(q)
ST0T ‘1€ 19quIdI( JO SV

NOILLVIDHIdAd dALVINNNDDV ANV ALVLSH TVAY - I A TAddHIS
SHRAVIAISANS ANV 'ddOD IDNVNIH ALTVHY dVLSHLION

146



s1eak 6¢ p1-00Q 6169 LET 950°L L6Y'S 65S°T 9101 18t 65S°T rhe's 3N ‘Posmy
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 0TI €0¢ SPETI 068°0T SSHT — 068°01 SSHT 0S€°6 3N WesH spremAey
S1edA Of gr-ung 708°¢ 8LT 080 0T6°¢ 091 L 6+8°¢ 091 60S°T NN ‘spidey puein
SIedA 6¢ #1-920 L91°0T 9LS €7L°0T L1961 9TI°l 19 955°61 9TI°l 6L0°91 ON ‘BulIeA-AEnsng
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 L1701 LET #S9°01 6678 SS1°T — 6678 SS1°T 690°8 SN ‘SSOIYSI]
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 81501 L6T SI8°01 8796 L8T°T 0€ 865°6 L8T°T LTST1 DN “OI[Iasnake ]
s1eak 6¢ p1-00 £66°0T LEY 0660T TIT61 8LLT 41903 00L°ST 8LLT 868°ST 3N “Tooutre,f
sIeak 6¢ y1-00 09+°0C 61S 6L6°0T 159°81 8T€T — 159°81 8T€T 688°ST 3N ‘uowwo) ysiofre]
s1eak (f y1-KeN — — — — — — — — 482 (o Td ‘snsng
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-99a L¥¥'ST 769 6€1°9T SOL€T YEY'T YL 1€9°€C vEY'T 8TL0T ON ‘weymq
SIBAA Of gl-unf 61691 TLI'T 160°81 16L°91 00€°T — 16L°91 00€°T 0SHS1 NN ‘ymng
SIBAA 6¢ v1-000d TwLY'L 8LI 0S8°L TLE9 8LY'1 — TLE9 8LY'1 9t6°S 3N ‘Buppoq
s1edk Of gl-ung PLTY 14%3 809t 8IEY 062 24! LY 062 8TSYy NIA ‘sayeT nonaQ
s1eak 6¢ 71-02Qd 790°11 (434 6T 11 €676 108°T TELT 19L°L 108°T $S6°8 3N ‘weguac
s1eak 6¢ y1-92Q S6€°TI 8LT €L9°TT 6L6°6 ¥69°C — 6L6°6 ¥69°C 665°6 3N ‘ySioquer)
SIBIA ¢ #1-92a #06°9 861 T01°L 86€9 YL 0t 8€€9 YL 0089 IO ‘stjeato)
SIBdA Of gl-ung 796°¢ 68C €STY €80 0L1 29 1207 0L1 L8ST NIN ‘1onbo[)
SIBdA 6¢ #1-920 157°81 (44 €16°81 #09°91 60€°C — #09°91 60€°C STEYI 3N ‘weyqoy)
s1eak 6¢ $1-00Q 656°CT &3 08T°€T 8FSTT TELT — 8PS TT TELT 850°0T 3N ‘wopdwe) Surddryy
s1eak 6¢ $1-00 080°L 49! ETL YSH'S 8LLT — PSt'S 8LLT 8LY'S 3N ‘weyuaddrgy
SIBdA 6¢ ¥1-99Qd 86L°¢ €€ 1€8°¢ 891°1 £99°C — 891°1 £99°C 206°C 3N ‘Ajprequie)
SIBdA 6¢ #1-920 TS SIT 65€°S [488% LYT'1 — 408" LYT'1 650t 3N “Adworg
1Bk 6¢ #1-920 128°C LS 8LST ¥20°C #SS — ¥20°C #SS €56°1 3N “eonurelg
S1eak 6¢ #1-920 T€0°L S91 L6T'L S€6°S 291 — S€6°S 91 1S¥°S 3N TInH sdoystg
s1eak 6¢ p1-00Q €6b°LE T6LT S8T'6¢€ 609°9¢ 9L9°C 4! $65°9¢ 9L9°C 695°9C 4O ‘pueqg
s1eak (f gr-unp TL8T 11z £80°¢ £98°C 0TT LL 98L°T 0TT 898°1 NN ‘19pxeg
s1edk 6¢ ¥1-99Q 1ze'e 98 LOV'E ¥LO'E €ee — ¥LO'E £€¢ 08$°C 3N “Kyonuiiyony
S1edk 6¢ #1-920 8€0°1¢C LES SLS'IT 68761 987°C — 68761 987°C I7€91 3N 08y
s1eak Of gr-ung 67T 891 09T 002 09 — 00T°C 09 €59°1 NIA ‘BLIpUBXa[y
() SPHIL] SUIATT PIISISSY

SEITTO°L 657°88 PLSOLTT 88L°800°1 98L 101 rIv'eC YLES86 98L° 101 T0LT88 Sy E:_mewa.

s1edk Of y1-KeN sL9 (143 T60°L 8L9 0l €91 619°9 0l €20t O ‘wmgpoopy
s1edk Of L0-90Q 7011 €S1°C G8I°El £06°01 87T (44 8LY°01 87T TTES S “BNYIIM
s1eak Of y1-KeN 0S0°81 168 176°81 109°L1 el SIT 98%°L1 el 009°S1 VM “00UdIRUI A\
s1eak Of LO-uef L89'F S 0psl $ LTT9 866°S $  67C 86¢ $  009°S § 6T $  1TST $ 3O ‘PIOJIOYIEIA

pandwo) paamboy ®10], uopedadaq o)) BI0L syudwdAoxdury puey syudwdAoxdury syudurdAoadury puey sdQuUeIqUINdIUY ANe)s ‘O
st uonedadaq Aeq pajenuNIdY 29 Surpping 2 sguip[ing 2 Suipping uoned0|
UIIYAA U0 I ‘puey
H uwnjo) O uwngo) J uwnjo) POLIdJ JO 3SO[D) )& PALLIE)) JUNOWY SSO0.1D) uonisinboy 150D [eniuy g uwnjo) V uwnjo)
7 uwnjo) 0} Judnbasqng D uwnpo)
pazirepde)
( uwnfo)
(Sspuesnoy J, ur s1e[jo(q)
ST0T ‘1€ 19quIdI( JO SV

NOILLVIDHIdAd dALVINNNDDV ANV ALVLSH TVAY - I A TAddHIS
SHRAVIAISANS ANV 'ddOD IDNVNIH ALTVHY dVLSHLION

147



s1eak 6¢ ¥1-00Q LTEL €1 8SH'L L89'Yy 1LL'T — L89°F 1LL'T 6¥9°S 3N 981000 1§
steak 6¢ ¥1-09@ 1€6°CC 8¢ 91G°€T LEO'TT 6LY'T — LEOTT 6LY'T T18°LT 31N ‘uowwo)) Furuuog
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-99@ LIV'E 79 6LY'E 81TT 1921 — 81TT 1921 S€9°T 3N ‘Sundwog
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-00 80T'ST 0LE 8LS'ST 69T°€1 60€°T — 69T°€1 60€°T 66L°TT 3N ‘poomydh p-1opun-uoydiys
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-00Q 866°L 881 981°8 8TL'9 8SH°T — 8TL9 8SH'T 00Z'9 3N ‘seoudAds
SIeak 6¢ ¥1-00Q SIS9 vET 6¥9°9 LLLY TL8T — LLLY L8 9€0°S 31N ‘Surureog
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-09Q 7896 €€T L16°6 £€€°8 ¥8S°1 — £€€°8 ¥8S°1 TIS'L 3N ‘dryones
s1eak 6¢ y1-99@ 188°¢ €11 ¥66°€ 16¥°€ £0S 1 08t°€ £0S 685°€ O ‘wares
s1eak O Lo-ung 886 1sT 6€T1 LLTT 79 — LLTT 79 6TL NI ‘dqaysny
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-09a 9€5°G1 €€ 688°ST SPSTI rhe'e — SPSTI rhe'e SE0°TI 3N “Weys[puay
s1eak 6¢ y1-09Q YLET 8 9St'T SIT'T 824 L 80C°C 824 685°¢ YO ‘puowpay
s1eak (f gr-ung €89°L LES 0TT'8 0T6°L 00€ — 0T6°L 00€ LLY'S NIN ‘1032014
s1eak 6¢ y1-09a 686 85T LYT'S 916’y 1€ ST 106y 1€ 918y g0 ‘oqadulg
s1eak Oy Lo-ung 0TL'L 90LT 9TY'6 886°L 8EV'l — 886°L 8EV'l 856y NI ‘08eii0d
s1eak () LO-unf 8%y s8Il 999°S 8€S°S 8Tl — 8€S°S 8Tl 1L¥'€ NI ‘ynowA|d
s1eak (f gl-ung 999°C 60T SL8T ST8°T 0S Tl €89°C 0S STLT NI ‘sprdey] yreq
s1eak (f yI-KeN vL891 L18 169°L1 850°9T €€9°1 — 850°91 €€9°1 LOS'TT IO “An) uosaiQ
s1eak 6¢ 71-99a 7859 LET 61L°9 816 108°T — 816 108°T 680°S 31N ‘uojedunN
s1eak 6¢ y1-99a S66°S 9T1 121°9 ¥0S‘y L19°T — ¥0S‘y L19°T 969y 3N PRYINN
s1eak O gr-ung 0€9°¢ 99T 968°¢ zL'e SLI 0L 159°¢ SLI €08°C NIAl ‘UOI] UTe)Unojy
SIBAA Of LO-unf ¥76°¢ 768 818Y LS1Y 1€9 — LS1Y 1€9 8Ty NI “9[[1ASI00]N
s1eak 6¢ y1-99Q €STHT 689 W6 rT ¥6S°€T 8P€T €L 1zs'eT 8P€T 88L°ST DN ‘d01uoy
s1eak 6¢ y1-99q 100°€T 913 9I€'ET SIETT 100°C — SIETI 100°C 980°01 SN WIS
s1eak 6¢ y1-99a 790°9 (43 7619 €69t 10S°T — €697 10S°T 169 3N ‘SSIT
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-99@ 101°CC €€9 YELTT 859°1C 9L0°T L9 165°1C 9L0°T 6L0°91 ON ‘uojujooury
s1eok 6¢ ¥1-92a SILY 06 S08y LTT'E 8LST — LTTE 8LST 6€9°€ 3N RrEMYSIT
s1eak 6¢ $1-99Q LYL'S 121 898°S €8LY S80°1 789 660t S80°1 vy 3N soma]
s1eak 6¢ #1-00@ 08Ty 601 68€'Y 068°€ 66 — 068°€ 66 yTe'e 3N AT
s1eak (Of y1-KeN 0ST'ST S9L SI6'ST LSSHT 8S€°T — LSSPT 8¢€°T P01 O ‘uoueqaT
s1eak (f Lo-ung 905 STl 1€9 78S Ly — 78S Ly 06¥ NI ‘28ueIne|
s1eak of y1-KeN IPLTT L¥9 88€°TI 896°01 0Tyl — 896°01 0Tyl W96 JO ‘opuein ]
sreak 6¢ v1-9d 96781 961 T66°81 69L°91 €7TT 43 LIL9T €7TT YOE'ST ON “o[epysiuy]
s1eak (f y1-KeN 9¢S ! 0SS €1 Le€ — €1 Le€ £re EERERIGIGIENY|
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-00Q 0SS°T€ 208 4543 0$8°8T 205°€ — 058°8T 205°€ Y0S¥T 31N ‘sowey [, uodn uojsuryy
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-09@ 06ty 801 865y 058°¢ 8¥L — 058°¢ 8L €8¢ 3N “ouIpIedury
s1eak Of LO-unf S81°C §  9¢s $ ITLT 15T § 0IC § — $ 1IST §  0lIC $ €T $ NI ‘stjodeuerpuy
pandwo) paamboy ®10], uopedadaq o)) BI0L syudwdAoxdury puey syudwdAoxdury syudurdAoadury puey sdQuUeIqUINdIUY ANe)s ‘O
st uonedadaq Aeq pajenuNIdY 29 Surpping 2 sguip[ing 2 Suipping uoned0|
YOIYAA U0 Y1 ‘pue]
H uwnjo) O uwngo) J uwnjo) POLIdJ JO 3SO[D) )& PALLIE)) JUNOWY SSO0.1D) uonisinboy 150D [eniuy g uwnjo) V uwnjo)
7 uwnjo) 0} Judnbasqng D uwnpo)
pazirepde)
( uwnfo)
(Sspuesnoy J, ur s1e[jo(q)
ST0T ‘1€ 12quadd( Jo Sy

NOILLVIDHIdAd dALVINNNDDV ANV ALVLSH TVAY - I A TAddHIS
SHRAVIAISANS ANV 'ddOD IDNVNIH ALTVHY dVLSHLION

148



s1eak Of #1-AON SETSI S9¢ 008°S1 L8I'Y1 €191 778 £reel €191 820°S1 AN ‘uonouny stjodeuuy
s1edk Of ¥1-A0N €EL°6T SLOT 808°0€ 0TL'9T 880°t 1443 9LE°9T 880°t 78L°8T TN “10qly uuy
s1eak G| p1-ung G818 SL8 090°6 80L°9 T5€T €6 9LL'S T5€T 000°8 14 ‘ssundg apuowely
s1eak Of #1-AON. 1S¥°9C €26 YLELT 179°ST €SL°1 628°1 T6LET €SL°1 785°61 JAN “enbrenbnqpy
s1eak Of #1-AON 906°6C 7€0°T 0¥6°0€ 72092 816t 861 ¥T8°ST 816t YTELT AN ‘Aueqry
s1eak Of p1-ung 16T°1€ S¥T'T 9€5°ee 609°6C LT6E vTr'l S81°8C LT6E 006°6C XL ‘UosIppy
S1710H
YLS V66t LLY'TLT 1ST°99T°S LOT66LY ¥v0°L9Y 12C°59 986°€ELY ¥v0°L9Y 69L°ST0' Y (0P TEIWIEIH [€)0L,
156°'LET 0Tr'9 1LEYPT €9°81¢C 806°ST 8.8 S8S°LIT 806°ST 1€€°6€C s[eidsoq [ejo L,
SIeaA 6¢ #1-920 S89°p1 ¥9¢ 6+0°S1 99601 €807 € 7€6°01 £80% 9E¥°LT VO “[emioN
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 S6L°61 65S 7S€0T 1861 €87 79 608°61 €87 86€°CI 3O 99503sn
s1eak 6¢ #1-92Q 89Syl yLE o'yl el 0zL'l |84 181°€1 0zL'T S6S°S1 1N “Kermpy
s1eak 6¢ #1-92Q 6L8°1€ (43 1€L°TE S60°8T 969y L8 800°8C 969y SLT6T VD ‘so[osuy so]
SIedA 6¢ $1-920 T0I°T1 LLT 6LETI 1L6°6 80%°1 53 0t6°6 80t°1 1€6°C1 V1 “onokeye]
SIeak 6¢ #1-920 1€5°6 444 SLL'6 61L°8 950°T LT 7698 950°1 S¥6°01 OW ‘urdog
s1eak 6¢ #1-020 11¥Cl LLE 88L°CI SLITI €19 8¢ LETTI €19 LTE Y] XL ‘djquny
s1eak 6¢ #1-020 ¥26°0T 855 4414 6TT61 €5T°T LST TL681 €5T°C 679°€C XL ‘u0jsnoyq
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 L86°6S #99°1 15919 LT8'SS ¥T8°S SL1 T59°SS ¥T8°S L8E'SS VO ‘eudpien
s1edk 6¢ #1-99Q 18611 20€ €8C7°C1 SS6°01 8TE‘1 143 126°01 8TE‘1 6L6°C1 O ‘Blqunjo)
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 L6ETI 943 LTI TLOTI vL9 8¢ #€0°CI ¥L9 €8L°6 O ‘neaprenn ade)
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 169°81 00S 161°61 19€°L1 0€8°1 S LOELT 0€8°1 97911 VO ‘suapy
Sppndsoqy
8SL°LTL £68°8C 119°9SL 8LE8S9 £€T'86 T66°L 98€°059 £€T'86 T8€°TLS SANI[IdE] SUIAI PAISISSY [E)0,
s1eak 6¢ ¥1-920 961°1 8T ¥TT'l €66 1€ — €66 1€ LT6 SN VOMIAR X
SIBdA 6¢ ¥1-99Qd 8599 6Cl L8L9 129t 91°C — 129t 91°C I1°s 3N “nesseq UONOOM
SIBdA 6¢ #1-920 LS6°8 01¢ L91°6 0SS‘L LI9T — 0SS°L L19°T 6’9 N TsuA
s1eak 6¢ #1-920 €0S°L sl SS9°L PO¥'S 1ST°C — F0¥°S 1ST°C 86L°S 31N ‘ouIoquIIp
s1edk Of Lo-ung (Y44 S6L 811y L 96€¢ — TTL'e 96€¢ 6LY'T NI ‘MesIepy
s1eak Of LO-unf 9¥LS 81¢°1 9T'L 1L €51 — 1L €51 966°S NI ‘esnrexesy
SIBdA 6¢ ¥1-99Q 610°L 091 60T°L $SL'S SSH'1 — $SL'S SSH'1 09%°S SN ‘S[PM 23puqun,
SIedk 6¢ #1-920 €€8°1T 019 P £06°1¢C 6€S — $06°1¢C 6€S 86691 3N ‘UoyuIppa L,
s1eak Of pI-KeN 768°S (1197 TTE9 S6L'S LTS 8¢ LEL'S LTS €709 1 ‘easueMg
s1eak 6¢ Lo-ung 6 S6 LEOT 844 96S — 844 96S 996 NI ‘ueAlng
s1eak 6¢ #1-020 yz8'ST  $  psE $  8LI9I $  9L9°TI $  T0S¢E § — $  9L9T1 $  T0S°€ $  vsTTl $ N PR IS
63:&5:0 —uo.-_-—voA\ 1ejo, :c_eﬁmoo.:—aﬁ— ©)©) 1elog, m«:@EP»G.—&Em pue] m«-&EP»P-QEm ma-—@E&ZZQEm pue] sueIqUIMIUY djels ,%H_Q
st uonedadaq Aeq pajenuNIdY 29 Surpping 2 sguip[ing 2 Suipping uoned0|
UIIYAA U0 I ‘puey
H uwnjo) O uwngo) J uwnjo) POLIdJ JO 3SO[D) )& PALLIE)) JUNOWY SSO0.1D) uonisinboy 150D [eniuy g uwnjo) V uwnjo)
7 uwnjo) 0} Judnbasqng D uwnpo)
pazirepde)
( uwnfo)
(Sspuesnoy J, ur s1e[jo(q)
STOT ‘T€ 1qUIdII( JO SV

NOILLVIDHIdAd dALVINNNDDV ANV ALVLSH TVAY - I A TAddHIS
SHRAVIAISANS ANV 'ddOD IDNVNIH ALTVHY dVLSHLION

149



s1eak Of #1-AON €91°0S 016°1 €L0°TS 1€8°81 wi'e 124! L8T'LY wi'e 61L Y [N ‘yroqeziig
s1eak Of p1-ung £60°0€ L89°1 08L1¢ 6€L9T 1+0°S 8LSC 191°%C 1+0°S 0S0°LT VO ‘opungog 14
s1eak Of y1-8ny €8L°0T T61°1 SL6IT T1661 £90°C TLI'T 0rL81 £90°C T6%°0CT XL ‘osed 14
SIBAA (f ¥1-A0N 867°C1 L6V S6LTI ILLTT ¥20°1 799 601°T1 ¥20°1 011°01 VO ‘yning
SIBAA O p1-dog 0Tyl TIL Terel 0v9°01 W6v°T e 6101 W6v°T 12L6 HO ‘wiqng
18K O p1-dog P81°4C ¥ST'1 8EH'ST PI¥1C ¥20y L61 LITTT ¥20y YSLLT Td ‘Teloq
SIBOA G p1-ung 760°9% STTS 61€°1S 190°CH 8576 444 619°1% 8576 00%"LY 00D “ToAud(q
s1eak Of yI-8ny 1126 8TS 6€L6 €968 9LT‘T ST6°1 8€99 9LT'T 8719 X1 ‘uojue(g
s1eak Of p1-dog T0€91 266 6T L1 8EY'SI 968°1 71 L6T'S1 968°1 96¥°€1 A ‘uloqreaqg
SIBAA O #1-A0N LYol (Y44 L6801 999°6 1€2°1 $9 109°6 1€2°1 S10°8 1D ‘Amqueq
SIBAA Of #1-AON 10T°Y1 0LS ILLYT IvL€l 0€0°1 $SS°1 L81°TI 0€0°1 099°C1 XL ‘se[jed
SIBdA Of #1-AON T07°81 €89 S80°61 6vTLT 9€8°1 811 1€8°91 9€8°1 €LSHT [N ‘Amquer)
s1eak Of y1-8ny 66L°8 08S 6LE6 7106 S9¢ 0L9 Pre'8 S9¢ T9L9 XL ‘e[[mo)
s1eak Of p1-dog 768°¢1 SLL 69911 #98°C1 S08°1 081 #89°C1 SO8°1 #09°01 HO ‘snquinjo)
SIBA Of y1-dog 0tS*8 S $80°6 689°L 96€°1 61¢ OLYL 96¢°1 SyL'Yy VD ‘snquinjo)
SIBdA Of pl-ung ILTL 447 SI9°L ¥Tr'9 161°1 06T PEI9 161°1 008°S AN ‘elqunjo)
SIBdA Of ¥1-AON LOT'€E €T 6Er' e #09°1€ SE8°C 6€LE S98°LT SE8°C 889°LT 00 ‘s3utidg ope1o[o)
SIeaA G yl-ung 11#°C1 879°1 6€0°11 PLETT §99°C 766 08€°0T $99°C 09$°C1 [N TITH AL1oy)
s1eak Of y1-dog LTL'81 080°T L0861 00L°81 LOT'T 881 TIS8I LOT'T 6v9°11 DN ‘anoprey)
s1eak (f 71-A0N 15961 769 SHE0T LE88T 80S°1 18 9GL°81 80S°1 16¥°61 ON ‘[I'H [odey)
SIBdA Of #1-A0N €LTST SL6 8+C°9C 969°%C 758l 6S1°C LESTTT 758l 86£°81 ON ‘Are)
SIedA Of pl-ung 877°0C TSLT 002°CC 69991 1€5°S 4! LS9l 1€5°S 0S¥°0T VO ‘Treqdue)
s1edk Of p1-dog ¥SS1T 09L rIETT LTI'El L81°6 101 920°€1 L81°6 €9L°61 VO “jied euang
s1eak Of #1-AON TI8°TT 8y €6T°TI 699°11 %29 00L 69601 %29 PLY 01 XL ‘Q[rasumolrg
s1eak Of p1-dog 108°1¢C 9LI'T LL6TT 12€°0T 959°C vLI L¥1°0T 959°C SI6°LI NLL ‘poomjudrg
s1eak G| y1-ung 919°1T 88%°C YO14C 9%0°0C 850t 1T $T0°0C 850t 0T9°0T VA ‘TPwog
s1edk Of p1-dog 81¥'1C S61°1 €19°CC T0€°0C 1ec Y€l 891°0C 1ec 6€1 71 HO ‘Usv onjg
s1eak G| p1-ung LTV 789 601°6 10L°L 8011 8LT €TY'L 80%°1 090°L AN ‘uojurey3ure
s1eak Of p1-ung SSE°0S 789°C LEO'ES 4 S50l 79T 0T6°6€ S50l 00T°SY VO ‘Juowpg
s1eak G| p1-ung LSE8T €20°¢ 08€°1€E 0T6'+C 09%°9 S¢ S88%C 09%°9 001°8C VM ‘enasfog
s1eak Of #1-AON €SI LS S60°ST 1es'el PLS'T 89¢ €56°T1 PLS1 9ILYIT V1 “98noy uojegq
s1edk Of p1-dog €06°L1 910°1 616°81 6£8°91 080°C 8T1 11L°91 080°C €01°ST VD ‘Bsndny
s1edk Of pl-ung 0T8°LI L10T LES'BI SH0'91 T6L°T 81LT LTEET T6L°T 0L9°91 [N AND dnuepy
s1eak Of pI-dog/p1-unf  1€0°8% 618°C 058°0S SOv'Ey Sh'L SItv'y 066°8€ Sh'L 708°¢ce VO ‘BIUERY
s1eak Of pI-deg/pT-unf  $99°¢e TIe 9LL'SE 96¥°CE 08¢ 8¢ 111°ece 08¢ 10€°6T XL ‘uojsurpry
s1eak (f y1-8ny LEL9 S vy $ I8I°L $  TLLY S 60t 1414 $ 8559 $ 60t LLEL $ 3O “10wpry
63:&:—:0 ﬁo.:-—voA\ 1ejo, :c_eﬂ_oo.:—aﬁ— ©)©) 1elog, m«:@EP»Q.—&E— pue] w«:uE?»Q.-QE- ma-oEoZ:nE— pue] sueIqUIMIUY djels ,%H_Q
st uonedadaq Aeq pajenuNIdY 29 Surpping 2 sguip[ing 2 Suipping uoned0|
UIIYAA U0 I ‘puey
H uwnjo) O uwngo) J uwnjo) POLIdJ JO 3SO[D) )& PALLIE)) JUNOWY SSO0.1D) uonisinboy 150D [eniuy g uwnjo) V uwnjo)
7 uwnjo) 0} Judnbasqng D uwnpo)
pazirepde)
( uwnfo)
(Sspuesnoy J, ur s1e[jo(q)
STOT ‘T€ 1qUIdII( JO SV

NOILLVIDHIdAd dALVINNNDDV ANV ALVLSH TVAY - I A TAddHIS
SHRAVIAISANS ANV 'ddOD IDNVNIH ALTVHY dVLSHLION

150



SIBdA G p1-ung 798°61 88%°C 0S€CT €L¥°0T LL8T TLl 10€°0T LLST 009°61 VM ‘POOMUUAT
s1eak (f y1-8ny S¥9'8 LTy TLO6 LE6L SEI'L 0L SET'L SEI'L 9106 XL “ooqqny

s1edk Op-G 1 p1-unf 8€8° T01°¢ 0v6°'LY 1890 6ST'L LLL 706'6€ 6ST'L SLY'Ph A Q[[IAsmo
SIBAA O #1-AON 6€8°C¢ €80°1 Te6'Ee £79°6C 6LTY 9¢t LOT'6T 6LTY £05°5T VO ‘sojwe[y so]
18K O pl-ung 6SLST £90°T 7891 LyLp1 SLOT 6L 899°v1 SLOT 0vT91 TNl “BTUOATT
SIBdA G y1-ung S8T'L S8 orl‘8 189 66T°1 €IS 8T€9 66T°1 080°8 A ‘uoj3urxa]
s1eak Of #1-A0N #5861 €69 L¥S0T 190°81 98%°C 89 €66°L1 98%°C 91781 [N ‘uoueqaT
SIBAA Of p1-unfg 6vTIT 69%°1 81L°TT 621°0T 68S°C LES'E 76591 68S°C 0ST'8I1 XL ‘seutjo) se’]
SIBAA O y1-8ny €E0°T1 9Ts 6SS°11 9L6°01 €8¢ 061 98L°01 €8¢ 959°01 XL ‘opare]
SIBdA Of y1-dog 9L 09 99¢°C1 87701 816°1 901 eol 816°1 1€7°9 AN “1oAopue]
S1edk Of yI-8ny #08°ST 00T°1 #00°LT 96T 80S°C €18°C €89°1C 80S°C 1€1°CC VO “IoIsedue]
s1eak Of y1-8ny 166°L S6¢€ 98¢°8 €78°L €96 0t6 £88°9 €96 L8L'L V1 ‘Onakeye]
s1eak (f gr-ung 6€LE1 LST 966°€1 9EF T 09S°1 L 6Ty Tl 09S°1 F1ETT HN ‘duoay|
SIBAA Of p1-ung T90°L1 901°1 891°81 18LF1 L8E°E 601°1 TL9EL L8E°E 0SH'S1 AN ‘e1pue[s|
S1BdA Of Hﬁ..%m 1S0°%€ YOLT SSLSE LOVTE 8h¢'E STTT T81°I€ 8h¢'E €T8°LT X1 Buralf
SIBdA Of p1-dog 008°€1 9 l2aad! e att 000°€ €51 16T°11 000°€ LLS'E1 AN “Ad[[EA JUnH
S1edA Of #1-A0N 9969 81T 78€°L9 016°9S LY 0T 960°T 718°SS LY 0T TI1'6S XL ‘U0ISNOR
s1eak Of y1-8ny SLOET L¥9°1 LY 1€1°€T 165°1 [439 665°TT 165°1 19€°€T V1 ‘ewnoy
s1eak (f yl-ung 090°8 €L9 €EL'8 YLE'L 65€°1 809°1 99L‘S 65€°1 0LL'9 Vd ‘WeYSIOH
SIBdA Of ¥1-A0N 0€S°LI 119 17181 OLI°LT 1L6 79¢ 808°91 1L6 0S8°91 TV ‘POOMIWOH
SIedA Of p1-dog PEL'YI L08 I¥S°ST 769°C1 6¥8°C 99 979°C1 6¥8°C 08€°Y1 VA ‘UOpUIOH
s1eak Of ¥1-AON €I8°SI 019 €Tr91 413! 116 LS9 SS8°p1 116 799°¢1 AN ‘o8neddney
s1eak G| p1-ung 9LT'¥1 ¥LY°T 058°S1 1Trel 6Tr'C 96€ ST0°El 6T¥'C 00L%1 Vd ‘Smqgsuey
s1eak Of #1-A0N 661°L1 €65 T6L'LI 10S‘¥1 16T°¢ €€9°1 898°C1 16T°¢ 98yl X1 ‘uoSurfrer
s1eak (f 1-dog S€6%9 98¢ 12€'L 11+°9 016 (431 6LT9 016 0TLT VA ‘uoydurey
s1edk Of pl-ung LT6°TT ¥T8°1 ISLYC £70°TT 80LC €LET 0L9°61 80LC 008°0C A ‘Bmgsioyiren

SIBOA -G 1 pI-dog/p1-unfr  970bE (372 69t°9¢ TTI'Le LYE6 vLI 876°9C LYE6 809°G¢ VO ‘Juowaly
s1eak Of gr-ung 6161 |§47 07861 €LYLI L96°1 — €LYLI L96°1 S06°S1 VIA ‘UIpjueL]
s1eak Of gr-ung 1S5°61 10 756°61 678°L1 €01°C 9 €V8°LI €01°C 995°81 VIA ‘USnoI0qxoq
s1eak Of #1-A0N T6£9 8¢ ¥L9°9 666°S SL9 6 LO6°S SL9 1109 XL YHOM 1O
s1edk Of p1-ung $€8°0€ 70T 9€0°€E 779°9C P1%°9 979°1 9667 P1%°9 0SS°0€ T4 ‘yoeag uoje 1O
s1edk Of p1-ung 8r€01 €L 6L0°11 6L0°T1 — ws LES 01 — 056 (o) 1d “o[epiopne] 10,
s1eak Of #1-AON £65°5T 868 16¥°9C 858°4C €€9°1 S9¢ €611 €€9°1 1€2°9C VM ‘Aep [eIopag
s1eak Of p1-dog 10T°C1 16€ T6S°C1 0198 786°¢ 598 SYL'L 786°¢ 108°6 VA ‘Xejlre]
s1eak (f #1-AON LLT0T TIL $  6880C 7€0°81 §  SS8T Sly $  6I9°L1 $  SS8T 098°1¢C $ AN ‘projswyg

pandwo) paamboy ®10], uopedadaq o)) BI0L syudwdAoxdury puey syudwdAoxdury syudurdAoadury puey sdQuUeIqUINdIUY ANe)s ‘O

st uonedadaq Aeq pajenuNIdY 29 Surpping 2 sguip[ing 2 Suipping uoned0|
UIIYAA U0 I ‘puey
H uwnjo) O uwngo) J uwnjo) POLIdJ JO 3SO[D) )& PALLIE)) JUNOWY SSO0.1D) uonisinboy 150D [eniuy g uwnjo) V uwnjo)
7 uwnjo) 0} Judnbasqng D uwnpo)
pazirepde)
( uwnfo)
(Sspuesnoy J, ur s1e[jo(q)
ST0T ‘1€ 19quIdI( JO SV

NOILLVIDHIdAd dALVINNNDDV ANV ALVLSH TVAY - I A TAddHIS

SHRAVIAISANS ANV 'ddOD IDNVNIH ALTVHY dVLSHLION

151



s1eak (f 1-dog L9Y'El 808 SLTYI L1T°T1 850°C 8LE 6€8°11 850°C 61€6 VD ‘Yeuueseg
s1eak (f p1-dog £69°61 016 £09°0T 0S€'ST €ST'S L6 €6TST €ST'S 0€S°IT VO ‘euy ejues
s1eak G| p1-ung S¥0°9€ T66°T LEO'8E 780°0€ SS6°L S LLO0E SS6°L (Sards VO ‘osof ues
s1eak (Of p1-dog 69LF€ 80L°T LLY'9€ LLY'9€ — (44 Sse'9€ — YETTE (9 VO ‘ounig ues
s1eak (f y1-8nv 896°LS L19°¢ S81°19 986°CS 661°8 668°¢ L8061 661°8 608t X1, ‘Oruojuy uesg
s1eak y1-80v 008°61 0STT 056°0T 901°0C 778 86L°CT 80€°LT 7r8 $¥9°9T X1 ‘o[esuy ues
s1eak Of p1-unf 901°0€ LE6'T £70°T€E ¥L69T 690°S 431 Th8°9T 690°S 000°0€ [N “ToARY 9IppeS
s1eak (f pl-ung 960°8C 966°1 T60°0€ LEE9T SsLe 1007 9€€°TT SsL'e 0TsTT 1 YUOwWsOY
s1eak (f yl-dog/pI-ung  8TI‘IT Il 6€T°TC €S6°LI 98T 995 L8ELT 98T Pr6°61 AN “I[IAYO0Y
s1eak (f 71-AON L88F€E LTTT 710°9€ 1L¥'8T £VS°L L6T YLI'8T EVS°L YTe'LT VA ‘o¥oueoy
s183K 0p-S 1 ﬁﬂ%& 869°0% L€8°T ses'er £Te'se qazcs 1€LC T65°sE [4tay £rsoy VA ‘puoumyorg
s1eak (f 1-dog 6¥€TT 9% S68°TI v15°6 18€°€ |84 €LE6 18€°€ TTIol VO ‘BAOPI0)) oyouey
s1eak Of y1-dog 6€0°ST L€8 9L8°ST 00¥°€T 9LY'T 901 YT €l 9LY'T 9T6°01 ON ‘ysterey
s1eak (f Y1-A0N 6584C €L8 TEL'ST SLT'ET LSY'T 87S°1 LTL1T LSY'T 91781 [N ‘uojeouLiyg
s1eak (f y1-AON 67T'ST 126 0S1°9C YT8%C 9z€l 9T1 869'%C 9T€l 8€0°0C AN ‘orsdoayjysnog
s1eak (f gr-ung T0L°TT €0 S0T'€T SL9°0T 0€S°T 9% 679°0C 0€S°T 8IH°LT HN ‘pnowsyod
s1eak Of p1-ung 901 89L PI0°TT 0L9°6 24! SL $65°6 243! 000°0T HIN ‘puepod
s1eak (f 1-dog 819°0C ¥T6 TLSIT SEL'ST LE]'S 6L 959°GT LES'S £0SvT VO ‘uojuesed[d
s1eak (f y1-8ny LES'ST LTL #95°91 €rE0T 12T°9 L€ 986°6 12T°9 6¥S Y1 VO ‘yoeog owsiq
s1eak (f 1-dog €00°L1 €58 9$8°LT STeel 165y 48! €ITel 165y LS9'€ET ZV X120y q
s1eak (f y1-8ny 991°6 89 v18°6 9688 816 901°1 06L°L 816 LSS'9 VO ‘orepued
s1eak G p1-ung S19°¢€ 186°€ 965°LE LLTTE 61%°S L9T 016°1¢€ 61%°S 0$8°CC VO ‘oLeiuQ
s1eak Of p1-ung SE6°TI 0€6 §98°TI STI'TI 0rLT (44 £09°0T 0bLT 009°0T VD ‘SSOIION
s1eak Of y1-AON LOL'ST 8€0°T SYL'6T LTT'9T 8I6°¢ 79T $96°ST 816°¢ LLY'TT NI “@I[TAYseN
s1eak (f y1-ung SOLTT €SL 815zl L1T°01 10€°C SLE w86 10€°C 00S°T1 714 ‘sojdeN
s1eak (f p1-dog L0991 88 T61LT 9IT'ST 9LTT or€ 9L8F1 9LTT 61€°6 1 “of[razeden
s1eak Of p1-ung T9L°€T 6¥L 01SFT 90Z°T1 Y0€°T wuy'e vEL'S Y0€°T 089°L [N ‘[oIneT JUnojA
s1eak Of $1-AON 7179 068 201°LT 8L0°€T ¥20'Yy 88Tl 06L°1T ¥20'y 89L°1T DN “OI[IASLLIO]N
s1eak Of p1-ung ¥9S°LE 0Z0°C ¥85°6¢€ €11°9C ILY'ET 8k §99°6T ILY'ET 091°1€ [N ‘UMOISLLION
s1eak O p1-ung 0Ly ¥E 998°1 9€€°9¢ 680°8T LYT'8 01T 6L8°LT LYT'8 SLO'PE [N ‘S[EAJUOIN
s1edk Of SI-nf 9E1°0¥1 208 8€9°Th1 8€9°TH1 — S€l 00S‘TH1 — 00S°ST1 (9 14 ‘Twely
s1eak (f p1-dog 0LETT LTL L60'ET 908°01 167°C €8¢ €T 01 16T°C LTETT N ‘styduwopy
s1eak Of F1-AON S69°1€ 8S0°T €SL°T€E 121°0€ 69T €€5°T 885°8C 69T $S0°6T VIN ‘PIOJPIIN
s1eak (f y1-8ny 06%°ST 698 65€°91 LTTYT TEI'T 6T1°1 860°€T TEI'T SE6ET XL ‘PIoYsuey
s1eak (Of gr-unf LTSY9 S 89€°T $  $68°S9 yI8°LS $  180°8 06 §  ¥TL'LS $ 1808 95€°61 $ HN ‘I0189ydue

pandwo) paamboy ®10], uopedadaq o)) BI0L syudwdAoxdury puey syudwdAoxdury syudurdAoadury puey sdQuUeIqUINdIUY ANe)s ‘O

st uonedadaq Aeq pajenuNIdY 29 Surpping 2 sguip[ing 2 Suipping uoned0|

UIIYAA U0 I ‘puey
H uwnjo) O uwngo) J uwnjo) POLIdJ JO 3SO[D) )& PALLIE)) JUNOWY SSO0.1D) uonisinboy 150D [eniuy g uwnjo) V uwnjo)
7 uwnjo) 0} Judnbasqng D uwnpo)
pazirepde)
( uwnfo)
(Sspuesnoy J, ur s1e[jo(q)
STOT ‘T€ 1qUIdII( JO SV

NOILLVIDHIdAd dALVINNNDDV ANV ALVLSH TVAY - I A TAddHIS

SHRAVIAISANS ANV 'ddOD IDNVNIH ALTVHY dVLSHLION

152



s1eak Of p1-8ny L¥L‘8T 96L £¥5°6C 86L°0C SPL'8 = 86L°0T SHL'8 T88°LT 1 ‘05eary)
s1eak Of y1-8ny T6L'S S0T L66°S Tee’s S99 — TEeS S99 'y DS ‘uoisafrey)
s1edk Of y1-8ny 9196 18T L68°6 8EVL 65S¥°T — 8EV'L 65S¥°T 7689 I “Hed pioypag
s1edk Of y1-3ny 1SS°L €5 $08°L $99°9 6E1°1 — 5999 6€1°1 09€°S HO ‘SIngsuim, 29 eromy
s1eak Of y1-3ny S09°L 9T 698°L 0669 6L8 — 0669 6L8 1567 0D ‘epeAly
IPrsapuy
IS DN
LL6°€TO'E €IL°6ST 069°€81°C SLT9SL'T SIv'LTY 9$S°L0T 61L°8Y9°CT S LTy 1€7'8T9°C S[9)0H [B)0 ],
SIBAA Of Sl-unf 81€°ST (0149 868°ST 96€°€T T08°T 6 LYE'€T T08°T 16981 VIA “10)S00I0 A\
s180K Op=G1 wvﬂ. \%& TTE‘eh vL'T £90°9% AN 916's LI Pr6°'8€ 916's SIThe 1D ‘10SpuIm
s1edk Of #1-A0N 651°8C 11 00€°6C 790°LT 8€T°T SST°l L06°ST 8€T°T TSt DN ‘uojguruyip
s1eak Of pr-ung 905°91 L90°T €LS'LT SI6Y1 859°C 9TET 66S°€T 859°C 0St'ST Vd ‘9A0ID MOTIIM
s1eak Of #1-AON T68°6¢€ 601°1 196°0t S9L°0¢ 961°01 €€9 Teros 961°01 YTE'LT AN “Amqisop
SIBAA Of #1-A0N 08S°I1 994 SE0°TT PI0°T1 120°1 786°1 0£0°6 120°1 9768 Td ‘Yoeag wed 1S9
SIBAA Of p1-dog LTS01 s 660°11 L¥0°6 750°C 65¢ 889°8 750°C 7€0°8 T4 “OUIMOQ[IIN 1SOM
SIBdA Of #1-AON L9T1°TI €91 0€9°CI €E8I1 L6L 8€1 S69°T1 L6L 120°T1 Vd ‘PERISOWOH 1S9\
s1edk Of p1-dog SYTET 651°1 a4 €65°0C 118°¢ (4! ¥H0T 118°¢ €9L°61 Vd ‘oukepy
s1eak Of p1-dog €LTEL €18 980°F1 9LS°TI 01S°T 681 L8ETT 01S°T €9€°01 TN ‘UoLIE A\
SIBdA Of p1-dog 69S°L 98¢ SS6°L €609 798°1 9L L10°9 798°1 660°S VA ‘Qordg BIuISIA
SIBdA Of ¥1-AON I7€°0€ Il sy L81°8C S6T°E Wl SY0°8T S6T°E IvT1€ VA ‘BUUSIA
SIedA Of y1-3ny 12L6 87S 69701 LE96 €9 €65 106 €9 66°L VO ‘swied dUIUATUIM L,
SIeak G| y1-ung SSH'6C SLTE 0€L°TE 086°9C 0SL‘S LT1 £€98°9C 0SL‘S 009°8C VM ‘BlImyny,
s1eak Of 71-AON 990°1¢ 9LIT e L66°8T SYT'e S98°1 TET'LT SYT'e 61€¥%T ZV ‘uosong,
1824 Of-G T pI-dog/pr-unfr  TIT°LT 10¥°C TIS'6C 9L5°9T 9€6°C LOTT 69t°ST 9€6°C £SH1T TN “Ao1L,
S1edk Of p1-dog 19€S1 9L9 LEO9T 0L8°01 LIT°S 992 #09°01 L9T°S #S8°TI AN ‘umojkire]
S1edk Of #1-AON. 601°91 (0149 6¥9°91 8ESHI 111°c €3 LOTY1 111°c SE6°El 14 ‘edwe],
s1edk Of p1-dog YE1°0T S9I°T 6671 €L6'81 9TET €01 0L8°81 9TET 0€9°91 T “o9sseye[[eL,
s1eak Of #1-AON. €5E°LT 6€9 T66°L1 SETII1 LSLT 89¢ L98°ST LSLT S6£°91 [N ‘}9s19W0S
s1eak Of $1-AON 0L8°TT P8y PSEEl 658°T1 S6t 7881 LOOTT S6b Se8°8 HO ‘uojos
sIeak G p1-ung 859°L $ 888 $  9vs'8 $ Tl S vl $ 0TIl $ 2009 $ vl $  ovTL 10 ‘uoyPys

pandwo) paamboy ®101, uopedxdoq o)) BI0L syudwdAoxdury pue syudwdAoxdury syudurdAoxdury puey sdueIqUINdUY EITATNUN (9

st uonedadaq e Pajeunddy 29 Surpping 29 sguip[ing 2 Suip[ing uonedo|

YOIYAA U0 1] ‘pue
H uwnjo) O uwnjo))  uwnjo) POLIdJ JO 3SO[D) JE PILLIE)) JUNOWY SSO.ID) uonismboy 350D [epIuy g uwnjo) V uwnjo)
7 uwnjo) 0} Judnbasqng D uwnjo)
pazirepde)
 uwnjo)
(Sspuesnoy J, ur s1e[jo(q)
ST0T ‘1€ 19quIdI( JO SV

NOILLVIDHIdAd dALVINNNDDV ANV ALVLSH TVAY - I A TAddHIS

SHRAVIAISANS ANV 'ddOD IDNVNIH ALTVHY dVLSHLION

153



s1eak Of L0-90d T8Y°TT $91°¢ 9%9°sT L¥8'8 66L°91 — L¥8'8 66L°91 LT8'8T VO ‘sepndpy
S1edk Of 90-1BIN LEYYT 0rE'6 LL6EE LOETE 0L9°T = LOETE 0L9°T ¥L9°ST NI ‘stjodeuerpuy
s1edk Of LO-TEIN 096°9C P68°L PS8E pssiIe 00€°€ — pssiIe 00€°€ €9€°8C DS ‘[N Mo
s1eak Of LO-AON STH°9C PHI°L 65S°€€ ¥81°6T SLEY = ¥81°6T SLEY = HO ‘snqunjo)
s1eak Of 90-Inf L9E°6T T60°6 65t8¢ 608°S€ 089°C €T 98L°s€ 089°C YLI0E 00 ‘eromy
»yjo

785°50€ S00°6 L8SHTE 168°1€T 9€L°T8 LSYT Y61°0€T 9€L°T8 $T8°S0T [eLysnpuy [e)oyqng

s1eak (f y1-8ny 781°8 LST 6€7°'8 86L°9 179°1 — 86L°9 179°1 £7€°8 ON ‘Wo[ES-U0ISUI A
SIBAA (7 y1-3ny TE8Y 081 [A0XY I1SEY 199 = I1SEY 199 808F JUARLEILINY
1834 O p1-3ny 1658y LOL 8€T 6 Tee’61 906°6C — Tee6l 906°6C 0€8°8T VO ‘UOWIDA
s1edk O p1-3ny 9LL'S LLT £56°S 6167 PEOT = 6167 PE0°T 00€°€ [N “oIejoIoy [,
s1eak Of y1-8ny ILY'T 8¢ 6TS°T 0€€T 661 — 0€€T 661 880°T T “e0sseyE[eL,
s1eak Of y1-8ny 01z'e pIT yTe'e 110°¢ €I¢ = 110°¢ €I¢ 9St'T HO ‘9[[1AsSuong
SIBAA Of y1-3ny €676 or€ £€8°6 996°8 L98 — 996°8 L98 ££9°9 VD ‘URJUNOIA SUOIS
SIBAA O y1-3ny 909°¢ €01 60L°€ ILLT 8¢6 = ILLT 8€6 1LY'T O ‘SIN07 1S
SIBdA Of y1-3ny 8LLTI 824 61T°€l 91L°0T €05°T — 91L°0T €0$°T €L9°L I “PUB[[OH yInos
s1edk Of p1-3ny 856°S 81 901°9 Tshe ¥$9°T = 453 ¥$9°T 91T I e ([0S
s1eak Of p1-8ny S06°S 4%4 6€1°9 881°'S 159 — 881G 159 18€°S AN ‘10159700
s1eak (f y1-8ny 95H°€ €1l 695°€ 6S€C 01T1 = 6S€°C 01T°1 S0T'C Td A wueld
SIBAA Of y1-8ny SLLOT 189 9S¥°1T €PL81 €ILT — €PL81 €ILT 0Tsel ZV ‘Xiueoyq
SIBdA Of y1-3ny 9ILT 941 1+8°C 885°C €T = 885°C €T 9L0°C NI ‘UOUIOA [ION
S1edk Of y1-8ny 0L6°S T61 791°9 SLI'S L86 — SLI'S L86 080 XL ‘S[ITH PUe[yory yHoN
s1edk Of y1-8ny 08L'8 £9¢ P16 861°L ST = 861°L SP6°T T68°S VD ‘SSOIION
s1eak Of p1-8ny L1TT1 8¢ 665°TI PTrIl SLI'T LS9T L9L6 SLI'T #90°6 TN ‘uoisog maN
s1eak (f y1-8ny 0€1°e 9¢1 99T°¢ wi‘e el = wi‘e vl 15T A PIRYAEIN
SIBdA Of y1-8ny 0959 ¥TT ¥8L°9 ¥8%°S 00€°T — 78%°S 00€°1 0TS A 9[[IasImoy
S1edk Of yI-8ny S09°T 29 L99°T [l 17e = [ 12C [4qa X1 ‘19)eMape[D
s1eak Of p1-8ny v99°¢ 24! 808°¢ 743 £9¢ — 743 £9¢ TI8C N “Toser]
s1eak Of p1-8ny £66°T €6 99T [l 81 = Il 281 0r6°T TN “Jepuio
s1eak Of y1-8ny TI6's $0T 9119 vLSY WSl — YLSY sl 0S6°€ NI ‘Oure1d uapy
S1edk Of y1-8ny €01°8 (143 £ri'8 669°L L = 669°L YL Th8's OS ‘Asjseq
s1edk Of y1-8ny 001°C1 LEb LESTI PIPTI €Tl — PIPTI €TI1 €E6°L VD ‘Injeasq
s1eak Of pI-8ny 88 43 €16 6£9 YLT = 6£9 vLT 009 X1 DSy sndio)
s1eak Of p1-8ny 9Lb 0€ LS9 €ETIE 01581 €29°C1 — 01581 €29°CI T81°61 VO ‘uoydwo)
s1eak Of y1-8ny 1€9°L $ T9C $  €68°L 06€°L $  €0S § — $  06£°L $  €0S 618°S $ HO ‘PUE[2A[D

63:&590 —uu.—_-mvo{ djeq 1eloq, =o_aﬂ_uo._n~0ﬁ— ©)©) 1elog, ma-—@E?»Q.-n—Em pue] w«=qu>o.~a—E~ ma=uE0>c.~ﬂ—E~ pue] suUeIqUINIUY RALAEN Jﬂu_U
st uonedadaq pPajenuINddY 2 Suip[ing 2 sguipjing 2 Suipping uonedIO|
YIIYAA U0 I ‘pue]
H uwnjo) O uwno) A uwnjo) POLIdJ JO 3SO[)) )& PALLIE)) JUNOWY SS0.15) uonisinboy 350D [enIuy g uwnjo) v uwnjo)
q uwnjo) 0} Juanbasqng D uwnjo)
pazifende)
( uwnjo)
(Sspuesnoy J, ur s1e[jo(q)
ST0T ‘1€ 19quIdI( JO SV

NOILLVIDHIdAd dALVINNNDDV ANV ALVLSH TVAY - I A TAddHIS

SHRAVIAISANS ANV 'ddOD IDNVNIH ALTVHY dVLSHLION

154



6ST°TOL'S §  EII°TIS §  TLEEITO TSL'SIT'8 $  0T9LYO'T $  +SET8I $  86£°€86'L  $  0TYLKO'T S  90TESI‘L $ 810, puer)
S8L6Y1 6059 Y6795 1 LLTTET L10°ST 6589 81+ ¥T1 L10°ST 886°CI1 0YJO JUBUII-DINIA] [BIOL,
s1eak Of SI-1eN 89L°6 16L 655°0€ €9T°1T 9676 81 6L0°1C 96T°6 €0L°1T VO ‘SYeQ puesnoy],
s1eak (f P1-AON 9T 11 009 798°11 €IT°01 ISL°T 99 L¥0°0T ISL°T 785°8 VO ‘0321(] ues
s1eak Of S1-994 TILL 0LE 1808 #S0°L LT0O1 L6 LS69 LT01 150°8 0D “9[[Iasmo]
s1eak (f S1-994 £65°¢ 44 SLL'S 680°S 989 SLe 718% 989 TLEY 0D ‘poomaeT]
s1edk Of S1-994 81701 S6v €1L°01 1L6'8 Ll e 6¥L'8 [47A YTL'L 0D “98e[[IA POOMUID)
s1eak Of S1-994 SI€9C 698 Y81°LT L98°€T LI€€E 18S 98T°€T LIEE £€8°1T 00D ‘pooma|gug
s1eak Of p1-dog 19L°61 €91 77661 11881 €Il 096°1 16891 €Il €05°€l 00 “Toaudg
s1eak Of S1-994 106°¢ 86C 6617 LLO'E TTIl 184 9€0°€ (440! 1eL'e 00 ‘Pleywoorg
s1eak (f p1-dog €ES°LI #88°1 L1¥'61 79791 Ss1'e 1€6C regiel SS1'e 16S°11 00D ‘10p[nog
s1edk Of #1-300 19L°L1 L18 8LS'S1 0LL'9T 808°1 70S 89791 808°1 90611 XL ‘unsny
I, Q ~=S=N~|.=~=§\
€76°€ES PITEL LET'LO9 €66'8LY ¥i1°8C1 81LC SLTILY Yr1°8T1 810°98¢ 3589 JON [BI0L
669°Cy 68T'S1 886°LS SSHIS €059 — SSHIS €059 €TLEE [1e39Y [e)03qng
s1eak (f 90-dog 86€°S 1161 6069 785°S STel — 78S°S STl SLY'S S “BIYIIM
s1edk Of 90-dos 786°€ SOLT L899 L899 — — L899 — orz'e (9 A ‘PUB[IOJ YINOS
s1edk Of 90-dog 916°¢ 6TS°1 SHi's SHb'S — — SHb'S — LOT'Y (6 VI “010Ga[nV Y1ON
s1eak Of 90-dos L8Y'Y LOS'T 766°S 766°S — — 766°S — €Ty (© YIN “Knqn
s1eak Of 90-dog 6L1°T 800°1 L81°E L81°€E — — L81°€E — €L6°€C (6 AN RIIIAPIN
s1eak Of 90-dog SOE°L 879°1 €568 0T6°S £€0°€ — 0T6°S €€0°¢ — HN ‘oueay]
s1eak (f 90-dog 6£5C €01°1 wo‘e w9‘e — — w9‘e — — () NI ‘2ukep 110,
s1edk Of 90-dos 0TL'8 19T 19€°T1 91T°6 SrIT — 91T°6 (S A4 £8Y°L HN ‘p109u0)
s1edk Of 90-dog LIy LEY'T 018°S 018°S — — 018°S — s (¢TI “o[epSurwooyg
iz
T79°681 026°8% 79S°7€T LS9S61 S06°8€ 190°1 965761 S06°8€ 0LY 9P1 IYJO [8I01qng
s1eak Of y1-8ny SOI°TI (924 8¥S°11 €E°01 SITl — £Ev01 SIT'T 1269 VO ‘0JUIWRIORS 1SIM
S1edk Of y1-8ny S08°S 97T 1€0°9 TTs'S 60S — TTs's 60S 0L0% VD ‘Yeuueseg
s1edk Of So-8ny LTy 0659 LES0T S91°0C L9 Sty 0rL61 7L 99°C1 1N A oeIEs
s1eak Of 90-Te]Nl T9'LI €LY S6£°TT LLT9T 8119 €19 799°S1 8IT°9 981°S1 [N “Kemexooy
s1eak Of y1-8ny 769°€ €1 £78°¢ 169°C 430! — 169°C TEI'T 789°C T4 ‘e[odesudg
s1eak Of y1-8ny 06T°¢ $ b1 $ cev'e 898°C $  $9¢ § — $  898C $  $9¢ LT91 $ Td ‘B[e00
@3:&590 —uu.__-vo{ djeq 1eloq, =o_aﬂ_uo._n~oﬁ— ©)©) 1elog, ma-o-:?»o.-n—:: pue] wﬁ—@E?yOh&Em me=uE0>c.~ﬂ—E~ pue] suUeIqUINIUY RALAEN Jﬂu_U
st uonedadaq pPajenuINddY 2 Suip[ing 2 sguipjing 2 Suipping uonedIO|
YIIYAA U0 I ‘puey
H uwnjo) O uwno) A uwnjo) POLIdJ JO 3SO[)) )& PALLIE)) JUNOWY SS0.15) uonisinboy 350D [enIuy g uwnjo) v uwnjo)
q uwnjo) 0} Juanbasqng D uwnjo)
pazifende)
( uwnjo)
(Sspuesnoy J, ur s1e[jo(q)
ST0T ‘1€ 19quIdI( JO SV

NOILLVIDHIdAd dALVINNNDDV ANV ALVLSH TVAY - I A TAddHIS
SHRAVIAISANS ANV 'ddOD IDNVNIH ALTVHY dVLSHLION

155



“UOI[IW 6§ Jo Judunredwr 9e)so [eal Sunerodo 10 90UBMO[[E U SOPN]OUI [€)0) pueIs oy

"S10T ‘1€ 10quiedd( Jo se uolf[iq $'z1$ st sasodind xe) owoour [eIopa) 10§ 1500 9183013y

‘o110j310d UBDLIOWY ULIJLID) Y} Ul o[es 10} p[oy santadoid 03 paje[ar uoIf[Iw G| ¢ JO sSUIMOLIOq SOpN[ouf
"1s910)ul 993 a1e sanodoid 1oto [y A1rodord oy ur 3sa10IUT PlOYOSEI] B SIUdsAIdoy

“uorjIu G/$ Jo Suroueuly [0A9] orjojyiod sopnjoxyg

"S10T ‘1€ 10quiedd( Jo se uone[sues) Aouarmo ugioro} sopnjour sontadord "3 ) 10 1509 [enuf

9)
(9]
()
(€)
(9]
(D

I8L°SE9°T §  11T91C $  T66°1S8T S 169°9LT°C $  10€°SLS §  LET'LS $  ¥SP61TT $  10€°SLS $  ¥TI6TTT $ d[eS 10J PIOH $IISSV [€I0 ],
s1edk Of $1-90/$0-3deS  91H°0L $€T91 05998 1S9°1L 66671 09 16€°1L 66611 195°9¢ ) PO
SIBdA 0¢-01 er-un/er-idy zL1%0¢ S60%C L9T'8TE 8L1°€8T 680°St 60%°ST 69L°L9T 680°St 60L°6YT Aprueynny
s1eak Of ST-AeN £€T'8T8 (YARA 80T 8T0°SSL 08€°L8 87€'¢ 00LTSL 08€°L8 112879 O1[0J}104 SUISNOH IOTUdS
s18aA 0¢-01 SI-0/T1-2d  096°TEF'T $ LOLT91 S L9976S°T S PES99I’T $ ces’Lty  $ ovTse S ¥65°8TIT $  €€8'LTy S EYOPLTT $ SUISNOH parmjoenuejy
J[es 0] P]9H S19SSY
payndwo) paambay ageq [elo], uonendIdaq (o)) [30L syudurdAoadury pue syudurdAoadury syudurdAoadury pue sadueIqUINIUG EITATNUNT 19
st uonedadaq pajenunddy 2 Suip[ing 2 sguipjing 29 Surp[ing uoned0|
YOIYAA U0 1] ‘puey
H uwnfo) 0 uwnfo) 4 uwnjo) POLIdJ JO 3SO[D) JE PALLIE)) JUNOWY SSO.I0) uonisibay 350D [enIuy g uwnjo) V uwnjo)
 uwnjo) 0) Juanbasqng D uwnjo)
paziende)
J uwnjo)

(spuesnoy J, ut saefo(q)
ST0T ‘1€ 19quadd( Jo sy
NOILVIDTIdAd AALVINANNIIV ANV ALVLSH TVHY - III A TNdAHDS
SHRAVIAISANS ANV ‘d0D HONVNIA ALTVII AVLSHLION

156



NORTHSTAR REALTY FINANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE III - REAL ESTATE AND ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION (Continued)
As of December 31, 2015
(Dollars in Thousands)

The following table presents changes in the Company’s operating real estate portfolio for the years ended December 31, 2015,
2014 and 2013 (dollars in thousands):

2015 2014 2013
Beginning balance $ 10,561,057 $ 2,561,180 $ 1,538,489
Property acquisitions 3,459,006 8,057,261 1,598,837
Transfers to held for sale (2,843,762) — (29,097)
Improvements 150,197 37,955 11,706
Retirements and disposals (24,179) (5,531) —
Deconsolidation of N-Star CDOs — — (558,755)
NRE Spin-off (2,073,357) (89,808) —
Foreign currency translation (10,687) — —
Allowance for impairment (4,903) — —
Ending balance $ 9,213,372 $ 10,561,057 $ 2,561,180

The following table presents changes in accumulated depreciation for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 (dollars
in thousands):

2015 2014 2013
Beginning balance $ 349,053 $ 190,997 §$ 147,943
Depreciation expense 408,825 164,924 76,127
Assets held for sale (216,212) — (7,387)
Retirements and disposals (489) (6,347) (1,370)
Deconsolidation of N-Star CDOs — — (24,316)
NRE Spin-off (26,420) (521) —
Foreign currency translation (3,644) — —
Ending balance $ 511,113 $ 349,053 $ 190,997
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NORTHSTAR REALTY FINANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE IV - MORTGAGE LOANS ON REAL ESTATE
December 31, 2015
(Dollars in Thousands)

Principal
Amount of
Interest Rate Loans Subject
Periodic to Delinquent
Location / Maturity Payment Prior Principal Carryin Principal or
Asset Type " Description” Number Floating® Fixed Date® Terms™ Liens® Amount Value®?® Interest®”
First mortgage loans:
Texas /

First Mortgage - A Multifamily 1 — 15.00% 15-Oct el $ — 3 53,500 $ 53,500 § 53,500

First Mortgage - B California / Office 1 6.90% — 16-Oct 1/0 — 38,750 38,882 —

First Mortgage - C Miami / Land 1 15.00% — 15-Jun 1/0 — 38,190 38,763 38,190

First Mortgage - D UK / Healthcare 1 — 7.50% 22-Mar 1/0 — 49415 49,415 —

NY,NJ,CT/
First Mortgage - E Multifamily 1 4.00% — 16-Jan /0 — 28,920 28,920 —
0.00% to 0.00% to 15-Mar -

Other first mortgage loans Various / Various 8 6.00% 7.25% 16-Dec — — 104,810 60,078 4,180
Subtotal first mortgage loans: 13 — 313,585 269,558 95,870
Mezzanine loans:

0.19% to 0.00% to 16-Jun -

Other mezzanine loans Various / Various 7 4.00% 13.00% 23-Feb — 1,141,689 33,361 29,305 —
Subtotal mezzanine loans 7 1,141,689 33,361 29,305 —
Subordinate interests

Subordinate interests - A New York / Hotel 1 — 13.11% 23-May /0 — 61,750 60,926 —

Subordinate interests - B New York / Hotel 1 6.00% — 23-May /0 — 100,986 100,559 —

8.65% to 16-Feb -

Other subordinate interests Various / Various 2 2.00% 11.50% 23-May — — 8,308 8,296 —

Subtotal subordinate interests 4 — 171,044 169,781 —
Corporate loans

6.36% to 16-Jun -

Other term loans Various / Various 10 — 13.00% 29-Sept — — 37,364 32,830 —
Subtotal corporate loans 10 — 37,364 32,830 —
Subtotal CRE debt 1,141,689 555,354 501,474 95,870
Held for sale loans

Pennsylvania /

Held for sale - A Office 1 7.25% — 16-Sept 1/0 — 61,500 61,263 —

Held for sale - B New York / Industrial 1 12.22% — 17-Jun 1/0 45,906 27,000 27,000 —

Held for sale - C Various / Hotel 1 — 13.20% 16-Jul 1/0 62,117 54,350 54,350 —

Held for sale - D New York / Land 1 — 14.00% 17-Oct 1/0 148,550 40,250 40,250 —

4.00% to 16-Jul -

Other held for sale loans Various / Various 3 5.50% 14.50% 21-Apr — 23,204 41,937 41,814 —

Subtotal CRE debt held for sale 7 279,777 225,037 224,677 —

Total 41 $1421466 $ 780391 $ 726,151 $ 95,870

(1) Description of property types include condo, hotel, industrial, land, multifamily, office, retail and other.

(2) Certain floating rate loans are subject to LIBOR floors ranging from 0.25% to 1.25%. Includes one first mortgage loan with a principal amount of $5.8
million with a spread over prime rate. All other floating rate loans are based on one-month LIBOR.

(3) Represents initial maturity.

(4) I/O = interest only.

(5) The first mortgage loans on these properties are not held by the Company. Accordingly, the amounts of the prior liens at December 31, 2015 are estimated.

(6) Individual loans each have a carrying value greater than 3% of total loans. All other loans each have a carrying value less than 3%of total loans.

(7) There is a $2.2 million of loan loss reserve on two first mortgage loans and $1.2 million of provision for loan losses primarily related to exit fees on loans
held for sale. Excludes $0.8 million of provision for loan losses relating to manufactured housing notes receivables recorded in assets of properties held for
sale.

(8) For Federal income tax purposes, the aggregate cost of investments in mortgage loans on real estate is the carrying amount, as disclosed in the schedule.

(9) There are three loans that have principal or interest delinquencies greater than 90 days.

(10) Includes certain loans financed in consolidated N-Star CDOs.
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NORTHSTAR REALTY FINANCE CORP. AND SUBSIDIARIES
SCHEDULE IV - MORTGAGE LOANS ON REAL ESTATE (Continued)
December 31, 2015
(Dollars in Thousands)

Reconciliation of Carrying Value of CRE Debt:

Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
Beginning balance $ 1,067,667 $ 1,031,078 $ 1,832,231
Additions:
Principal amount of new loans and additional funding on existing loans 199,602 323,215 806,138
Interest accretion 13,775 21,103 1,284
Acquisition cost (fees) on new loans — (600) (4,032)
Premium (discount) on new loans — (7,078) 16,116
Amortization of acquisition costs, fees, premiums and discounts (13,780) 11,193 28,480
Deductions:
Collection of principal 534,478 279,272 274,354
Deconsolidation of CDOs (refer to Note 17) — 9,709 1,134,713
Provision for (reversal of) loan losses, net 3,435 2,719 (8,786)
Transfers to affiliates — — 115,797
Taking title to collateral — — 135,361
Transfer to held for sale 224,677 15,223 —
Unrealized (gain) loss on foreign currency remeasurement 2,442 2,084 (2,300)
Realized loss on foreign currency remeasurement 758 2,237 —
Ending balance $ 501,474 $ 1,067,667 $ 1,031,078
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